

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION  
 NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  
 STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
 DIVISION OF OIL, GAS, AND GEOTHERMAL RESOURCES

Public Hearing in the Matter of: )  
 )  
 GAS STORAGE FACILITY )  
 WELL SAFETY REVIEW )  
 \_\_\_\_\_ )

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS  
 Woodland Hills, California  
 Thursday, February 2, 2017

Reported by:  
 LUIS HERNANDEZ  
 Hearing Reporter

Job No.:  
 13825CONS-MSA

1

1 APPEARANCES:  
 2 Presenters:  
 3 CEALAN MCGEE  
 4 Facilitator, Cal State Sacramento  
 5  
 6

13 INDEX

14 PUBLIC SPEAKERS:		PAGE
15	ISSAM NAJM	14
16	BILL JOHNSON	20
17	JOEL GOLDSTEIN	33
18	RICHARD MATTHEWS	35
19	GARY PASSMORE	36
20	GLORIA CALVIN	40
21	ANDREW KROWNE	41
22	CRAIG GALANTI	44
23	PAUL HUNT	47
24	CHRISTINE SOUTHERLAND	48
25	LORRAINE LUNQUIST	50
26	BILL MAXWELL	52

3

1 BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION  
 2 NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  
 3 STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
 4 DIVISION OF OIL, GAS, AND GEOTHERMAL RESOURCES

5  
 6 Public Hearing in the Matter of: )  
 7 )  
 8 GAS STORAGE FACILITY )  
 9 WELL SAFETY REVIEW )  
 10 \_\_\_\_\_ )

11  
 12  
 13 TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS, taken at  
 14 6360 Canoga Avenue, Woodland Hills,  
 15 California, commencing at 5:00 p m.  
 16 on Thursday, February, 2017, heard before  
 17 the DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION, reported by  
 18 LUIS HERNANDEZ, Hearing Reporter.  
 19  
 20  
 21  
 22  
 23  
 24  
 25  
 26

2

1 INDEX (Continued)

2	DANIELLE MICHAELS	55
3	CAMERON MICHAELS	61
4	TOM DAVIS	67
5	JACOB HECTOR	69
6	JOHN FLEMMING	71
7	MATT PAKUCHO	75
8	HELEN RIDNOUR	78
9	MARK GRECH	82
10	DARRYL PACK	84
11	DIANE PINKY HARMON	85
12	CAROL TRAVIS	96
13	JANE FOWLER	99
14	DARRYL GAIL	104
15	MIKE YOUNG	114
16	CHRISTINE GALANTI	127
17	JOHN KORVER	128
18	JIM SUMMERS	142
19	WALT FOLEY	144

4

1 Woodland Hills, California, Thursday, February 2, 2017  
2 5:00 p.m.  
3  
4  
5 MR. MCGEE: Thank you for coming. Thank you very much  
6 for coming. I'll introduce myself in a minute and talk  
7 about the meeting but first things first. As always in a  
8 meeting. Just a couple of safety updates in terms of  
9 should there be any reason to do so, to evacuate the  
10 meeting -- of course we're not looking for that -- then any  
11 of these doors can get you outside of the building. Those  
12 directly out the lobby and then outside and collect away  
13 from the building. If you go this way, there are red exit  
14 signs that will explain where to go. Also, there are  
15 restrooms in the lobby located that way and also if you  
16 head towards the main lobby of the hotel.  
17 I'm going to say it probably several times tonight.  
18 Thank you very much for coming. My name is Caelan, Caelan  
19 McGee. I'm a facilitator. I work for an independent  
20 center of California State University, Sacramento and I  
21 can say more, if useful, about who we are and I have a  
22 facilitation team here tonight.  
23 Many of you -- my job tonight, actually, my job -- is  
24 to help have effective meetings and to help make sure that  
25 all who want to participate in the meeting get to  
26 participate. I don't work for these agencies. This is

5

1 actually my full time job. I have a team here with me  
2 tonight. Many people were very disappointed that they did  
3 not get a chance to speak last night, tell their story,  
4 and get an opportunity to be on record. We very much want  
5 to provide that opportunity this evening. Some -- I see  
6 many faces that were here last night, but there are also  
7 some who were not. So let me start with some basics.  
8 And then I'll talk about the meeting agenda.  
9 The purpose of this meeting is to collect public  
10 comment on the safety review prior to a decision made on  
11 the injection for Aliso Canyon. This meeting is required  
12 by Senate Bill 380 and also the goal was to talk  
13 about forthcoming CPUC proceedings that ask larger  
14 questions about this facility. More on than that in a  
15 moment.  
16 Last night, as I mentioned, many people did not get  
17 a chance to speak and therefore tonight the majority,  
18 largely the entire meeting is dedicated to public comment.  
19 A little amazing for me to be saying this, but you'll  
20 notice there's a slight difference and a very important  
21 one between this agenda and the one that's on your seats  
22 and it's this line right here where by a sheer mistake the  
23 most important -- maybe only, anyway -- the most important  
24 agenda item was left off the printed version that you have  
25 in front of you. Please rest assured the majority of the  
26 night is dedicated to public comment.

6

1 Here is what happened last night for those who weren't  
2 here. We started the meeting and then as agencies began  
3 to speak, the meeting was disruptive and was pulled off  
4 track. We then decided -- partly tried to listen what was  
5 going on to skip the presentations because people were  
6 saying they wanted, they wanted their voices to be heard,  
7 so we went right to elected officials and community  
8 representatives and then we went right -- from there we  
9 went to public comment and public comment continued for a  
10 while until there was a point where it became clear that  
11 some were not going to be able to express their views and  
12 at that point we adjourned the meeting.  
13 So this evening, here is the flow of the -- as you  
14 might imagine, ever since last night I've gotten a great  
15 deal of feedback about what this meeting should be, what it  
16 should look like, suggestions that -- about how this could  
17 go. I've heard that people don't want to spend the time  
18 on presentations because that will cut into the ability  
19 for comment. I've heard others that said the opposite that  
20 they actually would like to hear the presentations.  
21 Please let me point out that on the Department -- the  
22 Division's website, the Department of Conservation's  
23 Website, is a recorded version of the presentation. If  
24 you're really interested in hearing it, let us know and we  
25 are prepared to do it, but I'm going to start the meeting  
26 with this agenda, which goes like this. I'm going to

7

1 stop talking in a moment, then we're going to go straight  
2 to elected officials, then we're going to go straight to  
3 public comment.  
4 Like I said, we got lots of suggestions on how to do  
5 this and the only equitable and manageable way that we  
6 found to do this was to work the speaker cards. So when  
7 we get to public comment, I have your speaker cards right  
8 here. I don't want to make you stand in line for hours,  
9 so I'll call two, three up at a time to do their comment.  
10 We will have a bar on the screen that demonstrates your  
11 amount of time and when it's over, I have a lot of people  
12 say we need to cut the mic right at the very end of their  
13 time and yet last night any attempts to not give you a  
14 chance to speak didn't go so well.  
15 So I'm going to ask you to do your very best to  
16 regulate yourselves, not for me and not for them, but for  
17 everybody that's in this room who came to want to speak  
18 tonight. And if it really does have trouble containing the  
19 timing of those, then we will have to use a tool or a  
20 tactic way of turning off microphones or something, but I  
21 would rather be less formal than that and let you speak  
22 and try to self-regulate.  
23 So we have Ken Harris here from the Division of Oil,  
24 Gas, and Geothermal Resources and we have Tim Sullivan  
25 from the California Public Utilities Commission. They're  
26 here to listen to you tonight. At this point, I would

8

1 like to call elected officials who have signed up to  
2 speak this evening and we'll get going. Thank you again  
3 for coming.  
4 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
5 MR. MCGEE: Assemblyman, Dante Acosta. Did I get that  
6 right? Please. And If you're comfortable, I think  
7 the podium is a great place to address.  
8 TAYLOR CRIDDLE: My name is Taylor Criddle. I'm  
9 representing Dante Acosta on his behalf. Last night our  
10 staff attended and took note of the feedback given by the  
11 community and we just want to thank you for letting us  
12 speak to you guys on this issue. Assemblyman Acosta grew  
13 up  
14 in Granada Hills. He's lived there his entire life and  
15 the health and safety of the community is of utmost  
16 importance, which is why he's co-authoring a bill  
17 introduced by Democratic Senator Stern SB146 that requires  
18 a prohibition on natural gas injections into Aliso Canyon  
19 to stay in place until the root cause analysis, which is  
20 currently in progress, is complete and made public and  
21 understood.  
22 Assembly member Acosta believes that we cannot move  
23 forward until our community knows for sure that this  
24 facility is safe and secure. This legislation also  
25 requires the California Public Utilities Commission to  
26 complete a review and determine the feasibility of closing

9

1 the facility in a reasonable timeframe so that the  
2 community will know the best course of action to move  
3 forward.  
4 It's obvious that this vital issue of the health and  
5 public safety of our community needs to be addressed.  
6 Citizens don't come to these types of meetings unless they  
7 really want to be heard and we just want to let you know  
8 that Senator Dante Acosta is listening. And our staff  
9 stands by to assist you whenever you need us. Assembly  
10 member Acosta wants to assure you that public safety and  
11 the health of the community is his top priority and we're  
12 here to work with anybody within the Porter Ranch area or  
13 wherever to help you out with whatever you'd like or need.  
14 Thank you.  
15 MR. MCGEE: Thank you.  
16 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
17 MR. MCGEE: I have a card here for Supervisor Barger,  
18 but I don't see her at the moment.  
19 ERIC [INAUDIBLE]: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen.  
20 My name is Eric [INAUDIBLE], I'm here on behalf of Los Angeles  
21 County Supervisor Katherine Barger. Very shortly you're going  
22 to be hearing testimony from the Department of Public Health  
23 official from Los Angeles County and the department of --  
24 the fire department for Los Angeles County regarding some  
25 studies that they are recommending for this facility.  
26 I'm here for one reason and one reason only to let you

10

1 know that the supervisor is very committed to this issue.  
2 Last night the supervisor was here along with State  
3 Senator Henry Stern and Councilman Mitchell Englander.  
4 This issue has united the three of them to stand for all  
5 of you because we work for you and we know that you all  
6 need answers and you all deserve it, quite frankly.  
7 So Senator Stern has introduced which by other  
8 colleagues just spoke of SB146. This bill will prevent  
9 the reinjection of gas into the Aliso Canyon facility and  
10 we're going to assure that all of you are granted answers  
11 because that what you're here for is answers. You're  
12 frustrated and you've faced some trials and tribulations  
13 and you've been evacuated and have health concerns and we  
14 understand that and Supervisor Barger has introduced a  
15 motion to the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors to  
16 support SB146 and we also sent a letter to Jerry Brown  
17 recommending that he pass this bill so that unanimously  
18 passed signed by all five supervisors introduced by  
19 Kathryn Barger. We're just here to ultimately let you  
20 know that we are here for you, and if you have any  
21 questions or concerns or if you want to reach out to our  
22 office, I'm going to be here for quite some time to answer  
23 all your questions. And I'm going to stop talking now to  
24 let you guys talk because that's what the point of this is  
25 is to let all of you talk so that way you get answers and  
26 we're here to facilitate that, so thank you very much.

11

1 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
2 MR. MCGEE: Councilmember Taj from the city of  
3 Artesia. Am I pronouncing your name correctly?  
4 Councilmember Ali Taj. I think I'll go check back on this  
5 one. Councilmember Gustavo Camelito. If I got that wrong,  
6 I'm going to blame the handwriting. Councilmember? I  
7 know that several people were in transit and are  
8 interested in coming tonight. So these elected officials  
9 -- someone said you guys had some traffic down here, so we  
10 might hear from these people soon. Marcelo Rodarte?  
11 Rodarte? This is interesting. Great, thank you. Either  
12 mic that you prefer.  
13 MARCEL RODARTE: Good evening, everyone. My name is  
14 Marcel Rodarte. I'm a former councilmember and mayor for  
15 the city of Norwalk. I am also now the executive director  
16 of the California Contracts Cities Association. We're an  
17 association of 70 major cities including Los Angeles, Long  
18 Beach, Glendale some of the largest cities in the county.  
19 We represent about seven million people. A couple months  
20 ago we heard from the gas company, actually [INAUDIBLE]  
21 sits on our executive board, so we're from the gas company  
22 regarding Aliso Canyon.  
23 So I'm going to read a letter that we wrote to the  
24 governor. It's not a direct letter of support, but it is  
25 a letter urging compliance by the Gas Company before they  
26 opened Aliso Canyon. "California Contracts Cities

12

1 Association is a membership-based organization consisting  
2 of 70 major cities that collectively represent more than  
3 seven million residents in California. One of our  
4 objectives is to advocate for collaborative policies that  
5 provide our constituents with the best service at the  
6 minimum cost.  
7 One of the tenants of our current legislative platform  
8 is to support policies preserving the role of local  
9 government and energy solutions to protect [INAUDIBLE]  
10 against rate increases. Over the past year, our member  
11 cities have become increasingly concerned about the  
12 reliability and affordability -- of our energy services --  
13 as a result of Aliso Canyon gas leak. Up to 75 percent of  
14 electricity consumed in our region is generated from  
15 natural gas and several of our largest commercial and  
16 industrial businesses and infrastructure providers rely on  
17 natural gas for their core operations. These include  
18 transit agencies, hospitals, and manufactures. Our  
19 association is concerned that in the absence of the  
20 storage facility at Aliso Canyon our members cities will  
21 be at greater risk of energy shortages and higher prices.  
22 It is our understanding that the state legislator  
23 enacted and you sign into law the Senate Bill 380 in 2015  
24 which outlined specific standards and protocols that may be  
25 implemented before the facility can be reopened. Several  
26 of our member city representatives and key state holder

13

1 groups provided -- in the development of the legislation.  
2 The Aliso Canyon facility is an important asset to the  
3 overall portfolio of the regional -- regional energy  
4 delivery. We continue to encourage SoCalGas to work  
5 diligently with the State of California by complying with  
6 all provisions of SB380 in order to mitigate any future  
7 energy shortages and higher energy breaks. We understand  
8 the concern that some of the local governments may have  
9 regarding the future and safety of Aliso Canyon and other  
10 natural gas facilities in and near their jurisdiction;  
11 therefore, we ask SoCalGas to work with our association  
12 and member cities to educate our local and elected and  
13 their constituents on the investments and steps SoCalGas  
14 has taken since the leak occurred to enhance the safety of  
15 its facilities and operation. Our association is  
16 well-positioned to assist in the facilitation of this  
17 important outage." Thank you all.  
18 PUBLIC: You used to be elected. [INAUDIBLE]  
19 MR. MCGEE: I want to -- I apologize. I, I will take  
20 responsibility [INAUDIBLE] and I'll work to keep that from  
21 happening if -- make sure this just elected  
22 officials during this period. I also want to acknowledge  
23 what just happened. I want to applaud you for turning out  
24 and making sure that your voice is heard on these things,  
25 and you just did so in a way that was Democratic and  
26 allowed someone to speak. There was a point in that where

14

1 you started making noises. If, if there are those noises  
2 such that someone actually can't participate, then we're  
3 going to have to do something, but I think that was  
4 admirable what just happened. Please pay attention to  
5 those around you in terms of body space, and language,  
6 and line of sight, and other than that, but other than  
7 that, I'm glad you're speaking your voice and allowed  
8 someone to speak as well. Thank you very much.  
9 Next is councilmember [INAUDIBLE] from the City of  
10 Bell. Last call or at least for now. From the City of  
11 South Gate, councilmember Jorge Morales. It's  
12 fascinating. Yeah. I'm not quite sure how that happened.  
13 Benjamin [INAUDIBLE]. This is very strange. How about  
14 Lisa Molton? Thank you.  
15 LISA MOLTON: Good evening. My name is Lisa  
16 Molton. I'm here for Congressman Steve Knight's  
17 office. Unfortunately, Congressman Knight could not  
18 attend tonight's meeting as he has official congressional  
19 business in Washington, D.C. this evening; however, he is  
20 tracking the issue very closely and is regular  
21 communication with multiple state and national public  
22 health and utility oversight agencies as well as community  
23 organizations directly and through his staff. During the  
24 gas leak of the Aliso Canyon facility, Representative  
25 Knight's parties were to protect the residents of Porter  
26 Ranch and to ensure that the situation resolved as quickly

15

1 as possible. After the leaking well was sealed, the  
2 safety of the community remained a top priority and the  
3 congressman worked to prevent similar tragedies from  
4 harming the community in the future. He continues to  
5 support implementing strong safety standards at the  
6 federal, state, and local levels like those in his Natural  
7 Gas Leak Prevention Act and those recommended by the final  
8 report of the Inter-Agency Task Force on natural gas  
9 storage safety which directly addresses the potential  
10 dangers associated with natural gas storage. As we move  
11 forward with the process of potentially reopening part of  
12 the facility, representative Knight urges state and local  
13 officials to adopt a safety first mindset. Any discussion  
14 of re-injection or withdrawal from the facility must  
15 strike a careful balance between the needs of the Southern  
16 California families that rely on gas and the need to  
17 assure the surrounding areas that they will never suffer  
18 again like they did during the week. We may not be able  
19 to undo the damage done in Porter Ranch, but we can and  
20 must take steps to make sure that another tragedy like  
21 this never happens again. Thank you.  
22 MR. MCGEE: Thank you.  
23 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
24 MR. MCGEE: So those of you who might need seats, we  
25 do have lots of seats up in here or on the sides if you do  
26 need seats. Thank you for coming.

16

1 PUBLIC: I have a question: Can you introduce these  
2 people. We have no idea who they are.  
3 MR. MCGEE: I'm happy to let these people introduce  
4 themselves.  
5 TIM SULLIVAN: Hello. I'm Tim Sullivan. The  
6 Executive Director of the California Public Utilities  
7 Communication. I've been a judge for about ten years  
8 before that, and I'm here to listen.  
9 KEN HARRIS: Ken Harris. State Oil Gas Supervisor.  
10 JASON MARSHALL: Jason Marshall. I'm the Chief Deputy  
11 Director of the California Department of Conservation  
12 which for those of you interested, we govern an  
13 organization in the Department known as DOGGR.  
14 SCOTT WALKER: I'm Scott Walker. I'm a Senior Oil and  
15 Gas engineer and one of the safety team leads that have  
16 been up in the well and the area since November.  
17 JUSTIN TURNER: Justin Turner. Chief Council with  
18 Department of Conservation.  
19 MALE SPEAKER: Matt[INAUDIBLE]. I'm with California  
20 Public Utilities Commission [INAUDIBLE] supervisor.  
21 MR. MCGEE: This gentleman on my left is our  
22 stenographer who's taking a full transcript tonight. Here  
23 are the speaker cards. As you can see, there are many.  
24 That's great. Let's do it. I think it means at least two  
25 things. First of all, we're going to try to be mindful of  
26 time so that we can cycle through, right? And get as many

17

1 as possible. Also, I fully expect that you're going to  
2 want to voice support for abuse that you feel is strong.  
3 Remember that that can cut into this time, so I'm not  
4 going to try to do rules about -- although, I'm  
5 considering -- productive way to go if you want to do that,  
6 and you let me know that when you really feel what you're  
7 going to say, so please just keep in mind your neighbors  
8 when you're speaking, and first on the list, actually, is  
9 the President of Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council, Issam  
10 Najm.  
11 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
12 MR. MCGEE: May I, Dr. Najm, before you begin, may I  
13 advance this line now and let me demonstrate the timer?  
14 Oh, I get to do that? Okay. So this is just a visual cue.  
15 It's hard to see, but it gets darker as it goes. At the  
16 end -- at the end of this is a very annoying bell. This  
17 is what it sounds like, okay? So I'm not going to try to  
18 subject us to do too much. Dr. Najm, when you're ready.  
19 MALE SPEAKER: So I have two minutes?  
20 MR. MCGEE: Yes, sir.  
21 ISSAM NAJM: Okay. Good evening. My name is Issam  
22 Najm, and I'm the President of the Porter Ranch Neighbor  
23 Council, representing more than 30,000 people in the City  
24 of Los Angeles. I'm here speaking on behalf of the  
25 Neighbor Council, not the City of Los Angeles. I have to  
26 say I was here last night and I want to say that the

18

1 meeting disruption that happened yesterday does not  
2 reflect the character of tens of thousands of law abiding  
3 citizens of Porter Ranch who have full respect for the  
4 Democratic process embodied in SB380 and in this hearing.  
5 I came on to the Neighborhood Council only because of  
6 Aliso Canyon, and it has consumed my life for the last  
7 year.  
8 MR. MCGEE: Sir, [INAUDIBLE] elected official, please  
9 take the time you need to speak.  
10 ISSAM NAJM: Thank you. You have received a lot of  
11 comments from us on the safety review and on the quality  
12 calculations, and I'm not going to go  
13 through them again. You heard a statement from us  
14 yesterday, and I'm not going to repeat the same statement.  
15 I'm going to talk about something different. I said I  
16 came on to the Neighborhood Council only because of the  
17 Aliso Canyon failure and it has consumed my life for the  
18 last year. I am one of the lucky ones who is not  
19 experiencing health problems, at least that I know of.  
20 But I cannot sit idle while my neighbors and friends go  
21 through this nightmare.  
22 From the beginning when the gas was still spewing out  
23 of its facility, I appealed to the County Department of  
24 Health to conduct a clinical study of the ailments that  
25 people were experiencing and I was turned down two times.  
26 They only wanted to do health surveys, and surveys do

19

1 nothing in this situation, and I know the Health Department  
2 is here today and I will beg you to consider this request.  
3 Over the last six months, I have spent hundreds of hours  
4 dissecting the gas supply demand and -- demand data in  
5 Southern California and spent 10 year of information  
6 making the case that the system indeed can be operated  
7 without Aliso Canyon.  
8 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
9 ISSAM NAJM: But I'm tired. I don't understand why  
10 I should have to do this. I don't understand why a  
11 citizen has to be out alone in the wilderness trying to  
12 find his way around these complex matters on his own. I  
13 somehow had the foolish expectation that the job of the  
14 government of the people, by the people, and for the  
15 people was to look after the well-being of those people.  
16 PUBLIC: That's right.  
17 ISSAM NAJM: And do what's best for them.  
18 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
19 ISSAM NAJM: I should not have to make the case to  
20 my government. My government should make the case for me.  
21 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
22 ISSAM NAJM: We have submitted to DOGGR and the DOC  
23 a proposal for a clear path forward that calls for the  
24 following and these were stated yesterday and I want to  
25 emphasize today for those who were not here. We want to  
26 maintain Aliso Canyon at it's current status which is

20

1 merely an emergency supply facility, not an operating  
 2 facility. And there needs to be a clear delineation of what  
 3 constitutes an emergency. We do not want games with  
 4 numbers. We need clear transparency that the gas company  
 5 provides the people and the government on what constituted  
 6 that emergency that required that withdrawal.  
 7 But we want to also in parallel and recognize and we  
 8 need the agencies to recognize that the facility is a  
 9 clear threat to public health and needs to be retired.  
 10 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
 11 ISSAM NAJM: We've identified -- we've identified a  
 12 clear expedited schedule for the retirement of this  
 13 facility. And we can implement the necessary changes in  
 14 the gas usage and delivery system can eliminate the need  
 15 for Aliso Viejo. This approach satisfies any and  
 16 every concerns about the gas supply shortages [INAUDIBLE].  
 17 While achieving the community's goal of ending this  
 18 nightmare. This solution is feasible. It only needs my  
 19 government to want it. In our humble opinion, if the  
 20 outcome is anything other than this, then it only means  
 21 that the concern over gas shortages is merely an excuse and  
 22 will only cement the people's belief that this government  
 23 is not of them, by them, or for them. Thank you.  
 24 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
 25 MR. MCGEE: Thank you, Dr. Najm. Last check for  
 26 elected officials in the room that are interested in this

1 commentary. Yes. They will be speaking, but since they're  
 2 not elected, they're coming next. And actually, it starts  
 3 there. Mr. [INAUDIBLE], are you ready?  
 4 SCOTT [INAUDIBLE]: Yes.  
 5 MR. MCGEE: Please, introduce -- please. As a standard  
 6 for everybody -- and partly for the transcripts -- let us  
 7 know who you are if you care to provide an affiliation  
 8 [INAUDIBLE].  
 9 SCOTT [INAUDIBLE]: Good evening. My name is Scott  
 10 [INAUDIBLE]. I'm a lawyer with the county of Los Angeles.  
 11 And after me is going to be the fire department and public  
 12 health department to talk as well. I wanted to let you all  
 13 know the County has been suing SoCalGas over the Aliso Canyon  
 14 leak for about a year now and the goals in this lawsuit are  
 15 to make sure something like this never happens again, so  
 16 we're continuing that fight in court. We were able to obtain  
 17 additional relocation benefits for folks in [INAUDIBLE]. We  
 18 want to provide -- able to get housecleaning for some folks.  
 19 So we're continuing to fight for folks in that legal  
 20 action. In terms of today, what I want to talk about is  
 21 the County has gone on record as opposing a decision to  
 22 allow the injunction until all the necessary stays are done,  
 23 which includes the risk analysis -- the root cause  
 24 analysis -- seismic studies, and a feasibility study the  
 25 PUC will be starting next week. So until those things  
 26 happen, there should be no decision.

1 Additionally, I'm here to talk about the California of  
 2 Environmental Quality Act, which is called CEQA. That's a  
 3 law that requires public participation, it requires an  
 4 analysis, and a thorough vetting of the project. We think  
 5 that this type of decision is subject to CEQA, it's an  
 6 important aspect to ensure all of you that your concerns  
 7 are being heard, that your comments are responded to, that  
 8 all of the alternatives are analyzed so that if there's other  
 9 things to be done, as some of the speakers have already  
 10 mentioned, instead of using Aliso Canyon, those are fully  
 11 explored and vetted. So we think -- a CEQA process should  
 12 be done and I -- I would really like to hear from DOGGR and  
 13 [INAUDIBLE] what they plan to do in regards to this matter.  
 14 If we have some time for that later I would really  
 15 appreciate that, and then also just want to underscore that  
 16 there should be a full investigation into the withdrawal of  
 17 gas that happened on the January 24 and 25.  
 18 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
 19 SCOTT [INAUDIBLE]: The County has paid a gas and  
 20 liability expert who's been looking into this and will be  
 21 submitting a comment on Monday, which is the deadline for  
 22 public comments. Preliminary investigation reveals that it  
 23 definitely should have been adequate supplies, it should  
 24 have been [INAUDIBLE].  
 25 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
 26 SCOTT [INAUDIBLE]: Just in closing, again, without

1 the root cause analysis, without the CEQA process, the  
 2 decision-makers don't have all the information. The  
 3 public doesn't have all the information, and you cannot  
 4 approve this re-injection. Thank you.  
 5 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
 6 MR. MCGEE: Next is Professor Matthew d'Alessio.  
 7 MR. JOHNSON: I was on the card with Scott.  
 8 MR. MCGEE: You weren't. You -- I will permit this,  
 9 but I obviously can't do it all night. Please continue.  
 10 MR. JOHNSON: I'll be real brief. Good evening,  
 11 everybody. My name is Bill Johnson. I'm chief of the  
 12 Hazmat Division of LA County Fire Department. I don't  
 13 want to be redundant with what folks have been saying and  
 14 certainly one of my assistant chiefs made his comments  
 15 last night and we will be submitting some written comments  
 16 that are going to go into a lot of detail of our review of  
 17 all the documents and all the processes that are going on.  
 18 But first and foremost and, you know, just to reiterate,  
 19 our concerns revolve around the completion of the root  
 20 cause analysis, the seismic safety analysis, and the risk  
 21 management plan.  
 22 We believe strongly that these things should be  
 23 completed before gas is allowed to be reinjected into the  
 24 facility and it's important for us as an emergency entity  
 25 for the risk management plan and emergency preparedness  
 26 functions of the plan be completed so that's a clear path

1 when an event should happen or should another event happen  
2 on how things should be done, what notification should be  
3 made, what kind of alert should go out et cetera, et  
4 cetera, et cetera. And we believe that this is a very  
5 important lesson to be learned from what happened this  
6 last year that many of these things did not in fact occur,  
7 and we want to make sure that the Southern California Gas  
8 has these plans in place so that it can be addressed  
9 should another event occur. And again, I want to, you  
10 know, allow all the other speakers to speak and I want to  
11 be real short. So thank you for allowing us to comment  
12 and we'll be sending written comments to [INAUDIBLE].  
13 Thank you.  
14 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
15 MR. MCGEE: Since we have two microphones, why don't  
16 I call the next two. So I'm hoping that you're Matthew  
17 d'Alessio.  
18 MR. d'ALESSIO: Yes, sir.  
19 MR. MCGEE: Welcome. Next is Daniel [INAUDIBLE]. I  
20 hope I was pronouncing that correctly.  
21 MR. d'ALESSIO: Hi, Matthew d'Alessio. I'm a geology  
22 professor at Cal State Northridge and I became a geologist  
23 because I actually wanted to make people safer in  
24 earthquakes. So here we are, looking at this facility that's  
25 got by a major active fault, so I want to thank DOGGR for  
26 reaching out to our colleagues at the National Labs and

25

1 asking for their advice about things and I want to concur  
2 with the findings in the letter that they put out. That  
3 there's, there's a risk from ground shaking and from  
4 casing deformation and fault rupture. And I also want to  
5 tell you that they, they urged us that we perform the  
6 probabilistic seismic hazard analysis for rupture and for  
7 shaking in a quote, "deliberate manner." But that hazard  
8 analysis has not been done. Those calculations have not  
9 been made, and I ask us, if, if this were a school, would  
10 it be permitted for us to open it and say, "We'll do the  
11 seismic hazard analysis later." No. That sort of  
12 negligence has actually been outlawed in California since  
13 1933, the Field Act. If this were a housing development  
14 built in this location where there's a known active fault,  
15 would you put your professional geology stamp down if the  
16 developer said, "Meh, we'll do this fault rupture analysis  
17 after people move in." But this is essentially the same  
18 situation that we're facing right now, except for the fact  
19 that this is not home. This is a natural gas storage  
20 facility. Something like 20 billion -- or, I'm sorry, 29  
21 billion cubic feet of natural gas that's going to go in  
22 and we haven't done the calculations. So we've got a  
23 mitigation plan. It's a little bit on the weak side. I  
24 think if you look at -- what they put on risk management  
25 plan for the Supplement Number 2 and we have a no  
26 calculation to quantify what the risk actually is. So I

26

1 urge you to complete that analysis before we actually  
2 start doing any pumping. Thank you.  
3 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
4 MR. MCGEE: Next, next on this side will be Angelo, I  
5 think it's Palomo. Please, sir.  
6 DANIEL [INAUDIBLE]: I'm Daniel [INAUDIBLE]. As  
7 residents of Porter Ranch for the last 23 years, my wife  
8 and I have raised our son and daughter in Porter Ranch  
9 in the same home. Now our son and his wife and our  
10 beautiful granddaughter live in their own home in Porter  
11 Ranch. Porter Ranch is our home. And we are here to stay.  
12 I'm here to protect our home from SoCalGas, DOGGR, and  
13 CPUC because we have lost trust in these organizations.  
14 SoCalGas has been poisoning the residents of  
15 Porter Ranch and the soil surrounding Aliso Canyon for  
16 many years. And DOGGR has been a required witnesses to  
17 this environmental disaster. In 1979, SoCalGas was  
18 allowed to remove safety valves out of SS25 well at Aliso  
19 Canyon without replacing it with a new one. Then on  
20 September 1st, 1992, DOGGR review and a stamp an oil and  
21 temperature survey conducted on SS25. The survey revealed  
22 that as early as November 7, 1991, there was a leak at  
23 SS25, which continued to be operated by SoCalGas with the  
24 blessing of DOGGR and CPUC. If the safety valves were in  
25 place, we would not be here tonight. If DOGGR and CPUC  
26 had done their job to protect the safety and welfare and

27

1 care for California residents, the massive 100,000 metric  
2 tons of methane blow up would have been avoided. Eight  
3 thousand families including school children would have not  
4 been relocated out of their homes and schools. SoCalGas  
5 should not be allowed to renew gas injections at Aliso  
6 Canyon until at least two requirements are met. First,  
7 the root cause analysis starting on what caused the  
8 massive blow up needs to be completed. Second, the health  
9 study that SoCalGas agreed to finance needs to be suitably  
10 funded and completed to determine what is causing so many  
11 residents in Porter Ranch continue getting sick. Finally,  
12 members of DOGGR and CPUC, you have an opportunity to  
13 rewrite your legacies by decommissioning Aliso Canyon.  
14 Shut this facility down forever.  
15 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
16 DANIEL [INAUDIBLE]: Let's clean up the soil. Let's  
17 clean up the soil and turn Aliso Canyon into a greenbelt  
18 and wildlife corridor connecting all the canyons and trails  
19 in Porter Ranch. Thank you.  
20 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
21 MR. MCGEE: Next over here will be Bill Jones. Sir,  
22 when you're ready.  
23 ANGELO [INAUDIBLE]: Angelo [INAUDIBLE] Deputy Director  
24 for County Department of Public Health. We mentioned last  
25 night that in addition to all the other requirements we  
26 have laid out, it's vital that the health study that was

28

1 envisioned earlier last year be completed. We're not  
2 talking about a study that has a scope like this. We're  
3 talking about a study that has a scope like this. The  
4 cost of it just so that everybody is aware of what we're  
5 talking about here is many millions of dollars and it  
6 takes place over the course of several years, okay.  
7 That's the kind of study that's required here. Public  
8 health officials at the county and the state level have  
9 come together and have developed the scope for that.  
10 The State Department of Public Health and the State  
11 Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment have  
12 specified the general scope of this and that's the  
13 magnitude of this study. Some people look at that and go,  
14 "Several million dollars and, you know, many years to  
15 complete?" I look at it as a very small price to pay for  
16 addressing the health needs and concerns of this  
17 community. You need the answers that you've been asking  
18 for some time. So, this gentleman that just came up and  
19 referenced the [INAUDIBLE] efforts to secure a agreement  
20 with SoCalGas on conducting such a study, for those of you  
21 that don't know this, my guess is most of you do,  
22 SoCalGas is backing away rapidly from that commitment they  
23 made last year. The commitment that we're making here at  
24 the County Health Department is the need is still the  
25 same, and if they back away, we're going to find another  
26 way to get that study committed to and funded.

29

1 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
2 ANGELO [INAUDIBLE]: We actually -- last night, last  
3 night we made it clear that the Division of Oil and Gas at  
4 the state level is the lead agency for this and they are --  
5 they may be excellent petroleum engineers but this is a  
6 public health issue.  
7 PUBLIC: Yes  
8 ANGELO [INAUDIBLE]: And it is not just they're  
9 referring to us on the health -- the health concerns of the  
10 community, they need to be committed to carrying through  
11 and supporting that this type of study be funded and be  
12 carried out. That's essential. It's as essential as any  
13 testing regime on the wells that we've gone through as  
14 well, because whether this facility stays closed forever  
15 or whether it resumes operation, having the type of study  
16 we're talking about is the only way this community will  
17 have closure to their health concerns and needs. Thank  
18 you very much.  
19 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
20 MR. MCGEE: Our next two speakers I called [INAUDIBLE].  
21 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: These are the people in charge  
22 of the future of Porter Ranch. I would like you to take  
23 into consideration of the illnesses [INAUDIBLE] where I just  
24 wanted to get my word in to you. But, you know, shut it  
25 all down. Health is important. Thank you.  
26 MR. MCGEE: And Herman -- Herman Hick. Did I do that

30

1 right? Great. So this woman is next and then you are,  
2 sir. Please. When you're ready.  
3 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: Hi. My name is  
4 [INAUDIBLE]. I lived in Porter Ranch for over 43 years.  
5 I was there before SoCalGas. I remember coming home from  
6 church one day and in our -- on our answering machine was,  
7 "Close your windows, shut your doors, and stay inside.  
8 This is SoCalGas. We have a minor leak, so stay inside and  
9 be safe." Well, for four months my grandchildren couldn't  
10 come visit me at my house, and then on Christmas Day my  
11 daughter said, "Oh, well, don't let them come out just for  
12 the day," and it smelled so bad out there we couldn't go  
13 outside. So I let them ride their big wheels in the house  
14 and they scuffed up all my walls, but that was okay because  
15 it was my grandchildren. But now SoCalGas because I  
16 didn't move out, they won't clean my house, they won't  
17 paint inside my house, they won't do anything for me. I  
18 coughed my lungs out for six months. I had eyes that just  
19 tear and do everything. They won't help me. My muscles  
20 ache so bad I can't even walk up my stairs anymore. I  
21 can't tell you my daughter suffered nose bleeds from all  
22 her years and she's 40 now. She moved away. She doesn't  
23 have any other problem. I spoke to you about it. My  
24 granddaughter grew up with bloody noses every time she  
25 spent a night at my house, not at her mom's. I developed  
26 asthma and severe bronchitis over the years. We had severe

31

1 nose bleeds after the blow out. The coughing, the headaches,  
2 and fatigue, and everything, the muscle pains, and all the  
3 stomach aches. We're going to be like the firefighters at  
4 9/11. We're going to suffer these things for years to  
5 come. I'll never know. That's why this health study is  
6 necessary. Because of all these things, we have -- they  
7 gave us all these air filtration systems but they don't  
8 pay for the necessary filters that we need that are so  
9 expensive. I had to empty and redo my pool because I  
10 didn't want my grandchildren swimming in that pool. We  
11 don't know what -- when was that? We don't know what  
12 exactly spewed out of those mountain hills, and so we do  
13 need those -- those health studies and besides that, because  
14 I lived there so long, a lot of people don't know that we  
15 had a huge landslide up there and that's very important  
16 because I know the land shifts and everything, but we had  
17 heavy rains one year and there was a huge landslide up  
18 there. Anyway. Shut it down, please. For our health and  
19 safety of our children, our neighborhoods, or they can buy  
20 me out for millions.  
21 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
22 MR. MCGEE: The next two speakers after this gentleman  
23 will be Arthur [INAUDIBLE] and Joe Goldstein. When you're  
24 ready, sir.  
25 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: That's right. Los Angeles  
26 has let me down. [INAUDIBLE] councilman of District 12

32

1 has let you down, and now it's time that you rise up and  
2 show me numbers that we can protest in a friendly matter  
3 to discourage this so-called gas poisoning towards any  
4 individual, any person living in Aliso Canyon and  
5 throughout all Los Angeles and our great Golden State, so  
6 tell me, Congressmen and Senators, are you going to let us  
7 down? You let us down on the [INAUDIBLE] site problem in  
8 Boyle Heights and Vernon. You let us down on the  
9 Paramount issue. All of that got shut down quickly, so  
10 now my concern is, are you really interested in our impact  
11 of quality of life? Are you really concerned for the  
12 elderly, the disabled, who've been impacted the most by  
13 the conditions of poor health, by the conditions of this  
14 gas leak? Because if I'm wrong, then let one person here  
15 say that I'm wrong. That's the point. Congress, get down  
16 here and shut this BS down. We're sick and tired of the  
17 lies from City Hall and the development that goes on  
18 around it. That's the reason why we can't live happily  
19 ever after in our community, in our town, and estate  
20 holders, yes, we're going to come in numbers. And to the  
21 gentleman from Norwalk, get the hell out of here because  
22 you are not representing any of these people because if  
23 you did, you would have been fighting from the beginning  
24 like [INAUDIBLE] who has done a God damn nothing for us,  
25 other than say that AB [INAUDIBLE] 18 is, is a prevention  
26 to help homelessness. No. Step up to the plate, Senator

33

1 [INAUDIBLE] and come here and help these people from Aliso  
2 Canyon. Hoorah.  
3 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
4 MR. MCGEE: I was calling Arthur [INAUDIBLE] and Joe  
5 Goldstein. Are you ready to speak? Let me check in with  
6 the audience. [INAUDIBLE] adding a little time. Is that  
7 appropriate? I'm going to keep doing that regarding the  
8 last comment. You are certainly welcome to express your  
9 opinion about your elected officials. It is getting close  
10 to the line of telling somebody else they can't be here to  
11 participate. It didn't cross that line, but it was close  
12 and so I appreciate that comment. I just want to note  
13 that. Please, sir. Either Mr. Arthur [INAUDIBLE], please.  
14 And then Joe, you're next.  
15 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: I heard a lot tonight, but  
16 I'm really upset about the fact that there hasn't been one  
17 word, not one word said about what you folks can expect to  
18 recover monetarily. What damages can you get? We're hearing  
19 about -- we don't like this. Shut it down. And all of  
20 that and I'll talk about that briefly in a moment. But  
21 what you folks can do and what it's easy to do is get a  
22 decent lawyer, file an action for intentional infliction  
23 [INAUDIBLE], loss of property or damage to property until  
24 your children get a probate order and represent them as well.  
25 This will all [INAUDIBLE] that wonderful resident lady just  
26 talked about with regard to -- with regard to asthma, lungs,

34

1 nose bleeds, headaches, stomachaches, et cetera. We've  
2 heard all about that. But how much money are you going to  
3 get for that? We haven't heard one word from that yesterday  
4 when I was here or today. Nothing, nothing, nothing. And  
5 that's a very simple thing to do. Get a decent lawyer and  
6 file a lawsuit for these things. Not so much for "shut it  
7 all down," this and that, and the other thing. You've all  
8 clapped. All of you have clapped to hear what these folks  
9 from the government in the varying departments including  
10 public health, including the council, including -- excuse  
11 me, the professor from Cal State Northridge, et cetera.  
12 They're all making sense and let them do it. Let them  
13 take these bums from the gas leak and really, really knock  
14 the living heck out of them. I wonder if any of you, I  
15 wonder of any of you folks have read the Daily News from  
16 -- the Daily News from January 22nd, it's a little more  
17 than a week ago.  
18 MR. MCGEE: Sir, let me just remind you of your time.  
19 Please, if you can wrap up.  
20 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Let me finish.  
21 MR. MCGEE: Yes, sir.  
22 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Let me finish. You folks  
23 did enough [INAUDIBLE]. In that article, we talked about  
24 how the jackasses from the gas company, et cetera, want to  
25 put in a big fat \$300,000 -- 300,000 as a monetary commitment.  
26 The BMQ, the Bureau of Air Quality Management has counted

35

1 that by saving millions of dollars on these [INAUDIBLE]  
2 over the next few years, et cetera. We've got to do  
3 something but let them do it. You all clap for them  
4 when they spoke. Let them handle it. Let them handle it  
5 and you folks go ahead and sue for what you deserve.  
6 Lots, and lots of money.  
7 MR. MCGEE: Sir, I have to remind you of your time  
8 now.  
9 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Yeah. I know. You're very  
10 good at shutting people up.  
11 MR. MCGEE: Actually, I'm asked to do so so we can get  
12 into the speakers.  
13 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: All right. I just want to  
14 say one more thing.  
15 MR. MCGEE: Okay. So, sir. Please try to wrap it up  
16 in the next 20 seconds.  
17 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: I'll -- I don't have to  
18 wrap it up in 20 minutes or 30 minutes. Let everyone talk,  
19 darn it.  
20 MR. MCGEE: Are people concerned about time limits  
21 tonight?  
22 PUBLIC: Yeah.  
23 MR. MCGEE: Okay. Please, sir. Please.  
24 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: With regard to -- you've all  
25 clapped for them. All these governmental people. Let them  
26 do it. You guys should worry about suing and getting your

36

1 money or settling and getting your money not being locked up.  
2 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
3 MR. MCGEE: Sir. Thank you very much.  
4 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: [INAUDIBLE]  
5 MR. MCGEE: Sir. Sir. I'm sorry. Sir, I think  
6 you're hearing from others that others want to share.  
7 Thank you. Thank you, sir. Thank you very much. Thank  
8 you. Thank you. Thank you very much.  
9 MR. MCGEE: Mr. Goldstein.  
10 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
11 JOEL GOLDSTEIN: My name is Joel Goldstein. I'm a  
12 Porter Ranch resident. I'm a retired aerospace engineer.  
13 I work in system engineering and I work conducting two  
14 [INAUDIBLE] valves, et cetera, and I want to just point out  
15 that yesterday I saw the words "comprehensive safety  
16 review" and today I see the word "safety review," but what  
17 I'd like to do is tell you that I was in that business and  
18 number one, there's risk analysis, safety analysis,  
19 Federal [INAUDIBLE] and effect analysis, and structural  
20 integrity analysis and when I reviewed your rules and the  
21 SoCalGas response, I have to tell you that you have only  
22 done a structural integrity analysis of the pieces.  
23 That's what you're approving. The safety review has to  
24 recognize such failures and risks as amazingly enough the  
25 probability of earthquake and I think you know that, but  
26 yet, you haven't done anything about publishing anything

37

1 for people to read about what that's about. Your  
2 regulations all focus on the physical integrity of the  
3 existing configurations. All your tests, both today and  
4 in the future are going to look at the physical integrity  
5 of your piping. That's not the issue. That's not the  
6 issue at all. Cal Tech says that within the next 50 years,  
7 guaranteed earthquake. If you look at probability  
8 analysis, that says in the first 25 years you got 50  
9 percent probability of an earthquake. So darn it. We  
10 know it's coming. The other thing is that if you  
11 correlate this with oil spills off shore, guess what?  
12 Remember the big one? Tubes fail. But even down at the  
13 bottom [INAUDIBLE] valves work, they didn't work. So that  
14 means maintenance is a critical thing. You're requirement is  
15 physical, safety, and guarantee of community health. I  
16 mean, that's what you guys do. That's your regulations.  
17 That's your business. The cost of this is not a factor,  
18 and so when you write your rules, you have to go to  
19 SoCalGas and say, "We do this or you shut down," and  
20 that's not something that's negotiable. That shouldn't be  
21 negotiable, so any way, so really what I want to end up  
22 saying my assumption of you guys satisfying your own  
23 chart, maybe you do know things that I don't know. Or  
24 maybe you do know things that are out there that I haven't  
25 read, and good. I respect your integrity. But the  
26 requirement of citizens' safety is being circumvented by

38

1 what you call a safety review which isn't that at all.  
2 And so I really suggest that you go back and talk to your  
3 people and have them do some serious looking at what this  
4 is all about because it's not joke.  
5 MR. MCGEE: Joel, can I remind you of your time.  
6 Thank you very much.  
7 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
8 MR. MCGEE: Next is Richard Mathews and Gary Passmore.  
9 In any order.  
10 RICHARD MATTHEWS: Hi. I'm Richard Mathews. I'm a  
11 member of the Board to save Porter Ranch, and I have two  
12 points that I would like to be making. One is that this  
13 cannot be reopened and be safe, and second is that it is not  
14 needed or desired to have this reopened. Safety in these  
15 wells are typically 50 to 80 years old. They are highly  
16 eroded from a variety of unsafe practices that we've used  
17 over the years. We don't really know exactly why the  
18 failure happened. The root cause analysis hasn't been  
19 completed and we absolutely should not be restarting this  
20 facility until we know that it can be safe. It's  
21 surrounded by homes that are very close [INAUDIBLE].  
22 Homes that were there since 1966 or earlier before this  
23 was turned into natural gas storage. The houses were  
24 there first. It never should have been allowed to be  
25 there and we shouldn't have them there now. And on the  
26 desirability of this, we have plenty of reliable energy.

39

1 We do not need this facility. Our studies have shown and  
2 [INAUDIBLE] CPUC studies have shown that we have enough  
3 energy. We don't need to have this facility in order to  
4 have energy reliability. We have ways to be able to  
5 mitigate and work around this. The facility is not  
6 necessary at all. We were able to provide without this  
7 facility 5.7 billion cubic feet per day of natural gas.  
8 With the peak usage has never been over about 5.0, and so  
9 we have plenty of leeway there. We don't need this  
10 facility. We should leave it shut down. Thank you very  
11 much.  
12 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
13 MR. MCGEE: Next up on this side will be Wanda  
14 [INAUDIBLE]. Sir, when you're ready.  
15 GARY PASSMORE: Hi. My name is Gary Passmore. I am  
16 the Vice President and lead advocate for an organization  
17 that's statewide known as the Congress of California  
18 Seniors. We represent the interest of seniors and people  
19 with disabilities and this year we're celebrating our 40th  
20 year of doing that. We work very hard to identify what's  
21 in the best interests of older Californians and then  
22 advocate on their behalf. This past year we've done a lot  
23 of work, and it has taught us a lot of things that we  
24 didn't know. We have over the many months while wells  
25 were being capped and we had to relocate thousands of  
26 people, we followed as many of the reports as we could.

40

1 Our staff, based in Sacramento, we have an office here in  
2 Los Angeles. We went to spoke to the public utilities  
3 commission when they had hearings or asked for public  
4 comments. We wrote letters to both PUC members and to  
5 elected officials, so it isn't as though we're kind of  
6 dropping in here on a parachute. We have really worked  
7 very hard to understand this issue and one of the things  
8 that we learned is how complex the energy moral is. Far  
9 more complex than we ever understood. We never realized  
10 that an adamant supply of electricity -- electricity for  
11 Souther California is intricately related to our gas  
12 supply. We know that as seniors [INAUDIBLE] like somebody  
13 said. We need reliable energy and based on that  
14 certainty, we want to see all the tests done. We want to  
15 see those tests strengthened, if necessary. But we  
16 strongly, strongly support allowing the Aliso Canyon  
17 storage facility to be reopened at the earliest possible.  
18 Thank you.  
19 PUBLIC: No. Boo.  
20 MR. MCGEE: Okay. Okay. There's actually other  
21 people speaking and then there is intention and -- you  
22 know what I'm talking about. But let's do it right.  
23 And you are doing it right. You're doing a great job.  
24 Mr. De La Cruz, are you here? And then also Dr. Tom  
25 Williams and then also Gloria Calvin are our next  
26 speakers. I don't think De La Cruz is here. Tom

41

1 Williams. Thank you, sir. Next is Gloria Calvin.  
2 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Do I get my elected  
3 official?  
4 MR. MCGEE: Neighborhood Council. LA32?  
5 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Yeah.  
6 MR. MCGEE: Okay.  
7 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Thank you. Okay. Very  
8 simple. Don't start it up again. Keep it shut down.  
9 Because a long time ago, I was -- I have been a member of  
10 the American Petroleum Institute, Society of Petroleum  
11 Engineers, American Society [INAUDIBLE] Measurement, and  
12 the American Association of Petroleum Geologists. I still  
13 am. I love geology. Fifty -- almost fifty years in geology.  
14 So it's an issue dear to me. But it's also a matter that  
15 in 1999 I was a consultant to the CPUC and we recommended  
16 that the Montebello Gas Storage Facility operated by the  
17 Southern California Gas Company be not sold. That was  
18 declined. The [INAUDIBLE] Montebello Gas Storage Facility  
19 because 15 homes have received leaking gas from badly  
20 abandoned wells that the gas company had over-pressurized.  
21 So there's a lot of mystery here, but let's go back to what  
22 we're here tonight. Root cause analysis. What screwed up  
23 in that well? Nobody knows. We have a lot of things right  
24 at the very beginning. Oh, it's venting and few other things;  
25 however, root cause analysis is fundamental to it because  
26 it will show that hey, there was a sub-surface shut off

42

1 valve in that well from at least to 2004 to 2015. Oh, but  
2 they took it out in 1979. Isn't it a problem when a  
3 licensed-permitted entity submits a false -- knowingly  
4 false document in compliance with the current condition to  
5 a state agency? I think there's some problems with SS25.  
6 There's also problems with SS25A, SS25B, SS8, SS44, and  
7 hey, how about Porter 39A and Porter 69G. 69G. Look at  
8 the logs of that well. Have they been updated? I hope so  
9 because they have a lot of stuff in the files that seems  
10 to contradict their integrity. Integrity. I do a lot of  
11 mechanical integrity testing; however, this is corporate  
12 integrity testing. So we're quite concerned about that.  
13 We will be submitting our comments in writing on Monday  
14 but there's one thing more from me: Emergency response  
15 plan. What they submitted was a binder for a non-specific  
16 emergency plan for the corporation. It had nothing to do  
17 specifically with Aliso Canyon. There was only four or  
18 five mentions of Aliso Canyon in the entire document, and  
19 they were required to submit an emergency response plan  
20 which was site specific to Aliso Canyon, which is one of  
21 the most screwed up geological conditions that you could  
22 ever expect compared to Montebello and [INAUDIBLE], it's  
23 tragic. So that's all. Except get everything online, as  
24 one gentleman said, there's someone else that knows  
25 something about it, and put it online. This is all public  
26 records. This is all public documents supported by either

43

1 DOGGR, CPUC or maybe the [INAUDIBLE]. Thank you.  
2 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
3 MR. MCGEE: [INAUDIBLE] he's here tonight in  
4 attendance. Please when you're ready.  
5 GLORIA CALVIN: Hi. My name is Gloria Calvin.  
6 I'm a 21-year resident of Porter Ranch; lifetime Angelino.  
7 My first question is why are we still here? Why? You  
8 guys -- you've heard our concerns. Everybody's come up  
9 here. We've shown you bloody noses, headaches, all these  
10 things have been demonstrated. And somebody asked me why  
11 are we still here? And I said I don't really know. I  
12 don't understand. Why aren't our congressmen working for  
13 us? Why, why isn't everybody talking? So I was really  
14 happy that the people were speaking last night and that  
15 happened. But it's really frustrating when you just sit  
16 there and think, why are we still having to do this? I  
17 fully support a serious health study quickly. My dad has  
18 passed away. My neighbor has passed away. We don't know  
19 why. You guys didn't do a health study and you know how  
20 much that hurts not to know why? So when you're sitting  
21 in this room and you're hearing us all cry our woes, you  
22 know what, I miss my dad. I'd really like to know what  
23 happened and I'm not the only one. There are plenty of  
24 others. Plenty of others who moved. Plenty of others who  
25 have been forced out of their home, okay? The other day  
26 I, I smelled something on, on Tampa. I called in. It was

44

1 on the 24th -- oh, they had another leak. I called EQMD.  
2 They went up there. They verified it. And what's  
3 happened since then? Nothing. Not a damn thing. So we  
4 are sick and tired of coming to these meetings and not  
5 having a damn thing done.  
6 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
7 MR. MCGEE: Here are the next two speakers. Let's  
8 get a time check. Andrew Krowne. Did I pronounce that  
9 correctly? And Craig [INAUDIBLE] are the next two  
10 speakers. Now Mr. Krowne handed me his card. He's the  
11 treasurer of the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council -- as  
12 therefore that [INAUDIBLE] elected official, so I'm not  
13 going to time this one. We still have about an inch  
14 thick. We keep getting more cards, so I'm going to stick  
15 to the rules. I just want everybody to be conscious of  
16 where we are and how many people are coming left. So when  
17 you're ready.  
18 ANDREW KROWNE: Good evening. I stated my name is  
19 Andrew Krowne, Treasurer of the Porter Ranch Neighborhood  
20 Council. I'm a husband, a father of five young children,  
21 ages two to ten. Like just like everyone else in this  
22 room, we all got sick. My family of five -- excuse me.  
23 My family of seven spent five months in a hotel room. Two  
24 little hotel rooms. Crammed. Three, three in a room,  
25 four in another. I want to just comment that last night  
26 the gentleman on the stage seemed very uninterested in the

45

1 proceedings. I want to thank you tonight for looking very  
2 more engaged in what we're -- sincerely thank  
3 you. The DOGGR issued a statement says and I quote,  
4 "preventing damage to life, health, property, and natural  
5 resources," in that order. DOGGR professes to be experts  
6 in the oil and gas industry, yet cannot properly refer to  
7 the SS25 incident in industry-accepted the vernacular.  
8 This was not a leak, but rather a blowout. A four-month  
9 uncontrollable release of gas. In your rush to reopen  
10 Aliso Canyon -- it is the rush to reopen Aliso Canyon  
11 money-driven. I'm here to tell you that SoCalGas doesn't  
12 need your help in this area. Their 1.4 billion dollar  
13 insurance policy is all the protection they need.  
14 Don't take my word for it. This is from their [INAUDIBLE]  
15 earnings. They've also reported over \$300,000,000 of  
16 profits and they don't need the money. And they don't  
17 need Aliso. That's an excuse we've heard before.  
18 [INAUDIBLE]. They don't need the money. This is about  
19 public health. Last night we heard from the L.A. County  
20 [INAUDIBLE] and VICA coming to the defense of one of  
21 their members. We can't be surprised. That's what  
22 \$60,000 a year in membership dues buys you. But please  
23 don't be fooled. Not one business in the Los Angeles  
24 basin has had a disruption in gas service since Aliso  
25 Canyon was taken off line. Not one.  
26 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]

46

1 ANDREW KROWNE: All the evidence you need to prove that  
2 we don't need Aliso Canyon can be obtained over the last  
3 15 months. Zero blackouts, zero unfabricated supply  
4 shortages. But if that's not enough real world evidence,  
5 you have a report sent to you from the Porter Ranch  
6 Neighborhood Council as well as one from new power  
7 [INAUDIBLE] to back up these assertions. Now some  
8 additional facts. SoCalGas has failed to properly  
9 disclose the scope of the disaster from day one. SoCalGas  
10 failed to have an emergency plan in place for this blowup  
11 disaster. SoCalGas has failed to properly and timely  
12 reimburse residents. SoCalGas has failed to properly  
13 maintain their facility in the interest of maximizing  
14 profits. SoCalGas has failed to disclose everything they  
15 poisoned us with preventing the acquisition of accurate  
16 medical care. SoCalGas has failed the community by  
17 refusing to keep greenhouse gas for mediation money in  
18 this community. SoCalGas has failed to timely notify the  
19 community during subsequent multiple leaks of both liquid  
20 and gas. SoCalGas failed in every way. DOGGR has failed  
21 to refer to this disaster in accurate terminology. I  
22 humbly request that change immediately. DOGGR has failed  
23 to hold SoCalGas accountable for the largest blowout in  
24 U.S. history. DOGGR failed to notice that SoCalGas removed  
25 sub-surface safety valves 30 years ago. DOGGR has failed  
26 the environment approving six tons of methane to be leaked

47

1 per day on an ongoing basis as acceptable. DOGGR has  
2 failed in it's certification of Aliso Canyon. Dozens of  
3 odor and health complaints reported after just six hours  
4 of withdrawal. DOGGR has failed in its primary mission of  
5 properly regulating oil and gas operation and protecting  
6 the public. The Los Angeles Unified School District, the  
7 L.A. City Council, Los Angeles County Supervisors, State  
8 Senators, L.A. County Fire, L.A. Department of Health,  
9 U.S. Senators, and U.S. House Representatives all have  
10 urged you to keep Aliso Canyon closed. What more do you  
11 want?  
12 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
13 ANDREW KROWNE: If you reopen the facility, the blood  
14 you see in the pictures is on your hands. With that said,  
15 you do have one more opportunity to do the right thing  
16 before it is too late. Keep Aliso Canyon shut down.  
17 PUBLIC: Shut it all down. Shut it all down. Shut it  
18 all down. Shut it all down. Shut it all down.  
19 MR. MCGEE: The next speakers after Mr. Galanti are  
20 Paul E. [INAUDIBLE] Pearl, and Christine Sutherland.  
21 Please, Mr. Galanti.  
22 CRAIG GALANTI: Thank you. Craig Galanti. Twenty-six  
23 year resident of Porter Ranch. I live like 1.25 miles  
24 from SS25. I've had many family crises. I never even  
25 thought of them being directly proportionate to the size  
26 of the field and the constant leaking. And I think my

48

1 wife's been talking about that [INAUDIBLE]. Andrew.  
2 Awesome job. Thank you. Porter Ranch residents, are we  
3 still pissed off?  
4 PUBLIC: Yes.  
5 CRAIG GALANTI: Are we -- you want to take this  
6 anymore?  
7 PUBLIC: No.  
8 CRAIG GALANTI: Gentlemen, a big decision and a big  
9 responsibility is in your hands. Okay. I want you to  
10 very, very seriously consider what you're hearing here.  
11 Last night could not have been comfortable for you. Okay.  
12 Those chairs were comfortable but it certainly wasn't  
13 comfortable. There was venom in this room, and I  
14 guarantee to you that same venom exists tonight, but these  
15 people are doing everything that they can to hold back  
16 their emotion, to allow this process in a trusting way,  
17 and I'm not so sure we should be that trusting because  
18 there has been absolutely lack of transparency, deliberate  
19 lies and I would say deceit. The fact that we do not know  
20 because we will not be told what chemical spewed out of  
21 those wells in their attempts to stop it, because SoCalGas  
22 says they want to disclose the trade secret. They don't  
23 have competitions in this. It is completely ridiculous.  
24 DOGGR, you probably know. You should disclose it. PUC,  
25 you have the authority to make a decision tonight. You  
26 have your legacy to think about. I urge you, sir, to look

49

1 at these people. Look at their eyes. Everyone of them  
2 has suffered. These could be family friends. It could be  
3 friends of your friends. You have a very serious  
4 obligation here, sir. This facility is not out in the  
5 wilderness. It's not in the middle of the Mojave Desert.  
6 It's adjacent to a very populous area and we're not going  
7 to role over. Are we sheep? Are we sheep? Are you guys  
8 puppets of SoCalGas? I don't see strings. Step up,  
9 gentlemen, seriously. Find it within you. Find it  
10 within your regulations to pull the trigger and stop this  
11 facility that should not be so close to a highly-populated  
12 area where you have a tremendous amount of bad actors.  
13 I'm wrapping. Tremendous bad actors. You have lack of  
14 regulations to, to run a facility safely. It is obvious  
15 that these, these poor facilities, poorly ran [INAUDIBLE]  
16 facilities were either known by SoCalGas, DOGGR, PUC and  
17 if they were known and nothing was done about it that's  
18 negligence. Okay. And if they weren't known, then it's  
19 incompetence, gentlemen. 69.3 percent  
20 of the wells that you tested -- your document, your  
21 surveys, your research -- said that these wells were not  
22 suitable for use.  
23 PUBLIC: I never used them [INAUDIBLE].  
24 CRAIG GALANTI: For 30 years, you've been using those  
25 decrepit wells and all these straws are going to this big  
26 pool, okay. This is going to happen again. There is no

50

1 way that you guys can guarantee it. Materials will fail.  
2 Mother nature will win, and most importantly, as  
3 demonstrated by this hearing, greed will prevent SoCalGas  
4 from properly maintaining these. You guys have a stake  
5 and I urge you to use it, sir.  
6 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
7 MR. MCGEE: I call Paul E. [INAUDIBLE] and  
8 Christine Sutherland. This might be Christine. Sure.  
9 Sir, your name.  
10 PAUL HUNT: Paul.  
11 MR. MCGEE: Christine, you're welcome to stay where  
12 you are on this one. As you'd like. Sir, when you're  
13 ready.  
14 MALE SPEAKER: Paul Hunt, H-U-N-T.  
15 MR. MCGEE: I'm sorry. I didn't read it correctly.  
16 Please.  
17 PAUL HUNT: My thoughts are that we have, that we  
18 have 500 people who've arrived here today who are not  
19 getting paid in order to speak to half a dozen people who  
20 are getting paid and the reason is, is because you put  
21 out a comprehensive safety review -- and I am not a  
22 engineer, but I will assume there's some basic list of  
23 single accident that is ever happened at the facility,  
24 what caused it, and the cure for that. I don't think you  
25 have that within your report. I would also have any  
26 possible catastrophe and how to prevent it. Then I would

51

1 have all the evacuation plans, all the what-ifs, just in  
2 case nothing works specific to this area. I don't believe  
3 that's in it, so in other words, this is not a  
4 comprehensive safety review and it is a piece of garbage  
5 and you're wasting 500 people's time now that you're  
6 getting paid, okay. Now what are we talking about. We  
7 have a facility that you are trying to pave the way in  
8 order to put 168 billion cubic feet of methane into. How  
9 much is that? That is enough methane to cover the entire  
10 city of Los Angeles eight feet deep. Now when that  
11 methane would expand to 80 feet deep, it would come to  
12 its most explosive character. So we would have a cloud  
13 above the city Los Angeles. Eighty feet. Eighty feet  
14 deep over the entire city and if it were to blow up,  
15 which is worst case scenario, we would have 2,000 times  
16 the explosive TNT power of Hiroshima. This is what we  
17 are talking about right now and there are no safety valves.  
18 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
19 CHRISTINE SUTHERLAND: My name is Christine Sutherland.  
20 And I wish I could put the events in the past fully behind  
21 my family and myself, but we're a community that cannot  
22 move on. We've constantly and consistently been tormented  
23 by this nauseous neighbor. There's been six other major  
24 leaks in the last year. We've had multiple fires. We've  
25 been told that [INAUDIBLE] guilty of hiding the end of the  
26 hose leaking methane and under a shrub to avoid detection.

52

1 It wasn't SoCalGas's fault. They say there are no leaks,  
2 but then fenceline.org confirms that there are at least  
3 two leaks a day. Well, that was also confirmed by Glen  
4 [INAUDIBLE] on August 6th, 2016, in a QMD hearing. We  
5 community members continue to suffer from symptoms and  
6 ailments that only presented in the last few years when  
7 Aliso became more prevalent and more frequent. The worst  
8 part is watching our kids suffer. Recently, I was driving  
9 on Tampa and [INAUDIBLE] to take my kids to school and we  
10 were assaulted by the stench again of the gas. My kid  
11 said, "Oh, no. Do we have to relocate?" And I said I  
12 don't know. I'll call to get an update and see what we  
13 can do about it. So I called and the inspector said, "Oh,  
14 we've had multiple, multiple calls. And it's been going  
15 on for days." He said, "Something is going on up there  
16 again." We know that SoCalGas went through a lot of hoops  
17 to create an artificial situation in order to withdraw gas  
18 on January 24th and 25th. What a desperate and pathetic  
19 move. What do they think? We're stupid and we don't know  
20 what's going on? So SoCalGas also entered [INAUDIBLE]  
21 measures that were supposed to be implemented in order to  
22 protect the community. We know there's plenty of gas  
23 leaks stored, stored in the other facilities. Arizona and  
24 Nevada have figured out how to match supply and demand so  
25 they don't need storage facilities. The notion that we  
26 have to rely on this broken piggybank to hold gas is old-

53

1 fashioned and out of touch with reality. If the  
2 facility's reopened, we cannot expect this greedy  
3 corporation to act as a decent corporate citizen. We  
4 can't expect them that they're going to put human lives  
5 before profits. This is all about SoCalGas trying to  
6 recoup a \$200,000,000 compressing -- compressor project  
7 that's going to recoup them a billion dollars over 30  
8 years from all the [INAUDIBLE]. We can't expect them to  
9 do the right thing. I respectfully request that this  
10 facility be decommissioned. It demonstrated that they  
11 refused to responsibly control the fantastically dangerous  
12 and explosive powder keg on which they sit. A powder keg  
13 that also has an active seismic fault running through it.  
14 Please shut it down.  
15 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
16 MR. MCGEE: Loraine Lundquist and then Bill Maxwell.  
17 Loraine Lundquist and Bill Maxwell. And then just so that  
18 we can que this a little bit faster, the next will be Ron  
19 [INAUDIBLE], I believe, and Daniel Michaels -- Danielle  
20 Michaels will be after that. Right now Loraine and Bill.  
21 Sir, are you Mr. Maxwell? Oh, I see. Please.  
22 LORRAINE LUNDQUIST: Hi. My name is Loraine Lundquist.  
23 I'm a resident of Northridge and -- first of all, I, I do  
24 want to first acknowledge that you guys have actually been  
25 working very hard. DOGGR, I know, has actually done a lot  
26 of work to try to come up with new storage regulations for

54

1 the entire state -- for all the gas storage facilitates  
2 across the state -- and I know that you guys have worked  
3 hard to check the integrity of the wells and check what  
4 SoCalGas has been doing; however, I hope you understand  
5 when the community doesn't necessarily feel safe after all  
6 of the things that have happened, and in particular after  
7 all of the things that DOGGR themselves have, have --  
8 actually not completed in terms of the safety review. So  
9 your own safety review -- well, actually the law that  
10 brings us here tonight says that we cannot not open Aliso  
11 Canyon until the risks or failures identified in the  
12 review have been addressed and the supervisors do need to  
13 prevent damage to life, health, property, and natural  
14 resources is satisfied. I think many of the comments have  
15 shown that that duty to prevent damage to health has not  
16 yet been satisfied, and I also think that the risk of  
17 failures identified in the review have not yet been  
18 addressed. The seismic hazard has already been discussed,  
19 and I certainly didn't feel safer when I read the letter  
20 from the National Lab Energy Scientists that said that we  
21 need to do a seismic review directly, and that there is a  
22 high probability of significant earthquake in the next 50  
23 years. I didn't feel safer when I read the SoCalGas  
24 mitigation plan for earthquakes because I learned from the  
25 first time when I was reading that that actually the 1994  
26 Northridge earthquake which occurred on a fault is not the

55

1 fault that's actually crossing those wells on a different  
2 fault, actually caused a, a well-casing failure so this,  
3 this scenario is not just a hypothetical scenario. It's  
4 actually already happened that an earthquake has caused a  
5 well-casing failure. It's SS 4-0 and it ended up having  
6 to be plugged, and what I would like to say is that I --  
7 I implore you to address these issues to realize that  
8 this -- the safety concerns have not yet been addressed  
9 and therefore the facility cannot be reopened. Thank you.  
10 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
11 MR. MCGEE: Please go right ahead, sir.  
12 BILL MAXWELL: My name is Bill Maxwell. I'm a 45-year  
13 resident of the Valley. Forty years in Chatsworth. Like  
14 many people here, we get affected by the winds that come  
15 down off of Porter Rancher. We have nose bleeds, we have  
16 headaches. My daughter is a Type I diabetic, which means  
17 whenever she throws up, whenever her nose bleeds, her life  
18 becomes at risk. Now I know you heard about a lot  
19 passionate stories. You're going to hear a lot more  
20 tonight, and I know that you've inherited this terribly  
21 risk that came from decades before you were responsible  
22 for it. I understand that there are public officials that  
23 have violated the public trust. I understand that you are  
24 stuck between the health and lives of all the people here  
25 and businesses that truly believe they must have reliable  
26 clean energy from this site, but I want to offer you a

56

1 unique opportunity tonight. I want all of you to be big  
2 damn heroes, okay. All we need are two things from you.  
3 We need a transition plan. Something clear that tells us  
4 how to get energy out. We know there's data out there,  
5 okay. We know that there's data that these people have.  
6 We know there's data that you have. Start now. Create a  
7 transition to ensure the clean energy gets to these folks  
8 who need it, okay. We need the data to be fully and  
9 completely transparent, both the old data and the new.  
10 Full transparency. A transition plan with Californians.  
11 We are innovative. We are brilliant. And I'm asking you  
12 just to be like all of us here. That's all I'm asking  
13 for. Transparency. A transition plan. That's it. Thank  
14 you very much for your time.  
15 MR. MCGEE: Do we have Ron [INAUDIBLE] or [INAUDIBLE]  
16 Michaels. Please. Ron, please. And then --  
17 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Yeah. Thank you. Good  
18 evening.  
19 First, I'd like to thank all the elected officials for all  
20 their hard work and our state representatives here and  
21 also our communities members from Save Porter Ranch and  
22 the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council and all their doing.  
23 I don't want to go over the same things that have already  
24 been discussed but as a layperson, I have some real  
25 concerns of all the pattern of deception being used by the  
26 Gas Company over, over this last year-and-a-half or so or

57

1 more. As I a layperson, I don't understand why a company  
2 will not put a safety valve in a well knowing that they  
3 eventually will be able to recover their cost of this.  
4 I'm sure they're going to make an appeal to the PUC and in  
5 the future for a rate increase. I don't understand why  
6 they have not put forward a long-term solution to  
7 transition from the well to pipeline system and again,  
8 recover those costs from a rate increase. I'm also very  
9 concerned because I just learned very recently that there  
10 has been an increase in gas seeping up from the soil all  
11 over Porter Ranch, not just from the wells. [INAUDIBLE]  
12 We got seepage coming up there [INAUDIBLE] and other parts  
13 of Northridge and nobody seems to be addressing this from  
14 the standpoint of studying it or quantifying it, and if we  
15 repressurize those wells is that going to just exacerbate  
16 that seepage. Also I have neighbors and myself have  
17 witnessed a lot of heavy truck traffic coming up Tampa and  
18 the other streets there, and I don't believe that the gas  
19 company has been a very good corporate neighbor. There's  
20 a lot of things they could have been doing. Improving  
21 their roads, upgrading them into a commercial standard.  
22 The diesel emissions, the noise pollution, and I was just  
23 passed up by a double rig. I got pictures of some of the  
24 rigs that are going up and down Tampa. [INAUDIBLE] pass  
25 me up at over 55 miles an hour, and we've got senior  
26 citizens and kids crossing to go to the library over that

58

1 four-lane area there; very dangerous. So because of this  
2 pattern of deception, I've come to the conclusion a while  
3 ago that we need to shut this facility down, and I request  
4 that you take a look at all these facts and, and come to  
5 that conclusion. Thank you very much for your time.  
6 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
7 MR. MCGEE: After Danielle will be Assemblymember  
8 [INAUDIBLE] then Cameron Michaels and then [INAUDIBLE].  
9 Please.  
10 DANIELLE MICHAELS: My name is Danielle Michaels and  
11 these two gentlemen up front are my sons Cameron and  
12 Ethan. I hope you will have the courage to look them in  
13 eyes as I tell you our story. On December 13th, 2015, I  
14 was seating in our relocation house in Woodland Hills. We  
15 were moving in that day, looking forward to escaping the  
16 disaster we were living in Porter Ranch. That's when I  
17 got the call that my husband was sick. I raced to the  
18 hospital. Twenty-four hours later my husband died. I am  
19 not implying whether or not he died as a result of this  
20 blowout, but the blowout did play a significant role in every  
21 aspect of our lives. You see, the last 52 days that these  
22 boys had their father were an absolute hell. Every single  
23 one of us were sick. Cameron and Ethan were bleeding from  
24 their noses sometimes two or three times in one day;  
25 crying in pain with headaches. I'm guessing most of you  
26 have children, and I'm wondering if any of them have ever

59

1 looked you in eye and begged you to make their pain stop.  
2 My and my husband's headaches were pounding so hard we  
3 couldn't think straight. Running from meeting to meeting  
4 trying to figure out what to do and where to go. The boys  
5 were sick at school surrounded by sick friends and struggling  
6 teachers and that was the easiest part. When their dad  
7 died, we couldn't even mourn in the peace and comfort of  
8 our own homes because our bodies were telling us it wasn't  
9 safe to be there. Hopefully our story demonstrates to you  
10 that we are very real people, living very real lives and  
11 that your carelessness has at the very least interrupted  
12 those lives and at the worst maybe even shortened them.  
13 We sit and wait wondering when the real scary moments might  
14 begin. Imagine that thought creeping into your head  
15 several times a day. Mostly I'm here because the three of  
16 us now know just how precious and fragile life is and to  
17 let you know that our lives, our health, and my children's  
18 futures are not for sale. As a parent, I implore you, do  
19 the right thing. I don't care if it isn't easy. Do it  
20 any way. Do it for the thousands of children that live  
21 next to this monstrosity that you never should have  
22 allowed to exist in the first place. We have suffered  
23 enough. Shut it all down.  
24 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE] Shut it all down. Shut it all  
25 down. Shut it all down.  
26 MR. MCGEE: The assemblymember, then [INAUDIBLE]

60

1 Michaels then Jean [INAUDIBLE].  
2 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Why -- very hard, very hard  
3 to follow that, and I will say that I am very fortunate to  
4 represent the West San Fernando Valley in the State Assembly.  
5 The [INAUDIBLE] Porter Ranch [INAUDIBLE] that community  
6 very well as my former boss, congressman Brad Sherman,  
7 lives there and I've worked for him for nearly a decade  
8 representing that area as well. I can't imagine the  
9 frustration or pain or interruption that you have seen in  
10 your lives from the minor things like having to move into  
11 a motel and not knowing how long you're going to be there  
12 to the more major things like losing a loved one and not  
13 knowing whether your kids are going to go next month to  
14 having to sit in doctor's office and not know really what  
15 the condition that you're suffering is from, but that  
16 uncertainty, I can't imagine that. I know that our whole  
17 Valley is one community. I'm very proud that  
18 assemblymen's growing up in this community and my family's  
19 called this area home for four generations. We don't live  
20 by these boundaries that are created by politicians, you  
21 know, my district ends in Devonshire but that gas didn't  
22 stop at Devonshire. And I, I wasn't planning on speaking  
23 tonight and I apologize for cutting in line. I was  
24 sitting in the back for the last hour and a half just  
25 listening and I think too often my colleagues and I don't  
26 listen enough. I think sometimes regulators and

61

1 bureaucrats don't listen because because at the end of day  
2 I work for you. I work for everyone that I represent in  
3 my district. I work on behalf of you and I work on behalf  
4 of our communities. And I'm not an engineer. I'm not a  
5 scientist. I've never going to understand completely what  
6 happened that caused this leak. I don't understand  
7 exactly the technology and science why we have to have a  
8 storage facility in this area. Well, please. I'm here to  
9 speak on behalf of all of our constituents who care about  
10 this issue, but I will tell you I hope that the regulators  
11 tonight are listening to the individuals in this room  
12 because you work for them too. They might not vote for  
13 you, like they vote for me and my colleagues, you might  
14 never know all our names, but each one of their stories is  
15 important and it matters and I hope that their voices  
16 tonight and the will of the people that I represent, the  
17 will of the people that my colleagues represent, the will  
18 and people in this room is heard. That their voices  
19 matter. That they're influencing the decision that will  
20 be made because I can't imagine the pain that they've gone  
21 through for the last year and a half. I can't imagine  
22 going to bed at night worrying that this could happen  
23 again. I'm not Brad Sherman, but I know Brad Sherman who  
24 lives -- you know I'm on the side of those that want to be  
25 heard tonight. I'm making my voice heard that I think  
26 that everything needs to be done to make sure that the

62

1 will of this room is important to those making this  
2 decision, and I can't say what the decision is going to be  
3 but my hope and my desire is that their will comes into  
4 the [INAUDIBLE] of this decision and that we can move  
5 forward making sure that this never happens again and that  
6 we do not need to keep that facility open, that we  
7 can't -- that we cannot figure out a way to prove to  
8 everyone in this room that that will never happen again,  
9 that there is some adamant need to keep that open without  
10 the technology we heard makes it possible not to, and I  
11 will say this again: I ask every one of the members of  
12 the PUC that's here. I asked every one of the members of  
13 DOGGR that's here to do your jobs, to listen to these  
14 individuals. We have legislation's that support SB146  
15 that state their concern and if the legislation has to be  
16 passed to make you do your jobs, then we'll do that.  
17 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
18 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: SB146. I apologize. But  
19 I've taken enough time and I thank everyone in this room  
20 for being here tonight. I thank everyone for sharing their  
21 stories, and I look forward to working to make sure that  
22 the will of our communities are heard. Thank you.  
23 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
24 MR. MCGEE: Sir, are you ready? Then Jean  
25 [INAUDIBLE].  
26 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Hi. My name is [INAUDIBLE]

63

1 and I have expertise in underground gas storage operations.  
2 Fifty years ago, Ralph Madder wrote a book, "Not Safe at  
3 Any Speed." I'm here to tell you Aliso Canyon is not safe  
4 at any storage [INAUDIBLE]. I have several reasons to  
5 write but other speakers have said some of the reasons,  
6 but I will tell you some of the reasons that they have not  
7 mentioned. There are, there are wells in this field that  
8 existed before the field got converted into a storage  
9 field. Those wells are called abandoned wells. They are  
10 abandoned six feet below the ground. When something goes  
11 wrong in those wells, there's no way of monitoring. They  
12 can blow up any instant without any notice and nobody --  
13 gas company or anybody else will know what happened there.  
14 So it's, it's something that, you know, everybody knows it  
15 but nobody wants to talk about it. It's well known that  
16 years of injection and withdrawal on these wells -- the  
17 casing is cemented. There's a cement [INAUDIBLE]. Just  
18 imagine your house is ballooned up, ballooned down every  
19 year. The technology was not designed to do this kind of  
20 operation. Technology was designed to hold the maximum  
21 pressure at the start when the valve is new and then  
22 pressure keeps on going down and so the casing can  
23 withstand -- the cement can stand the pressure, but in  
24 this case, every year it affects a new valve. Just  
25 imagine if you have a car and your -- yours is a  
26 60-year-old car and you want to drive it at 120 miles

64

1 an hour, what will happen to it? There [INAUDIBLE] for  
2 gas company. Montebello has been abandoned by gas company.  
3 It's time Aliso Canyon gets abandoned by the Gas Company.  
4 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
5 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: If your car breaks don't  
6 work, what are you going to do? Just remove the breaks.  
7 That's what gas company did when the safety valves became  
8 inconvenient. They failed to operate. They said, "Let's  
9 just pull it out. We don't -- we can run without the  
10 breaks." That's -- I have a lot to say, but thank you.  
11 My time is over.  
12 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
13 MR. MCGEE: After Cameron will be either Porte or  
14 Porte. Is that -- am I getting that right? I only have  
15 one name on the sheet and after that will be [INAUDIBLE].  
16 Cameron, when you're ready.  
17 CAMERON MICHAELS: Hello. My name is Cameron Michaels.  
18 I am a 12-year-old and I lived in Porter Ranch for ten  
19 years. The blowout made my entire family incredibly sick.  
20 My little brother and I have had bloody noses, horrible  
21 headaches, and stomach pain almost every day for months.  
22 Do you know how scary it is as I kid to constantly have  
23 your nose bleeding and you can't make it stop? It was  
24 hard to even think. At school we couldn't learn. There  
25 was no more playing outside and many of our friends moved  
26 away. Our house moved and our school moved. My mom and

65

1 dad were so sick but still raced from meeting to meeting  
2 trying to figure out how to keep us safe. Everything in  
3 our lives changed, and 15 months later we are still sick  
4 and none of you are willing to find out why. Last Tuesday  
5 when they took methane out of Aliso Canyon, my mom got a  
6 call from Castle Lane which is my brother's school. He  
7 needed a change of clothes because his -- because his  
8 were -- because his were soaked in blood after he got  
9 another nose bleed. He's had -- he's had a horrible  
10 headache every day since then. Why? Why are you telling  
11 us we have to live this life? So these people can have  
12 their money? Are you really asking this just to go out  
13 quietly and accept that this is our life? How dare you?  
14 Do something to protect us. At least find out why it  
15 happened. Keep it close and never let this happen to me  
16 me or my brother and any of these people again.  
17 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE] Shut it all down. Shut it all  
18 down. Shut it all down.  
19 MR. MCGEE: When you're ready, sir.  
20 PARE: Hi. My name is Pare. I see this  
21 facts sheet here, talks about Santa Susanna Fault.  
22 You got bigger problems than that. There are five faults  
23 that go across there. And that's not including the fault  
24 that generated the Northridge quake of 1994. You got --  
25 it's a really big problem, and what you all think you  
26 might be able to do with Aliso Canyon to make it safe, I

66

1 got news for you: mother nature can undo that and take it  
2 out in less time than my two minutes allowed in here. So,  
3 to quote Richard Enema, "For a successful technology,  
4 reality must take precedence over public relations because  
5 nature cannot be fooled." That was his evaluation during  
6 the Rogers Commission of the Space Shuttle Challenger  
7 disaster. You got another Challenger disaster on your  
8 doorstep. It's not a matter of if, it's a matter of when.  
9 You got big problems and you need to be honest with all  
10 these people because so far you haven't. You need to be  
11 honest and affront and deal with this before it bites you  
12 in this ass. Thank you.  
13 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
14 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: I'm forfeiting my two  
15 minutes because I did suffer the blowout. I'm a near  
16 lifetime Valley member. I've gone to every hearing, town  
17 hall, workshop. [INAUDIBLE] but what this gentleman has  
18 to say, we need to be educated because people need to know  
19 all gas and oil fields leak. You can't transport,  
20 distribute or anything so please listen to him. Thank you.  
21 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Thank you. I really  
22 appreciate that because I do want to share some of my  
23 thoughts. You know, let me go a little bit technical.  
24 The gas that valves have -- a tubing, a casing, and a  
25 surface casing, which is both -- only the surface casing  
26 goes only a thousand feet deep, and it can only hold

67

1 400 pounds of pressure. The gas company is supposed to  
2 monitor that pressure. Why then monitor [INAUDIBLE] I  
3 don't know. Maybe DOGGR knows whether those valves were  
4 monitored for surface casing pressure.  
5 There's -- as everybody knows that to reach that  
6 same pressure in the underground storage field, every  
7 year you end up injecting more at Alison Canyon. That  
8 means there is some gas that's leaking. So close to that  
9 urban area -- seismically active area -- it shouldn't.  
10 This field should not be there. It's, it's just like --  
11 why did they abandon Montebello? Because tanks were  
12 leaking all over the place. These wells are SS25 was 63  
13 year old. What kind of wells do we have at 63 years  
14 old? It's the same thing with the wells, guys. You know,  
15 you know very well that these wells are not capable of  
16 withstanding that full pressure year after year. There  
17 are shallow leaks in the storage field. There are  
18 producers that are producing oil from about -- or shallow  
19 surfaces and they get a boost in their production because  
20 SoCalGas and gas goes into those wells and they get a  
21 boast. I know that. I looked at the data, and so there  
22 are leaks that you know that there are leaks and  
23 the [INAUDIBLE] that doesn't, and so, okay. My time is up  
24 over. Thank you.  
25 MR. MCGEE: Well, okay. So here's what I'm going to  
26 do. I am going to let you finish your comments here.

68

1 There are some biological factors that [INAUDIBLE] and  
2 we're going to take a brief break at 8:00 so that  
3 if nobody else [INAUDIBLE].  
4 MALE SPEAKER: I'm, I'm almost done.  
5 MR. MCGEE: And then we'll continue. I've got a very  
6 large stack of comments. Still, it's as large as when we  
7 began tonight, so please go ahead and finish. At 8:00  
8 we're going to take a little break.  
9 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: [INAUDIBLE] to the Gas  
10 Company and to DOGGR, can you assure us that in the next  
11 12 months, or next one month, or tomorrow there won't be a  
12 blowout in the gas storage field? Can you assure us that?  
13 No. You can't because it is really dangerous it is, like  
14 I said, underground abandoned wells have absolutely no  
15 control. These old wells have absolutely no control. We  
16 know from the prior experience that they did not monitor  
17 even the surface pressure on the analysis. That's why that  
18 leak. If they had monitored that pressure, they would have  
19 known that this is exceeding the pressure -- 400-pound  
20 pressure so there must be gas coming from somewhere else.  
21 They could have shut it down much sooner. They injected  
22 like water and salt water rather than using the mud to kill  
23 the valve right away. They, they did everything in their  
24 power to ignore the problem and you know that. I don't  
25 have to educate you. You're much more educated than I  
26 probably will be. But you, you need to act now and this

69

1 facility needs to be shut down no matter what. It's --  
2 here's, here's the tragedy of this thing. Let me say  
3 something. Gas Company doesn't lose money over it.  
4 Their executives are going to get paid the same thing.  
5 They only care about their salaries. They don't care  
6 about these people's lives. [INAUDIBLE] they will be --  
7 give them the money that they're going to lose in this  
8 storage field. Unless somebody is going to be sent to jail,  
9 this will never stop. This will never stop. Thank you.  
10 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
11 MR. MCGEE: So this is a good -- it's time to end.  
12 It says 7:53 on my watch, 7:54. At 8:00 -- so this  
13 is only a couple minutes -- [INAUDIBLE] please stay with  
14 us. I have a large stack and we'll resume comments as  
15 soon as we get going here. Thank you.  
16 (Break in the proceedings)  
17 MR. MCGEE: So it is 8:10. It is 8:12. How many  
18 people who are still here -- and I have a large stack, how  
19 many here still want to speak tonight? Okay. Then I  
20 can't tell whether that's as big as my stack now. It  
21 doesn't appear to be. Here's what I know about timing,  
22 the hotel wants us to go at 10:00. That's almost two  
23 hours from now. I think we can get through these, and  
24 they want to hear these and we want stay for these. If we  
25 bump up against that, I'm not sure what [INAUDIBLE]. We  
26 want to make sure that if you want to get heard, we're

70

1 going to find a way to do it. On that note, I'm going to  
2 move quickly to the next speaker, please let us remind you  
3 of the many ways that you can submit a comment. It would  
4 be treated in equal weight, either by e-mail, by fax, by  
5 mail. You're welcome to write something down tonight.  
6 And of course we have the stenographer who will have a  
7 full transcript of tonight. And we encourage to comment.  
8 Here, I'm going to read the next or five or six speakers.  
9 Jason Hector, Tom Davis, John Fleming, Kyoto [INAUDIBLE],  
10 Herman Leslie -- she just pronounced the name right and I  
11 got it wrong. Madison. Madison. Thank you. Sorry. And  
12 [INAUDIBLE]. Those are our next speakers. Jason Hector  
13 and Tom Davis, are you ready to go to go podium, please.  
14 TOM DAVIS: I'm Tom Davis. I'm a geologist with  
15 the Geological Maps Foundation. It's a non-profit in  
16 Ventura -- scientific non-profit, and I've worked as a  
17 petroleum geologist and as an earthquake researcher for  
18 the last, I think, 35 years in Southern California, and I  
19 know the Santa Susanna Fault very well, and I've worked on  
20 most of the larger earthquakes in Southern California in  
21 doing research and published on the '94 Northridge  
22 earthquake, the '87 Whittier Narrows, and '83 Coalinga, so  
23 I have some background in that. One of my specialties is  
24 [INAUDIBLE] gas beta into the study of earthquake faults  
25 and earthquakes, and I've looked at the risk, risk  
26 management plan that was submitted by Southern California

71

1 Gas and I find it to be -- polite -- a little weak side.  
2 But the hundred and fourteen, fifteen wells at the storage  
3 field, they cross the Santa Susanna fault. And despite  
4 what's claimed in this management plan, that a very unique  
5 situation. That's unlike most oil gas fields in  
6 California. The -- there's two hazards there. There's a  
7 shake hazard that a lady mentioned earlier where a gas  
8 failed in the '94 earthquake, but there's also the risk of  
9 shearing by fault itself. That's a much more significant  
10 hazard because you can [INAUDIBLE] more than one well.  
11 And we know from what happened in Aliso, now that  
12 didn't -- that was probably caused, wasn't probably caused  
13 by fault movement, but we know that's a pension of what can  
14 happen if you have one well, in this case fault movement,  
15 you can have many wells. I've published all my stuff on  
16 the web page for the Geological Maps Foundation Web page.  
17 It's geologicalmapsfoundation.org. You can go on there.  
18 There's three different pieces of work there that you can  
19 download and look at it yourself. Some of it is very  
20 technical, but I don't think -- I will finish up quickly.  
21 I'd like to see two things. I don't think that  
22 reinjection should be allowed at Aliso Canyon until a  
23 complete and very thorough seismic review is done, and the  
24 other thing is whoever put together the review or the  
25 safety element for the gas company, I'd like to see their  
26 state registration license put on there so we have a

72

1 little transparency and accountability for those --  
2 because it's much in there that I disagree with. All  
3 right. Thank you.  
4 MR. MCGEE: Thank you.  
5 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
6 MR. MCGEE: Jason, then Joan Flemming, and then Kyoto  
7 [INAUDIBLE].  
8 JASON HECTOR: Hi. My name is Jason Hector and I come  
9 here today to speak as a resident of Porter Ranch. I'm  
10 also on the Porter Ranch Neighborhood Council; however,  
11 I'm not speaking on behalf of the city or the Neighborhood  
12 Council, I am speaking personally about my own  
13 experiences. The reason I got involved is just like our  
14 [INAUDIBLE] president said because of Aliso Canyon. If  
15 Aliso Canyon never happened, I wouldn't be involved in any  
16 of this. I've taken the role of protecting our community,  
17 fighting for our community. The number one issue for me  
18 is the water and the air, okay. Water studies -- I have  
19 been pushing for Aliso Canyon to give water studies below  
20 ground to determine if the water has been contaminated.  
21 The aquifer that we live in in the San Fernando Valley is  
22 a tremendous resource which we are not currently using to  
23 its full potential. Only 15 percent of the water we're  
24 using from groundwater. Other cities like San Fernando  
25 just to the north used 100 percent of the groundwater to  
26 support their communities, and so my concern is the

73

1 pollution coming from what came out of that well and how  
2 it impacts our groundwater. My second issue is the air.  
3 The air quality and the lack of monitoring. Today and  
4 yesterday I spent time calling the Air Quality Management  
5 District representatives. I spoke with [INAUDIBLE] Snyder  
6 today and she mentioned that somebody from the Air Quality  
7 Management District would be here. Is there anybody here  
8 from the Air Quality Management District? I -- I respect  
9 them, but I would appreciate them being here because this  
10 is an air monitoring issue. So basically, all of these  
11 people are leaders in the community have come out and  
12 volunteered their time, like myself, to give back to the  
13 community and to fight for our future, fight our lives,  
14 fight for our health. Like they mentioned, you are all  
15 salary-compensated employees with a duty under your chart  
16 to do certain protections for the people. So with all due  
17 respect, we ask that you do will of the people. It's very  
18 clear that the will of the people is to have this facility  
19 decommissioned, shut down, made safe, cleaned up. Let's  
20 clean up the water. Let's clean up the air. Do what's  
21 right for the people. You have the power and you can do  
22 it and make this happen, so I'm asking -- we may all get  
23 upset but all the people who came here like VICA, and the  
24 guy from VICA, and the guy from wherever he came here and  
25 said, "Oh, we need gas." They're not here anymore, okay.  
26 They're gone. The reason they're gone is because they

74

1 realized that they're -- they have no, no, no point.  
2 Their point is invalid. The truth is here in this room.  
3 These people are not going to go away and we're not going  
4 to stop. We're going to continue, so I ask you please, do  
5 the right thing. Do the right thing by these people.  
6 These are the most wonderful people in this room taking  
7 their time the last two days to come out to these  
8 hearings. Respect that. I thank you and I pled for your  
9 -- help us.  
10 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
11 MR. MCGEE: Mr. Fleming and then Kyoto [INAUDIBLE].  
12 JOHN FLEMING: Hi. I'm John Fleming, a scientist with  
13 the Center for Biological Diversity, and based on the  
14 documents I reviewed, it is clear that not enough has been  
15 done to ensure that what happened in October 2015 will not  
16 happen again. First, the cause of the blowout of the well  
17 SS25 and results in public health emergency has still not  
18 been determined and the lasting health effects still not  
19 quantified. Also, while it was well-documented that the  
20 [INAUDIBLE] runs through the field and acknowledged that  
21 detailed seismic studies should be done, it is shockingly  
22 been determined that these studies do not require  
23 immediate action. This is even though an inevitable  
24 earthquake has the potential to stabilize well [INAUDIBLE]  
25 and cause a similar if not worse scenario than that in  
26 October 2013. A [INAUDIBLE] analysis for Aliso Canyon was

75

1 requested in which SoCalGas and I quote, "Shall explain  
2 how Aliso Canyon facility is safe to operate prior to  
3 completion of the root cause analysis on how and why SS25  
4 failed." Yet, it is clear that the fields fitness for  
5 service cannot be concluded without this root cause  
6 analysis and without a seismic analysis. Therefore,  
7 considering reopening the Aliso Canyon facility is grossly  
8 irresponsible, especially with the yet-to-be-completed of  
9 [INAUDIBLE] efforts. Efforts that made themselves be all  
10 together unnecessary with the process enacted by CPUC to  
11 reduce demand for natural gas. Instead of rushing to  
12 reopen this facility, seriously examine whether that is  
13 why is considering its troublesome history and aging  
14 infrastructure. Permanent closure is warranted if it  
15 means avoiding another single worst natural gas leak in  
16 U.S. history and for their hardship for the residents of  
17 Porter Ranch. Thank you.  
18 MR. MCGEE: After [INAUDIBLE] is Leslie. Please when  
19 you're ready.  
20 KYOTO [INAUDIBLE][INAUDIBLE]: Hi. My name is Kyoko  
21 [INAUDIBLE]. Ten years lived in Porter Ranch. Since grow  
22 up, I suffered nose bleed, headache, dizziness, [INAUDIBLE]  
23 cough, [INAUDIBLE] pressure, pressure on chest, shortness  
24 of breath, flu-like symptoms, [INAUDIBLE] depression, high  
25 blood pressure, palpitation, UTI, burning chest and  
26 [INAUDIBLE], twitching temple, joint muscle aches. Since

76

1 SoCalGas [INAUDIBLE] on November 1st, 2016, I searched  
2 [INAUDIBLE] is safe [INAUDIBLE]. My health symptom hasn't  
3 reflected anything about safe. On November 1st, I have a  
4 nose bleed. November 8th, I have a nose bleed twice.  
5 Twenty first, joint ache everywhere. Twenty third, runny  
6 nose. [INAUDIBLE] joint muscle ache. Twenty four,  
7 sneezing, running nose. My cat had a bloody nose.  
8 Twenty-nine, nose bleed. December 3rd, nose bleed, joint  
9 muscle ache everywhere. December 6th, runny nose, stuffed  
10 nose, runny mucous. Seven, ache everywhere in my body.  
11 [INAUDIBLE] joint muscle ache everywhere. Thirteen, nose  
12 bleed, blurry eyes. Twenty-second, nose bleed.  
13 Twenty-seven nose bleed, sneezing, running nose.  
14 Twenty-eight nose bleed. My cat has swollen eyes.  
15 Twenty-nine is bloody, blood in my urine. January 2nd,  
16 nose bleed. Eleven is joint muscle ache everywhere.  
17 Twelve is nose bleed. Fourteen, swollen lymph nodes.  
18 Fifteen nose bleed. Twenty-nine is nose bleed. February  
19 1st I had a nose bleed and this morning I had a nose  
20 bleed. Does this sound like I'm safe living in my house?  
21 Is that finding out why, why we are so safe and  
22 [INAUDIBLE]. Why can you say this is the safest facility?  
23 Just outside of the gate, the city gate, we are sick,  
24 right? Struggling because no one on this table and  
25 Governor Brown actually cares about our health. Facilities  
26 should not be opened until we are still sick and no health

77

1 study. Governor Brown, please shut the facility down  
2 permanently.  
3 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
4 MR. MCGEE: After these two, the next to speakers are  
5 Matt [INAUDIBLE] and Helen [INAUDIBLE]. Please when  
6 you're ready.  
7 LESLIE [INAUDIBLE]: Hi. My name is Leslie [INAUDIBLE]  
8 and this is my husband Skip, and we've lived in Porter  
9 Ranch for 37 years, and we have never, ever experienced  
10 the symptoms that I'm going to tell you about. I -- since  
11 2001, I suffered a brain tumor, I survived breast cancer,  
12 and a heart attack. The reason I mention this is I don't  
13 want to live in fear. I want to live in gratitude and  
14 then the gas leaked happened and fear smacked me in the  
15 face again. We were relocated to the Marriott in Woodland  
16 Hills [INAUDIBLE], Westlake, [INAUDIBLE] in Westwood for  
17 seven months out of our own home. It is so difficult to  
18 not be in your own familiar surroundings for that length  
19 the time. My symptoms disappeared when we lived there.  
20 When we came back to our house to get clothes, I will feel  
21 those same symptoms right away; immediately. I'd get  
22 nauseous and I'd say to my husband Skip, "We have to get  
23 out of here. Grab our clothes and go." Now I'm  
24 experiencing -- I got the symptoms. And like many of you,  
25 I didn't realize that the symptoms that I was having had  
26 to do with a leak and the well. And I've been [INAUDIBLE]

78

1 nausea, horrible rash on my legs, arm, back, chest, scalp  
2 and every day, itch, itch, itch. Depression,  
3 post-traumatic stress syndrome, seeing a therapist, dry  
4 burning eyes, dripping nose and throat, horrible dry skin,  
5 headaches; getting fired from my job for 26 years because  
6 I could not work. And it's a "whoa." It is. So I thank  
7 my husband. Bottom line here is I don't want to suffer  
8 anymore. I have suffered. It is unconscionable to me  
9 that -- and unacceptable to me and my husband that an  
10 incident -- I know that it's been said [INAUDIBLE] needs  
11 to be said, that is unprecedented in the history of the  
12 United States, nothing is being done. Something needs to  
13 be done immediately. Immediately to end -- as Mitch  
14 Englander said last night, we should not have to live our  
15 lives in fear. We need action and we need action now.  
16 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
17 MR. MCGEE: Matt Pakucko and Helen [INAUDIBLE] are our  
18 next speakers. When you're ready, please.  
19 MATT PAKUCKO: Hi. My name is Matt Pakucko, President  
20 and co-founder of Save Porter Ranch. Ten-year resident of  
21 Porter Ranch. I grew up in the California non-profit. We  
22 represent -- I don't know, how many? Two-thousand people  
23 of Porter Ranch. Yeah. My statement was pretty much made  
24 last night. And my statement is not my statement. It's  
25 what these people are going through. I mean, what more do  
26 you need? I mean why are we still here after that? Last

79

1 night was public comment. Did you hear it? It didn't  
2 look like you were expecting it to look -- it didn't look  
3 like a line of sheep to the slaughter. We've been there  
4 for 15 fucking months. Pardon my French. But you walked  
5 out. You walked out on the people that you came here to  
6 serve. We're paying you to be here. We're not paid to be  
7 here. It was a little uncomfortable for you or it was  
8 unacceptable? What the hell do you think we've been going  
9 through? What the hell do you think we've been going  
10 through? And you walked out. That's unacceptable. And  
11 after seeing that, I really don't know if you really give  
12 a flying crap what we have to say and you can, of course,  
13 walk out any time you want if I use the "F" bomb. Is  
14 there a decision to reinject or we're pretty clear that  
15 you've already made up your mind that this is just a  
16 checklist to get us the hell out of your way? So it's  
17 there a decision to reinject or is it going to be one of  
18 those stories -- ten years, five years, years down the  
19 road when the place blows up and people die and they go,  
20 "How could they make that stupid decision back then? They  
21 knew all the dangers." How many times have we heard that  
22 story in this country and this planet? Okay. You guys --  
23 Ken Harris, Tim Sullivan -- sitting back there in your  
24 comfy chairs up there. I don't know if you're concerned  
25 about your legacy. You might be dead soon, I don't know.  
26 And you're not worried about it, but probably at some

80

1 point you do your decision if you reinject and some people  
2 may well die and some people may already be dead from past  
3 DOGGR and CPUC decisions. This is just another day in the  
4 office for you guys, isn't it? You've been all over the  
5 State of California. You've seen this time and again.  
6 We've heard about all the stuff that goes out in  
7 California time and again. People getting sick, people  
8 dying. Just another day at the office, isn't it? Been  
9 there, done that. Danielle and her voice. Her voice  
10 [INAUDIBLE] done right there she has to look at you in the  
11 eyes and you didn't. We saw that. Just another day at  
12 the damn office, and you guys like putting in overtime?  
13 You don't care about all this clapping and [INAUDIBLE]  
14 what do we like? [INAUDIBLE] it's not in the regulations,  
15 but your mission statement includes life, health, and  
16 property and natural resources. Health. You keep saying,  
17 though, it's not health. Oh, yeah, uh-huh. In your  
18 mission statement it's not in your safety review  
19 [INAUDIBLE] but the disclaimer is from the consultant that  
20 SoCalGas hired, that's right I chopped up your safety  
21 review, that -- there's a disclaimer that says, something  
22 to the effect of, they're not liable for any inaccuracies.  
23 And you're relying on them. And the Department of Health,  
24 he's gone. Elected officials? Anyone still left? No.  
25 In and out of here ten minutes after his speech last night,  
26 but we're still and -- but they're not listening to you.

81

1 They're gone. So you can decide to reinject, unless  
2 [INAUDIBLE], decide to reinject. The State gets money from  
3 that and that's how you get paid, and you can keep making  
4 people sick right here in this neighborhood, in this  
5 community, but you picked the wrong neighborhood to mess  
6 with because when you make that decision to reinject, you're  
7 going to have a bigger freaking problem on your hands that  
8 you're going to have to deal with. Thank you.  
9 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
10 MR. MCGEE: Helen [INAUDIBLE]. After you will be Nick  
11 [INAUDIBLE] I very well may have done your name a disservice.  
12 Please, when you're ready.  
13 HELEN RIDNOUR: It's Helen Ridnour. My husband and I  
14 bought our first home in Porter Ranch in July of 2015. We  
15 moved in in August. I gave birth to my first child in  
16 September and then in October the blowout happened. We  
17 never received any disclosure about the gas facility so  
18 close to our home. We're just right down on Tampa and we  
19 never received any notice from the Gas Company letting us  
20 know what was actually happening and what we're being  
21 exposed to. Once we did relocate, I -- we received many  
22 "Dear Neighbor" letters assuring us of the safety of the  
23 actions that SoCalGas was taking to make sure that the  
24 relocation reimbursements were moving swiftly and that  
25 they're doing their due diligence in all they could.  
26 These words didn't really mean a whole lot and it became

82

1 my full-time job to call, e-mail, beg and plea for them to  
2 give what they promise and committed to give to us and  
3 failed to do. So, when we have these hearings about this  
4 safety review, it's not lost [INAUDIBLE] to us. We don't  
5 need you to sell us on the need or the safety of this  
6 facility. We're pretty well-informed and well-engaged  
7 community and we don't need sound bites and we don't need  
8 promises. What we need is to stop being sick and you have  
9 the power to do that. And they let officials that come  
10 and represent and, you know, talk about their support and  
11 having our backs, I'm sure they're well intentioned. It  
12 really doesn't mean much because for 15 months we've been  
13 at this and we haven't really seen a whole lot of action  
14 and that's what we need right now, so please don't give us  
15 any assurances of how safety -- and feel confident about  
16 this. We'll know it when we see it and when we stop  
17 getting sick.  
18 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
19 MR. MCGEE: After this speaker will be Mark  
20 [INAUDIBLE] I believe. Greg. Pardon me.  
21 RICK [INAUDIBLE]: Hi. My name is Rick [INAUDIBLE].  
22 All energy has a cost. The cost of this blowout is too high.  
23 The hospitals and the doctors in Los Angeles unfortunately  
24 know about this because we have spent collectively  
25 millions of dollars for remedies that were mostly  
26 undetected by these doctors, untrained for the poisoning

83

1 that we've experienced. What you don't see can hurt you.  
2 Last summer, when driving into town from Mt. Baldy, saw a  
3 huge smoke cloud. In then struck me that this was a fire  
4 near Santa Clarita. Air has no boundaries. It holds no  
5 bounds and the air travels much further than a small area  
6 like Porter Ranch. What you don't see can hurt you. My  
7 children were affected both physically and emotionally by  
8 this gas poisoning. They were harmed in ways that are  
9 criminal in nature and will live with the consequences of  
10 poor health that needs to be remedied by by our  
11 long-winded bureaucrats who made whole -- who are made whole  
12 by a company that neglected to serve our community in a  
13 safe and honest way. As honor students that were stripped  
14 from their schools and their communities, they were and  
15 continue to live with the consequences. What you can't  
16 see can hurt you. The four of us have had levels of  
17 benzene and Styroom [phonetic] in the 95 percentile, and  
18 we did not live in Porter Ranch. We lived in Northridge.  
19 I must inform you that just because you didn't do these  
20 tests, this is for all of you here, these poisons are still  
21 in you. They're in your blood streams and they will cause  
22 problems later on. Benzene was determined to be a Class I  
23 carcinogen in 1928. This means that's it's a  
24 cancer-causing agent. My wife nearly lost her eye from  
25 the poisoning. She suffered pain that she described as  
26 worst than childbirth for an entire month. She has not

84

1 regained her eyesight and struggles now with her vision.  
2 What you don't see can hurt you. I myself had memory  
3 loss, cardiovascular problems, and lethargy as if I was  
4 being gassed, as in fact I was. What you don't see can  
5 hurt you. I'm wrapping it up right now, so I realize that  
6 you're standing there. We were forced to leave our home  
7 of 15 years that we worked so many years to acquire. We  
8 are still suffering physically, emotionally, and  
9 spiritually from this. What you don't see can hurt you.  
10 Lastly, I want to tell you that many of you are saying  
11 that you don't know. That you do not want it open until  
12 you know the root cause of the blowout. Most people did  
13 not realize that SoCalGas uses its storage facility that  
14 plays the mark. They buy the gas low and they sell it  
15 high when it's needed. It prices that will go from the  
16 U.S. to other countries. So far, this has caused SoCalGas  
17 \$650,000,000 that we know of of which they're insurance  
18 company is covered completely. Could it be that it was  
19 more cost effective to let the blowout happen and have it  
20 covered by insurance than to pay for the repairs that were  
21 known by the company before the blowout occurred?  
22 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
23 RICK [INAUDIBLE]: Let me ask all of you that playing  
24 the safety of our families is not at harm. Move into Porter  
25 Ranch and live there. They will not because they don't  
26 want to die. If a fire takes place, the Fire Department

85

1 investigates even if it's a private company. There are no  
2 proprietary formulas to hide behind. They sit on top of  
3 their hill looking down on us as if we were all fools. We  
4 are the people. What you don't see can hurt you. You  
5 need to close this facility immediately. Thank you.  
6 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
7 MR. MCGEE: After Mr. Grech is [INAUDIBLE] and Nancy  
8 [INAUDIBLE]. Please, sir.  
9 MARK GRECH: Hello. I'm Mark Grech, G-R-E-C-H. I  
10 was very disheartened when I heard the [INAUDIBLE] from  
11 the L.A. County Health Department talk about SoCalGas  
12 backing away from the health study and then I think he  
13 said he was going to cut several million dollars. It kind  
14 of brought to mind an article that I read online about  
15 Sempra Energy's Chief Executive Officer Debra Reed. In  
16 2015, collected a bonus of 3.17 million dollars and when I  
17 read that again I got really sick to my stomach. I got to  
18 tell you. Talk about somebody being able to do the right  
19 thing but never will. My family and I have lived in  
20 Porter Ranch, California since 2005. For over 12 years.  
21 We were displaced for several months during the Aliso  
22 Canyon gas blowout in 2015, and we've all suffered all the  
23 family members have suffered the same thing that everybody  
24 else has: the nausea, the dizziness, the bloody nose, on  
25 and on. 2017 marks the third calendar year that residents  
26 have been forced to endure continue to have problems that

86

1 we too have suffered and the uncertainties and the  
2 long-term risks, not to mention, you know, the stagnant or  
3 reduce property values on and on. Nobody disclosed these  
4 risks to us. We purchased our home in 2005. I will  
5 promptly sum up my arguments for keeping this facility  
6 closed permanently. Firstly, I've heard this from both  
7 Matt Pakucko and makes you wonder [INAUDIBLE]: We still  
8 have no root cause analysis. Some of this is redundant.  
9 Sorry, but needs to be heard. Why put the plane back in  
10 the air when we don't know what caused it to crash in the  
11 first place? Is this not pure common sense? We demand a  
12 root cause analysis before this facility is ever even  
13 considered to fully operate again. The safety facility is  
14 smacked dab in the middle of an earthquake fault zone  
15 with active earthquake faults, and it's also located on  
16 the higher parts of danger zone that we all know also has  
17 some of the windiest atmospheric conditions in all of  
18 Southern California. Formula for another disaster in the  
19 perfect storm. Our family's been evacuated three times  
20 since we moved here in 2005. I believe the last fire --  
21 the Aliso Canyon fire -- was in October 19th, of 2016 and  
22 the L.A. Times article said that the fire scorched 28  
23 acres near Tampa and [INAUDIBLE]. We all know what's at Tampa  
24 and [INAUDIBLE]; right? Incident commanders are also taking  
25 national gas fields into consideration as they developed a  
26 plan to distinguish the fire. L.A. Fire Department

87

1 spokesman Eric Scott was quoted as saying, "Thirdly, and  
2 finally there's been no health study done short or long  
3 term." SoCalGas is hoping we will forget about this  
4 requirement as a condition to reopen. We have not  
5 forgotten. SoCalGas has stated on several occasions that  
6 are exposure to their [INAUDIBLE] chemicals represent no  
7 long-term health effects. Yet they won't list a full list  
8 of those chemicals; right? Guess what, this is just a  
9 plain smoke & mirrors as the long term has been heard yet.  
10 Another statement by SoCalGas [INAUDIBLE] --  
11 MR. MCGEE: Sir, please.  
12 MARK GRECH: -- almost done. Allow us to reopen  
13 what would be once again Pandora's Box and putting the  
14 lives and well-being in the hands of dice rollers. Jerry  
15 Brown, please listen. Shut it all down forever.  
16 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
17 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. As I've been trying to do all  
18 night, I'm trying not to cut you off in the middle of the  
19 statement. My staff feels [INAUDIBLE]. It's 8:43 and the  
20 next speakers are Nina and Nancy [INAUDIBLE]. This might  
21 start happening as well. How about Darryl Pack [PHONETIC]  
22 and Pinky?  
23 DARRYL PACK [PHONETIC]: I need to read from notes, if  
24 that's okay. I want to show my notes to everybody. We are  
25 here for one reason only. The Gas Company and the people  
26 that help them are making crazy money off of this field.

88

1 There is no other reason that everyone is having suffered  
2 for 15 months. There's no other reason that you guys are  
3 so close to the Gas Company. Serious money is being made.  
4 If it wasn't about money, we wouldn't be here. So I  
5 challenge every single one of you. You are responsible in  
6 the same way that a crane operator or crane inspector is  
7 responsible if there's an accident, and there will be  
8 another accident. There's a hundred and fourteen more  
9 wells left to blow and everyone single one of you -- your  
10 staffs, the people that support you -- are responsible.  
11 Health is your first responsibility. You can pretend like  
12 it's not, but it is. It says it. You also have to  
13 understand that we need something more, and I'm going to  
14 ask it and it's obvious. When we close this facility, we  
15 need everything drained. It's not enough to shut it down  
16 and wait until we figure out what's wrong. You shut it  
17 down and you drain it. And you monitor it and everyone in  
18 this room and everyone and every one in the community gets  
19 that monitoring on their phone. That's not that much to  
20 ask. I understand you guys are in the oil and gas  
21 business. And you know what, that's going away and I know  
22 that's hard for you. And you know what, get [INAUDIBLE]  
23 thank you.  
24 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
25 MR. MCGEE: Our next speaker will be [INAUDIBLE].  
26 Please, when you're ready, Pinky.

89

1 DIANE PINKY HARMON: Hello, everyone in Porter Ranch and  
2 adjacent communities. My name is Diane Pinky Harmon and I  
3 live across from Porter Ranch, Aliso Canyon in Porter  
4 Ranch estates. Ironically, I'm running for mayor of  
5 Los Angeles because I want the people in Porter Ranch,  
6 including myself to have a voice. Now let's talk about  
7 SoCalGas and communication. I received a phone call, oh,  
8 you know, about a year or so ago. I don't know if you  
9 received the same phone calls: "Now is a good day to go  
10 out. Now isn't a good day to go out." I said to my  
11 husband, "What the -- are they talking about." I went to  
12 Thanksgiving dinner that night and my friends said, "You  
13 don't know?" I said, "Know what?" All of Aliso Canyon --  
14 it's a big gas leak over there. I want to tell SoCalGas,  
15 shame on you. Every single person in this room is  
16 important. Everyone in this room, almost everyone  
17 including myself in this room has had health issues. I  
18 want everyone in this room to know that you, as I  
19 mentioned before are important. Now let's talk about  
20 communication. We have been here talking to the People  
21 that are -- I guess have the power to turn it off but  
22 communication, gentlemen, goes both ways. Communication,  
23 we need you to listen. I think you're listening but it's  
24 like "Oh, you're turning off, well, it's not my  
25 community." I even asked the CEO of SoCalGas when this  
26 all was happening, you can live in my house. You just

90

1 rent it and, you know, you stay with your family;  
2 grandchildren but they didn't want to. So in closing,  
3 United, everyone, we can work together to create a  
4 change. Difference we will do. Thank you.  
5 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
6 MR. MCGEE: After [INAUDIBLE] then Carrie [INAUDIBLE]  
7 and again if I get your names wrong, I apologize. Please,  
8 when you're ready.  
9 MS. SHERMAN: Good evening, my name is [INAUDIBLE]  
10 Sherman and I'm for the Center for Environmental Health or  
11 CEH and for 20 -- 20 years, CEH has been a leading national  
12 non-profit working to protect children and families from  
13 toxic chemicals in our air, water, food and in everyday  
14 products. In 2015, residents from the Porter Ranch  
15 community approached us regarding their concerns about  
16 illnesses and symptoms they were experiencing that they  
17 believed were related to pollution in the Aliso Canyon  
18 facility. The health issues included all of those you  
19 heard: Nose bleeds, rashes, burning eyes, asthma, and  
20 other respiratory issues, vomiting, dizziness, and nausea.  
21 Their concerns dated back to well before the massive leak  
22 that made news in October of last -- of that year, sorry.  
23 After the leak began and continuing for months. Thereafter,  
24 the toxic exposures to the Porter Ranch residents caused  
25 by SoCalGas's facility increased exponentially. These  
26 exposures included significant exposures to benzene a

91

1 chemical known to the state of California to cause cancer,  
2 birth defects, and other reproductive harm. SoCalGas  
3 therefore was required under Proposition 65 to provide  
4 clear and reasonable warnings to the community regarding  
5 these exposures because these people had and have a right  
6 to know. Nevertheless, SoCalGas has never provided these  
7 warnings. Never provided these warnings. In fact, it's  
8 the exact opposite by telling residents that there was no  
9 health risk whatsoever from the gas leak. It's now  
10 troubling that DOGGR and CPUC are considering reopening  
11 this facility particularly since neither agency has a  
12 public health focus nor the health expertise needed to  
13 assure the residents that the facility can be operated  
14 safely. In fact, recent history shows that these and  
15 other agencies and SoCalGas have failed to account for the  
16 residents' health and safety concerns around Aliso Canyon.  
17 When the leak was first reported while SoCalGas was  
18 claiming that there was no health risk, the agencies did  
19 not need to inform the public of possible danger. They  
20 later acknowledged that a natural gas could  
21 cause headaches, vomiting, nose bleeds and other symptoms  
22 but stated that these were only temporary and would not  
23 cause lasting harm. A health study by SoCalGas was  
24 supposed to assess the health and safety issues but after  
25 more than a year the company still refuses to recognize  
26 what comprehensive health study would entail and pay the

92

1 necessary funds to ensure that it happens. It is worth  
2 noting that even prior to the blowout, SoCalGas would  
3 release thousands of pounds of harmful chemicals into the  
4 environment every year and that residents were complaining  
5 of adverse health effects. Simply returning to the way  
6 things were before the blowout is unacceptable. As such,  
7 we do not understand how the agencies can even consider  
8 allowing this facility to reopen. One moment. The  
9 company should be barred from this as long as it has  
10 failed to truly -- to fully consider the health of every  
11 resident to conduct a comprehensive analysis of the  
12 integrity of the wells in the field and to produce a root  
13 cause analysis to determine the cause of the 2015 blowout.  
14 Lastly, in the bigger picture, we must address the fact  
15 that oil and gas is an inherently toxic industry. Leaks  
16 or omissions of methane and other DOCs have been all along  
17 oil and gas extraction development operations and  
18 transport. Methane is an especially potent greenhouse  
19 gas. Eighty six times more potent than CO2. Eighty six  
20 times more potent. As a result, the Aliso leak was the  
21 largest planned disaster in U.S. history and we need to  
22 begin moving away from fossil fuels and develop healthier  
23 energy solutions, sources, in the long run and reopening  
24 Aliso Canyon will be a giant step backwards for this area  
25 and the country's energy future.  
26 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]

93

1 MR. MCGEE: Pardon me, are you Diedre or Carrie?  
2 DEIDRE: I'm Diedre.  
3 MR. MCGEE: [INAUDIBLE] do we have [INAUDIBLE] then  
4 after [INAUDIBLE] will be Ho Ho. Please, when you're  
5 ready.  
6 FEMALE SPEAKER: Hello. My name is Deidre.  
7 [INAUDIBLE] I've been a resident of Porter Ranch for 17  
8 years. I know everyone has been sick over these last two  
9 years, but I want to tell you about the 17 years I spent  
10 in the community a mile away from SoCalGas storage field.  
11 During the 17 years, we were exposed to many methane leaks  
12 and intentional well venting on a regular basis. Everyone  
13 in the neighborhood knew that egg smell but no one knew  
14 what it contained. The toxins that they won't even tell  
15 us about because they're trade secrets. That's  
16 unconscionable to do that to people, to a community, to  
17 human beings. My husband and son suffered from sinus  
18 infections and constant nose bleeds. This is 17, 15 years  
19 ago when we thought what's going on? When we went to the  
20 doctor, the doctor said, "Well, it's got to be the winds  
21 in Porter Ranch." You know what, now we know. The  
22 doctors were right because those winds contained chemicals  
23 that kill. They contain chemicals that ruin people's  
24 lives and even the thought of wanting to reopen this, this  
25 methane dump -- I don't know what to call it and to ensure  
26 another generation of the same illnesses and sicknesses

94

1 and suffering. That's what this is. Suffering that we've  
2 had to endure. Let me just tell you, my children had  
3 rashes growing up and the doctors didn't know what they  
4 were. This, no, not just two years ago this was 10 years  
5 ago. Had rashes the doctor said, "Looks like some type of  
6 contact with lice." Okay. Put Cortisone on it, you know.  
7 Okay. I did that and you know what my children's memories  
8 are? My children have memories of their mother wrapping  
9 them putting Cortisone and wrapping them in Saran Wrapp  
10 before bed just so the bleeding and redness can stop so  
11 they could go to school the next day. Okay. My dad -- I  
12 moved him up there 12 years ago to live with us so I can  
13 take care of them. Well, he's developed kidney cancer  
14 like a lot of people in our community. It's prevalent in  
15 Porter Ranch. Okay. And I'm going to tell you about the  
16 chemical that we were breathing, and he was breathing, and  
17 unfortunately he got it. And now I get to watch my father  
18 die from breathing the trichloric [INAUDIBLE] one of many  
19 chem -- many chem -- chemicals in [INAUDIBLE]. This has  
20 to stop here and now. Why have you ignored your mission  
21 statement to ensure public safety? You know what's going  
22 on. You've been hearing it for years but you ignored it.  
23 Instead of choosing people, you chose to help with fossil  
24 fuel profits; right? That's unconscionable too. Okay.  
25 You have the opportunity tonight to do the right thing.  
26 You do. You can make change. You can start a legacy of

95

1 healing for us, for all of the fossil fuel gas storage  
2 facilities that other people like us are suffering from.  
3 All right. Clean energy is here and it's going to stay.  
4 We're going green and I know this is your business and I  
5 know it's hard to be trained in a new business, that's  
6 what they tell people, you know. Okay. So please. Do  
7 the right thing here tonight. Tell Jerry Brown to shut  
8 it all down. Thank you.  
9 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
10 MR. MCGEE: Next in line is Poe, Vicky [INAUDIBLE],  
11 and Andrea [INAUDIBLE]. And again, I'm not sure how well  
12 I'm doing with names here. Vicky goes right ahead -- go  
13 right ahead. I think we have every card that's been given  
14 to us. I still have a very fat stack. Please go right  
15 ahead.  
16 VICKI [INAUDIBLE]: I'm Vicky [INAUDIBLE] a resident of  
17 Porter Ranch for over 13 years. I moved there because I  
18 love the outdoors; being active. At 1,400 feet, I thought  
19 getting above the smog I'd be healthier. But it's done  
20 the opposite. I've become so sick from the chemical  
21 poisoning which continues daily without explanation that  
22 most days I am too sick to function. My doctors tell me,  
23 "No more windows or doors opened. No more aerobics in  
24 Porter Ranch. No hiking, no biking, no walking. And the  
25 leaks continue -- as the leaks continue you will not get  
26 better. Leave." Can you imagine over a year of being

96

1 sick, so sick you can't function in your own home.  
2 Getting ill to the point of vomiting in the kitchen sink.  
3 Often due to just stepping out in the yard of your dream  
4 home. This is now my life in Porter Ranch. When in  
5 Porter Ranch I can't focus, concentrate, have loss of  
6 balance, a high resting pulse, irregular heartbeats,  
7 wheezing, coughing, burning eyes, blurry vision, swollen  
8 lymph nodes, tinnitus, muscle and joint pain, tremendous  
9 fatigue, nightmares about losing my dog and my home. My  
10 dog lost half her teeth after blowout and still has  
11 swollen, bleeding gums. I see her vomiting after being  
12 outside only five minutes, including this past January  
13 when SoCalGas released from this facility. We were both  
14 sick. SoCalGas did not follow the winter medication plan  
15 continually close to this hearing dates. Conveniently  
16 close to these hearing dates, putting unnecessary fear  
17 into the public. The truth was they did not follow the  
18 rules. Our government officials watching over the balance  
19 of energy failed us. There is no independent health  
20 study. We deserve a study equivalent to the Gulf oil  
21 spill -- health, healthy study by the federal government,  
22 an immediate help with our health issues. Sick people did  
23 not equal a safe facility. The new pipes are in. DOGGR's  
24 not convinced me that my health is safe. The earth and  
25 equipment still leak. SoCalGas admitted so under oath.  
26 In the past -- not in the past year, nine months I've been

97

1 away from Porter Ranch due to reoccurring symptoms. On  
2 the one year anniversary of the blowout my dog and I  
3 returned. She finally vomited in the park where we, where  
4 we gathered less than 24 hours after returning to Porter  
5 Ranch. Something is contaminating the outdoors. My home  
6 is not remediated correctly. I require my own special --  
7 I hired my own special [INAUDIBLE] cleaning company told  
8 the real story of the dust and debris left behind through  
9 my home. Dust confirmed by the L.A. County Board of  
10 Health to be contaminated with heavy metals in Porter  
11 Ranch. In line with the parcels of heavy metals given by  
12 SoCalGas at the well site. This past year has been hell.  
13 A sick prisoner in my own home. My reason for moving to  
14 Porter Ranch gone. My home studio that successfully  
15 allowed me to [INAUDIBLE] luxury of moving where I thought  
16 the air was cleaner, it's only a comfort to me now, and  
17 the small business owner in this facility has dismantled  
18 all that I have accomplished. Rarely does anyone visit  
19 for fear of getting sick. This blowout has caused a very  
20 lonely, isolated life. One of the worst negligent acts  
21 during evacuation, SoCalGas gave day-to-day notices with a  
22 month-to-month lease. I could not leave the area. I  
23 could not visit my mom who was very ill. I spent my mom's  
24 final days with her returning back to my home last  
25 September to prepare her memorial. My cousin flew down  
26 to help. During early hours I sat there writing my

98

1 tribute to mom, my nose started bleeding and with a wipe  
2 of hands my sheets were bloody. I was awakened two hours  
3 later by my dog, the floor covered in her vomit. The  
4 nose -- my nose started bleeding again with little sleep,  
5 exhausted, my cousin helped document, packed my car, and  
6 drive over six hours to my dad's home where my family was  
7 waiting. Lies from day one. Disrespect for residents'  
8 health, no root cause analysis completed, no safety plan  
9 for the community, no earthquake plan advised by  
10 scientists to study, no concern for long-term effects to  
11 the children, especially is why Aliso must be permanently  
12 decommissioned. The risk assessment is too high on so  
13 many levels. All trust lost as SoCalGas always conducts  
14 business reactively not proactively. I urge DOGGR, the  
15 CPUC, and Governor Brown to decommission Aliso  
16 immediately. Health over profits.  
17 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE] Shut it all down. Shut it all  
18 down. Shut it al down.  
19 MR. MCGEE: So it's 9:03. I have 39 speaker cards  
20 left. Actually we have to leave the hotel at 10:00. So  
21 -- I will look into that. The point is -- please, please,  
22 please, please, please. This is just cutting into your  
23 speaking time, okay. They've been going about five  
24 minutes. I can -- it's evident how important these  
25 stories are for you to tell. And here's our stack of 39.  
26 So I can't -- hold on a second. I can't cut you off. I'm

99

1 going to ask you to do your best to stay within the time  
2 and we'll move through this as fast as we can. Please,  
3 when you're ready.  
4 Andrea [INAUDIBLE]: Hi. My name is Andrea [INAUDIBLE]  
5 and I'm here with [INAUDIBLE]. First of all, I want to  
6 say that people belong in our city. Gas, wells, and  
7 storage facilities don't. I think we have a really clear  
8 decision here. There's two beneficiaries to having Aliso  
9 Canyon opened. Separate stock holders and Jerry Brown's  
10 sister. On the other hand, we have millions of citizens  
11 and residents who live in the city of Los Angeles. The  
12 decision is clear. We have to shut it down. This  
13 facility leaks if it's dry and it leaks if it rains, and  
14 if it doesn't leak gas, it leaks diesel, so it leaks no  
15 matter what. We need to shut it down. The only pipeline  
16 and the only storage facility that doesn't leak is the one  
17 that is never built. This needs to be shut down, and I  
18 urge the Governor and I urge the regulator to shut it  
19 down. Regulators are supposed to regulate the industry  
20 not able it to commit harm to the citizens, and I urge  
21 you to shut it down and decommission it. Thank you.  
22 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
23 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. Next is Carol Travis and after  
24 that is Dr. Leah [INAUDIBLE]. Carol [INAUDIBLE], Dr. Leah  
25 [INAUDIBLE]. When you're ready, please.  
26 CAROL TRAVIS: Thank you. I'm from West Hollywood.

100

1 I'm here in support of the residents of Porter Ranch and  
2 for their health and well-being. I'm heartbroken of  
3 what's happened to them, and to their lives. How could  
4 DOGGR tell SoCalGas that they could reopen this facility  
5 when the root cause analysis hasn't been done. How dare  
6 they say that people aren't getting sick when it's obvious  
7 that they still are and the wellness study hasn't even  
8 started. That utility won't lay out a measly a million  
9 dollars or whatever it takes to make sure that these  
10 people's problems and their health problems are taking  
11 care of is completely criminal. I have felt very strongly  
12 enough about this tragedy that besides showing up to rally  
13 and stand side-by-side for the people who live here --  
14 with whose lives have been disruptive I trained and sat in  
15 a non-violent direct action against SoCalGas at the  
16 facility. We sat for over four hours in the driveway  
17 chanting and chanting. We were blocking the entrance and  
18 we couldn't even get arrested because SoCalGas didn't want  
19 anymore publicity. Well, Jerry Brown must decommission  
20 this facility for -- for -- for good. The switch to a  
21 hundred percent renewable is upon us, ladies and gentlemen.  
22 Do you know that one hour of solar will fuel the entire world  
23 for a year? Oh, I see. That's clear why SoCalGas won't  
24 give it up. It's free. It's free. We don't need digging  
25 up any more dead fossil fuels. It's the 21st century and  
26 we have to start using mother nature's clean, living

101

1 energy on those hills for wind and solar and to help heal  
2 this community. Thank you.  
3 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
4 MR. MCGEE: Next in line, David Carey and Jane Fowler.  
5 Please, when you're ready.  
6 DR. [INAUDIBLE]: I'm Dr. [INAUDIBLE] and I'm here  
7 because I had to move my mother out of the Porter Ranch  
8 area. She's a senior who can't drive. I think about all  
9 the seniors who also can't drive. Who are unable to leave  
10 their house. I was here last night and talked to some  
11 women who were from a senior center who -- God, so  
12 upsetting. They didn't know where to go. They said, they  
13 said they'd like to move. They'd like to get out of the  
14 area because it's unhealthy and they said, "But we like  
15 where we are. There isn't that many places in the L.A.  
16 area that's affordable or has a little patch of green."  
17 I'm thinking about when you're living in your later years  
18 and you can't drive, how your environment is really  
19 important and L.A. is not known for being particularly  
20 green, so I wonder, where is Jerry Brown when this is  
21 happening? He's already AARP. Why isn't he worried about  
22 other seniors? We know that when this facility was  
23 limited last year, there were great advances made toward  
24 renewable energies. I think by [INAUDIBLE] even more and  
25 shutting down Aliso Canyon permanently, we will go to a  
26 hundred percent renewable faster which is what the L.A.

102

1 City Council promised us in September and the DWP is  
2 saying it's trying to move toward, but how is this  
3 supposed to get to -- it's claimed as 65 percent renewable  
4 of -- within the next few years if we're allowing the gas  
5 industry to continue with unsafe facility that is over --  
6 they have wells over 80 years old. I'm done. I'm just  
7 too angry to speak.  
8 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
9 MR. MCGEE: [INAUDIBLE] I believe you're Jane Fowler?  
10 Please go right head.  
11 JANE FOWLER: Okay. Thank you my name is Jane  
12 Fowler. I'm a resident of Granada Hills and this gas  
13 blowout and the continuing leaks have taken a toll on me  
14 and my family. My beloved dog Missy is dead, my cats are  
15 sick, and my family are very affected by this. Now I have  
16 a whole story, you know, before the leak, during the leak,  
17 being evacuated for seven months, but I'm only going to  
18 tell you since you've sent me home what I'm still  
19 experiencing. I have headaches, nausea, vomiting, dry  
20 heaving, itchy skin, rashes, sore throat. Very lethargic  
21 and constant diarrhea, and stomach pain, and achy body,  
22 and hair loss. This is like half of my hair. Such  
23 fatigue that you're sitting on the couch and you, like,  
24 literally count the steps that'll take you to get to the  
25 kitchen or get to the bathroom because it's so hard to  
26 move. And all this continues. We are told that it's

103

1 safe, but we continue to feel these symptoms, and now is  
2 not a time goes on and on and you're stuck in this  
3 perpetual cycle of physical distress. You start to get  
4 anxiety, fear, like you don't know what it takes in the  
5 brain. What you're going to feel. How you're going to  
6 feel, and the depression the depression that you start to  
7 feel is -- so I'm standing before you now, I am a  
8 shell of the person that I used to be. The stress  
9 of not knowing, the fear of the unknown, and when you're  
10 trying to live your life, you're living your life, but you  
11 feel sick and then you go and you're sick and you go and  
12 you're sick. It's just ongoing and I -- I don't know what's  
13 going on up there. All I know is that I am sick. My  
14 husband was getting ready to board a plane and the doctor  
15 in New York was frantically trying to get ahold of him  
16 because his blood results came back and she told him, "Do  
17 not get on that plane because if you do, you may not get  
18 off." Anemia. Like, Anemia. That's one of the diseases.  
19 So anyway, the doctor said it was a miracle he was  
20 walking. You have to do something but this has just been  
21 going on too long. And I just want to say -- I'm sharing  
22 with you these very personal and embarrassing physical  
23 conditions because of the severity of our situation. I do  
24 this for the children and for those could not be here  
25 today because they were too sick. Thank you.  
26 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]

104

1 MR. MCGEE: Our next speakers are Darryl Gaile and  
2 Bryan [INAUDIBLE]. Pardon me. Im sorry.  
3 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Yeah. Thank you very much.  
4 Benzene [INAUDIBLE] hydrogen sulfate, plasma [INAUDIBLE]  
5 Ive been to public meetings before and this is a joke.  
6 There's no binders for people here in the audience to review.  
7 There's no technical studies. There's no handouts that  
8 will bring us up to date of what's going on. There's many  
9 seniors in this group who don't even use the computer. It  
10 makes no sense. There's no public comments to staff  
11 member or member that's brought in here on panel that we  
12 can question, so I will question you and I will expect you  
13 to answer my questions. Number one, soil integrity.  
14 There's huge craters around well 25. The size that can  
15 swallow two school buses. A huge crater sinkhole. What  
16 is the migration pattern that is going one here? Is the  
17 gas going down different layers of the geological  
18 structure into the neighborhoods. Who can answer that?  
19 MR. MCGEE: Sir, tonight we're here to collect your  
20 questions. They will be responded. But we're not set up  
21 to answer questions tonight. We're simply not. So  
22 please, pardon me. Pardon me, please. Log and register  
23 your questions. We're collecting them now. Please  
24 continue.  
25 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: So these underground  
26 migration routes since these blowouts have occurred over

1 the last several months -- there's been more than one major  
2 leak -- tell me about the underground mapping of the  
3 direction of the gas. Where is it? Is it down where some  
4 of the abandoned wells are below? Talk about the size of  
5 the reservoir. The capstone rock. Has the capstone rock  
6 been compromised to crack, yes or no? Do we know that?  
7 Has there been a video sampling or some kind of documentation  
8 of the reservoir? What has been changed geologically up  
9 there?  
10 We talked about the rains on Christmas Eve. You guys  
11 give [INAUDIBLE] calls and say, "Oh, by the way, we have  
12 leaks, you know." I take this to a doctor and the doctor  
13 says, "What in the heck are you supposed to do with these --  
14 this information that comes on these lists or calls? You  
15 know what he says now? The doctors all say, "Get out of  
16 the area." That is the only remedy that is being proposed.  
17 Has this capstone been cracked? We talked about this  
18 capstone. Some reservoir, some natural geological formation  
19 8300 feet below surface, below the surface of the earth.  
20 What is the structure since this is mother nature? Do you  
21 guys know? You're sticking down metal pipes -- handmade  
22 pipes into this structure but what does that thing look like  
23 if you're inside the wells, excuse me, the reservoir itself  
24 looking up at the ceiling of this capstone. Is it  
25 leaking? Where is it going? Is it going to stop? So  
26 there's been a fire in 1975 [INAUDIBLE] there was a fire

1 in 1975 when I was a kid in one of these wells caught  
2 fire. That fire, that fire was not extinguished until  
3 1979, so what's the deal with fires? There's a tourist  
4 attraction in one of the in one of the next  
5 Soviet republics today where they thought, "Oh, we have a  
6 methane leak. Let's light this pin on fire." That fire  
7 still festers today in the pit. That's what's going to go  
8 on up here if you get another fire. It's just going to  
9 fester and fester for years and years to come. So the  
10 question is, what about this tunnel that's been proposed  
11 [INAUDIBLE] mountain from Tampa connecting Stephenson  
12 Ranch? Is that going to be going through the Aliso Canyon  
13 field? How is that going to interact in -- and deal with  
14 us in the neighborhood once that tunnel is put through?  
15 There's a road in Stephenson Ranch that goes right into  
16 the mountain; a four-lane road, and stops with the  
17 alignment of Tampa Avenue.  
18 MR. MCGEE: Sir, you're in six minutes.  
19 MALE SPEAKER: So the question is: How do the old  
20 mountain wells that are by [INAUDIBLE] Alison Canyon  
21 property, how are they going to interact with the Aliso  
22 Canyon wells? These are questions that need to be  
23 answered, and how is the gas delivered? Where does it  
24 originate from? How far out of state? Where the pipes  
25 coming in from? How is it stored? Who is the gas  
26 delivered to? I've heard the gas is delivered to China.

1 [INAUDIBLE] the gas is stored in China. So the question  
2 is, what about the step out sampling? We have soils that  
3 are contaminated. How contaminated is the soil if we  
4 don't step out from that [INAUDIBLE].  
5 MR. MCGEE: Thank you very much. Thank you very much.  
6 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
7 MR. MCGEE: I will. thank you. I promise. Darryl  
8 [INAUDIBLE] and Bryan [INAUDIBLE] please. I promise I  
9 will.  
10 DARRYL GAIL: Hi. I'm Darryl Gail and I live in  
11 Downtown Los Angeles and I promise to be brief. I've been  
12 watching this horrific tragedy since right before it  
13 started, this very large facility since the October 2015  
14 blowout [INAUDIBLE] the Santa Susanna fault. The wells are  
15 between -- the average wells are between 60 and 80 years  
16 old when SS25 blew on this large methane leak. They did  
17 not have safety valve since 1979. Do any of the other  
18 wells have safety valves installed? When it was realized  
19 that specialized equipment was needed to stop this  
20 underground leak, they had to go to Houston, Texas and try  
21 to get equipment, which was not able to stop the well.  
22 Homeowners are constantly reminded, you know, in general  
23 by public safety you know this is a bad earthquake and  
24 fire preparedness. Why does this gigantic field full of  
25 volatile gas, why is it exempt from safety and monitoring  
26 preparation? If there is an earthquake, where are the

1 citizens supposed to go? I talked to numerous citizens.  
2 They say there's no evacuation plan. What if there's this  
3 giant fireball [INAUDIBLE] the area turns into like the  
4 moon? What's going to happen? I just don't understand  
5 how this facility could ever, ever be safely reopened.  
6 Why don't you just make it into a wind farm? Make it a  
7 solar farm. Make it a battery storage facility. Provide  
8 nice nice clean jobs for people so this will never happen  
9 again. Governor Brown is treating this area like a third  
10 world country and it has to stop. Thank you.  
11 THE PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
12 MR. MCGEE: Please after is Alex [INAUDIBLE] and  
13 Patricia [INAUDIBLE], I believe. Please, sir.  
14 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: Thank you. I don't want  
15 to be redundant with some of the stories that were shared.  
16 I'm a father five, five children in the Northridge area.  
17 By the time we moved were relocated for six months. Most  
18 of the hotels were taken so we driving a hundred miles a day.  
19 In the month of December, my two sons lost ten teeth. Ten  
20 teeth in one month. Our gums were bleeding, everything  
21 else -- but he didn't realize what was going on. In fact,  
22 I did not at all. I said there's no way this is from the  
23 gas leak and there was so many different problems going  
24 on. By the time we moved, things cleared up for a little  
25 while. We get back to the house. We were thinking  
26 everything is fine. This little guy here had profuse nose

109

1 bleeds everyday in the middle of the night, rushing into  
2 his room, sheets full of blood because -- because of the,  
3 of what's in the air. When we go to his pediatrician --  
4 I went to the pediatrician in the area that he goes and I  
5 said, "What's going?" She goes, "Oh, yeah. I get, I get  
6 tons of kids in here with bloody noses." And I said,  
7 "Well, why is it? Why, why are the kids --" She goes,  
8 "Because you see, what's in the, in the air," she said,  
9 "elongates the proteins in the blood, and the blood is not  
10 capable of clotting and that's why all of these are  
11 bleeding profusely from their noses. Even the schools in  
12 the area, you can check with L.A. Unified. The highest  
13 amount of of calls going to see the nurse was because of  
14 bloody noses. Now guys, to -- I think we can agree on  
15 this, and I know you're not going to speak tonight or draw  
16 conclusions, but let's conclude in our mind and conclude  
17 in our heart one thing. There's nothing comprehensive  
18 about the studies done so far. On multiple levels. Not  
19 on a geological level, not on a medical level, not on the  
20 causation factor, the jury is still out. There's nothing  
21 comprehensive. I think we have to agree. I know you're  
22 not ready to respond tonight but I think all parties are  
23 on notice in this room, everything documented. There is  
24 absolutely nothing comprehensive about this particular  
25 safety review. I would also say when Getty [INAUDIBLE]  
26 for oil back in the day, they have a life span and it was

110

1 to pump fossil fuel out of the ground, not to be used as  
2 a -- as a pressurized storage facility. The ground is  
3 pouring so we're seeing the results, you know, to, to know  
4 what's going on two miles underground, you know, it's  
5 rolling the dice at best. There's a season for everything  
6 under the sun, and there's been a season to use these wells  
7 before. That season is, is over. That ship has sailed.  
8 Gentlemen, we need to shut these wells down. Please do  
9 the right thing on behalf of the ones who are going --  
10 please, please gentlemen. Do the right thing. Thank you.  
11 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
12 MR. MCGEE: Do we have Alexandra [INAUDIBLE] no,  
13 Patricia.  
14 PATRICIA [INAUDIBLE]: Patricia [INAUDIBLE] resident  
15 of Porter Ranch for 28 years this month. When I came back  
16 from seven months of relocation, happy to be home, that  
17 happiness didn't last for too long. Three days, I started  
18 bleeding in my house. I start having headaches. Really  
19 bad headaches. I started abandoning my house, going to  
20 friend's house, going to hotels again, going to family, but  
21 I knew one day I had to -- I have to get in my fear and  
22 that was my house. Porter Ranch is my house. The house  
23 that I bought to spend my golden years. I need to face  
24 that fear and I came back and the headaches were so  
25 powerful, sometimes they can, they can be cured with  
26 painkillers. Take every, every half an hour to three

111

1 hours when the headaches end. Come and you're at home,  
2 but when the headaches are really powerful they come and  
3 then I get very dizzy and then I start throwing up and  
4 then I dehydrate, and all my liquids come from my body,  
5 and then I go on the floor -- I live by myself and then I  
6 start swimming on my own liquids on my own vomits. I  
7 looking for a phone to call 911. Sometimes when the 911  
8 comes and I am not allowed to open -- I cannot open the  
9 door because I can't get up from the floor or the second  
10 floor, they break to the back door and get me and take on  
11 on a stretcher. When, when working at Kaiser -- when  
12 working at Porter Ranch School and -- and [INAUDIBLE]  
13 Castlebay Lane, I used to be in the class with Cameron.  
14 One of the little boys was in my class, and I used to take  
15 all these little kids to the nurse because their headaches  
16 and their nose blood and it was like a procession, like a  
17 parade everyday. I was special assistant. They moved  
18 [INAUDIBLE] beauty and the same thing. Sometimes the kids  
19 will help me and I was the one being sick and the kids  
20 were the ones who will run to the secretary to ask them to  
21 call 911, and they will take me in stretchers in front of  
22 every single kid. That's how my life has been. What  
23 Aliso Canyon has done to me is irreparable. I am broke, I  
24 am ill, [INAUDIBLE] I am depressed. I take one day at a  
25 time. I get up and the way I'm feeling I'll go back into  
26 the couch. Now I don't sleep in my master bedroom because

112

1 it face Aliso Canyon, and I am a mile and a half from  
2 Aliso Canyon because the second floor makes me sick so I  
3 spend -- I am in the first floor because I want to be  
4 available in case I get sick.  
5 MR. MCGEE: Please start to wrap.  
6 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: That's what I spend my  
7 life. This is how my life has been. Shut it down.  
8 Gentlemen, you need to shut this facility down. We are  
9 human beings. We are people. Don't take profit instead  
10 of people. We are suffering. The kids are suffering.  
11 Thank you.  
12 MR. MCGEE: Thank you.  
13 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
14 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. After Alexandra [INAUDIBLE]  
15 and Miriam [INAUDIBLE]. Please, go right ahead.  
16 ALEXANDRA [INAUDIBLE]: Good evening. My name is  
17 Alexandra [INAUDIBLE]. I'm the senior organizer with food  
18 and water watch.  
19 We've been working in the Porter Ranch community  
20 for three years, and when we came to this community it was  
21 over the thermal effect that was going on in Aliso  
22 Canyon, and from that interaction -- from that discovery  
23 that fracking had been going on on Aliso Canyon, I started  
24 talking to a lot of residents who had been smelling the  
25 gas for years, who had been getting bloody noses, rashes,  
26 headaches for years. This has been does going on for a

113

1 long time. When we realized that fracking wasn't just the  
2 only issue in that so-called gas up there we started to  
3 pay attention and do our research and we decided that  
4 after taking it to the elected officials and talking the  
5 health problems that have been going on for years and that  
6 they were ignoring the community and their concerns that  
7 we were going to do our own health study and our  
8 [INAUDIBLE] to save Porter Ranch, and we decided to launch  
9 that program in October 25th of 2015, so we had already  
10 been going door-to-door in the community saying come out  
11 to this informational forum and learn what's going on. We  
12 had no idea that the blowout will happen two days prior  
13 and we would be able to put our program immediately into  
14 effect and do the "smell something, say something" What  
15 do you call when you smell something? 1-800-CUT-SMOG.  
16 The community knows that because it [INAUDIBLE] Save Porter  
17 Ranch in our work. And so we've been really working hard  
18 to get the health issues up front and I'm going to tell  
19 you SoCalGas will refuse to pay for the health study  
20 because they do not want to expose what's really happening  
21 when they are tagged with thousands of lawsuits. Let's be  
22 real. We need the County to do something. When I started  
23 working in this community during the blowout, I never had  
24 an asthma, but now I got asthma, so I carry around my  
25 inhaler. I get incredibly sick. We need to make health  
26 the priority of DOGGR. You may not feel like -- you may

114

1 feel like this facility is safe, but we're calling on you  
2 and your boss, Jerry Brown to do something to shut this  
3 facility down. Jerry should work for the people. You  
4 should work for the people, and need a new governor --  
5 we're going to tell him to decommission this facility and  
6 we need the long-term health study. It has to be shut  
7 down. Jerry, Jerry Brown, shut it all down.  
8 PUBLIC: [CHANTING]  
9 MR. MCGEE: Donna and Miriam.  
10 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: Thank you for letting me  
11 speak. I'm sorry if I got a little nervous, everyone.  
12 Anyway, I want to tell everybody that City Hall is going  
13 to be in Van Nuys tomorrow, so let's go down and tell them  
14 all about Aliso Canyon over there. [INAUDIBLE] doesn't care  
15 about you. City Hall doesn't care about you. So Cal doesn't  
16 care about you. People, you must demand to have City Hall  
17 reopen Van Nuys field conferencing to City Hall so you can  
18 speak about these matters when these people don't listen.  
19 And if you demand it be open, you'll be able to go to  
20 Van Nuys City Hall and speak to them. You might as well,  
21 if they have crowds of people overflowing the halls, City  
22 Hall will have to listen to you. Just think. You won't  
23 have to plea with these people. [INAUDIBLE] in the City  
24 Hall will take care of this problem if they see thousands of  
25 people going in big crowds to Van Nuys City Hall and speak  
26 to City Hall, but -- but it could only be done if you demand

115

1 to have Van Nuys video conferencing reopened. So I hear  
2 all these stories -- I don't know, my boyfriend has his  
3 asthma. He works in Reseda because of what's happening in  
4 Porter Ranch. We're not that away from Northridge, so I  
5 plea with these people to shut it down. Shut it down.  
6 And I -- and I ask and plea with these people over this  
7 crowd, please tell your councilman, we must have Van Nuys  
8 video conferencing open so you can go each night. Trust  
9 me, it will -- they'll be -- they'll fix it real soon if  
10 they see hundreds of people over there speaking all these  
11 things. Believe me. They'll get tired of it. They'll  
12 demand it be done. Please shut this down. [INAUDIBLE]  
13 Thank you.  
14 MR. MCGEE: Miriam, please.  
15 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I've been living here in the  
16 Valley and I've never seen anything so bad in my life, to  
17 hear a lady losing her husband and then the children are  
18 being affected. The people of Sacramento -- they're just  
19 ignoring you. You know, you need to do is a succession  
20 [INAUDIBLE]. We need to take back our city. We need to  
21 take back and make San Fernando Valley, the way it is and  
22 run this down. Out. Let's shut it down. We take the  
23 power away from them now. Don't just sit around and -- and  
24 mediocre. We need to have a petition right now getting  
25 out there right now to do successions and take away L.A.  
26 City and city -- and the County of Los Angeles and make

116

1 the San Fernando Valley its own city now, because they  
2 shut down our video conferencing [INAUDIBLE] boys over  
3 there. Obviously, they got to limit how much time we speak  
4 here tonight because they made sure last night -- boy,  
5 they shut this thing down and this place was  
6 full, and it wasn't right. They need to open another  
7 public hearing. I demand it now that when we have the  
8 next public hearing that the result is that this thing is  
9 shut down, that we have results, so the public can have --  
10 can have a voice here and take care of the San Fernando  
11 Valley. We don't want to have this spilling over the  
12 Valley. The rest of the people -- the East Valley, North  
13 Valley -- we're all affected by the air and I'll tell you  
14 something, I don't want this. I don't want this for my  
15 daughter coming back because she went to school up there  
16 at the San Fernando -- you know, the up there at Aliso  
17 Canyon. I'm afraid what she might be having -- so I think  
18 this thing it has to be solved right now. The next  
19 month you can't -- I don't know how much longer we can go  
20 like this but you need to do a petition. You need to take  
21 action, not just talk about it tonight. We need to do  
22 something now and not wait. These people just don't care.  
23 They're leaders. They got nothing to lose. So what are  
24 you going to do about it? Exactly. Shut it down, Brown  
25 and take them out. [INAUDIBLE] they don't care about the  
26 environment. They're all liars who left us. This is the

117

1 very reason why we don't have this shut down because  
2 officials don't care. All they want to do is commit  
3 violence and they don't care about doing anything  
4 positive. All they want to do is act negative and act out  
5 and that's all they care about and then they want to help  
6 us. Thank you.  
7 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. Next three speakers are Mike  
8 Young, Leonard [INAUDIBLE] and Eric Gordon. Great.  
9 Leonard, do we still have you? Leonard? Okay, after Mike  
10 will be Eric Gordon.  
11 MIKE YOUNG: My name is is Mike Young. I'm with the  
12 California Legal Conservation Voters and we're really  
13 proud to be supporting SB146 behind [INAUDIBLE] Stern.  
14 But I am not here speaking on behalf of CLCV or on behalf  
15 of that bill. I'm speaking on behalf that I lived in the  
16 Valley for the vast majority of my life. I went to school  
17 in Granada Hills and I grew up around Porter Ranch and  
18 [INAUDIBLE] Park is like a second home to me and my friends,  
19 and I think -- I think what you've been hearing all night --  
20 these last couple of nights and probably long before that  
21 is all the negative and frustration that's happening in this  
22 community and I hope tonight you've really been able to  
23 absorb and realize just how intense it really continues to  
24 be. It's all very tragic because we really still don't  
25 know what the root cause of this very problem is, and I  
26 know that's been said over and over again, but when we're

118

1 talking about the largest man-made catastrophe in human  
2 history, it's worth knowing what caused it. Think about  
3 this in other ways. If we're talking about pipes in your  
4 house and you found out that there's a bunch of little  
5 [INAUDIBLE] and water there and then you found -- someone  
6 else told you, "Yes, it's okay. You can drink out of this  
7 pipe, but we don't know why that happened." Would you  
8 really want to drink water from that pipe? Would you ask  
9 your grandparents to do it? Would you ask your parents?  
10 Your kids? Would that be safe for you? And the answer is  
11 always going to be no because you want to know what caused  
12 it and that's what people are asking for, but even if we  
13 took your study -- this comprehensive study which I think  
14 of the word "comprehensive" and when you hear about what's  
15 missing in it, I don't think that mean -- that word means  
16 what you think it means. But the main thing about this  
17 issue is that if everyone were being honest and really  
18 trying to make the best of this -- because I think  
19 genuinely, nobody wants there to be a leak or, or  
20 anything -- any type of repetition of this. But the  
21 problem is you can't promise that that won't happen  
22 sooner, sooner or later; right? You can only do what you  
23 think you can do and somewhere down the line there might  
24 be somebody who says there's no safety valve or let's cut  
25 this here and you just can't promise it. So that's the  
26 problem with what you're trying to guarantee. Ultimately,

119

1 I actually wish I knew what it was that you guys really  
2 wanted to hear because if it was anger, you heard it;  
3 right? If you want to hear what people's ailments are,  
4 you heard it. If you want to hear, you know, whether or  
5 not the community still wants this, you heard it. So I  
6 wish we can come up with that answer. I wish I knew what  
7 it was that people can say and what difference it could  
8 make, but ultimately, the community doesn't want to be  
9 listened to anymore. They've come to this over and over  
10 again and you didn't listen to for a long time, but they  
11 want to be respected and being respected actually means  
12 keeping the facility closed. Thank you.  
13 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
14 MR. MCGEE: [INAUDIBLE] time. Helen, please. And  
15 after that will be [INAUDIBLE].  
16 HELEN [INAUDIBLE] : My name is Helen 25 years  
17 resident of Granada Hills. I'm not here right now to talk  
18 to you guys because after all you have heard whether  
19 you're human [INAUDIBLE], but no disrespect to you but  
20 you're either human enough to get it or you don't get it,  
21 so I'm here tonight to talk -- directed to Governor Brown,  
22 Jerry Brown, who I noticed he wasn't here last night and  
23 he wasn't here tonight, and when the biggest man-made  
24 environmental disaster in the nation has happened in the  
25 states, he's not here. He's absent. And -- but I just  
26 hope that he's watching online or at his -- he's getting

120

1 my message somehow. Governor Brown, this is the time that  
2 you need to tell us either you are with us or you are  
3 against us. And I want you to know that there's no middle  
4 ground for us as far as we are concerned. We had close to  
5 500 people here last night and to 900 who have health and  
6 emotional issues and concerns for their families and they  
7 are somehow too sick to be here. We heard from kids who  
8 are still sick and suffering. Some are going through  
9 treatments of chemos, which I think you can sympathize  
10 with them knowing that what you're going through right now  
11 will be gone yourself. I'm not going to talk about my  
12 families or my own health issues. I think you have -- if  
13 you have been paying attention to us -- you should know  
14 what's going on in this community as far as all the  
15 illnesses that are going through in this community. There  
16 are so many different illnesses. It's all caused by  
17 SoCalGas. Again, I just want you to know -- I want to  
18 know if you're standing with us to shut down this facility  
19 for good or if you're against us helping SoCalGas to open  
20 this facility and keep poisoning us. The only option for  
21 us is shut it out. The other thing, if you have questions  
22 please [INAUDIBLE] of all of these faces you see.  
23 MR. MCGEE: Great. Thank you. Over here we have JD  
24 after that is [INAUDIBLE] and it's either Marianne or  
25 Marlo. I think it's Marlo, actually. Please, sir.  
26 JD [INAUDIBLE] : First, it's been an honor to be of a

121

1 passionate community. My name is JD [INAUDIBLE], former  
2 firefighter EMT. I served as the Chief Operating Officer  
3 for [INAUDIBLE], a non-profit organization that sends  
4 first responders in the heart of disasters to aid you in  
5 greatest times in need. I'm surprised [INAUDIBLE] after  
6 serving my fellow men overseas to a man-made disaster here  
7 in my back yard. My family's called Porter Ranch home long  
8 before the million dollar homes and when we still lived in  
9 Northridge on our return address [INAUDIBLE]. My mother's  
10 been a teacher at Castlebay Lane Elementary School for  
11 decades and was the champion of the late [INAUDIBLE]  
12 efforts in our community. That was before we knew that  
13 he allowed not just one but a second elementary school  
14 and countless homes be built in the direct path of the Gas  
15 Company that has little, if not, no regard for the people  
16 that they have been sworn to serve. I've grown up exploring  
17 the mountains in and around Aliso Canyon. I've  
18 experienced the beauty and I dream that my children will  
19 be able to do the same. We are not going away. We are  
20 not going to allow you to sacrifice our mountains, our  
21 health, and our community in the name of profit. You have  
22 lied before, you have cut corners before, and we know you  
23 will do it again. I've come here to share a simple  
24 message, not to the Gas Company, not to the gentleman  
25 sitting in front of me. I have zero faith in your  
26 motives are driven by anything other than the all mighty

122

1 God. My message is for the elected officials and those  
2 who are represented because we're still left. There's a  
3 revolution coming. I represent a generation that  
4 has bigger numbers than any. In the recent events  
5 [INAUDIBLE] we have only increased our numbers and  
6 increased our passion and we are very motivated voters.  
7 We are waiting to see how our local officials respond,  
8 respond to their constituents' demands. For them to do  
9 what they have been elected to do. To represent its  
10 people. Local officials, we are the [INAUDIBLE]. We are  
11 the angry -- and are soon to be the majority when it comes  
12 to voters; our generation. Your jobs are in my hands. My  
13 name is like JD [INAUDIBLE] and like many in this room, we  
14 see past SoCalGas false manages and promises and we are  
15 not going away. Thank you.  
16 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
17 MR. MCGEE: [INAUDIBLE] Please. After that will be, I  
18 believe it's Marlo. It could be [INAUDIBLE] please, when  
19 you're ready.  
20 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER: My name is [INAUDIBLE].  
21 I work for Greenpeace. The science is crystal clear. We  
22 have to keep 80 percent of all the fossil fuels there are  
23 in the ground to run climate, and I think it's interesting  
24 that we call these public hearings and they almost should be  
25 called, like, decision-maker hearings to test, like, whether  
26 or not you're actually hearing the public in this room.

123

1 There have been literal hours of testimony just tonight and  
2 this is one of hearings that are taking a place all across  
3 the nation for this same basic reoccurring theme, which is  
4 that we are way to reliant on dying industry's energy.  
5 We're doing this in the name of what of? Independence.  
6 Some theoretical independence. A profit who benefits who?  
7 There are 15,000,000 millionaires in the world. There's  
8 just shy of 2,000 billionaires in the world and the reason  
9 that I bring that up is because is interesting that we  
10 have these concentrated sources of power and then neglect  
11 to recognize their concentrated power that exists in  
12 people, and we have the capacity to work [INAUDIBLE] and I  
13 understand the decision-makers are not always motivated  
14 by, by common sense, reason, empathy, all of these basic  
15 sorts of things, but I do understand that the  
16 decision-makers are motivated by consequences. People who  
17 put up with a lot they're not going to put up with no  
18 access to clean air, clean water. They're loved ones  
19 literally falling sick watching them. We have testimony  
20 from two boys who lost their father. We have testimony  
21 from people who lost their significant other, life  
22 partners. My mom and my little sister both have AIDS and  
23 the reason they're healthy today is because massive  
24 numbers of ordinary people came together to hold the  
25 government accountable to make medicine accessible to  
26 their families, and we saw movements in New York City and

124

1 Washington, D.C. We saw people and their abilities to hold  
2 government officials accountable and decision-makers  
3 accountable to do the right thing. It's Black History  
4 Month and Martin Luther King, Jr. said that "the ultimate  
5 measure of the man is not where he stands in moments of  
6 comfort or convenience, but where he stands in moments of  
7 challenge and controversy." I don't care if this is a  
8 comfortable decision or a convenient decision. It's the  
9 right decision. And you can make it and you have the  
10 capacity and the power to make it so honor the will of the  
11 people if that's what you're here to do and it's only  
12 right for you in this situation, honoring the people in  
13 [INAUDIBLE] the shut this facility down forever.  
14 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
15 MR. MCGEE: Next is Ramsey [INAUDIBLE] and Racket --  
16 Racket [INAUDIBLE]. How am I doing? Please. I'm  
17 sorry -- I'm sure I got your name wrong. Please let me  
18 know how it's actually said.  
19 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: So my name is [INAUDIBLE].  
20 I don't live in Porter Ranch. I have lots of friends in  
21 Porter Ranch who have lots of children and they're all under  
22 the age of five. I'm not a mother. But I can tell you that  
23 knowing that so many people that I love and so many children  
24 that are so tiny are being exposed to this. I mean, I  
25 honestly don't know how regardless if -- if you have not  
26 spoken yet, how you do and right now said that guys we

125

1 understand this is very unhumane [sic] and we will do  
2 everything in our power from right this second to make sure  
3 that this facility is never reopened and is all shut down  
4 forever. [INAUDIBLE] that have put you in a position only  
5 because you are here for the health and safety of all of  
6 these people and only one story is more than enough for you  
7 to recognize that right now you need to actually stand up and  
8 say you will shut it all down. We literally don't know if  
9 you guys are even human if you can't do that, and I know  
10 [INAUDIBLE] I'm a very young person speaking to great  
11 elderly people for whom I will generally have a tremendous  
12 amount of respect, but I cannot seriously give you any  
13 respect because if you have -- self-respecting human  
14 beings, you will not have looked at 12-year-old boys tell  
15 a story and not gotten up and make sure that you said to  
16 all of these people that we will sit here. We will listen  
17 to each of your stories and you will get up and make sure  
18 that cherry -- Jerry Browns shuts this whole thing down.  
19 That's all I can say.  
20 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
21 MR. MCGEE: The [INAUDIBLE]. Let's -- let's keep moving.  
22 We have a pretty good stack. We're getting close 10:00.  
23 Please. Please go right head.  
24 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: Good evening, everybody.  
25 I'm glad I'm standing up right now. I'm feeling, like,  
26 horrible today [INAUDIBLE] if you want to look at your

126

1 [INAUDIBLE] doesn't just happen on a major blowout, so I,  
2 too, do not live in Porter Ranch. I work with kids. I'm a  
3 teacher. I also work in the health field. I've been  
4 working health field for the last two-and-a-half years,  
5 and I can tell you that even before the gas leak was going  
6 on, I have never heard as many complaints from people in the  
7 Valley than I did during those four-and-a-half months, and  
8 it was probably a lot longer than that; right? Because  
9 who's [INAUDIBLE]. In 2005, Cheney took away our rights from  
10 being able to, to look at the Clean Water Act; right? And  
11 see what your trade secrets are when you guys fracked  
12 there. We know you guys fracked in 2007. We know you  
13 guys fracked during 2011. But you guys know this. I  
14 don't have to tell you that. I'll tell you my own  
15 personal story. I worked in Porter Ranch from '04 and  
16 '08. I experienced a lot of similar symptoms that you  
17 guys [INAUDIBLE] all knew. Horrible. You guys have to  
18 live in that. So unfair. But you know what it hasn't  
19 just spread to Porter Ranch. As you know, it doesn't just  
20 stop at Devonshire. And as you know, it travels through  
21 air, it travels through soil, it travels through waters  
22 that our [INAUDIBLE] in the United States of America has  
23 been taking away from [INAUDIBLE]. Why was it all right  
24 for the Nazis, I mean, why was it not a race for the Nazis  
25 to do it, but it's all right for the United States to do  
26 it? Think about that, please. And along with this, I

127

1 would love to make you guys aware if you haven't been  
2 aware already, we have the Boston University researches;  
3 right? Bob and Phillip, [INAUDIBLE] look at back at the  
4 Daily News from January of 2016 and find this, but since  
5 public health did not at first even push across three  
6 miles, people like me outside of the three-mile range  
7 called and begged every single day. I had to buy my own  
8 air purifier for 1,500 -- nothing was reimbursed. I wish  
9 I could afford it to actually relocate even though I live  
10 up in the hills and right next to an off shore of the  
11 Valley river, mind you, but I can't afford to. I lost a lot  
12 of work. I lost a lot of money. The first time in my  
13 whole life that I actually wasn't poor was in 2015 and I  
14 jumped for joy because in 2016 it didn't happen. I was  
15 very sick a lot of the times as well as my clients, as  
16 well as my students, and I think it's -- it's horrifying  
17 that with these research getting back to sites, we found  
18 out that they found two to sixty-seven times the amount of  
19 methane allowed and paid by OSHA and that's what SoCalGas  
20 stands by. What we stand by is a World Health  
21 Organization. No amount of benzene is safe. No amount of  
22 benzene can stop, I mean, any of amount of benzene can  
23 cause cancer, we know this; right? It's a carcinogen.  
24 Any amount of benzene can cause leukemia, can cause all of  
25 these respiratory problems, all the headaches -- I had the  
26 same thing. I didn't have bloody noses like they did but

128

1 I surely had migraines. I surely had the breathing  
2 problems. I haven't been able to see a doctor still, so  
3 I'm not sure if I actually have asthma right now or had  
4 any since then because I've coughed all kinds of stuff,  
5 but I know it's related because I was there even before we  
6 knew it was a blowout and my same symptoms came up. My  
7 same clients, my same students complain about the same  
8 things and a lot of it [INAUDIBLE]. So please, look into  
9 your hearts, look into your souls. We are living in the  
10 sixth largest extinction this planet's ever seen. It's  
11 time to get off fossils fuels. Why wait until 2030? We  
12 have a little over 13 years right now. We want to jump on  
13 the train -- the happy [INAUDIBLE] train for the green  
14 revolution. There's more green jobs right now today than  
15 there are in the oil industry can give to us. Please join  
16 us. It's for everyone's health. [INAUDIBLE]  
17 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
18 MR. MCGEE: Ethan and -- Ethan Michaels and Judith  
19 [INAUDIBLE]. Do we still have you? Next is -- we're  
20 going to keep going. We're going to keep going with the  
21 comments. So Len [INAUDIBLE]? Please, sir. After Len is  
22 Christine [INAUDIBLE] and Joan Carver. Please, Len. Go  
23 right ahead.  
24 LEN [INAUDIBLE]: Hello. I'm Len [INAUDIBLE]. I've  
25 lived in Porter Ranch for 25 years now. Ken, I've read  
26 your letter to Southern California Gas saying that the

1 tests are over, complete, certified. You've heard a lot  
2 of things about that test. So what you have to do is very  
3 simple. You have to send another letter to SoCalGas  
4 saying they weren't adequate. That's it from DOGGRs. You  
5 heard enough. Now I talk to Tim. Tim, I read your  
6 report. It says that the [INAUDIBLE] what you also got to  
7 do is simple. SB380 says -- and there's only one sentence  
8 in here about the Public Utilities Commission. It says  
9 that Southern California Gas must "demonstrate" is the word  
10 that there's inadequate supply [INAUDIBLE]. It's up to  
11 you to set what that word means and I suggest to you that  
12 your standard should have been proof beyond a reasonable  
13 doubt. You have to set that standard. That's what you  
14 have to do. Now, then you have to start asking for  
15 pretty tough questions of Southern California Gas for tem  
16 to show that beyond a reasonable doubt part, such as, how  
17 many wells up there are not their gas? That they've  
18 contracted and sold that gas and they're simply operating  
19 the wells and they're shipping that gas to China. Why are  
20 they buying that gas? Such as the report in the L.A.  
21 Times, Southern California Gas says, "Less gas is being  
22 delivered." L.A. Times goes up to Northern California and  
23 talks to the supplier and they say, "Not true. Southern  
24 California Gas cut back [INAUDIBLE]" you've got to ask why  
25 the pipelines from Northern California to Southern  
26 California operating in full capacity because when they've

1 reached a pass, and all they have to do is order the gas  
2 or they have to do is use the gas that they sold and buy  
3 back, supply is much more adequate to meet the demand and  
4 Southern California Gas is just using the Public Utilities  
5 Commission to reopen the fuel. Thank you.  
6 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
7 MR. MCGEE: Please, go ahead. Sorry. Please, go  
8 ahead, Christine.  
9 CHRISTINE GALANTI: Hi. My name is Christine Galanti.  
10 I'm a 26-year resident of SoCalGas and I'd respond by the  
11 last gentleman's comment. I thought it was brilliant. I  
12 want to add and speak directly to you Mr. Sullivan. PUC,  
13 I believe that's where you're from; is that correct?  
14 Thank you. The reason I'm directing to you is you're a  
15 lawyer. You're a judge. You've heard the facts. We're a  
16 community. We're in distress. We've been wronged. You  
17 can write us. Intent is nine-tenths of the law, is it  
18 not? I think it is. Nine-tenths of the law. What is the  
19 intent of SoCalGas? It's money. Their other intent? Any  
20 other intent, I guess you would say [INAUDIBLE] is three  
21 strikes you're out. Strike one, they took the safety  
22 valve away, strike one. They didn't replace it. Why?  
23 That's strike one. Strike two, SoCalGas wrote a report  
24 saying their pipes were failing. Their pipes were  
25 failing. They wrote a report. They gave it to, I  
26 believe, DOGGR or PCU. I don't really know, but you know.

1 I don't know. Their pipes were failing. They wrote a  
2 report. They asked for money. Money, money, money,  
3 money. From who? Us. They say, "Money. We want money."  
4 Somebody said, "No money. Don't get anymore money." What  
5 did they do? Pumped the gas in, pump the gas out. And  
6 they got more money. Intent is nine-tenths of the law.  
7 Put strike three as we all know; blowout. They don't  
8 report for three days. Not one day, not two days, but  
9 three days. They don't report it so that we breathe it.  
10 Strike three. Short. I know my time's out. They're out.  
11 Strike three; repeat offender, they're out. Shut it down.  
12 Please. It is your job as a lawyer, as a judge to see the  
13 facts. We have a lot of facts. Please look at the facts.  
14 Thank you.  
15 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
16 MR. MCGEE: John Korver. [INAUDIBLE] please. Next  
17 will be Grant [INAUDIBLE].  
18 JOHN KORVER: My name is John Korver and I'm just  
19 speaking as a private citizen. I don't live in Porter  
20 Ranch, but my goodness, so much suffering and pain.  
21 Southern California Gas is a monopoly, and as such, I  
22 really don't feel they, they have the privilege of hiding  
23 behind trade secrets of business when it comes to things  
24 that affect people's health. If -- we need to know what  
25 was in that and as far as what, what could be, well, this  
26 used to be an oil field, and again, speaking only

1 speculative. I don't know this for a fact. But it was an  
2 oil field. Oil has vapor pressures and chemicals in it.  
3 You think all oil [INAUDIBLE] before they started putting  
4 gas in there? I don't think so. Just my opinion, not  
5 professional. But I think I have the answer for you.  
6 Engineering term. The bathtub curve. Engineer knows  
7 about this. It's a failure rate on a complex system.  
8 Could be an airplane, could be oil storage field, or gas  
9 storage field. You start having failure rates and begin  
10 to [INAUDIBLE] down, and they stay down for a long time.  
11 Then if you don't know how it works, they start going up  
12 and they keep going up. Well, it's broken once. I think  
13 we're on the upward bound. Familiar? Not qualified, just  
14 private citizen. [INAUDIBLE] Thank you.  
15 MR. MCGEE: The next three are [INAUDIBLE].  
16 BRIAN [INAUDIBLE]: Hi, good evening. I do, I do want  
17 to thank our regulators for listening to us tonight and I  
18 want to thank the other speakers today for all of the  
19 passion, their stories, their expertise, and I want to  
20 thank everybody for staying and listening to those of us  
21 who are speaking later. My name is Brian [INAUDIBLE] I  
22 work as an environmental consultant. I'm going to do my  
23 best to be brief and not repeat what's already been said.  
24 My work is to evaluate the risk of subsurface  
25 contamination at commercial and industrial sites. I spend  
26 my days assessing the risks that underground fuel tanks

133

1 and chemical storage facilities will rupture and lead to  
2 contamination. In my work, I'm frequently presented with  
3 data demonstrating that integrity testing has been passed  
4 but assessing the risk of the release and doing that --  
5 this alone does not cut it. The fact is, even if a  
6 storage facility or well is testing as tight right now,  
7 these systems age and at some point they will fail. In my  
8 work, over the 20 years is considered high risk even when  
9 every test is passed. The ruptured well, SS25, as someone  
10 already pointed out, was over 60 years old and the safety  
11 valves were found to be leaking up to the first 25 years.  
12 They were never replaced. Now we're being told that 34 of  
13 the remaining 114 wells have passed all pressure tests and  
14 are safe to be put back to use. [INAUDIBLE] how can we be  
15 sure well over 60 years ago that pass its pressure tests  
16 today won't fail them tomorrow? We can't know the future  
17 but we can know this: Old, out-of-date wells will  
18 eventually fail. I thought I was coming here tonight to  
19 talk about root cause analysis, but after hearing the  
20 stories tonight and the other expertise, I'm convinced  
21 that this facility has had its time and it's time to shut  
22 it down. Thank you.  
23 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
24 BEN [INAUDIBLE]: Good evening. My name is Ben  
25 [INAUDIBLE] I live in Granada Hills. I won't describe my  
26 family's health problems like the others did. I know you

134

1 guys are probably bored of hearing about all those  
2 emotional testimonies. I just want to say that I'm  
3 [INAUDIBLE] engineer. I work as a civil servant just like  
4 you guys. I have 35 years experience. I know we  
5 technical people always look at things black and white, but  
6 I've learned that not every time that it works like that,  
7 so in this case there are a lot of things that may not  
8 have been considered. You guys should consider things  
9 that all these people have talked about and consider not  
10 approving this because if you're not a hundred percent  
11 sure and you're not willing to put your own money on this  
12 that you're not going to come back and apologize that we  
13 were wrong and consider shutting it down. Thank you.  
14 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
15 MR. MCGEE: Judith [INAUDIBLE] from Encino? Please,  
16 Judith.  
17 JUDITH [INAUDIBLE]: My name is Judith [INAUDIBLE]. I'm  
18 a 20-year resident of Porter Ranch. 1.7 miles down wind of  
19 a well that blew. When I bought my home and moved in, I  
20 was healthy. I repeat, healthy. Healthy and working, full  
21 time as an attorney in juvenile dependency court in  
22 Monterey Park. Since then, shortly after I moved in, I  
23 developed COPD, that's Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary  
24 Disease. That means you have difficulty breathing. I  
25 have two machines that I use at home with medication in  
26 order to be able to breathe. I have been hospitalized at

135

1 least six times since I moved into my home. The last time  
2 was September 2016. Last September. Last June, I  
3 suddenly -- the doctor suddenly found that I had extremely  
4 high blood pressure, which I've never had in my life and I  
5 was sent to a cardiologist where I had to undergo many  
6 [INAUDIBLE] tests. The Gas Company not only refused to  
7 give me an air purifier after -- during the time that I  
8 spent six months living in this hotel, but they also did  
9 not have my home cleaned according to the health  
10 department protocol. I suffered from shortness of breath,  
11 difficulty breathing, chronic coughing, wheezing,  
12 scratching throat, dizziness, lightheadedness, loss of  
13 coordination, chronic fatigue, I wake up in the morning  
14 feeling like I have been drugged. I lost my sense of  
15 smell, which affects of course my sense of taste. Last  
16 April I went to Yosemite for a week for my grandson's  
17 wedding. I felt fabulous. Fabulous in Yosemite. Came  
18 back to the Valley and felt sick again. The Gas Company's  
19 gross negligence in maintaining this facility, the  
20 conscious disregard that they show for our health and  
21 safety, and the bad faith and their treatment of us shows  
22 that this facility must be permanently shut down.  
23 Governor Jerry Brown must shut this facility down and you  
24 must -- all of you men -- recommend that this facility to  
25 shut -- be shut down. Thank you.  
26 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]

136

1 MR. MCGEE: [INAUDIBLE] Please. When you're ready.  
2 After [INAUDIBLE] is Shirley Sue. Please.  
3 MALE SPEAKER: All right. Someone said the magic  
4 words that that the FBI likes to hear: Boots and Coots.  
5 Oh, what a cute name. See, you know what happened? The  
6 law got blocked so rather than shut the well down, these  
7 bastards had to reopen at any cost. So they shot warning  
8 injections down into the well and it froze like a big ol'  
9 rock. So what did you do, Gas Company? You contacted  
10 Halliburton and Boots and Coots out of good old New  
11 Orleans came out here with their equipment and drilled  
12 down there and they're going to get that thing opened, and  
13 so it blew, that's what happened. See that's what  
14 happened. The L.A. Times, Daily News front page of the  
15 Daily News had this big ol' piece of equipment that it was  
16 a big, impressive piece of equipment that only the  
17 southwestern oil companies use to unblock wells. See,  
18 Boots and Coots Halliburton injections, block well. Well,  
19 all you had to do is tell them to shut the fucking thing  
20 down because it's 60 years old and they have a hundred  
21 other wells, but they're so greedy they had to have it  
22 opened at any cost and now they blew the whole [INAUDIBLE]  
23 apart. Now when it rained, the water table rose and the  
24 crapped seeped up again so that means [INAUDIBLE]. See  
25 that's what it is. You're a judge. Guilty. Guilty,  
26 guilty, guilty. Gas Company, you're guilty. Sempra

137

1 Energy, you're guilty. And that means you can't do  
2 business in California because you violate your state  
3 charter. A corporation cannot conduct illegal activities.  
4 You cannot conduct domestic terrorism against a  
5 neighborhood and conceal it. Shut the fucking thing down.  
6 Shut the wells down. Shut Aliso Canyon down. Guilty,  
7 guilty, guilty.  
8 MR. MCGEE: Ms. Shirley [INAUDIBLE] and after that is  
9 Frank Sorna. Frank Sorna after that. Please, Shirley.  
10 Shirley [INAUDIBLE]: My name is Shirley. During the  
11 SB -- I have a most general symptom, but last year I returned  
12 from the hotel to my home and June 22nd when I woke up, I  
13 couldn't open my eyes. Then I tried to clean my eyes. I  
14 felt very dark. I couldn't see, and then later I can't  
15 open a little bit my eye and then I wave. I used my hand  
16 to wave in front of my eye. I couldn't see my eye. I was  
17 scared. I was that time and then I immediately to call  
18 doctor and then I went there. The doctor checked in  
19 and told me due to the very worst bacterial caused that,  
20 to cover your eye. So and then later until now my eyes  
21 become very weak. Sometimes some seeing this kind of  
22 bacteria will come up again, so and then not only my eyes  
23 [INAUDIBLE] and then you see the gas leak affect our  
24 current health and the future of health and also  
25 [INAUDIBLE] my daily life. Specially for the fire, the  
26 major fire. There's no fire and also Porter Ranch the

138

1 current Porter Ranch fire. While all the USC professor  
2 predict because 1994 we had a big earthquake and then he  
3 predict after 25 years and 30 years later they are three  
4 cities who all have major and the, the big earthquake  
5 bigger than the first one, 1994. So Northridge is one of  
6 them, so we should be very careful -- and you can do the  
7 research -- and I just want to tell you if the Gas Company  
8 still continue operation, it will cause many problems, not  
9 only those problems and it will cause also the air  
10 pollution, very bad because the truck, the gas truck  
11 causes that. So I hope all of you can see to shut it  
12 down.  
13 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. Thank you, Shirley. Frank, do  
14 we still have you? Frank Sorna, do we still have you?  
15 Here are the next couple speakers. Christina [INAUDIBLE],  
16 Jennifer [INAUDIBLE], and Kevin.  
17 PUBLIC: Tell the senators and congressmen to shut it  
18 down already. Good night.  
19 MR. MCGEE: Christina, please.  
20 CHRISTINA [INAUDIBLE]: Okay. Hi. My name is Christina  
21 [INAUDIBLE]. I believe it was about a year ago I was at  
22 an AQMD hearing calling this dinosaur facility and I'm  
23 here a year later it's still a dinosaur but you guys have  
24 added a couple bells and whistles onto it. It's still the  
25 same decrepit facility. You guys can do whatever you want  
26 to do, but you guys have not addressed the main concern.

139

1 It's on fault line. It's old. It has not been  
2 maintained. I mean, showing us how save it is, I see some  
3 guy wearing a little plastic thing with a plastic thing  
4 over his camera to show there's no leaks. It looks like  
5 the video was from 1980. I mean, the technology, it's not  
6 there. Why -- if it is so safe, put the technology there  
7 and let us residents look at it. Now the reason I'm here  
8 is because in July of 2015 I went to a doctor. I said, "I  
9 want you to do all my blood work." And when my blood work  
10 came back I was fine. I left the doctor with no  
11 medication and I was completely fine. "I can tell you're  
12 healthy." And I said, "Okay." January of 2016, I knew  
13 something was wrong with my body. I went back to the  
14 doctor and I said I wanted blood work redone. I have the  
15 on-start of a thyroid disease and now I'm anemic. That  
16 was in six months. Luckily I got my blood work done in  
17 July because I didn't make it up. It's there. That's not  
18 why I'm here right now. I'm here because my daughter --  
19 she was here yesterday and we were standing behind that  
20 guy who was, you know, paid to be here so we weren't able  
21 to talk, and she has school so she's not here. She  
22 started getting migraines during the gas leak and  
23 headache, headache. And I go, "Oh, just give her some  
24 water. You're fine." I really -- she never had headaches  
25 so I wasn't able to sympathize because I thought she was  
26 complaining. Well, now those headaches are migraines and

140

1 now the migraine if she does not take medicine right away  
2 she's vomiting. Okay. Just recently -- November 17th at  
3 the school nurse -- the school nurse said it's windy  
4 outside. Maybe she has allergies, and I said, "Okay.  
5 Give her some [INAUDIBLE] and Benadryl. An hour later she  
6 called me back and she said, "I think you should come."  
7 And I said, "Give her some Tylenol. They said she still  
8 has a headache," and I said, "Give her the Tylenol," and  
9 she's like, "She's already thrown up three times." I got  
10 the same phone call on the 24th of January. Now the nurse  
11 knows that my daughter has a sensitivity to the gas. My  
12 daughter can smell it on the campus at school, and  
13 unfortunately, she can't have medicine on her because  
14 she's 11, so by the time she feels the headache and this  
15 last one, she couldn't even see. She said, "Mom, I  
16 started, I started to get black. I couldn't see the  
17 letters." Okay. She's not making this up. And I didn't  
18 train her -- an 11-year-old to get in front of you guys to  
19 say how she's feeling and she shouldn't have to be that  
20 kid. That's why I'm here. That's why I'm the crazy  
21 protester, because I have been pushed to the freaking  
22 limit. I have gotten about getting arrested on the  
23 facility? I run a small business. I can't get arrested.  
24 I have people that their lives depend on me being there,  
25 and here I am thinking, "What can I do to stop this?"  
26 Should I chain myself to something? I'm Googling stuff on

141

1 putting the arm things to tie myself -- this is not normal  
2 thinking for a person who's level-headed [INAUDIBLE] and  
3 you're going -- I'm not going anywhere, and I will come  
4 and stop and tell my story over and over again to as many  
5 people because you piss me off. My kid is sick and I  
6 don't know what else I have. I haven't been back to the --  
7 to the doctor since January because I don't want to know  
8 what's wrong with me. God forbid that there's something.  
9 What am I going to do? What am I going to do? And you  
10 guys are playing God and you're fucking time is up.  
11 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
12 MR. MCGEE: After Jennifer is Kevin. [INAUDIBLE]  
13 Thank you. After Jennifer --  
14 PUBLIC: -- and test it again. You got it? Are you  
15 paying attention today? Are you awake? Are you alive?  
16 MR. MCGEE: If this is going to continue I'm going to  
17 have you escorted. So Kevin and [INAUDIBLE] and then  
18 Neal. Neal [INAUDIBLE] Please, Jennifer.  
19 UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: I spoke yesterday with my  
20 seven-year-old son who now tells me he can't smell  
21 anything. He as no sense of smell anymore his eye have  
22 bothered ever since this began, but I'm not going to go  
23 over every symptom that we've had because you've heard it  
24 all, all this evening. Everything that everyone has said  
25 my family's also experienced it. We've had all of the  
26 health issues and we've been displaced from our home and I

142

1 believe that everyone in this room suffers from  
2 posttraumatic stress disorder because of this event. When  
3 we smell something unusual we panic. I have continuous  
4 nightmares about SoCalGas. I have tremendous anxiety  
5 about what the long-term health effects are of being  
6 exposed to chemicals that we don't know and that we do  
7 know. Every time I log onto Facebook, I see another child  
8 that's been diagnosed with a rare cancer. Just recently a  
9 seven-year-old little girl was singing to my son and I  
10 don't turn to tears. Are we next? Am I going to wake up  
11 tomorrow and find out that because my son has a sore  
12 ankle, I take him to the -- to the doctor that he's now  
13 leukemia too? Am I going to make it and am I going to be  
14 alive when [INAUDIBLE] graduates high school? These are  
15 the things that run through my head, okay. And when I'm  
16 not filled with anxiety, I'm preparing. I'm preparing for  
17 the next thing. I'm writing. I'm logging symptoms. I'm  
18 reaching out to elected officials. I'm begging people to  
19 listen to us. I'm crying to my neighbors, people I never  
20 knew before this happened, and this is my life now, okay?  
21 SoCalGas is a part of my life and I hate them for that.  
22 They have forever altered the shape of our community and  
23 that is absolutely unreasonable to me, okay? They have  
24 taken so many things away from me including my peace of  
25 mind. I'm entitled to peace of mind. I can't blame you guys,  
26 the regulatory agencies now. Now, for wanting to complain

143

1 about reopening Aliso Canyon you get back to business as  
2 usual when you have it easy; right? When no one's paying  
3 attention. And most of us have no idea what [INAUDIBLE],  
4 but we can't let you get back to business as unusual. We  
5 have to live there. We have to raise our kids there. We  
6 have to breathe the air there, but I will give you guys,  
7 I'll give you the regulatory agencies. I'll give you the  
8 most benefit of the doubt as possible. Let's just assume,  
9 let's just assume you put [INAUDIBLE] rather than the  
10 alternative, that there was any kind of quid pro quo with  
11 non-SoCalGas, okay? No. No emissions. You checked at  
12 that conclusion; right? Now as long as you guys do the  
13 right thing and shut it down, now that you have the  
14 opportunity to do that you can be heroes, okay? Because  
15 that's the weakest [INAUDIBLE] in this moment, unless you  
16 allow that to crept into the facility, to keep poisoning  
17 our community. If you reopen that facility after all you  
18 heard tonight, after all that you read tonight, that means  
19 you -- that means you are not the heroes. You guys are  
20 responsible. But you know what, maybe you don't care  
21 about your legacy or your souls or your friends or your  
22 neighbors or what your children think about you, but  
23 politicians do care about those things. Jerry Brown  
24 cares, or if he has to be recalled because of his  
25 incentives to please SoCalGas are just too good to get  
26 passed, then the government who replaces him will care.

144

1 MR. MCGEE: Please wrap, Jennifer.  
2 FEMALE SPEAKER: Because we won't let this story die.  
3 No, no we won't. We'll keep the press interested in this  
4 story until someone cares and then when we finally got  
5 someone cares, we can hire someone to replace the  
6 regulators like you who will do their job. Yeah. Yes.  
7 That governor will be the hero; right? But that means  
8 that someone has to be the villain. And the people who  
9 could have kept -- who did keep Aliso Canyon open will be  
10 the villain. That's who'll be the villain and I hope you  
11 guys decide you won't be the villain. You will be the  
12 heroes.  
13 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
14 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. [INAUDIBLE] and then after  
15 that is Paul Riseman and then [INAUDIBLE]. Please.  
16 KEVIN [INAUDIBLE]: Yes. Hello, hello. Can you hear  
17 me? My name is Kevin [INAUDIBLE]. I used to work as one  
18 of the staff people for the adjacent assembly District 39  
19 under Assemblyman [INAUDIBLE] Lopez and we did hear some  
20 complaints about this issue too, so people are concerned  
21 not just in this assembly District but in other Districts.  
22 We are at a crossroads. Do we need fossil fuels anymore?  
23 No. We have wind, hydro, solar. They talk about  
24 gravitational, kinetic, magnetic, vacuum, suction-based,  
25 et cetera. This is 2017. Not 1917. It's not 1917, guys.  
26 It's time to put fossil fuels in the ground. Leave them

145

1 in the ground with the fossils. It's time. Now this  
2 Aliso Canyon well I'm just going to call it what it is.  
3 It really is a sickness, inducing gas chamber. That's  
4 what it is. Now So Cal has a decision to make. Are you  
5 or are you not going to reopen this gas chamber? Let  
6 me -- let me harken back to a quote from a famous  
7 president but with a little bit of a twist. So I will  
8 say this, "We demand -- we ask -- we demand that, that  
9 SoCalGas and government Brown tear down this well." Tear  
10 down this well. Tear down the well. It's time. It's  
11 time. It's time. It, it was time five years ago, guys.  
12 It's time.  
13 MR. MCGEE: Thank you. Neal [INAUDIBLE] how about  
14 Otto? Ricky [INAUDIBLE]? Jim Summers, please.  
15 JIM SUMMERS: Hi. Okay. Good evening. My name is  
16 Jim Summers. I'm from Granada Hills, the neighboring  
17 community to Porter Ranch. We're reviving something  
18 called the Granada Hills Lands for Smart Growth.  
19 We're wiping out the growth part and we're just the  
20 Granada Hills Alliance now. Because we find that  
21 environmental problems are just as bad as over-building,  
22 if not worse, and we see right here it is worse. I was  
23 there August 9th before the blowout. People were  
24 complaining then. I know it's been happening a long time.  
25 And this is like many other projects. We have a  
26 combination -- see if this sounds familiar, neighbors --

146

1 a combination of a lack of transparency, a lack of  
2 communication, false information and money. Now let me  
3 just go down through a list of some of these things in  
4 my area. We had to stop 4/40 right now. These guys are  
5 scared. They don't know what they're doing. It's an  
6 over-building project. It's money. We have the Sunshine  
7 Canyon Landfill. Thirty years. Thirty years. It's still  
8 going on. We want to shut down too and we're asking our  
9 neighbors to help us. We have, we have residents in  
10 Granada Hills. Our best residents. They're getting  
11 sick. We have old, old Granada Hills residents groups,  
12 a zoning area. We're having constant problems with our  
13 councilmen on that. We have a hotel in Porter Ranch  
14 that's going on. We have horse properties in Chatsworth  
15 that are just getting wiped out and they're just building  
16 these big houses there. They have nothing to do with  
17 horses. There's no arena. There's nothing. We have also  
18 a [INAUDIBLE] cleanup in our Santa Susana Mountains there.  
19 That's been going on a long time, and now they don't to  
20 want clean that up either, and Woodland Hills. Another  
21 thing, you know, about West Hills at Westfield, they're  
22 going to put a stadium in there, 15,000 square feet. We  
23 are reacting against this. We've formed earlier the North  
24 Valley Voters Alliance and, and we're trying to combine  
25 everything with overbuilding and environmental problems  
26 and put them together. Because we get the feeling that

147

1 you just don't care. You just don't care. And I'd like  
2 to just leave with this, this solution from -- well, it's,  
3 it's, from Martin Luther King, and somebody else quoted  
4 him earlier. This is kind of like from what I remember,  
5 my mind is a little gone from the gas too, and he's saying  
6 like, For all those citizens and community leaders and  
7 specially you, the decision-makers that want this  
8 reopened, that -- or that won't take a stand or that just  
9 want to go along with the administration -- well, that's  
10 your business but I know this right now and I'll say it.  
11 Injustice anywhere is a threat to justice everywhere.  
12 Thank you.  
13 MR. MCGEE: Walt Foley.  
14 WALT FOLEY: My name is Walter Foley. I'm an  
15 organizer for the [INAUDIBLE] and I usually don't get on  
16 the mic because when I'm staring down at the face of  
17 mediocrity I usually lose my temper. And I usually say  
18 quippy little things like that the world seem to  
19 appreciate. Mark Twain at the end of a meaningful life --  
20 which never amounted to a Nobel Prize or any accolades --  
21 was asked what it was all about, and he said the good  
22 opinion of our neighbors. I'm going to tell you a little  
23 story right now. The whole reason I do this, the reason  
24 I'm an organizer specifically against this is industry is  
25 because my family is now fighting the fight of their lives  
26 in Northeastern West Virginia, a little town called

148

1 Fairmont. They have a troubled history with a man that  
2 I'm sure many in the industry recognize. His name is  
3 Aubrey McClendon. He's deceased now. The reason being is  
4 a little, a little fishy, but he was about to be indicted  
5 for rigging land bits so that he could essentially sell  
6 out a whole bunch of our Appalachian brothers and sisters  
7 by a [INAUDIBLE] poison their communities, and in my  
8 community in West Virginia is no different. October 2012,  
9 we had purple gas streaming out of our meadows, even  
10 though [INAUDIBLE]. we had Chesapeake Pioneer Energy tell  
11 us that they didn't give a damn if we signed the lease.  
12 They were going to frack our property anyway and it wasn't  
13 a thing that we were going to be able to do because we  
14 didn't have the technology and the equipment. They  
15 spilled toxic chemicals in our rivers, they mugged down  
16 acres and acres of forest to plant their pipelines and  
17 they lied every single step of the way so here I am. I'm  
18 working with the residents of, of Porter Ranch and --  
19 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
20 WALT FOLEY: -- the community organization. Been  
21 doing that from April 2014. I know you weren't, but I was  
22 out risking my body and my health in the gas blowouts so  
23 that these residents could attend hearings. I was  
24 petitioning for them. I was knocking on the doors for  
25 them. I was organizing my friends from all around Los  
26 Angeles to come into -- I was working on some phone banks

149

1 and we'd put ourselves on the line so that these people  
2 could have justice, so that they could connect and  
3 communicate with their neighbors so that they could bring  
4 their voice and their story to you. SoCalGas has lied  
5 just about every step of the way through this. They lied  
6 about the leak, they lied about the health crisis,  
7 they even lied about this gas shortage. They've admitted.  
8 Excuse me, gentlemen, I'm about to wrap but I would  
9 appreciate -- most of what I have to say is already  
10 covered, but we already know that in capacity SoCalGas can  
11 bring in 4.7 million cubic feet of gas through the pipeline.  
12 We know that they don't need to tackle to Aliso to  
13 do that. We also know that the coldest day this year they  
14 only had to move 4.1 billion cubic feet. Problem was,  
15 according to their supplier, [INAUDIBLE] Morgan, they  
16 intentionally were ordering less gas. It wasn't anything  
17 to do with pipeline maintenance, it wasn't anything to do  
18 with supply. It might have something to do with them  
19 wanting a headline before they came to this hearing. I'll  
20 close with this. I've been watching your careers for a  
21 little while. I know you didn't inherit your department,  
22 but your department has illegally drilled thousands of  
23 wastewater injection wells on federally protected drinking  
24 water aquifers in one of the worst droughts in this  
25 state's history. You oversaw a scandal at the PUC that  
26 resulted in no one getting fired. There is a fundamental

150

1 lack of integrity in our government departments and from  
2 our Governor who's taking over \$10,000,000 from this  
3 industry. So I'm going to leave you with something my  
4 cousin, who is currently fighting this fight in West  
5 Virginia, and I'm going to leave you with something he  
6 told me, something I live by because I like to think I'm a  
7 man of principle: "Once you lie to me, I got no use for  
8 you." Shut this down.  
9 PUBLIC: [APPLAUSE]  
10 MR. MCGEE: So last night and tonight you have made  
11 your stories and your concerns and your pain and your  
12 passion very clear. Thank you for attending these  
13 meetings. Thank you very much. This meeting is  
14 adjourned.  
15  
16 (Hearing concluded at 10:34 p m.)  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
26

151

<b>A</b>				
<b>AARP</b> 102:21	125:2,3	<b>address</b> 9:7 56:7	92:11	14:9 15:24
<b>AB</b> 33:25	<b>accurate</b> 47:15	93:14 122:9	<b>agenda</b> 6:8,21	19:6,17 20:7
<b>abandon</b> 68:11	47:21	<b>addressed</b> 10:5	6:24 7:26	20:26 21:15
<b>abandoned</b>	<b>ache</b> 31:20 77:5	25:8 55:12,18	<b>agent</b> 84:24	22:13 23:10
42:20 64:9,10	77:6,9,10,11	56:8 139:26	<b>ages</b> 45:21	27:15,18 28:5
65:2,3 69:14	77:16	<b>addresses</b> 16:9	<b>aging</b> 76:13	28:13,17 33:4
106:4	<b>aches</b> 32:3 76:26	<b>addressing</b>	<b>ago</b> 12:20 35:17	34:1 41:16
<b>abandoning</b>	<b>achieving</b> 21:17	29:16 58:13	42:9 47:25	43:17,18,20
111:19	<b>achy</b> 103:21	<b>adequate</b> 23:23	59:3 64:2 90:8	46:10,10,17,24
<b>abiding</b> 19:2	<b>acknowledge</b>	130:4 131:3	94:19 95:4,5	47:2 48:2,10
<b>abilities</b> 125:1	14:22 54:24	<b>adjacent</b> 50:6	95:12 134:15	48:16 53:7
<b>ability</b> 7:18	<b>acknowledged</b>	90:2 145:18	139:21 146:11	55:10 64:3
<b>able</b> 7:11 16:18	75:20 92:20	<b>adjourned</b> 7:12	<b>agree</b> 110:14,21	65:3 66:5,26
22:16,18 40:4	<b>Acosta</b> 9:5,9,12	151:14	<b>agreed</b> 28:9	72:11,22 73:14
40:6 58:3	9:22 10:8,10	<b>administration</b>	<b>agreement</b> 29:19	73:15,19 75:26
66:26 86:18	<b>acquire</b> 85:7	148:9	<b>ahead</b> 36:5	76:2,7 86:21
100:20 108:21	<b>acquisition</b>	<b>admirable</b> 15:4	56:11 69:7	87:21 90:3,13
114:13 115:19	47:15	<b>admitted</b> 97:25	96:12,13,15	91:17 92:16
118:22 122:19	<b>acres</b> 87:23	150:7	113:15 129:23	93:20,24 99:11
127:10 129:2	149:16,16	<b>adopt</b> 16:13	131:7,8	99:15 100:8
135:26 140:20	<b>act</b> 16:7 23:2	<b>advance</b> 18:13	<b>ahold</b> 104:15	102:25 107:12
140:25 149:13	26:13 54:3	<b>advances</b> 102:23	<b>aid</b> 122:4	107:21 112:23
<b>absence</b> 13:19	69:26 118:4,4	<b>adverse</b> 93:5	<b>AIDS</b> 124:22	113:1,2,21,23
<b>absent</b> 120:25	127:10	<b>advice</b> 26:1	<b>ailments</b> 19:24	115:14 117:16
<b>absolute</b> 59:22	<b>action</b> 10:2	<b>advised</b> 99:9	53:6 120:3	122:17 138:6
<b>absolutely</b> 39:19	22:20 34:22	<b>advocate</b> 13:4	<b>air</b> 32:7 35:26	144:1 145:9
49:18 69:14,15	75:23 79:15,15	40:16,22	73:18 74:2,3,4	146:2 150:12
110:24 143:23	83:13 101:15	<b>aerobics</b> 96:23	74:6,8,10,20	<b>Alison</b> 68:7
<b>absorb</b> 118:23	117:21	<b>aerospace</b> 37:12	84:4,5 87:10	107:20
<b>abuse</b> 18:2	<b>actions</b> 82:23	<b>affect</b> 132:24	91:13 98:16	<b>alive</b> 142:15
<b>accept</b> 66:13	<b>active</b> 25:25	138:23	110:3,8 117:13	143:14
<b>acceptable</b> 48:1	26:14 54:13	<b>affiliation</b> 22:7	124:18 127:21	<b>allergies</b> 141:4
<b>access</b> 124:18	68:9 87:15	<b>afford</b> 128:9,11	128:8 136:7	<b>Alliance</b> 146:20
<b>accessible</b>	96:18	<b>affordability</b>	139:9 144:6	147:24
124:25	<b>activities</b> 138:3	13:12	<b>airplane</b> 133:8	<b>allow</b> 22:22
<b>accident</b> 51:23	<b>actors</b> 50:12,13	<b>affordable</b>	<b>al</b> 99:18	25:10 49:16
89:7,8	<b>acts</b> 98:20	102:16	<b>alert</b> 25:3	88:12 122:20
<b>accolades</b>	<b>adamant</b> 41:10	<b>affront</b> 67:11	<b>Alex</b> 109:12	144:16
148:20	63:9	<b>afraid</b> 117:17	<b>Alexandra</b>	<b>allowed</b> 14:26
<b>accomplished</b>	<b>add</b> 131:12	<b>age</b> 125:22 134:7	111:12 113:14	15:7 24:23
98:18	<b>added</b> 139:24	<b>agencies</b> 5:26	113:16,17	27:18 28:5
<b>account</b> 92:15	<b>adding</b> 34:6	7:2 13:18	<b>Ali</b> 12:4	39:24 60:22
<b>accountability</b>	<b>addition</b> 28:25	15:22 21:8	<b>alignment</b>	67:2 72:22
73:1	<b>additional</b> 22:17	92:15,18 93:7	107:17	98:15 112:8
<b>accountable</b>	47:8	143:26 144:7	<b>Aliso</b> 6:11 9:18	122:13 128:19
47:23 124:25	<b>Additionally</b>	<b>agency</b> 1:3 2:2	11:9 12:22,26	<b>allowing</b> 25:11
	23:1	30:4 43:5	13:13,20 14:2	41:16 93:8

103:4 <b>altered</b> 143:22 <b>alternative</b> 144:10 <b>alternatives</b> 23:8 <b>amazing</b> 6:19 <b>amazingly</b> 37:24 <b>America</b> 127:22 <b>American</b> 42:10 42:11,12 <b>amount</b> 8:11 50:12 110:13 126:12 128:18 128:21,21,22 128:24 <b>amounted</b> 148:20 <b>analysis</b> 9:19 22:23,24 23:4 24:1,20,20 26:6,8,11,16 27:1 28:7 37:18,18,19,20 37:22 38:8 39:18 42:22,25 69:17 75:26 76:3,6,6 87:8 87:12 93:11,13 99:8 101:5 134:19 <b>analyzed</b> 23:8 <b>Andrea</b> 96:11 100:4,4 <b>Andrew</b> 3:21 45:8,18,19 47:1 48:13 49:1 <b>Anemia</b> 104:18 104:18 <b>anemic</b> 140:15 <b>Angeles</b> 10:20 10:23,24 11:15 12:17 18:24,25 22:10 32:25 33:5 41:2 46:23 48:6,7 52:10,13 83:23	90:5 100:11 108:11 116:26 149:26 <b>Angelino</b> 44:6 <b>Angelo</b> 27:4 28:23,23 30:2 30:8 <b>anger</b> 120:2 <b>angry</b> 103:7 123:11 <b>ankle</b> 143:12 <b>anniversary</b> 98:2 <b>annoying</b> 18:16 <b>answer</b> 11:22 105:13,18,21 119:10 120:6 133:5 <b>answered</b> 107:23 <b>answering</b> 31:6 <b>answers</b> 11:6,10 11:11,25 29:17 <b>anxiety</b> 104:4 143:4,16 <b>anybody</b> 10:12 64:13 74:7 <b>anymore</b> 31:20 49:6 74:25 79:8 101:19 120:9 132:4 142:21 145:22 <b>anyway</b> 6:23 32:18 104:19 115:12 149:12 <b>apart</b> 137:23 <b>apologize</b> 14:19 61:23 63:18 91:7 135:12 <b>Appalachian</b> 149:6 <b>appeal</b> 58:4 <b>appealed</b> 19:23 <b>appear</b> 70:21 <b>APPEARANC...</b> 3:1 <b>applaud</b> 14:23	<b>APPLAUSE</b> 9:4 10:16 12:1 16:23 18:11 20:8,18,21 21:10,24 23:18 23:25 24:5 25:14 27:3 28:15,20 30:1 30:19 32:21 34:3 37:2,10 39:7 40:12 44:2 45:6 46:26 48:12 51:6 52:18 54:15 56:10 59:6 60:24 63:17,23 65:4 65:12 66:17 67:13 70:10 73:5 75:10 78:3 79:16 82:9 83:18 85:22 86:6 88:16 89:24 91:5 93:26 96:9 99:17 100:22 102:3 103:8 104:26 108:6 109:11 111:11 113:13 120:13 123:16 125:14 126:20 129:17 131:6 132:15 134:23 135:14 136:26 142:11 145:13 149:19 151:9 <b>appreciate</b> 23:15 34:12 67:22 74:9 148:19 150:9 <b>approach</b> 21:15 <b>approached</b> 91:15 <b>appropriate</b> 34:7 <b>approve</b> 24:4	<b>approving</b> 37:23 47:26 135:10 <b>April</b> 136:16 149:21 <b>AQMD</b> 139:22 <b>aquifer</b> 73:21 <b>aquifers</b> 150:24 <b>area</b> 10:12 17:16 46:12 50:6,12 52:2 59:1 61:8 61:19 62:8 68:9,9 84:5 93:24 98:22 102:8,14,16 106:16 109:3,9 109:16 110:4 110:12 147:4 147:12 <b>areas</b> 16:17 <b>arena</b> 147:17 <b>arguments</b> 87:5 <b>Arizona</b> 53:23 <b>arm</b> 79:1 142:1 <b>arrested</b> 101:18 141:22,23 <b>arrived</b> 51:18 <b>Artesia</b> 12:3 <b>Arthur</b> 32:23 34:4,13 <b>article</b> 35:23 86:14 87:22 <b>artificial</b> 53:17 <b>asked</b> 36:11 41:3 44:10 63:12 90:25 132:2 148:21 <b>asking</b> 26:1 29:17 57:11,12 66:12 74:22 119:12 130:14 147:8 <b>aspect</b> 23:6 59:21 <b>ass</b> 67:12 <b>assaulted</b> 53:10 <b>assembly</b> 9:22 10:9 61:4	145:18,21 <b>Assemblyman</b> 9:5,12 145:19 <b>assemblymem...</b> 59:7 60:26 <b>assemblymen's</b> 61:18 <b>assertions</b> 47:7 <b>assess</b> 92:24 <b>assessing</b> 133:26 134:4 <b>assessment</b> 29:11 99:12 <b>asset</b> 14:2 <b>assist</b> 10:9 14:16 <b>assistant</b> 24:14 112:17 <b>associated</b> 16:10 <b>association</b> 12:16,17 13:1 13:19 14:11,15 42:12 <b>assume</b> 51:22 144:8,9 <b>assumption</b> 38:22 <b>assurances</b> 83:15 <b>assure</b> 10:10 11:10 16:17 69:10,12 92:13 <b>assured</b> 6:25 <b>assuring</b> 82:22 <b>asthma</b> 31:26 34:26 91:19 114:24,24 116:3 129:3 <b>atmospheric</b> 87:17 <b>attack</b> 78:12 <b>attempts</b> 8:13 49:21 <b>attend</b> 15:18 149:23 <b>attendance</b> 44:4 <b>attended</b> 9:10 <b>attending</b>
---	---	---	---	---

151:12	<b>backing</b> 29:22	128:7	130:16	<b>bleeding</b> 59:23
<b>attention</b> 15:4	86:12	<b>begging</b> 143:18	<b>big</b> 31:13 35:25	65:23 95:10
114:3 121:13	<b>backs</b> 83:11	<b>beginning</b> 19:22	38:12 49:8,8	97:11 99:1,4
142:15 144:3	<b>backwards</b>	33:23 42:24	50:25 57:1	109:20 110:11
<b>attorney</b> 135:21	93:24	<b>behalf</b> 9:9 10:20	66:25 67:9	111:18
<b>attraction</b> 107:4	<b>bacteria</b> 138:22	18:24 40:22	70:20 90:14	<b>bleeds</b> 31:21
<b>Aubrey</b> 149:3	<b>bacterial</b> 138:19	62:3,3,9 73:11	115:25 137:8	32:1 35:1
<b>audience</b> 34:6	<b>bad</b> 31:12,20	111:9 118:14	137:15,16	56:15,17 91:19
105:6	50:12,13	118:14,15	139:2,4 147:16	92:21 94:18
<b>August</b> 53:4	108:23 111:19	<b>beings</b> 94:17	<b>bigger</b> 66:22	110:1
82:15 146:23	116:16 136:21	113:9 126:14	82:7 93:14	<b>blessing</b> 27:24
<b>authority</b> 49:25	139:10 146:21	<b>belief</b> 21:22	123:4 139:5	<b>blew</b> 108:16
<b>available</b> 113:4	<b>badly</b> 42:19	<b>believe</b> 24:22	<b>biggest</b> 120:23	135:19 137:13
<b>Avenue</b> 2:14	<b>balance</b> 16:15	25:4 52:2	<b>biking</b> 96:24	137:22
107:17	97:6,18	54:19 56:25	<b>bill</b> 3:6,16,26	<b>block</b> 137:18
<b>average</b> 108:15	<b>Baldy</b> 84:2	58:18 83:20	6:12 9:16 11:8	<b>blocked</b> 137:6
<b>avoid</b> 52:26	<b>ballooned</b> 64:18	87:20 103:9	11:17 13:23	<b>blocking</b> 101:17
<b>avoided</b> 28:2	64:18	109:13 116:11	24:11 28:21	<b>blood</b> 48:13 66:8
<b>avoiding</b> 76:15	<b>banks</b> 149:26	123:18 131:13	54:16,17,20	76:25 77:15
<b>awake</b> 142:15	<b>bar</b> 8:10	131:26 139:21	56:12,12	84:21 104:16
<b>awakened</b> 99:2	<b>Barger</b> 10:17,21	143:1	118:15	110:2,9,9
<b>aware</b> 29:4	11:14,19	<b>believed</b> 91:17	<b>billion</b> 26:20,21	112:16 136:4
128:1,2	<b>barred</b> 93:9	<b>believes</b> 9:22	40:7 46:12	140:9,9,14,16
<b>Awesome</b> 49:2	<b>based</b> 41:1,13	<b>bell</b> 15:10 18:16	52:8 54:7	<b>bloody</b> 31:24
	75:13	<b>bells</b> 139:24	150:14	44:9 65:20
<b>B</b>	<b>basic</b> 51:22	<b>belong</b> 100:6	<b>billionaires</b>	77:7,15 86:24
<b>back</b> 12:4 29:25	124:3,14	<b>beloved</b> 103:14	124:8	99:2 110:6,14
39:2 42:21	<b>basically</b> 74:10	<b>Ben</b> 134:24,24	<b>binder</b> 43:15	113:25 128:26
47:7 49:15	<b>basics</b> 6:7	<b>Benadryl</b> 141:5	<b>binders</b> 105:6	<b>blow</b> 28:2,8 32:1
61:24 74:12	<b>basin</b> 46:24	<b>beneficiaries</b>	<b>biological</b> 69:1	52:14 64:12
78:20 79:1	<b>basis</b> 48:1 94:12	100:8	75:13	89:9
80:20,23 87:9	<b>bastards</b> 137:7	<b>benefit</b> 144:8	<b>birth</b> 82:15 92:2	<b>blowout</b> 46:8
91:21 98:24	<b>bathroom</b>	<b>benefits</b> 22:17	<b>bit</b> 26:23 54:18	47:23 59:20,20
104:16 109:25	103:25	124:6	67:23 138:15	65:19 67:15
110:26 111:15	<b>bathhtub</b> 133:6	<b>Benjamin</b> 15:13	146:7	69:12 75:16
111:24 112:10	<b>battery</b> 109:7	<b>benzene</b> 84:17	<b>bites</b> 67:11 83:7	82:16 83:22
112:25 116:20	<b>be,what</b> 7:15	84:22 91:26	<b>bits</b> 149:5	85:12,19,21
116:21 117:15	<b>Beach</b> 12:18	105:4 128:21	<b>black</b> 125:3	86:22 93:2,6
122:7 128:3,17	<b>beautiful</b> 27:10	128:22,22,24	135:5 141:16	93:13 97:10
130:24 131:3	<b>beauty</b> 112:18	<b>best</b> 8:15 10:2	<b>blackouts</b> 47:3	98:2,19 103:13
134:14 135:12	122:18	13:5 20:17	<b>blame</b> 12:6	108:14 114:12
136:18 140:10	<b>bed</b> 62:22 95:10	40:21 100:1	143:25	114:23 127:1
140:13 141:6	<b>bedroom</b> 112:26	111:5 119:18	<b>bleed</b> 66:9 76:22	129:6 132:7
142:6 144:1,4	<b>beg</b> 20:2 83:1	133:23 147:10	77:4,4,8,8,12	146:23
146:6	<b>begin</b> 7:2 69:7	<b>beta</b> 71:24	77:12,13,14,16	<b>blowouts</b> 105:26
<b>background</b>	91:23 142:22	<b>better</b> 96:26	77:17,18,18,19	149:22
71:23	<b>begged</b> 60:1	<b>beyond</b> 130:12	77:20	<b>blows</b> 80:19

<b>blowup</b> 47:10	<b>breast</b> 78:11	<b>bunch</b> 119:4	129:26 130:9	13:20 14:2,9
<b>blurry</b> 77:12	<b>breath</b> 76:24	149:6	130:15,21,22	15:24 19:6,17
97:7	136:10	<b>Bureau</b> 35:26	130:24,25,26	20:7,26 22:13
<b>BMQ</b> 35:26	<b>breathe</b> 132:9	<b>bureaucrats</b>	131:4 132:21	23:10 27:15,19
<b>board</b> 11:15	135:26 144:6	62:1 84:11	138:2	28:6,13,17
12:21 39:11	<b>breathing</b> 95:16	<b>burning</b> 76:25	<b>Californians</b>	33:4 34:2
98:9 104:14	95:16,18 129:1	79:4 91:19	40:21 57:10	41:16 43:17,18
<b>boast</b> 68:21	135:24 136:11	97:7	<b>call</b> 8:9 9:1	43:20 46:10,10
<b>Bob</b> 128:3	<b>Brian</b> 133:16,21	<b>buses</b> 105:15	15:10 25:16	46:25 47:2
<b>bodies</b> 60:8	<b>brief</b> 24:10 69:2	<b>business</b> 15:19	39:1 51:7	48:2,10,16
<b>body</b> 15:5 77:10	108:11 133:23	37:17 38:17	53:12 59:17	55:11 64:3
103:21 112:4	<b>briefly</b> 34:20	46:23 89:21	66:6 83:1 90:7	65:3 66:5,26
140:13 149:22	<b>brilliant</b> 57:11	96:4,5 98:17	94:25 112:7,21	68:7 72:22
<b>bomb</b> 80:13	131:11	99:14 132:23	114:15 123:24	73:14,15,19
<b>bonus</b> 86:16	<b>bring</b> 105:8	138:2 141:23	138:17 141:10	75:26 76:2,7
<b>Boo</b> 41:19	124:9 150:3,11	144:1,4 148:10	146:2	86:22 87:21
<b>book</b> 64:2	<b>brings</b> 55:10	<b>businesses</b> 13:16	<b>called</b> 23:2	90:3,13 91:17
<b>boost</b> 68:19	<b>broke</b> 112:23	56:25	30:20 44:26	92:16 93:24
<b>Boots</b> 137:4,10	<b>broken</b> 53:26	<b>buy</b> 32:19 85:14	45:1 53:13	100:9 102:25
137:18	133:12	128:7 131:2	61:19 64:9	107:12,20,22
<b>bored</b> 135:1	<b>bronchitis</b> 31:26	<b>buying</b> 130:20	122:7 123:25	112:23 113:1,2
<b>boss</b> 61:6 115:2	<b>brother</b> 65:20	<b>buys</b> 46:22	128:7 141:6	113:22,23
<b>Boston</b> 128:2	66:16	<hr/>	146:18 148:26	115:14 117:17
<b>bothered</b> 142:22	<b>brother's</b> 66:6	<b>C</b>	<b>calling</b> 34:4 74:4	122:17 138:6
<b>bottom</b> 38:13	<b>brothers</b> 149:6	<b>Caelan</b> 5:18,18	115:1 139:22	144:1 145:9
79:7	<b>brought</b> 86:14	<b>Cal</b> 3:10 25:22	<b>calls</b> 20:23 53:14	146:2 147:7
<b>bought</b> 82:14	105:11	35:11 38:6	90:9 106:11,14	<b>canyons</b> 28:18
111:23 135:19	<b>Brown</b> 11:16	115:15 146:4	110:13	<b>capable</b> 68:15
<b>bound</b> 133:13	77:25 78:1	<b>calculation</b>	<b>Calvin</b> 3:20	110:10
<b>boundaries</b>	88:15 96:7	26:26	41:25 42:1	<b>capacity</b> 124:12
61:20 84:4	99:15 101:19	<b>calculations</b>	44:5,5	125:10 130:26
<b>bounds</b> 84:5	102:20 109:9	19:12 26:8,22	<b>Camelito</b> 12:5	150:10
<b>Box</b> 88:13	115:2,7 117:24	<b>calendar</b> 86:25	<b>camera</b> 140:4	<b>capped</b> 40:25
<b>boy</b> 117:4	120:21,22	<b>California</b> 1:4	<b>Cameron</b> 4:3	<b>capstone</b> 106:5,5
<b>boyfriend</b> 116:2	121:1 136:23	1:15 2:3,15 5:1	59:8,11,23	106:17,18,24
<b>Boyle</b> 33:8	144:23 146:9	5:20 8:25 9:25	65:13,16,17,17	<b>car</b> 64:25,26
<b>boys</b> 59:22 60:4	<b>Brown's</b> 100:9	12:16,26 13:3	112:13	65:5 99:5
112:14 117:2	<b>Browns</b> 126:18	14:5 16:16	<b>campus</b> 141:12	<b>carcinogen</b>
124:20 126:14	<b>Bryan</b> 105:2	17:6,11,19	<b>cancer</b> 78:11	84:23 128:23
<b>Brad</b> 61:6 62:23	108:8	20:5 23:1 25:7	92:1 95:13	<b>card</b> 10:17 24:7
62:23	<b>BS</b> 33:16	26:12 28:1	128:23 143:8	45:10 96:13
<b>brain</b> 78:11	<b>building</b> 5:11,13	40:17 41:11	<b>cancer-causing</b>	<b>cardiologist</b>
104:5	147:15	42:17 71:18,20	84:24	136:5
<b>break</b> 69:2,8	<b>built</b> 26:14	71:26 72:6	<b>Canoga</b> 2:14	<b>cardiovascular</b>
70:16 112:10	100:17 122:14	79:21 81:5,7	<b>Canyon</b> 6:11	85:3
<b>breaks</b> 14:7 65:5	<b>bump</b> 70:25	86:20 87:18	9:18 11:9	<b>cards</b> 8:6,7
65:6,10	<b>bums</b> 35:13	92:1 118:12	12:22,26 13:13	17:23 45:14

99:19 <b>care</b> 22:7 28:1 47:16 60:19 62:9 70:5,5 81:13 95:13 101:11 115:14 115:15,16,24 117:10,22,25 118:2,3,5 125:7 144:20 144:23,26 148:1,1 <b>careers</b> 150:20 <b>careful</b> 16:15 139:6 <b>carelessness</b> 60:11 <b>cares</b> 77:25 144:24 145:4,5 <b>Carey</b> 102:4 <b>Carol</b> 4:12 100:23,24,26 <b>Carrie</b> 91:6 94:1 <b>carried</b> 30:12 <b>carry</b> 114:24 <b>carrying</b> 30:10 <b>Carver</b> 129:22 <b>case</b> 20:6,19,20 52:2,15 64:24 72:14 113:4 135:7 <b>casings</b> 26:4 64:17,22 67:24 67:25,25 68:4 <b>Castle</b> 66:6 <b>Castlebay</b> 112:13 122:10 <b>cat</b> 77:7,14 <b>catastrophe</b> 51:26 119:1 <b>cats</b> 103:14 <b>caught</b> 107:1 <b>causation</b> 110:20 <b>cause</b> 9:19 22:23 24:1,20 28:7 39:18 42:22,25	75:16,25 76:3 76:5 84:21 85:12 87:8,12 92:1,21,23 93:13,13 99:8 101:5 118:25 128:23,24,24 134:19 139:8,9 <b>caused</b> 28:7 51:24 56:2,4 62:6 72:12,12 85:16 87:10 91:24 98:19 119:2,11 121:16 138:19 <b>causes</b> 139:11 <b>causing</b> 28:10 <b>CEALAN</b> 3:9 <b>CEH</b> 91:11,11 <b>ceiling</b> 106:24 <b>celebrating</b> 40:19 <b>cement</b> 21:22 64:17,23 <b>cemented</b> 64:17 <b>center</b> 5:20 75:13 91:10 102:11 <b>century</b> 101:25 <b>CEO</b> 90:25 <b>CEQA</b> 23:2,5,11 24:1 <b>certain</b> 74:16 <b>certainly</b> 24:14 34:8 49:12 55:19 <b>certainty</b> 41:14 <b>certification</b> 48:2 <b>certified</b> 130:1 <b>cetera</b> 25:3,4,4 35:1,11,24 36:2 37:14 145:25 <b>chain</b> 141:26 <b>chairs</b> 49:12 80:24	<b>challenge</b> 89:5 125:7 <b>Challenger</b> 67:6 67:7 <b>chamber</b> 146:3 146:5 <b>champion</b> 122:11 <b>chance</b> 6:3,17 8:14 <b>change</b> 47:22 66:7 91:4 95:26 <b>changed</b> 66:3 106:8 <b>changes</b> 21:13 <b>chanting</b> 101:17 101:17 115:8 <b>character</b> 19:2 52:12 <b>charge</b> 30:21 <b>chart</b> 38:23 74:15 <b>charter</b> 138:3 <b>Chatsworth</b> 56:13 147:14 <b>check</b> 12:4 21:25 34:5 45:8 55:3 55:3 110:12 <b>checked</b> 138:18 144:11 <b>checklist</b> 80:16 <b>chem</b> 95:19,19 <b>chemical</b> 49:20 92:1 95:16 96:20 134:1 <b>chemicals</b> 88:6,8 91:13 93:3 94:22,23 95:19 133:2 143:6 149:15 <b>chemos</b> 121:9 <b>Cheney</b> 127:9 <b>cherry</b> 126:18 <b>Chesapeake</b> 149:10 <b>chest</b> 76:23,25	79:1 <b>chief</b> 17:10,17 24:11 86:15 122:2 <b>chiefs</b> 24:14 <b>child</b> 82:15 143:7 <b>childbirth</b> 84:26 <b>children</b> 28:3 32:19 34:24 45:20 59:26 60:20 84:7 91:12 95:2,8 99:11 104:24 109:16 116:17 122:18 125:21 125:23 144:22 <b>children's</b> 60:17 95:7 <b>China</b> 107:26 108:1 130:19 <b>choosing</b> 95:23 <b>chopped</b> 81:20 <b>chose</b> 95:23 <b>Christina</b> 139:15,19,20 139:20 <b>Christine</b> 3:24 4:16 48:20 51:8,8,11 52:19,19 129:22 131:8,9 131:9 <b>Christmas</b> 31:10 106:10 <b>chronic</b> 135:23 136:11,13 <b>church</b> 31:6 <b>circumvented</b> 38:26 <b>cities</b> 12:16,17 12:18,26 13:2 13:11,20 14:12 73:24 139:4 <b>citizen</b> 20:11 54:3 132:19 133:14	<b>citizens</b> 10:6 19:3 58:26 100:10,20 109:1,1 148:6 <b>citizens'</b> 38:26 <b>city</b> 12:2,15 13:26 15:9,10 18:23,25 33:17 48:7 52:10,13 52:14 73:11 77:23 100:6,11 103:1 115:12 115:15,16,17 115:20,21,23 115:25,26 116:20,26,26 117:1 124:26 <b>civil</b> 135:3 <b>claimed</b> 72:4 103:3 <b>claiming</b> 92:18 <b>clap</b> 36:3 <b>clapped</b> 35:8,8 36:25 <b>clapping</b> 81:13 <b>Clarita</b> 84:4 <b>class</b> 84:22 112:13,14 <b>CLCV</b> 118:14 <b>clean</b> 28:16,17 31:16 56:26 57:7 74:20,20 96:3 101:26 109:8 124:18 124:18 127:10 138:13 147:20 <b>cleaned</b> 74:19 136:9 <b>cleaner</b> 98:16 <b>cleaning</b> 98:7 <b>cleanup</b> 147:18 <b>clear</b> 7:10 20:23 21:2,4,9,12 24:26 30:3 57:3 74:18 75:14 76:4 80:14 92:4
--	--	---	--	---

100:7,12 101:23 123:21 151:12 <b>cleared</b> 109:24 <b>clients</b> 128:15 129:7 <b>climate</b> 123:23 <b>clinical</b> 19:24 <b>close</b> 31:7 34:9 34:11 39:21 50:11 66:15 68:8 82:18 86:5 89:3,14 97:15,16 121:4 126:22 150:20 <b>closed</b> 30:14 48:10 87:6 120:12 <b>closely</b> 15:20 <b>closing</b> 9:26 23:26 91:2 <b>closure</b> 30:17 76:14 <b>clothes</b> 66:7 78:20,23 <b>clotting</b> 110:10 <b>cloud</b> 52:12 84:3 <b>co-authoring</b> 9:16 <b>co-founder</b> 79:20 <b>CO2</b> 93:19 <b>Coalinga</b> 71:22 <b>coldest</b> 150:13 <b>collaborative</b> 13:4 <b>colleagues</b> 11:8 25:26 61:25 62:13,17 <b>collect</b> 5:12 6:9 105:19 <b>collected</b> 86:16 <b>collecting</b> 105:23 <b>collectively</b> 13:2 83:24 <b>combination</b>	146:26 147:1 <b>combine</b> 147:24 <b>come</b> 10:6 29:9 31:10,11 32:5 33:20 34:1 44:8 52:11 54:26 56:14 59:2,4 73:8 74:11 75:7 83:9 107:9 112:1,2,4 114:10 120:6,9 122:23 135:12 138:22 141:6 142:3 149:26 <b>comes</b> 63:3 106:14 112:8 123:11 132:23 <b>comfort</b> 60:7 98:16 125:6 <b>comfortable</b> 9:6 49:11,12,13 125:8 <b>comfy</b> 80:24 <b>coming</b> 5:5,6,18 9:3 12:8 16:26 22:2 31:5 38:10 45:4,16 46:20 58:12,17 69:20 74:1 107:25 117:15 123:3 134:18 <b>commanders</b> 87:24 <b>commencing</b> 2:15 <b>comment</b> 6:10 6:18,26 7:9,9 7:19 8:3,7,9 23:21 25:11 34:8,12 45:25 71:3,7 80:1 131:11 <b>commentary</b> 22:1 <b>comments</b> 19:11 23:7,22 24:14	24:15 25:12 41:4 43:13 55:14 68:26 69:6 70:14 105:10 129:21 <b>commercial</b> 13:15 58:21 133:25 <b>commission</b> 8:25 9:25 17:20 41:3 67:6 130:8 131:5 <b>commit</b> 100:20 118:2 <b>commitment</b> 29:22,23 35:25 <b>committed</b> 11:1 29:26 30:10 83:2 <b>common</b> 87:11 124:14 <b>communicate</b> 150:3 <b>communication</b> 15:21 17:7 90:7,20,22,22 147:2 <b>communities</b> 57:21 62:4 63:22 73:26 84:14 90:2 149:7 <b>community</b> 7:7 9:11,15,23 10:2,5,11 15:22 16:2,4 29:17 30:10,16 33:19 38:15 47:16,18,19 52:21 53:5,22 55:5 61:5,17 61:18 73:16,17 74:11,13 82:5 83:7 84:12 89:18 90:25 91:15 92:4 94:10,16 95:14	99:9 102:2 113:19,20 114:6,10,16,23 118:22 120:5,8 121:14,15 122:1,12,21 131:16 143:22 144:17 146:17 148:6 149:8,20 <b>community's</b> 21:17 <b>companies</b> 137:17 <b>company</b> 12:20 12:21,25 21:4 35:24 42:17,20 57:26 58:1,19 64:13 65:2,2,3 65:7 68:1 69:10 70:3 72:25 82:19 84:12 85:18,21 86:1 88:25 89:3 92:25 93:9 98:7 122:15,24 136:6 137:9,26 139:7 <b>Company's</b> 136:18 <b>compared</b> 43:22 <b>competitions</b> 49:23 <b>complain</b> 129:7 143:26 <b>complaining</b> 93:4 140:26 146:24 <b>complaints</b> 48:3 127:6 145:20 <b>complete</b> 9:20 9:26 27:1 29:15 72:23 130:1 <b>completed</b> 24:23 24:26 28:8,10 29:1 39:19	55:8 99:8 <b>completely</b> 49:23 57:9 62:5 85:18 101:11 140:11 <b>completion</b> 24:19 76:3 <b>complex</b> 20:12 41:8,9 133:7 <b>compliance</b> 12:25 43:4 <b>complying</b> 14:5 <b>comprehensive</b> 37:15 51:21 52:4 92:26 93:11 110:17 110:21,24 119:13,14 <b>compressing</b> 54:6 <b>compressor</b> 54:6 <b>compromised</b> 106:6 <b>computer</b> 105:9 <b>conceal</b> 138:5 <b>concentrate</b> 97:5 <b>concentrated</b> 124:10,11 <b>concern</b> 14:8 21:21 33:10 63:15 73:26 99:10 139:26 <b>concerned</b> 13:11 13:19 33:11 36:20 43:12 58:9 80:24 121:4 145:20 <b>concerns</b> 11:13 11:21 21:16 23:6 24:19 29:16 30:9,17 44:8 56:8 57:25 91:15,21 92:16 114:6 121:6 151:11 <b>conclude</b> 110:16 110:16
---	---	---	--	--

<b>concluded</b> 76:5 151:16	118:12	<b>continue</b> 14:4 24:9 28:11	<b>correct</b> 131:13	86:11 98:9
<b>conclusion</b> 59:2 59:5 144:12	<b>Conservation's</b> 7:22	53:5 69:5 75:4	<b>correctly</b> 12:3	114:22 116:26
<b>conclusions</b> 110:16	<b>consider</b> 20:2	84:15 86:26	25:20 45:9	<b>couple</b> 5:8 12:19
<b>concur</b> 26:1	49:10 93:7,10	96:25,25 103:5	51:15 98:6	70:13 118:20
<b>condition</b> 43:4 61:15 88:4	135:8,9,13	104:1 105:24	<b>correlate</b> 38:11	139:15,24
<b>conditions</b> 33:13 33:13 43:21	<b>consideration</b> 30:23 87:25	139:8 142:16	<b>corridor</b> 28:18	<b>courage</b> 59:12
87:17 104:23	<b>considered</b> 87:13 134:8	<b>continued</b> 4:1	<b>Cortisone</b> 95:6,9	<b>course</b> 5:10 10:2
<b>conduct</b> 19:24 93:11 138:3,4	135:8	7:9 27:23	<b>cost</b> 13:6 29:4	29:6 71:6
<b>conducted</b> 27:21	<b>considering</b> 18:5 76:7,13 92:10	<b>continues</b> 16:4	38:17 58:3	80:12 136:15
<b>conducting</b> 29:20 37:13	<b>consistently</b> 52:22	96:21 103:26	83:22,22 85:19	<b>court</b> 22:16
<b>conducts</b> 99:13	<b>consisting</b> 13:1	118:23	137:7,22	135:21
<b>conferencing</b> 115:17 116:1,8	<b>constant</b> 48:26	<b>continuing</b> 22:16,19 91:23	<b>costs</b> 58:8	<b>cousin</b> 98:25
117:2	94:18 103:21	103:13	<b>couch</b> 103:23	99:5 151:4
<b>confident</b> 83:15	147:12	<b>continuous</b> 143:3	112:26	<b>cover</b> 52:9
<b>configurations</b> 38:3	<b>constantly</b> 52:22 65:22 108:22	<b>contracted</b> 130:18	<b>cough</b> 76:23	138:20
<b>confirmed</b> 53:3 98:9	<b>constituents</b> 13:5 14:13	<b>Contracts</b> 12:16	<b>coughed</b> 31:18	<b>covered</b> 85:18
<b>confirms</b> 53:2	62:9	12:26	129:4	85:20 99:3
<b>Congress</b> 33:15 40:17	<b>constituents'</b> 123:8	<b>contradict</b> 43:10	<b>coughing</b> 32:1	150:10
<b>congressional</b> 15:18	<b>constituted</b> 21:5	<b>control</b> 54:11	97:7 136:11	<b>CPUC</b> 6:13
<b>congressman</b> 15:16,17 16:3	<b>constitutes</b> 21:3	69:15,15	<b>council</b> 17:17	27:13,24,25
61:6	<b>consultant</b> 42:15	<b>controversy</b> 125:7	18:9,23,25	28:12 40:2
<b>congressmen</b> 33:6 44:12	81:19 133:22	<b>convenience</b> 125:6	19:5,16 35:10	42:15 44:1
139:17	<b>consumed</b> 13:14	<b>convenient</b> 125:8	42:4 45:11,20	76:10 81:3
<b>connect</b> 150:2	19:6,17	<b>Conveniently</b> 97:15	47:6 48:7	92:10 99:15
<b>connecting</b> 28:18 107:11	<b>contact</b> 95:6	<b>converted</b> 64:8	57:22 73:10,12	<b>crack</b> 106:6
<b>conscious</b> 45:15 136:20	<b>contacted</b> 137:9	<b>convinced</b> 97:24	103:1	<b>cracked</b> 106:17
<b>consequences</b> 84:9,15 124:16	<b>contain</b> 94:23	134:20	<b>councilman</b> 11:3	<b>Craig</b> 3:22 45:9
<b>Conservation</b> 1:2 2:1,17	<b>contained</b> 94:14	<b>coordination</b> 136:13	32:26 116:7	48:22,22 49:5
17:11,18	94:22	<b>Coots</b> 137:4,10	<b>councilmember</b> 12:2,4,5,6,14	49:8 50:24
	<b>containing</b> 8:18	137:18	15:9,11	<b>Crammed</b> 45:24
	<b>contaminated</b> 73:20 98:10	<b>COPD</b> 135:23	<b>councilmen</b> 147:13	<b>crane</b> 89:6,6
	108:3,3	<b>core</b> 13:17	<b>count</b> 103:24	<b>crap</b> 80:12
	<b>contaminating</b> 98:5	<b>corners</b> 122:22	<b>counted</b> 35:26	<b>crapped</b> 137:24
	<b>contamination</b> 133:25 134:2	<b>corporate</b> 43:11	<b>countless</b> 122:14	<b>crash</b> 87:10
	<b>continually</b> 97:15	54:3 58:19	<b>countries</b> 85:16	<b>crater</b> 105:15
		<b>corporation</b> 43:16 54:3	<b>country</b> 80:22	<b>craters</b> 105:14
		138:3	109:10	<b>crazy</b> 88:26
			<b>country's</b> 93:25	141:20
			<b>county</b> 10:21,23	<b>create</b> 53:17
			10:24 11:15	57:6 91:3
			12:18 19:23	<b>created</b> 61:20
			22:10,13,21	<b>creeping</b> 60:14
			23:19 24:12	<b>crept</b> 144:16
			28:24 29:8,24	<b>Criddle</b> 9:8,8
			46:19 48:7,8	<b>criminal</b> 84:9
				101:11
				<b>crises</b> 48:24

<b>crisis</b> 150:6	<b>daily</b> 35:15,16	59:15,24 60:15	146:4	18:13 130:9
<b>critical</b> 38:14	96:21 128:4	62:1 65:21	<b>decision-maker</b>	<b>demonstrated</b>
<b>cross</b> 34:11 72:3	137:14,15	66:10 79:2	123:25	44:10 51:3
<b>crossing</b> 56:1	138:25	81:3,8,11 90:9	<b>decision-makers</b>	54:10
58:26	<b>damage</b> 16:19	90:10 95:11	24:2 124:13,16	<b>demonstrates</b>
<b>crossroads</b>	34:23 46:4	99:7 109:18	125:2 148:7	8:10 60:9
145:22	55:13,15	110:26 111:21	<b>decisions</b> 81:3	<b>demonstrating</b>
<b>crowd</b> 116:7	<b>damages</b> 34:18	112:24 128:7	<b>declined</b> 42:18	134:3
<b>crowds</b> 115:21	<b>damn</b> 33:24 45:3	132:8 150:13	<b>decommission</b>	<b>department</b> 1:2
115:25	45:5 57:2	<b>day-to-day</b>	99:15 100:21	2:1,17 7:21,22
<b>Cruz</b> 41:24,26	81:12 149:11	98:21	101:19 115:5	10:22,23,24
<b>cry</b> 44:21	<b>danger</b> 87:16	<b>days</b> 53:15 59:21	<b>decommission...</b>	17:11,13,18
<b>crying</b> 59:25	92:19	75:7 96:22	54:10 74:19	19:23 20:1
143:19	<b>dangerous</b> 54:11	98:24 111:17	99:12	22:11,12 24:12
<b>crystal</b> 123:21	59:1 69:13	114:12 132:8,8	<b>decommission...</b>	28:24 29:10,24
<b>cubic</b> 26:21 40:7	<b>dangers</b> 16:10	132:9 133:26	28:13	48:8 81:23
52:8 150:11,14	80:21	<b>De</b> 41:24,26	<b>decrepit</b> 50:25	85:26 86:11
<b>cue</b> 18:14	<b>Daniel</b> 25:19	<b>dead</b> 80:25 81:2	139:25	87:26 136:10
<b>cure</b> 51:24	27:6,6 28:16	101:25 103:14	<b>dedicated</b> 6:18	150:21,22
<b>cured</b> 111:25	54:19	<b>deadline</b> 23:21	6:26	<b>departments</b>
<b>current</b> 13:7	<b>Danielle</b> 4:2	<b>deal</b> 7:15 67:11	<b>deep</b> 52:10,11,14	35:9 151:1
20:26 43:4	54:19 59:7,10	82:8 107:3,13	67:26	<b>depend</b> 141:24
138:24 139:1	59:10 81:9	<b>dear</b> 42:14 82:22	<b>defects</b> 92:2	<b>dependency</b>
<b>currently</b> 9:20	<b>Dante</b> 9:5,9 10:8	<b>Debra</b> 86:15	<b>defense</b> 46:20	135:21
73:22 151:4	<b>dare</b> 66:13 101:5	<b>debris</b> 98:8	<b>definitely</b> 23:23	<b>depressed</b>
<b>curve</b> 133:6	<b>dark</b> 138:14	<b>decade</b> 61:7	<b>deformation</b>	112:24
<b>cut</b> 7:18 8:12	<b>darker</b> 18:15	<b>decades</b> 56:21	26:4	<b>depression</b>
18:3 86:13	<b>darn</b> 36:19 38:9	122:11	<b>dehydrate</b> 112:4	76:24 79:2
88:18 99:26	<b>Darryl</b> 4:10,14	<b>deceased</b> 149:3	<b>Deidre</b> 94:2,6	104:6,6
119:24 122:22	88:21,23 105:1	<b>deceit</b> 49:19	<b>deliberate</b> 26:7	<b>Deputy</b> 17:10
130:24 134:5	108:7,10,10	<b>December</b> 59:13	49:18	28:23
<b>cute</b> 137:5	<b>data</b> 20:4 57:4,5	77:8,9 109:19	<b>delineation</b> 21:2	<b>describe</b> 134:25
<b>cutting</b> 61:23	57:6,8,9 68:21	<b>decent</b> 34:22	<b>delivered</b> 107:23	<b>described</b> 84:25
99:22	134:3	35:5 54:3	107:26,26	<b>Desert</b> 50:5
<b>cycle</b> 17:26	<b>date</b> 105:8	<b>deception</b> 57:25	130:22	<b>deserve</b> 11:6
104:3	<b>dated</b> 91:21	59:2	<b>delivery</b> 14:4	36:5 97:20
<hr/>	<b>dates</b> 97:15,16	<b>decide</b> 82:1,2	21:14	<b>designed</b> 64:19
<b>D</b>	<b>daughter</b> 27:8	145:11	<b>demand</b> 20:4,4	64:20
<b>D</b> 3:13 4:1	31:11,21 56:16	<b>decided</b> 7:4	53:24 76:11	<b>desirability</b>
<b>d'Alessio</b> 24:6	117:15 140:18	114:3,8	87:11 115:16	39:26
25:17,18,21,21	141:11,12	<b>decision</b> 6:10	115:19,26	<b>desire</b> 63:3
<b>D.C</b> 15:19 125:1	<b>David</b> 102:4	22:21,26 23:5	116:12 117:7	<b>desired</b> 39:14
<b>dab</b> 87:14	<b>Davis</b> 4:4 71:9	49:8,25 62:19	131:3 146:8,8	<b>desperate</b> 53:18
<b>dad</b> 44:17,22	71:13,14,14	63:2,2,4 80:14	<b>demands</b> 123:8	<b>despite</b> 72:3
60:6 66:1	<b>day</b> 31:6,10,12	80:17,20 81:1	<b>Democratic</b> 9:17	<b>detail</b> 24:16
95:11	40:7 44:25	82:6 100:8,12	14:25 19:4	<b>detailed</b> 75:21
<b>dad's</b> 99:6	47:9 48:1 53:3	125:8,8,9	<b>demonstrate</b>	<b>detection</b> 52:26

<b>determine</b> 9:26 28:10 73:20 93:13	<b>directed</b> 120:21 <b>directing</b> 131:14 <b>direction</b> 106:3 <b>directly</b> 5:12 15:23 16:9 48:25 55:21 131:12	<b>disrespect</b> 99:7 120:19 <b>disruption</b> 19:1 46:24 <b>disruptive</b> 7:3 101:14 <b>dissecting</b> 20:4 <b>disservice</b> 82:11 <b>distinguish</b> 87:26 <b>distress</b> 104:3 131:16 <b>distribute</b> 67:20 <b>district</b> 32:26 48:6 61:21 62:3 74:5,7,8 145:18,21 <b>Districts</b> 145:21 <b>Diversity</b> 75:13 <b>Division</b> 1:5 2:4 8:23 24:12 30:3 <b>Division's</b> 7:22 <b>dizziness</b> 76:22 86:24 91:20 136:12 <b>dizzy</b> 112:3 <b>DOC</b> 3:3,7 20:22 <b>DOCs</b> 93:16 <b>doctor</b> 94:20,20 95:5 104:14,19 106:12,12 129:2 136:3 138:18,18 140:8,10,14 142:7 143:12 <b>doctor's</b> 61:14 <b>doctors</b> 83:23,26 94:22 95:3 96:22 106:15 <b>document</b> 43:4 43:18 50:20 99:5 <b>documentation</b> 106:7 <b>documented</b> 110:23	<b>documents</b> 24:17 43:26 75:14 <b>dog</b> 97:9,10 98:2 99:3 103:14 <b>DOGGR</b> 3:7 17:13 20:22 23:12 25:25 27:12,16,20,24 27:25 28:12 44:1 46:3,5 47:20,22,24,25 48:1,4 49:24 50:16 54:25 55:7 63:13 68:3 69:10 81:3 92:10 99:14 101:4 114:26 131:26 <b>DOGGR's</b> 97:23 <b>DOGGRs</b> 130:4 <b>doing</b> 27:2 34:7 40:20 41:23,23 49:15 55:4 57:22 58:20 71:21 82:25 96:12 118:3 124:5 125:16 134:4 147:5 149:21 <b>dollar</b> 46:12 122:8 <b>dollars</b> 29:5,14 36:1 54:7 83:25 86:13,16 101:9 <b>domestic</b> 138:4 <b>don't'</b> 36:17 <b>Donna</b> 115:9 <b>door</b> 112:9,10 <b>door-to-door</b> 114:10 <b>doors</b> 5:11 31:7 96:23 149:24 <b>doorstep</b> 67:8 <b>double</b> 58:23 <b>doubt</b> 130:13,16	144:8 <b>download</b> 72:19 <b>Downtown</b> 108:11 <b>dozen</b> 51:19 <b>Dozens</b> 48:2 <b>Dr</b> 18:12,18 21:25 41:24 100:24,24 102:6,6 <b>drain</b> 89:17 <b>drained</b> 89:15 <b>draw</b> 110:15 <b>dream</b> 97:3 122:18 <b>drilled</b> 137:11 150:22 <b>drink</b> 119:6,8 <b>drinking</b> 150:23 <b>dripping</b> 79:4 <b>drive</b> 64:26 99:6 102:8,9,18 <b>driven</b> 122:26 <b>driveway</b> 101:16 <b>driving</b> 53:8 84:2 109:18 <b>dropping</b> 41:6 <b>droughts</b> 150:24 <b>drugged</b> 136:14 <b>dry</b> 79:3,4 100:13 103:19 <b>due</b> 74:16 82:25 97:3 98:1 138:19 <b>dues</b> 46:22 <b>dump</b> 94:25 <b>dust</b> 98:8,9 <b>duty</b> 55:15 74:15 <b>DWP</b> 103:1 <b>dying</b> 81:8 124:4
<hr/> <b>E</b> <hr/>				
<b>E</b> 3:13 4:1 48:20 51:7 <b>e-mail</b> 71:4 83:1 <b>earlier</b> 29:1 39:22 72:7				

147:23 148:4 <b>earliest</b> 41:17 <b>early</b> 27:22 98:26 <b>earnings</b> 46:15 <b>earth</b> 97:24 106:19 <b>earthquake</b> 37:25 38:7,9 55:22,26 56:4 71:17,22,24 72:8 75:24 87:14,15 99:9 108:23,26 139:2,4 <b>earthquakes</b> 25:24 55:24 71:20,25 <b>easiest</b> 60:6 <b>East</b> 117:12 <b>easy</b> 34:21 60:19 144:2 <b>educate</b> 14:12 69:25 <b>educated</b> 67:18 69:25 <b>effect</b> 37:19 81:22 113:21 114:14 <b>effective</b> 5:24 85:19 <b>effects</b> 75:18 88:7 93:5 99:10 143:5 <b>efforts</b> 29:19 76:9,9 122:12 <b>egg</b> 94:13 <b>eight</b> 28:2 52:10 <b>Eighty</b> 52:13,13 93:19,19 <b>either</b> 12:11 34:13 43:26 50:16 65:13 71:4 120:20 121:2,24 147:20 <b>elderly</b> 33:12	126:11 <b>elected</b> 7:7 8:2 9:1 12:8 14:12 14:18,21 19:8 21:26 22:2 34:9 41:5 42:2 45:12 57:19 81:24 114:4 123:1,9 143:18 <b>electricity</b> 13:14 41:10,10 <b>element</b> 72:25 <b>elementary</b> 122:10,13 <b>Eleven</b> 77:16 <b>eliminate</b> 21:14 <b>elongates</b> 110:9 <b>embarrassing</b> 104:22 <b>embodied</b> 19:4 <b>emergency</b> 21:1 21:3,6 24:24 24:25 43:14,16 43:19 47:10 75:17 <b>emissions</b> 58:22 144:11 <b>emotion</b> 49:16 <b>emotional</b> 121:6 135:2 <b>emotionally</b> 84:7 85:8 <b>empathy</b> 124:14 <b>emphasize</b> 20:25 <b>employees</b> 74:15 <b>empty</b> 32:9 <b>EMT</b> 122:2 <b>enacted</b> 13:23 76:10 <b>Encino</b> 135:15 <b>encourage</b> 14:4 71:7 <b>ended</b> 56:5 <b>ends</b> 61:21 <b>endure</b> 86:26 95:2 <b>Enema</b> 67:3	<b>energies</b> 102:24 <b>energy</b> 13:9,12 13:21 14:3,7,7 39:26 40:3,4 41:8,13 55:20 56:26 57:4,7 83:22 93:23,25 96:3 97:19 102:1 124:4 138:1 149:10 <b>Energy's</b> 86:15 <b>engaged</b> 46:2 <b>engineer</b> 17:15 37:12 51:22 62:4 133:6 135:3 <b>engineering</b> 37:13 133:6 <b>engineers</b> 30:5 42:11 <b>Englander</b> 11:3 79:14 <b>enhance</b> 14:14 <b>ensure</b> 15:26 23:6 57:7 75:15 93:1 94:25 95:21 <b>entail</b> 92:26 <b>entered</b> 53:20 <b>entire</b> 6:18 9:14 43:18 52:9,14 55:1 65:19 84:26 101:22 <b>entitled</b> 143:25 <b>entity</b> 24:24 43:3 <b>entrance</b> 101:17 <b>environment</b> 47:26 93:4 102:18 117:26 <b>environmental</b> 23:2 27:17 29:11 91:10 120:24 133:22 146:21 147:25 <b>envisioned</b> 29:1 <b>EQMD</b> 45:1 <b>equal</b> 71:4 97:23	<b>equipment</b> 97:25 108:19 108:21 137:11 137:15,16 149:14 <b>equitable</b> 8:5 <b>equivalent</b> 97:20 <b>Eric</b> 10:19,20 88:1 118:8,10 <b>eroded</b> 39:16 <b>escaping</b> 59:15 <b>escorted</b> 142:17 <b>especially</b> 76:8 93:18 99:11 <b>essential</b> 30:12 30:12 <b>essentially</b> 26:17 149:5 <b>estate</b> 33:19 <b>estates</b> 90:4 <b>et</b> 25:3,3,4 35:1 35:11,24 36:2 37:14 145:25 <b>Ethan</b> 59:12,23 129:18,18 <b>evacuate</b> 5:9 <b>evacuated</b> 11:13 87:19 103:17 <b>evacuation</b> 52:1 98:21 109:2 <b>evaluate</b> 133:24 <b>evaluation</b> 67:5 <b>Eve</b> 106:10 <b>evening</b> 6:5 7:13 9:2 10:19 12:13 15:15,19 18:21 22:9 24:10 45:18 57:18 91:9 113:16 126:24 133:16 134:24 142:24 146:15 <b>event</b> 25:1,1,9 143:2 <b>events</b> 52:20 123:4 <b>eventually</b> 58:3	134:18 <b>everybody</b> 8:17 22:6 24:11 29:4 44:13 45:15 64:14 68:5 86:23 88:24 115:12 126:24 133:20 <b>Everybody's</b> 44:8 <b>everyday</b> 91:13 110:1 112:17 <b>everyone's</b> 129:16 <b>evidence</b> 47:1,4 <b>evident</b> 99:24 <b>exacerbate</b> 58:15 <b>exact</b> 92:8 <b>exactly</b> 32:12 39:17 62:7 117:24 <b>examine</b> 76:12 <b>exceeding</b> 69:19 <b>excellent</b> 30:5 <b>excuse</b> 21:21 35:10 45:22 46:17 106:23 150:8 <b>executive</b> 12:15 12:21 17:6 86:15 <b>executives</b> 70:4 <b>exempt</b> 108:25 <b>exhausted</b> 99:5 <b>exist</b> 60:22 <b>existed</b> 64:8 <b>existing</b> 38:3 <b>exists</b> 49:14 124:11 <b>exit</b> 5:13 <b>expand</b> 52:11 <b>expect</b> 18:1 34:17 43:22 54:2,4,8 105:12 <b>expectation</b>
---	--	--	--	--

20:13	138:15,16,16	63:6 70:1	<b>failure</b> 19:17	26:14,16 53:1
<b>expecting</b> 80:2	138:20 142:21	74:18 76:2,7	39:18 56:2,5	54:13 55:26
<b>expedited</b> 21:12	<b>eyes</b> 31:18 50:1	76:12 77:22	133:7,9	56:1,2 66:21
<b>expensive</b> 32:9	59:13 77:12,14	78:1 82:17	<b>failures</b> 37:24	66:23 71:19
<b>experience</b>	79:4 81:11	83:6 85:13	55:11,17	72:3,9,13,14
69:16 135:4	91:19 97:7	86:5 87:5,12	<b>Fairmont</b> 149:1	87:14 108:14
<b>experienced</b>	138:13,13,20	87:13 89:14	<b>faith</b> 122:25	140:1
78:9 84:1	138:22	91:18,25 92:11	136:21	<b>faults</b> 66:22
122:18 127:16	<b>eyesight</b> 85:1	92:13 93:8	<b>falling</b> 124:19	71:24 87:15
142:25	<b>F</b>	97:13,23 98:17	<b>false</b> 43:3,4	<b>fax</b> 71:4
<b>experiences</b>	<b>F</b> 80:13	100:13,16	123:14 147:2	<b>FBI</b> 137:4
73:13	<b>fabulous</b> 136:17	101:4,16,20	<b>familiar</b> 78:18	<b>fear</b> 78:13,14
<b>experiencing</b>	136:17	102:22 103:5	133:13 146:26	79:15 97:16
19:19,25 78:24	<b>face</b> 78:15	108:13 109:5,7	<b>families</b> 16:16	98:19 104:4,9
91:16 103:19	111:23 113:1	111:2 113:8	28:3 85:24	111:21,24
<b>expert</b> 23:20	148:16	115:1,3,5	91:12 121:6,12	<b>feasibility</b> 9:26
<b>expertise</b> 64:1	<b>Facebook</b> 143:7	120:12 121:18	124:26	22:24
92:12 133:19	<b>faced</b> 11:12	121:20 125:13	<b>family</b> 45:22,23	<b>feasible</b> 21:18
134:20	<b>faces</b> 6:6 121:22	126:3 134:6,21	48:24 50:2	<b>February</b> 1:16
<b>experts</b> 46:5	<b>facilitate</b> 11:26	136:19,22,23	52:21 65:19	2:16 5:1 77:18
<b>explain</b> 5:14	<b>facilitates</b> 55:1	136:24 139:22	86:19,23 91:1	<b>federal</b> 16:6
76:1	<b>facilitation</b> 5:22	139:25 141:23	99:6 103:14,15	37:19 97:21
<b>explanation</b>	14:16	144:16,17	111:20 148:25	<b>federally</b> 150:23
96:21	<b>facilitator</b> 3:10	<b>facility's</b> 54:2	<b>family's</b> 61:18	<b>feedback</b> 7:15
<b>explored</b> 23:11	5:19	<b>facing</b> 26:18	87:19 122:7	9:10
<b>exploring</b>	<b>facilities</b> 14:10	<b>fact</b> 25:6 26:18	134:26 142:25	<b>feel</b> 18:2,6 55:5
122:16	14:15 50:15,16	34:16 49:19	<b>famous</b> 146:6	55:19,23 78:20
<b>explosive</b> 52:12	53:23,25 77:25	85:4 92:7,14	<b>fantastically</b>	83:15 104:1,5
52:16 54:12	96:2 100:7	93:14 109:21	54:11	104:6,7,11
<b>exponentially</b>	134:1	133:1 134:5	<b>far</b> 41:8 67:10	114:26 115:1
91:25	<b>facility</b> 1:9 2:8	<b>factor</b> 38:17	85:16 107:24	132:22
<b>expose</b> 114:20	6:14 9:24 10:1	110:20	110:18 121:4	<b>feeling</b> 112:25
<b>exposed</b> 82:21	10:25 11:9	<b>factors</b> 69:1	121:14 132:25	126:25 136:14
94:11 125:24	13:20,25 14:2	<b>facts</b> 47:8 59:4	<b>farm</b> 109:6,7	141:19 147:26
143:6	15:24 16:12,14	66:21 131:15	<b>fascinating</b>	<b>feels</b> 88:19
<b>exposure</b> 88:6	19:23 21:1,2,8	132:13,13,13	15:12	141:14
<b>exposures</b> 91:24	21:13 24:24	<b>fail</b> 38:12 51:1	<b>fashioned</b> 54:1	<b>feet</b> 26:21 40:7
91:26,26 92:5	25:24 26:20	134:7,16,18	<b>fast</b> 100:2	52:8,10,11,13
<b>express</b> 7:11	28:14 30:14	<b>failed</b> 47:8,10,11	<b>faster</b> 54:18	52:13 64:10
34:8	39:20 40:1,3,5	47:12,14,16,18	102:26	67:26 96:18
<b>extinction</b>	40:7,10 41:17	47:20,20,22,24	<b>fat</b> 35:25 96:14	106:19 147:22
129:10	42:16,18 47:13	47:25 48:2,4	<b>father</b> 45:20	150:11,14
<b>extinguished</b>	48:13 50:4,11	65:8 72:8 76:4	59:22 95:17	<b>fellow</b> 122:6
107:2	50:14 51:23	83:3 92:15	109:16 124:20	<b>felt</b> 101:11
<b>extraction</b> 93:17	52:7 54:10	93:10 97:19	<b>fatigue</b> 32:2 97:9	136:17,18
<b>extremely</b> 136:3	56:9 59:3 62:8	<b>failing</b> 131:24,25	103:23 136:13	138:14
<b>eye</b> 60:1 84:24		132:1	<b>fault</b> 25:25 26:4	<b>FEMALE</b> 31:3

67:14 94:6 113:6 115:10 125:19 126:24 142:19 145:2 <b>fenceline.org</b> 53:2 <b>Fernando</b> 61:4 73:21,24 116:21 117:1 117:10,16 <b>fester</b> 107:9,9 <b>festers</b> 107:7 <b>field</b> 26:13 48:26 64:7,8,9 68:6 68:10,17 69:12 70:8 72:3 75:20 88:26 93:12 94:10 107:13 108:24 115:17 127:3,4 132:26 133:2,8 133:9 <b>fields</b> 67:19 72:5 76:4 87:25 <b>fifteen</b> 72:2 77:18 <b>fifty</b> 42:13,13 64:2 <b>fight</b> 22:16,19 74:13,13,14 148:25 151:4 <b>fighting</b> 33:23 73:17 148:25 151:4 <b>figure</b> 60:4 63:7 66:2 89:16 <b>figured</b> 53:24 <b>file</b> 34:22 35:6 <b>files</b> 43:9 <b>filled</b> 143:16 <b>filters</b> 32:8 <b>filtration</b> 32:7 <b>final</b> 16:7 98:24 <b>finally</b> 28:11 88:2 98:3 145:4 <b>finance</b> 28:9	<b>find</b> 20:12 29:25 50:9,9 66:4,14 71:1 72:1 128:4 143:11 146:20 <b>finding</b> 77:21 <b>findings</b> 26:2 <b>fine</b> 109:26 140:10,11,24 <b>finish</b> 35:20,22 68:26 69:7 72:20 <b>fire</b> 10:24 22:11 24:12 48:8 84:3 85:26,26 87:20,21,22,26 87:26 106:26 106:26 107:2,2 107:2,6,6,8 108:24 138:25 138:26,26 139:1 <b>fireball</b> 109:3 <b>fired</b> 79:5 150:26 <b>firefighter</b> 122:2 <b>firefighters</b> 32:3 <b>fires</b> 52:24 107:3 <b>first</b> 5:7,7 16:13 17:25 18:8 24:18 28:6 38:8 39:24 44:7 54:23,24 55:25 57:19 60:22 75:16 77:5 82:14,15 87:11 89:11 92:17 100:5 113:3 121:26 122:4 128:5,12 134:11 139:5 <b>Firstly</b> 87:6 <b>fishy</b> 149:4 <b>fitness</b> 76:4 <b>five</b> 11:18 43:18 45:20,22,23 66:22 71:8	80:18 97:12 99:23 109:16 109:16 125:22 146:11 <b>fix</b> 116:9 <b>Fleming</b> 71:9 75:11,12,12 <b>Flemming</b> 4:6 73:6 <b>flew</b> 98:25 <b>floor</b> 99:3 112:5 112:9,10 113:2 113:3 <b>flow</b> 7:13 <b>flu-like</b> 76:24 <b>flying</b> 80:12 <b>focus</b> 38:2 92:12 97:5 <b>Foley</b> 4:19 148:13,14,14 149:20 <b>folks</b> 22:17,18 22:19 24:13 34:17,21 35:8 35:15,22 36:5 57:7 <b>follow</b> 61:3 97:14,17 <b>followed</b> 40:26 <b>following</b> 20:24 <b>food</b> 91:13 113:17 <b>fooled</b> 46:23 67:5 <b>foolish</b> 20:13 <b>fools</b> 86:3 <b>forbid</b> 142:8 <b>Force</b> 16:8 <b>forced</b> 44:25 85:6 86:26 <b>foremost</b> 24:18 <b>forest</b> 149:16 <b>forever</b> 28:14 30:14 88:15 125:13 126:4 143:22 <b>forfeiting</b> 67:14	<b>forget</b> 88:3 <b>forgotten</b> 88:5 <b>formal</b> 8:21 <b>formation</b> 106:18 <b>formed</b> 147:23 <b>former</b> 12:14 61:6 122:1 <b>Formula</b> 87:18 <b>formulas</b> 86:2 <b>forthcoming</b> 6:13 <b>fortunate</b> 61:3 <b>Forty</b> 56:13 <b>forum</b> 114:11 <b>forward</b> 9:23 10:3 16:11 20:23 58:6 59:15 63:5,21 <b>fossil</b> 93:22 95:23 96:1 101:25 111:1 123:22 145:22 145:26 <b>fossils</b> 129:11 146:1 <b>found</b> 8:6 119:4 119:5 128:17 128:18 134:11 136:3 <b>Foundation</b> 71:15 72:16 <b>four</b> 31:9 43:17 45:25 61:19 77:6 84:16 101:16 <b>four-and-a-half</b> 127:7 <b>four-lane</b> 59:1 107:16 <b>four-month</b> 46:8 <b>fourteen</b> 72:2 77:17 89:8 <b>Fowler</b> 4:13 102:4 103:9,11 103:12 <b>frack</b> 149:12	<b>fracked</b> 127:11 127:12,13 <b>fracking</b> 113:23 114:1 <b>fragile</b> 60:16 <b>Frank</b> 138:9,9 139:13,14 <b>frankly</b> 11:6 <b>frantically</b> 104:15 <b>freaking</b> 82:7 141:21 <b>free</b> 101:24,24 <b>French</b> 80:4 <b>frequent</b> 53:7 <b>frequently</b> 134:2 <b>friend's</b> 111:20 <b>friendly</b> 33:2 <b>friends</b> 19:20 50:2,3,3 60:5 65:25 90:12 118:18 125:20 144:21 149:25 <b>front</b> 6:25 59:11 112:21 114:18 122:25 137:14 138:16 141:18 <b>froze</b> 137:8 <b>frustrated</b> 11:12 <b>frustrating</b> 44:15 <b>frustration</b> 61:9 118:21 <b>fucking</b> 80:4 137:19 138:5 142:10 <b>fuel</b> 95:24 96:1 101:22 111:1 131:5 133:26 <b>fuels</b> 93:22 101:25 123:22 129:11 145:22 145:26 <b>full</b> 6:1 17:22 19:3 23:16 57:10 68:16 71:7 73:23
---	---	--	--	---

88:7 108:24 110:2 117:6 130:26 135:20 <b>full-time</b> 83:1 <b>fully</b> 18:1 23:10 44:17 52:20 57:8 87:13 93:10 <b>function</b> 96:22 97:1 <b>functions</b> 24:26 <b>fundamental</b> 42:25 150:26 <b>funded</b> 28:10 29:26 30:11 <b>funds</b> 93:1 <b>further</b> 84:5 <b>future</b> 14:6,9 16:4 30:22 38:4 58:5 74:13 93:25 134:16 138:24 <b>futures</b> 60:18	23:19 24:23 25:7 26:19,21 28:5 30:3 33:3 33:14 35:13,24 39:23 40:7 41:11 42:16,17 42:18,19,20 46:6,9,24 47:17,20 48:5 53:10,17,22,26 55:1 57:26 58:10,18 61:21 64:1,13 65:2,2 65:3,7 67:19 67:24 68:1,8 68:20 69:9,12 69:20 70:3 71:24 72:1,5,7 72:25 74:25 76:11,15 78:14 82:17,19 84:8 85:14 86:22 87:25 88:25 89:3,20 90:14 92:9,20 93:15 93:17,19 96:1 100:6,14 103:4 103:12 105:17 106:3 107:23 107:25,26 108:1,25 109:23 113:25 114:2 122:14 122:24 127:5 129:26 130:9 130:15,17,18 130:19,20,21 130:21,24 131:1,2,4 132:5,5,21 133:4,8 136:6 136:18 137:9 137:26 138:23 139:7,10 140:22 141:11 146:3,5 148:5 149:9,22 150:7	150:11,16 <b>gassed</b> 85:4 <b>gate</b> 15:11 77:23 77:23 <b>gathered</b> 98:4 <b>general</b> 29:12 108:22 138:11 <b>generally</b> 126:11 <b>generated</b> 13:14 66:24 <b>generation</b> 94:26 123:3,12 <b>generations</b> 61:19 <b>gentleman</b> 17:21 29:18 32:22 33:21 43:24 45:26 67:17 122:24 <b>gentleman's</b> 131:11 <b>gentlemen</b> 10:19 49:8 50:9,19 59:11 90:22 101:21 111:8 111:10 113:8 150:8 <b>genuinely</b> 119:19 <b>geological</b> 43:21 71:15 72:16 105:17 106:18 110:19 <b>geologically</b> 106:8 <b>geologicalmap...</b> 72:17 <b>geologist</b> 25:22 71:14,17 <b>Geologists</b> 42:12 <b>geology</b> 25:21 26:15 42:13,13 <b>Geothermal</b> 1:5 2:4 8:24 <b>getting</b> 28:11 34:9 36:26 37:1 45:14	51:19,20 52:6 65:14 79:5 81:7 83:17 96:19 97:2 98:19 101:6 104:14 113:25 116:24 120:26 126:22 128:17 140:22 141:22 147:10,15 150:26 <b>Getty</b> 110:25 <b>giant</b> 93:24 109:3 <b>gigantic</b> 108:24 <b>girl</b> 143:9 <b>give</b> 8:13 70:7 73:19 74:12 80:11 83:2,2 83:14 101:24 106:11 126:12 129:15 136:7 140:23 141:5,7 141:8 144:6,7 144:7 149:11 <b>given</b> 9:10 96:13 98:11 <b>glad</b> 15:7 126:25 <b>Glen</b> 53:3 <b>Glendale</b> 12:18 <b>Gloria</b> 3:20 41:25 42:1 44:5,5 <b>go</b> 5:13,14 7:17 8:1,2,14 12:4 18:5 19:12,20 24:16 25:3 26:21 29:13 31:12 36:5 38:18 39:2 42:21 56:11 57:23 58:26 60:4 61:13 66:12,23 67:23 69:7 70:22 71:13,13 72:17 75:3 78:23	80:19 85:15 90:9,10 95:11 96:12,14 102:12,25 103:10 104:11 104:11 107:7 108:20 109:1 110:3 112:5,25 113:15 115:13 115:19 116:8 117:19 126:23 129:22 131:7,7 140:23 142:22 147:3 148:9 <b>goal</b> 6:12 21:17 <b>goals</b> 22:14 <b>God</b> 33:24 102:11 123:1 142:8,10 <b>goes</b> 7:26 18:15 33:17 64:10 67:26 68:20 81:6 90:22 96:12 104:2 107:15 110:4,5 110:7 130:22 <b>going</b> 5:17 7:5 7:11,25,26 8:1 8:2,15 9:2 10:21 11:10,22 11:23 12:6,23 15:3 17:25 18:1,4,7,17 19:12,14,15 22:11 24:16,17 26:21 29:25 32:3,4 33:6,20 34:7 35:2 38:4 45:13,14 50:6 50:25,26 53:14 53:15,20 54:4 54:7 56:19 58:4,15,24 61:11,13 62:5 62:22 63:2 64:22 65:6 68:25,26 69:2
---	--	--	---	--

**G**

**G-R-E-C-H** 86:9  
**Gail** 4:14 108:10  
108:10  
**Gaile** 105:1  
**Galanti** 3:22  
4:16 48:19,21  
48:22,22 49:5  
49:8 50:24  
131:9,9  
**games** 21:3  
**garbage** 52:4  
**Gary** 3:19 39:8  
40:15,15  
**gas** 1:5,9 2:4,8  
8:24 9:18 11:9  
12:20,21,25  
13:13,15,17  
14:10 15:24  
16:7,8,10,16  
17:9,15 19:22  
20:4 21:4,14  
21:16,21 23:17

69:8 70:4,7,8 70:15 71:1,1,8 75:3,3,4 78:10 79:25 80:8,9 80:17 82:7,8 86:13 89:13,21 94:19 95:15,21 96:3,4 99:23 100:1 103:17 104:5,5,13,21 105:8,16,17 106:25,25 107:7,8,12,12 107:13,21 109:4,21,23 110:5,13,15 111:4,9,19,20 111:20 113:21 113:23,26 114:5,7,10,11 114:18 115:5 115:12,25 117:24 119:11 121:8,10,11,14 121:15 122:19 122:20 123:15 124:17 127:5 129:20,20,20 129:20 133:11 133:12,22 135:12 137:12 142:3,3,9,9,16 142:16,22 143:10,13,13 146:2,5 147:8 147:14,19,22 148:22 149:12 149:13 151:3,5	38:25 45:18 57:17 58:19 70:11 90:9,10 91:9 101:20 113:16 121:19 126:22,24 133:16 134:24 137:10 139:18 144:25 146:15 148:21 <b>goodness</b> 132:20 <b>Googling</b> 141:26 <b>Gordon</b> 118:8 118:10 <b>gotten</b> 7:14 126:15 141:22 <b>govern</b> 17:12 <b>government</b> 13:9 20:14,20 20:20 21:5,19 21:22 35:9 97:18,21 124:25 125:2 144:26 146:9 151:1 <b>governmental</b> 36:25 <b>governments</b> 14:8 <b>governor</b> 12:24 77:25 78:1 99:15 100:18 109:9 115:4 120:21 121:1 136:23 145:7 151:2 <b>Grab</b> 78:23 <b>graduates</b> 143:14 <b>Granada</b> 9:14 103:12 118:17 120:17 134:25 146:16,18,20 147:10,11 <b>grandchildren</b> 31:9,15 32:10 91:2	<b>granddaughter</b> 27:10 31:24 <b>grandparents</b> 119:9 <b>grandson's</b> 136:16 <b>Grant</b> 132:17 <b>granted</b> 11:10 <b>gratitude</b> 78:13 <b>gravitational</b> 145:24 <b>great</b> 7:14 9:7 12:11 17:24 31:1 33:5 41:23 102:23 118:8 121:23 126:10 <b>greater</b> 13:21 <b>greatest</b> 122:5 <b>Grech</b> 4:9 86:7,9 86:9 88:12 <b>greed</b> 51:3 <b>greedy</b> 54:2 137:21 <b>green</b> 96:4 102:16,20 129:13,14 <b>greenbelt</b> 28:17 <b>greenhouse</b> 47:17 93:18 <b>Greenpeace</b> 123:21 <b>Greg</b> 83:20 <b>grew</b> 9:12 31:24 79:21 118:17 <b>gross</b> 136:19 <b>grossly</b> 76:7 <b>ground</b> 26:3 64:10 73:20 111:1,2 121:4 123:23 145:26 146:1 <b>groundwater</b> 73:24,25 74:2 <b>group</b> 105:9 <b>groups</b> 14:1 147:11	<b>grow</b> 76:21 <b>growing</b> 61:18 95:3 <b>grown</b> 122:16 <b>growth</b> 146:18 146:19 <b>guarantee</b> 38:15 49:14 51:1 119:26 <b>guaranteed</b> 38:7 <b>guess</b> 29:21 38:11 88:8 90:21 131:20 <b>guessing</b> 59:25 <b>guilty</b> 52:25 137:25,25,26 137:26,26 138:1,6,7,7 <b>Gulf</b> 97:20 <b>gums</b> 97:11 109:20 <b>Gustavo</b> 12:5 <b>guy</b> 74:24,24 109:26 140:3 140:20 <b>guys</b> 9:12 11:24 12:9 36:26 38:16,22 44:8 44:19 50:7 51:1,4 54:24 55:2 68:14 80:22 81:4,12 89:2,20 106:10 106:21 110:14 120:1,18 125:26 126:9 127:11,12,13 127:13,17,17 128:1 135:1,4 135:8 139:23 139:25,26 141:18 142:10 143:25 144:6 144:12,19 145:11,25 146:11 147:4	<hr/> <b>H</b> <hr/> <b>H-U-N-T</b> 51:14 <b>hair</b> 103:22,22 <b>half</b> 51:19 61:24 62:21 97:10 103:22 111:26 113:1 <b>hall</b> 33:17 67:17 115:12,15,16 115:17,20,22 115:24,25,26 <b>Halliburton</b> 137:10,18 <b>halls</b> 115:21 <b>hand</b> 100:10 138:15 <b>handed</b> 45:10 <b>handle</b> 36:4,4 <b>handmade</b> 106:21 <b>handouts</b> 105:7 <b>hands</b> 48:14 49:9 82:7 88:14 99:2 123:12 <b>handwriting</b> 12:6 <b>happen</b> 22:26 25:1,1 50:26 62:22 63:8 65:1 66:15 72:14 74:22 75:16 85:19 109:4,8 114:12 119:21 127:1 128:14 <b>happened</b> 7:1 14:23 15:4,12 19:1 23:17 25:5 39:18 44:15,23 45:3 51:23 55:6 56:4 62:6 64:13 66:15 72:11 73:15 75:15 78:14 82:16 101:3
--	---	---	--	--

119:7 120:24 137:5,13,14 143:20 <b>happening</b> 14:21 82:20 88:21 90:26 102:21 114:20 116:3 118:21 146:24 <b>happens</b> 16:21 22:15 63:5 93:1 <b>happily</b> 33:18 <b>happiness</b> 111:17 <b>happy</b> 17:3 44:14 111:16 129:13 <b>hard</b> 18:15 40:20 41:7 54:25 55:3 57:20 60:2 61:2,2 65:24 89:22 96:5 103:25 114:17 <b>hardship</b> 76:16 <b>harken</b> 146:6 <b>harm</b> 85:24 92:2 92:23 100:20 <b>harmed</b> 84:8 <b>harmful</b> 93:3 <b>harming</b> 16:4 <b>Harmon</b> 4:11 90:1,2 <b>Harris</b> 8:23 17:9 17:9 80:23 <b>hate</b> 143:21 <b>hazard</b> 26:6,7,11 29:11 55:18 72:7,10 <b>hazards</b> 72:6 <b>Hazmat</b> 24:12 <b>head</b> 5:16 60:14 103:10 126:23 143:15 <b>headache</b> 66:10 76:22 140:23	140:23 141:8 141:14 <b>headaches</b> 32:1 35:1 44:9 56:16 59:25 60:2 65:21 79:5 92:21 103:19 111:18 111:19,24 112:1,2,15 113:26 128:25 140:24,26 <b>headline</b> 150:19 <b>heal</b> 102:1 <b>healing</b> 96:1 <b>health</b> 9:15 10:4 10:11,22 11:13 15:22 19:19,24 19:26 20:1 21:9 22:12 28:8,24,26 29:8,10,11,16 29:24 30:6,9,9 30:17,25 32:5 32:13,18 33:13 35:10 38:15 44:17,19 46:4 46:19 48:3,8 55:13,15 56:24 60:17 74:14 75:17,18 77:2 77:25,26 81:15 81:16,17,23 84:10 86:11,12 88:2,7 89:11 90:17 91:10,18 92:9,12,12,16 92:18,23,24,26 93:5,10 97:19 97:21,22,24 98:10 99:8,16 101:2,10 114:5 114:7,18,19,25 115:6 121:5,12 122:21 126:5 127:3,4 128:5 128:20 129:16	132:24 134:26 136:9,20 138:24,24 142:26 143:5 149:22 150:6 <b>healthier</b> 93:22 96:19 <b>healthy</b> 97:21 124:23 135:20 135:20,20 140:12 <b>hear</b> 7:20 12:10 23:12 35:8 56:19 70:24 80:1 116:1,17 119:14 120:2,3 120:4 137:4 145:16,19 <b>heard</b> 2:16 7:6 7:17,19 10:7 12:20 14:24 19:13 23:7 34:15 35:2,3 44:8 46:17,19 56:18 62:18,25 62:25 63:10,22 70:26 80:21 81:6 86:10 87:6,9 88:9 91:19 107:26 120:2,4,5,18 121:7 127:6 130:1,5 131:15 142:23 144:18 <b>hearing</b> 1:7,22 2:6,18 7:24 10:22 19:4 34:18 37:6 44:21 49:10 51:3 53:4 67:16 95:22 97:15,16 117:7 117:8 118:19 123:26 134:19 135:1 139:22 150:19 151:16 <b>hearings</b> 41:3	75:8 83:3 123:24,25 124:2 149:23 <b>heart</b> 78:12 110:17 122:4 <b>heartbeats</b> 97:6 <b>heartbroken</b> 101:2 <b>hearts</b> 129:9 <b>heaving</b> 103:20 <b>heavy</b> 32:17 58:17 98:10,11 <b>heck</b> 35:14 106:13 <b>Hector</b> 4:5 71:9 71:12 73:8,8 <b>Heights</b> 33:8 <b>Helen</b> 4:8 78:5 79:17 82:10,13 82:13 120:14 120:16,16 <b>hell</b> 33:21 59:22 80:8,9,16 98:12 <b>hello</b> 17:5 65:17 86:9 90:1 94:6 129:24 145:16 145:16 <b>help</b> 5:24,24 10:13 31:19 33:26 34:1 46:12 75:9 88:26 95:23 97:22 98:26 102:1 112:19 118:5 147:9 <b>helped</b> 99:5 <b>helping</b> 121:19 <b>Henry</b> 11:3 <b>Herman</b> 30:26 30:26 71:10 <b>HERNANDEZ</b> 1:21 2:18 <b>hero</b> 145:7 <b>heroes</b> 57:2 144:14,19 145:12	<b>hey</b> 42:26 43:7 <b>Hi</b> 25:21 31:3 39:10 40:15 44:5 54:22 63:26 66:20 73:8 75:12 76:20 78:7 79:19 83:21 100:4 108:10 131:9 133:16 139:20 146:15 <b>Hick</b> 30:26 <b>hide</b> 86:2 <b>hiding</b> 52:25 132:22 <b>high</b> 55:22 76:24 83:22 85:15 97:6 99:12 134:8 136:4 143:14 <b>higher</b> 13:21 14:7 87:16 <b>highest</b> 110:12 <b>highly</b> 39:15 <b>highly-popula...</b> 50:11 <b>hiking</b> 96:24 <b>hill</b> 86:3 <b>hills</b> 1:15 2:14 5:1 9:14 32:12 59:14 78:16 102:1 103:12 118:17 120:17 128:10 134:25 146:16,18,20 147:10,11,20 147:21 <b>hire</b> 145:5 <b>hired</b> 81:20 98:7 <b>Hiroshima</b> 52:16 <b>history</b> 47:24 76:13,16 79:11 92:14 93:21 119:2 125:3 149:1 150:25 <b>Ho</b> 94:4,4
---	---	---	--	--

<b>hold</b> 47:23 49:15 53:26 64:20 67:26 99:26 124:24 125:1	66:9 79:1,4 126:26 127:17	94:17 113:9 119:1 120:19 120:20 126:9 126:13	121:15,16	19:8 21:16
<b>holder</b> 13:26	<b>horrific</b> 108:12	<b>humble</b> 21:19	<b>imagine</b> 7:14	22:3,4,8,9,10
<b>holders</b> 33:20 100:9	<b>horrifying</b> 128:16	<b>humbly</b> 47:22	60:14 61:8,16 62:20,21 64:18 64:25 96:26	22:17 23:13,19 23:24,26 25:12 25:19 27:6,6 28:16,23,23 29:19 30:2,8 30:20,23 31:4 32:23,26 33:7 33:24,25 34:1 34:4,6,13,23 34:25 35:23 36:1 37:4,14 37:19 38:13 39:21 40:2,14 41:12 42:11,18 43:22 44:1,3 45:9,12 46:14 46:18,20 47:7 48:20 49:1 50:15,23 51:7 52:25 53:4,9 53:20 54:8,19 57:15,15 58:11 58:12,24 59:8 59:8 60:26 61:1,5,5 63:4 63:25,26 64:4 64:17 65:1,15 67:17 68:2,23 69:1,3,9 70:6 70:13,25 71:9 71:12,24 72:10 73:7,14 74:5 75:11,20,24,26 76:9,18,20,20 76:21,22,23,24 76:26 77:1,2,2 77:6,11,22 78:5,5,7,7,16 78:16,26 79:10 79:17 81:10,13 81:14,19 82:2 82:10,11 83:4 83:20,21,21 85:23 86:7,8 86:10 87:7,23
<b>holds</b> 84:4	<b>horse</b> 147:14	<b>hundred</b> 72:2 89:8 101:21 102:26 109:18 135:10 137:20	<b>immediate</b> 75:23 97:22	
<b>Hollywood</b> 100:26	<b>horses</b> 147:17	<b>hundreds</b> 20:3 116:10	<b>immediately</b> 47:22 78:21 79:13,13 86:5 99:16 114:13 138:17	
<b>home</b> 26:19 27:9 27:10,11,12 31:5 44:25 61:19 78:17 82:14,18 85:6 87:4 97:1,4,9 98:5,9,13,14 98:24 99:6 103:18 111:16 112:1 118:18 122:7 135:19 135:25 136:1,9 138:12 142:26	<b>hose</b> 52:26	<b>Hunt</b> 3:23 51:10 51:14,17	<b>impact</b> 33:10	
<b>homelessness</b> 33:26	<b>hospital</b> 59:18	<b>hurt</b> 84:1,6,16 85:2,5,9 86:4	<b>impacted</b> 33:12	
<b>Homeowners</b> 108:22	<b>hospitalized</b> 135:26	<b>hurts</b> 44:20	<b>impacts</b> 74:2	
<b>homes</b> 28:4 39:21,22 42:19 60:8 122:8,14	<b>hospitals</b> 13:18 83:23	<b>husband</b> 45:20 59:17,18 78:8 78:22 79:7,9 82:13 90:11 94:17 104:14 116:17	<b>implement</b> 21:13	
<b>honest</b> 67:9,11 84:13 119:17	<b>hotel</b> 5:16 45:23 45:24 70:22 99:20 136:8 138:12 147:13	<b>husband's</b> 60:2	<b>implemented</b> 13:25 53:21	
<b>honestly</b> 125:25	<b>hotels</b> 109:18 111:20	<b>hydro</b> 145:23	<b>implementing</b> 16:5	
<b>honor</b> 84:13 121:26 125:10	<b>hour</b> 58:25 61:24 65:1 101:22 111:26 141:5	<b>hydrogen</b> 105:4	<b>implore</b> 56:7 60:18	
<b>honoring</b> 125:12	<b>hours</b> 8:8 20:3 48:3 59:18 70:23 98:4,26 99:2,6 101:16 112:1 124:1	<b>hypothetical</b> 56:3	<b>implying</b> 59:19	
<b>hoops</b> 53:16	<b>house</b> 31:10,13 31:16,17,25 48:9 59:14 64:18 65:26 77:20 78:20 90:26 102:10 109:25 111:18 111:19,20,22 111:22,22 119:4	<b>I</b>	<b>importance</b> 9:16	
<b>Hoorah</b> 34:2	<b>housecleaning</b> 22:18	<b>idea</b> 17:2 114:12 144:3	<b>important</b> 6:20 6:23,23 14:2 14:17 23:6 24:24 25:5 30:25 32:15 62:15 63:1 90:16,19 99:24 102:19	
<b>hope</b> 25:20 43:8 55:4 59:12 62:10,15 63:3 118:22 120:26 139:11 145:10	<b>houses</b> 39:23 147:16	<b>identified</b> 21:11 21:11 55:11,17	<b>importantly</b> 51:2	
<b>Hopefully</b> 60:9	<b>housing</b> 26:13	<b>identify</b> 40:20	<b>impressive</b> 137:16	
<b>hoping</b> 25:16 88:3	<b>Houston</b> 108:20	<b>idle</b> 19:20	<b>Improving</b> 58:20	
<b>horrible</b> 65:20	<b>huge</b> 32:15,17 84:3 105:14,15	<b>ignore</b> 69:24	<b>inaccuracies</b> 81:22	
	<b>human</b> 54:4	<b>ignored</b> 95:20 95:22	<b>inadequate</b> 130:10	
		<b>ignoring</b> 114:6 116:19	<b>INAUDIBLE</b> 10:19,20 12:20 13:9 14:18,20 15:9,13 17:20	
		<b>ill</b> 97:2 98:23 112:24		
		<b>illegal</b> 138:3		
		<b>illegally</b> 150:22		
		<b>illnesses</b> 30:23 91:16 94:26		

87:24 88:6,10 88:19,20 89:22 89:25 91:6,6,9 94:3,3,4,7 95:18,19 96:10 96:11,16,16 98:7,15 100:4 100:4,5,24,24 100:25 102:6,6 102:24 103:9 105:2,4,4 106:11,26 107:11,20 108:1,4,8,8,14 109:3,12,13 110:25 111:12 111:14,14 112:12,18,24 113:14,15,16 113:17 114:8 114:16 115:14 115:23 116:12 116:20 117:2 117:25 118:8 118:13,18 119:5 120:14 120:15,16,19 121:22,24,26 122:1,3,5,9,11 123:5,10,13,17 123:18,20 124:12 125:13 125:15,16,19 126:4,10,21,26 127:1,9,17,22 127:23 128:3 129:8,13,16,19 129:21,22,24 129:24 130:6 130:10,24 131:20 132:16 132:17 133:3 133:10,14,15 133:16,21 134:14,24,25 135:3,15,17,17 136:6 137:1,2	137:22,24 138:8,10,23,25 139:15,16,20 139:21 141:5 142:2,12,17,18 143:14 144:3,9 144:15 145:14 145:15,16,17 145:19 146:13 146:14 147:18 148:15 149:7 149:10 150:15 <b>incentives</b> 144:25 <b>inch</b> 45:13 <b>incident</b> 46:7 79:10 87:24 <b>include</b> 13:17 <b>included</b> 91:18 91:26 <b>includes</b> 22:23 81:15 <b>including</b> 12:17 28:3 35:9,10 35:10 66:23 90:6,17 97:12 143:24 <b>incompetence</b> 50:19 <b>inconvenient</b> 65:8 <b>increase</b> 58:5,8 58:10 <b>increased</b> 91:25 123:5,6 <b>increases</b> 13:10 <b>increasingly</b> 13:11 <b>incredibly</b> 65:19 114:25 <b>independence</b> 124:5,6 <b>independent</b> 5:19 97:19 <b>indicted</b> 149:4 <b>individual</b> 33:4 <b>individuals</b>	62:11 63:14 <b>inducing</b> 146:3 <b>industrial</b> 13:16 133:25 <b>industry</b> 46:6 93:15 100:19 103:5 129:15 148:24 149:2 151:3 <b>industry's</b> 124:4 <b>industry-acce...</b> 46:7 <b>inevitable</b> 75:23 <b>infections</b> 94:18 <b>infliction</b> 34:22 <b>influencing</b> 62:19 <b>inform</b> 84:19 92:19 <b>information</b> 20:5 24:2,3 106:14 147:2 <b>informational</b> 114:11 <b>infrastructure</b> 13:16 76:14 <b>inhaler</b> 114:25 <b>inherently</b> 93:15 <b>inherit</b> 150:21 <b>inherited</b> 56:20 <b>injected</b> 69:21 <b>injecting</b> 68:7 <b>injection</b> 6:11 64:16 150:23 <b>injections</b> 9:18 28:5 137:8,18 <b>injunction</b> 22:22 <b>Injustice</b> 148:11 <b>innovative</b> 57:11 <b>inside</b> 31:7,8,17 106:23 <b>inspector</b> 53:13 89:6 <b>installed</b> 108:18 <b>instant</b> 64:12 <b>Institute</b> 42:10 <b>insurance</b> 46:13	85:17,20 <b>integrity</b> 37:20 37:22 38:2,4 38:25 43:10,10 43:11,12 55:3 93:12 105:13 134:3 151:1 <b>intense</b> 118:23 <b>intent</b> 131:17,19 131:19,20 132:6 <b>intention</b> 41:21 <b>intentional</b> 34:22 94:12 <b>intentionally</b> 150:16 <b>intentioned</b> 83:11 <b>Inter-Agency</b> 16:8 <b>interact</b> 107:13 107:21 <b>interaction</b> 113:22 <b>interest</b> 40:18 47:13 <b>interested</b> 7:24 12:8 17:12 21:26 33:10 145:3 <b>interesting</b> 12:11 123:23 124:9 <b>interests</b> 40:21 <b>interrupted</b> 60:11 <b>interruption</b> 61:9 <b>intricately</b> 41:11 <b>introduce</b> 5:6 17:1,3 22:5 <b>introduced</b> 9:17 11:7,14,18 <b>invalid</b> 75:2 <b>investigates</b> 86:1 <b>investigation</b> 23:16,22	<b>investments</b> 14:13 <b>involved</b> 73:13 73:15 <b>Ironically</b> 90:4 <b>irregular</b> 97:6 <b>irreparable</b> 112:23 <b>irresponsible</b> 76:8 <b>isolated</b> 98:20 <b>Issam</b> 3:15 18:9 18:21,21 19:10 20:9,17,19,22 21:11 <b>issue</b> 9:12 10:4 11:1,4 15:20 30:6 33:9 38:5 38:6 41:7 42:14 62:10 73:17 74:2,10 114:2 119:17 145:20 <b>issued</b> 46:3 <b>issues</b> 56:7 90:17 91:18,20 92:24 97:22 114:18 121:6,12 142:26 <b>itch</b> 79:2,2,2 <b>itchy</b> 103:20 <b>item</b> 6:24 <hr/> <b>J</b> <hr/> <b>jackasses</b> 35:24 <b>JACOB</b> 4:5 <b>jail</b> 70:8 <b>JAN</b> 3:2 <b>Jane</b> 4:13 102:4 103:9,11,11 <b>January</b> 23:17 35:16 53:18 77:15 97:12 128:4 140:12 141:10 142:7 <b>Jason</b> 17:10,10 71:9,12 73:6,8
--	---	---	--	--

73:8	<b>Judith</b> 129:18	<b>kids</b> 53:8,9	56:18,20 57:4	147:21 148:10
<b>JD</b> 121:23,26	135:15,16,17	58:26 61:13	57:5,6 60:16	149:21 150:10
122:1 123:13	135:17	110:6,7 112:15	60:17 61:14,16	150:12,13,21
<b>Jean</b> 61:1 63:24	<b>July</b> 82:14 140:8	112:18,19	61:21 62:14,23	<b>knowing</b> 58:2
<b>Jennifer</b> 139:16	140:17	113:10 119:10	62:24 64:13,14	61:11,13 104:9
142:12,13,18	<b>jump</b> 129:12	121:7 127:2	65:22 67:18,23	119:2 121:10
145:1	<b>jumped</b> 128:14	144:5	68:3,14,15,21	125:23
<b>Jerry</b> 11:16	<b>June</b> 136:2	<b>kill</b> 69:22 94:23	68:22 69:16,24	<b>knowingly</b> 43:3
88:14 96:7	138:12	<b>kind</b> 25:3 29:7	70:21 71:19	<b>known</b> 17:13
100:9 101:19	<b>jurisdiction</b>	41:5 64:19	72:11,13 79:10	26:14 40:17
102:20 115:2,3	14:10	68:13 86:13	79:22 80:11,24	50:16,17,18
115:7,7 120:22	<b>jury</b> 110:20	106:7 138:21	80:25 82:20	64:15 69:19
126:18 136:23	<b>justice</b> 148:11	144:10 148:4	83:10,16,24	85:21 92:1
144:23	150:2	<b>kinds</b> 129:4	85:11,12,17	102:19
<b>Jim</b> 4:18 146:14	<b>Justin</b> 3:5 17:17	<b>kinetic</b> 145:24	87:2,10,16,23	<b>knows</b> 9:23
146:15,16	17:17	<b>King</b> 125:4	89:21,21,22	42:23 43:24
<b>Joan</b> 73:6	<b>juvenile</b> 135:21	148:3	90:8,8,13,13	64:14 68:3,5
129:22		<b>kitchen</b> 97:2	90:18 91:1	114:16 133:6
<b>job</b> 1:24 5:23,23	<b>K</b>	103:25	92:6 94:8,21	141:11
6:1 20:13	<b>Kaiser</b> 112:11	<b>knew</b> 80:21	94:21,25 95:3	<b>Korver</b> 4:17
27:26 41:23	<b>Katherine</b> 10:21	94:13,13	95:6,7,21 96:4	132:16,18,18
49:2 79:5 83:1	<b>Kathryn</b> 11:19	111:21 120:1,6	96:5,6 101:22	<b>Krowne</b> 3:21
132:12 145:6	<b>keep</b> 14:20 18:7	122:12 127:17	102:12,22	45:8,10,18,19
<b>jobs</b> 63:13,16	34:7 42:8	129:6 140:12	103:16 104:4	47:1 48:13
109:8 123:12	45:14 47:17	143:20	104:12,13	<b>Kyoko</b> 76:20
129:14	48:10,16 63:6	<b>Knight</b> 15:17	106:6,12,15,21	<b>Kyoto</b> 71:9 73:6
<b>Joe</b> 32:23 34:4	63:9 66:2,15	16:12	108:22,23	75:11 76:20
34:14	81:16 82:3	<b>Knight's</b> 15:16	110:15,21	
<b>Joel</b> 3:17 37:11	121:20 123:22	15:25	111:3,3,4	<b>L</b>
37:11 39:5	126:21 129:20	<b>knock</b> 35:13	116:2,19	<b>L.A.</b> 46:19 48:7,8
<b>John</b> 4:6,17 71:9	129:20 133:12	<b>knocking</b> 149:24	117:16,19	48:8 86:11
75:12,12	144:16 145:3,9	<b>know</b> 7:24 10:2	118:25,26	87:22,26 98:9
132:16,18,18	<b>keeping</b> 87:5	10:7 11:1,5,20	119:7,11 120:4	102:15,19,26
<b>Johnson</b> 3:16	120:12	12:7 18:6	121:3,13,17,18	110:12 116:25
24:7,10,11	<b>keeps</b> 64:22	19:19 20:1	122:22 125:18	130:20,22
<b>join</b> 129:15	<b>keg</b> 54:12,12	22:7,13 24:18	125:25 126:8,9	137:14
<b>joint</b> 76:26 77:5	<b>Ken</b> 8:23 17:9,9	25:10 29:14,21	127:12,12,13	<b>La</b> 24:12 41:24
77:6,8,11,16	80:23 129:25	30:24 32:5,11	127:18,19,20	41:26
97:8	<b>kept</b> 145:9	32:11,14,16	128:23 129:5	<b>LA32</b> 42:4
<b>joke</b> 39:4 105:5	<b>Kevin</b> 139:16	36:9 37:25	131:26,26	<b>Lab</b> 55:20
<b>Jones</b> 28:21	142:12,17	38:10,23,23,24	132:1,7,10,24	<b>Labs</b> 25:26
<b>Jorge</b> 15:11	145:16,17	39:17,20 40:24	133:1,11	<b>lack</b> 49:18 50:13
<b>joy</b> 128:14	<b>key</b> 13:26	41:12,22 44:11	134:16,17,26	74:3 147:1,1
<b>Jr</b> 125:4	<b>kid</b> 53:10 65:22	44:18,19,20,22	135:4 137:5	151:1
<b>judge</b> 17:7	107:1 112:22	44:22 49:19,24	140:20 142:6,7	<b>ladies</b> 10:19
131:15 132:12	141:20 142:5	53:12,16,19,22	143:6,7 144:20	101:21
137:25	<b>kidney</b> 95:13	54:25 55:2	146:24 147:5	<b>lady</b> 34:25 72:7

116:17	<b>Leah</b> 100:24,24	45:16 81:24	110:19,19	98:11 102:4
<b>laid</b> 28:26	<b>leak</b> 13:13 14:14	89:9 98:8	<b>level-headed</b>	119:23 140:1
<b>land</b> 32:16 149:5	15:24 16:7	99:20 117:26	142:2	150:1
<b>Landfill</b> 147:7	22:14 27:22	123:2 140:10	<b>levels</b> 16:6 84:16	<b>liquid</b> 47:19
<b>Lands</b> 146:18	31:8 33:14	<b>legacies</b> 28:13	99:13 110:18	<b>liquids</b> 112:4,6
<b>landslide</b> 32:15	35:13 45:1	<b>legacy</b> 49:26	<b>liability</b> 23:20	<b>Lisa</b> 15:14,15,15
32:17	46:8 62:6	80:25 95:26	<b>liable</b> 81:22	<b>list</b> 18:8 51:22
<b>Lane</b> 66:6	67:19 69:18	144:21	<b>liars</b> 117:26	88:7,7 147:3
112:13 122:10	76:15 78:26	<b>legal</b> 22:19	<b>library</b> 58:26	<b>listen</b> 7:4 8:26
<b>language</b> 15:5	90:14 91:21,23	118:12	<b>lice</b> 95:6	17:8 61:26
<b>large</b> 69:6,6	92:9,17 93:20	<b>legislation</b> 9:24	<b>license</b> 72:26	62:1 63:13
70:14,18	97:25 100:14	14:1 63:15	<b>licensed-perm...</b>	67:20 88:15
108:13,16	100:16 103:16	<b>legislation's</b>	43:3	90:23 115:18
<b>largely</b> 6:18	103:16 106:2	63:14	<b>lie</b> 151:7	115:22 120:10
<b>larger</b> 6:13	107:6 108:16	<b>legislative</b> 13:7	<b>lied</b> 122:22	126:16 143:19
71:20	108:20 109:23	<b>legislator</b> 13:22	149:17 150:4,5	<b>listened</b> 120:9
<b>largest</b> 12:18	119:19 127:5	<b>legs</b> 79:1	150:6,7	<b>listening</b> 10:8
13:15 47:23	138:23 140:22	<b>Len</b> 129:21,21	<b>lies</b> 33:17 49:19	61:25 62:11
93:21 119:1	150:6	129:22,24,24	99:7	81:26 90:23
129:10	<b>leaked</b> 47:26	<b>length</b> 78:18	<b>life</b> 9:14 19:6,17	133:17,20
<b>lasting</b> 75:18	78:14	<b>Leonard</b> 118:8,9	33:11 46:4	<b>lists</b> 106:14
92:23	<b>leaking</b> 16:1	118:9	55:13 56:17	<b>literal</b> 124:1
<b>Lastly</b> 85:10	42:19 48:26	<b>Leslie</b> 71:10	60:16 66:11,13	<b>literally</b> 103:24
93:14	52:26 68:8,12	76:18 78:7,7	81:15 97:4	124:19 126:8
<b>late</b> 48:16	106:25 134:11	<b>lesson</b> 25:5	98:20 104:10	<b>little</b> 6:19 26:23
122:11	<b>leaks</b> 47:19	<b>let's</b> 17:24 28:16	104:10 110:26	34:6 35:16
<b>launch</b> 114:8	52:24 53:1,3	28:16 41:22	112:22 113:7,7	45:24 54:18
<b>law</b> 13:23 19:2	53:23 68:17,22	42:21 45:7	116:16 118:16	65:20 67:23
23:3 55:9	68:22 93:15	65:8 74:19,20	124:21 128:13	69:8 72:1 73:1
131:17,18	94:11 96:25,25	90:6,19 107:6	136:4 138:25	80:7 99:4
132:6 137:6	100:13,13,14	110:16 114:21	143:20,21	102:16 109:24
<b>lawsuit</b> 22:14	100:14 103:13	115:13 116:22	148:19	109:26 112:14
35:6	106:12 140:4	119:24 126:21	<b>lifetime</b> 44:6	112:15 115:11
<b>lawsuits</b> 114:21	<b>learn</b> 65:24	126:21 144:8,9	67:16	119:4 122:15
<b>lawyer</b> 22:10	114:11	<b>lethargic</b> 103:20	<b>light</b> 107:6	124:22 129:12
34:22 35:5	<b>learned</b> 25:5	<b>lethargy</b> 85:3	<b>lightheadedness</b>	138:15 140:3
131:15 132:12	41:8 55:24	<b>letter</b> 11:16	136:12	143:9 146:7
<b>lay</b> 101:8	58:9 135:6	12:23,24,25	<b>likes</b> 137:4	148:5,18,22,26
<b>layers</b> 105:17	<b>lease</b> 98:22	26:2 55:19	<b>limit</b> 117:3	149:4,4 150:21
<b>layperson</b> 57:24	149:11	129:26 130:3	141:22	<b>live</b> 27:10 33:18
58:1	<b>leave</b> 40:10 85:6	<b>letters</b> 41:4	<b>limited</b> 102:23	48:23 60:20
<b>lead</b> 30:4 40:16	96:26 98:22	82:22 141:17	<b>limits</b> 36:20	61:19 66:11
134:1	99:20 102:9	<b>letting</b> 9:11	<b>line</b> 6:22 8:8	73:21 78:13,13
<b>leaders</b> 74:11	145:26 148:2	82:19 115:10	15:6 18:13	79:14 84:9,15
117:23 148:6	151:3,5	<b>leukemia</b> 128:24	34:10,11 46:25	84:18 85:25
<b>leading</b> 91:11	<b>leeway</b> 40:9	143:13	61:23 79:7	90:3,26 95:12
<b>leads</b> 17:15	<b>left</b> 6:24 17:21	<b>level</b> 29:8 30:4	80:3 96:10	100:11 101:13

104:10 108:10 112:5 125:20 127:2,18 128:9 132:19 134:25 144:5 151:6 <b>lived</b> 9:14 31:4 32:14 65:18 76:21 78:8,19 84:18 86:19 118:15 122:8 129:25 <b>lives</b> 54:4 56:24 59:21 60:10,12 60:17 61:7,10 62:24 66:3 70:6 74:13 79:15 88:14 94:24 101:3,14 141:24 148:25 <b>living</b> 33:4 35:14 59:16 60:10 77:20 101:26 102:17 104:10 116:15 129:9 136:8 <b>lobby</b> 5:12,15,16 <b>local</b> 3:7 13:8 14:8,12 16:6 16:12 123:7,10 <b>located</b> 5:15 87:15 <b>location</b> 26:14 <b>locked</b> 37:1 <b>log</b> 105:22 143:7 <b>logging</b> 143:17 <b>logs</b> 43:8 <b>lonely</b> 98:20 <b>long</b> 12:17 32:14 42:9 61:11 88:2,9 93:9,23 104:21 111:17 114:1 118:20 120:10 122:7 133:10 144:12 146:24 147:19 <b>long-term</b> 58:6 87:2 88:7	99:10 115:6 143:5 <b>long-winded</b> 84:11 <b>longer</b> 117:19 127:8 <b>look</b> 7:16 20:15 26:24 29:13,15 38:4,7 43:7 49:26 50:1 59:4,12 63:21 72:19 80:2,2,2 81:10 99:21 106:22 126:26 127:10 128:3 129:8,9 132:13 135:5 140:7 <b>looked</b> 60:1 68:21 71:25 126:14 <b>looking</b> 5:10 23:20 25:24 39:3 46:1 59:15 86:3 106:24 112:7 <b>looks</b> 95:5 140:4 <b>Lopez</b> 145:19 <b>Loraine</b> 54:16 54:17,20,22 <b>LORRAINE</b> 3:25 54:22 <b>Los</b> 10:20,23,24 11:15 12:17 18:24,25 22:10 32:25 33:5 41:2 46:23 48:6,7 52:10 52:13 83:23 90:5 100:11 108:11 116:26 149:25 <b>lose</b> 70:3,7 117:23 148:17 <b>losing</b> 61:12 97:9 116:17 <b>loss</b> 34:23 85:3 97:5 103:22	136:12 <b>lost</b> 27:13 83:4 84:24 97:10 99:13 109:19 124:20,21 128:11,12 136:14 <b>lot</b> 8:11 19:10 24:16 32:14 34:15 40:22,23 42:21,23 43:9 43:10 53:16 54:25 56:18,19 58:17,20 65:10 82:26 83:13 95:14 113:24 124:17 127:8 127:16 128:11 128:12,15 129:8 130:1 132:13 135:7 <b>lots</b> 8:4 16:25 36:6,6 125:20 125:21 <b>love</b> 42:13 96:18 125:23 128:1 <b>loved</b> 61:12 124:18 <b>low</b> 85:14 <b>Luckily</b> 140:16 <b>lucky</b> 19:18 <b>LUIS</b> 1:21 2:18 <b>Lundquist</b> 54:16 54:17,22,22 <b>lungs</b> 31:18 34:26 <b>LUNQUIST</b> 3:25 <b>Luther</b> 125:4 148:3 <b>luxury</b> 98:15 <b>lymph</b> 97:8	<b>Madison</b> 71:11 71:11 <b>magic</b> 137:3 <b>magnetic</b> 145:24 <b>magnitude</b> 29:13 <b>mail</b> 71:5 <b>main</b> 5:16 119:16 139:26 <b>maintain</b> 20:26 47:13 <b>maintained</b> 140:2 <b>maintaining</b> 51:4 136:19 <b>maintenance</b> 38:14 150:17 <b>major</b> 12:17 13:2 25:25 52:23 61:12 106:1 127:1 138:26 139:4 <b>majority</b> 6:17,25 118:16 123:11 <b>making</b> 14:24 15:1 20:6 29:23 35:12 39:12 62:25 63:1,5 82:3 88:26 141:17 <b>MALE</b> 17:19 18:19 32:25 34:15 35:20,22 36:9,13,17,24 37:4 42:2,5,7 51:14 57:17 61:2 63:18,26 65:5 67:21 69:4,9 105:3 105:25 107:19 109:14 123:20 137:3 <b>man</b> 125:5 149:1 151:7 <b>man-made</b> 119:1 120:23 122:6	<b>manageable</b> 8:5 <b>management</b> 24:21,25 26:24 35:26 71:26 72:4 74:4,7,8 <b>manages</b> 123:14 <b>manner</b> 26:7 <b>manufactures</b> 13:18 <b>mapping</b> 106:2 <b>Maps</b> 71:15 72:16 <b>Marcel</b> 12:13,14 <b>Marcelo</b> 12:10 <b>Marianne</b> 121:24 <b>mark</b> 4:9 83:19 85:14 86:9,9 88:12 148:19 <b>marks</b> 86:25 <b>Marlo</b> 121:25,25 123:18 <b>Marriott</b> 78:15 <b>Marshall</b> 17:10 17:10 <b>Martin</b> 125:4 148:3 <b>massive</b> 28:1,8 91:21 124:23 <b>master</b> 112:26 <b>match</b> 53:24 <b>Materials</b> 51:1 <b>Mathews</b> 39:8 39:10 <b>Matt</b> 4:7 78:5 79:17,19,19 87:7 <b>Matt[INAUDI...</b> 17:19 <b>matter</b> 1:7 2:6 23:13 33:2 42:14 62:19 67:8,8 70:1 100:15 <b>matters</b> 20:12 62:15 115:18 <b>Matthew</b> 24:6
---	---	---	---	---

25:16,21 <b>MATTHEWS</b> 3:18 39:10 <b>maximizing</b> 47:13 <b>maximum</b> 64:20 <b>Maxwell</b> 3:26 54:16,17,21 56:12,12 <b>mayor</b> 12:14 90:4 <b>McClendon</b> 149:3 <b>McGEE</b> 3:9 5:5 5:19 9:5 10:15 10:17 12:2 14:19 16:22,24 17:3,21 18:12 18:20 19:8 21:25 22:5 24:6,8 25:15 25:19 27:4 28:21 30:20,26 32:22 34:4 35:18,21 36:7 36:11,15,20,23 37:3,5,9 39:5,8 40:13 41:20 42:4,6 44:3 45:7 48:19 51:7,11,15 54:16 56:11 57:15 59:7 60:26 63:24 65:13 66:19 68:25 69:5 70:11,17 73:4 73:6 75:11 76:18 78:4 79:17 82:10 83:19 86:7 88:11,17 89:25 91:6 94:1,3 96:10 99:19 100:23 102:4 103:9 105:1,19 107:18 108:5,7	109:12 111:12 113:5,12,14 115:9 116:14 118:7 120:14 121:23 123:17 125:15 126:21 129:18 131:7 132:16 133:15 135:15 137:1 138:8 139:13 139:19 142:12 142:16 145:1 145:14 146:13 148:13 151:10 <b>meadows</b> 149:9 <b>mean</b> 38:16 79:25,26 82:26 83:12 119:15 125:24 127:24 128:22 140:2,5 <b>meaningful</b> 148:19 <b>means</b> 17:24 21:20 38:14 56:16 68:8 76:15 84:23 119:15,16 120:11 130:11 135:24 137:24 138:1 144:18 144:19 145:7 <b>measly</b> 101:8 <b>measure</b> 125:5 <b>Measurement</b> 42:11 <b>measures</b> 53:21 <b>mechanical</b> 43:11 <b>mediation</b> 47:17 <b>medical</b> 47:16 110:19 <b>medication</b> 97:14 135:25 140:11 <b>medicine</b> 124:25 141:1,13 <b>mediocre</b> 116:24	<b>mediocrity</b> 148:17 <b>meet</b> 131:3 <b>meeting</b> 5:7,8,10 5:25 6:8,9,11 6:18 7:2,3,12 7:15,25 15:18 19:1 60:3,3 66:1,1 151:13 <b>meetings</b> 5:24 10:6 45:4 105:5 151:13 <b>Meh</b> 26:16 <b>member</b> 9:22 10:10 13:10,26 14:12 39:11 42:9 67:16 105:11,11 <b>members</b> 13:20 28:12 41:4 46:21 53:5 57:21 63:11,12 86:23 <b>membership</b> 46:22 <b>membership-b...</b> 13:1 <b>memorial</b> 98:25 <b>memories</b> 95:7,8 <b>memory</b> 85:2 <b>men</b> 122:6 136:24 <b>mention</b> 78:12 87:2 <b>mentioned</b> 6:16 23:10 28:24 64:7 72:7 74:6 74:14 90:19 <b>mentions</b> 43:18 <b>merely</b> 21:1,21 <b>mess</b> 82:5 <b>message</b> 121:1 122:24 123:1 <b>met</b> 28:6 <b>metal</b> 106:21 <b>metals</b> 98:10,11 <b>methane</b> 28:2	47:26 52:8,9 52:11,26 66:5 93:16,18 94:11 94:25 107:6 108:16 128:19 <b>metric</b> 28:1 <b>mic</b> 8:12 12:12 148:16 <b>Michaels</b> 4:2,3 54:19,20 57:16 59:8,10,10 61:1 65:17,17 129:18 <b>microphones</b> 8:20 25:15 <b>middle</b> 50:5 87:14 88:18 110:1 121:3 <b>mighty</b> 122:26 <b>migraine</b> 141:1 <b>migraines</b> 129:1 140:22,26 <b>migration</b> 105:16,26 <b>Mike</b> 4:15 118:7 118:9,11,11 <b>mile</b> 94:10 113:1 <b>miles</b> 48:23 58:25 64:26 109:18 111:4 128:6 135:18 <b>million</b> 12:19 13:3 29:14 86:13,16 101:8 122:8 150:11 <b>millionaires</b> 124:7 <b>millions</b> 29:5 32:20 36:1 83:25 100:10 <b>mind</b> 18:7 80:15 86:14 110:16 128:11 143:25 143:25 148:5 <b>mindful</b> 17:25 <b>mindset</b> 16:13 <b>minimum</b> 13:6	<b>minor</b> 31:8 61:10 <b>minute</b> 5:6 <b>minutes</b> 18:19 36:18,18 67:2 67:15 70:13 81:25 97:12 99:24 107:18 <b>miracle</b> 104:19 <b>Miriam</b> 113:15 115:9 116:14 <b>mirrors</b> 88:9 <b>missing</b> 119:15 <b>mission</b> 48:4 81:15,18 95:20 <b>Missy</b> 103:14 <b>mistake</b> 6:22 <b>Mitch</b> 79:13 <b>Mitchell</b> 11:3 <b>mitigate</b> 14:6 40:5 <b>mitigation</b> 26:23 55:24 <b>Mojave</b> 50:5 <b>Molton</b> 15:14,15 15:16 <b>mom</b> 65:26 66:5 98:23 99:1 124:22 141:15 <b>mom's</b> 31:25 98:23 <b>moment</b> 6:15 8:1 10:18 34:20 93:8 144:15 <b>moments</b> 60:13 125:5,6 <b>Monday</b> 23:21 43:13 <b>monetarily</b> 34:18 <b>monetary</b> 35:25 <b>money</b> 35:2 36:6 37:1,1 46:16 46:18 47:17 66:12 70:3,7 82:2 88:26 89:3,4 128:12
--	--	---	--	--

131:19 132:2,2 132:2,2,3,3,3,4 132:4,6 135:11 147:2,6 <b>money-driven</b> 46:11 <b>monitor</b> 68:2,2 69:16 89:17 <b>monitored</b> 68:4 69:18 <b>monitoring</b> 64:11 74:3,10 89:19 108:25 <b>monopoly</b> 132:21 <b>monstrosity</b> 60:21 <b>Montebello</b> 42:16,18 43:22 65:2 68:11 <b>Monterey</b> 135:22 <b>month</b> 61:13 69:11 84:26 109:19,20 111:15 117:19 125:4 <b>month-to-mon...</b> 98:22 <b>months</b> 12:19 20:3 31:9,18 40:24 45:23 47:3 65:21 66:3 69:11 78:17 80:4 83:12 86:21 89:2 91:23 97:26 103:17 106:1 109:17 111:16 127:7 136:8 140:16 <b>moon</b> 109:4 <b>moral</b> 41:8 <b>Morales</b> 15:11 <b>Morgan</b> 150:15 <b>morning</b> 77:19 136:13	<b>motel</b> 61:11 <b>mother</b> 51:2 67:1 95:8 101:26 102:7 106:20 125:22 <b>mother's</b> 122:9 <b>motion</b> 11:15 <b>motivated</b> 123:6 124:13,16 <b>motives</b> 122:26 <b>mountain</b> 32:12 107:11,16,20 <b>mountains</b> 122:17,20 147:18 <b>mourn</b> 60:7 <b>move</b> 9:22 10:2 16:10 26:17 31:16 52:22 53:19 61:10 63:4 71:2 85:24 100:2 102:7,13 103:2 103:26 150:14 <b>moved</b> 31:22 44:24 65:25,26 65:26 82:15 87:20 95:12 96:17 109:17 109:24 112:17 135:19,22 136:1 <b>movement</b> 72:13 72:14 <b>movements</b> 124:26 <b>moving</b> 59:15 82:24 93:22 98:13,15 126:21 <b>Mt</b> 84:2 <b>mucous</b> 77:10 <b>mud</b> 69:22 <b>mugged</b> 149:15 <b>multiple</b> 15:21 47:19 52:24 53:14,14	110:18 <b>muscle</b> 32:2 76:26 77:6,9 77:11,16 97:8 <b>muscles</b> 31:19 <b>mystery</b> 42:21 <hr/> <b>N</b> <hr/> <b>N</b> 3:13 4:1 <b>Najm</b> 3:15 18:10 18:12,18,21,22 19:10 20:9,17 20:19,22 21:11 21:25 <b>name</b> 5:18 9:8 10:20 12:3,13 15:15 18:21 22:9 24:11 31:3 37:11 40:15 44:5 45:18 51:9 52:19 54:22 56:12 59:10 63:26 65:15,17 66:20 71:10 73:8 76:20 78:7 79:19 82:11 83:21 90:2 91:9 94:6 100:4 103:11 113:16 118:11 120:16 122:1 122:21 123:13 123:20 124:5 125:17,19 131:9 132:18 133:21 134:24 135:17 137:5 138:10 139:20 145:17 146:15 148:14 149:2 <b>names</b> 62:14 91:7 96:12 <b>Nancy</b> 86:7 88:20 <b>Narrows</b> 71:22 <b>nation</b> 120:24	124:3 <b>national</b> 15:21 25:26 55:20 87:25 91:11 <b>natural</b> 1:3 2:2 9:18 13:15,17 14:10 16:6,8 16:10 26:19,21 39:23 40:7 46:4 55:13 76:11,15 81:16 92:20 106:18 <b>nature</b> 51:2 67:1 67:5 84:9 106:20 <b>nature's</b> 101:26 <b>nausea</b> 79:1 86:24 91:20 103:19 <b>nauseous</b> 52:23 78:22 <b>Nazis</b> 127:24,24 <b>Neal</b> 142:18,18 146:13 <b>near</b> 14:10 67:15 84:4 87:23 <b>nearly</b> 61:7 84:24 <b>necessarily</b> 55:5 <b>necessary</b> 21:13 22:22 32:6,8 40:6 41:15 93:1 <b>need</b> 8:12 10:9 10:13 11:6 16:16,24,26 19:9 21:4,8,14 29:17,24 30:10 32:8,13 40:1,3 40:9 41:13 46:12,13,16,17 46:18 47:1,2 53:25 55:12,21 57:2,3,8,8 59:3 63:6,9 67:9,10 67:18,18 69:26 74:25 79:15,15	79:26 83:5,5,7 83:7,8,14 86:5 88:23 89:13,15 90:23 92:19 93:21 100:15 101:24 107:22 111:8,23 113:8 114:22,25 115:4,6 116:19 116:20,20,24 117:6,20,20,21 121:2 122:5 126:7 132:24 145:22 150:12 <b>needed</b> 39:14 66:7 85:15 92:12 108:19 <b>needs</b> 10:5 16:15 21:2,9,18 28:8 28:9 29:16 30:17 62:26 70:1 79:10,12 84:10 87:9 100:17 <b>negative</b> 118:4 118:21 <b>neglect</b> 124:10 <b>neglected</b> 84:12 <b>negligence</b> 26:12 50:18 136:19 <b>negligent</b> 98:20 <b>negotiable</b> 38:20 38:21 <b>neighbor</b> 18:22 18:25 44:18 52:23 58:19 82:22 <b>neighborhood</b> 18:9 19:5,16 42:4 45:11,19 47:6 57:22 73:10,11 82:4 82:5 94:13 107:14 138:5 <b>neighborhoods</b> 32:19 105:18 <b>neighboring</b>
--	--	---	---	---

146:16	88:18 90:12	65:23 66:9	<b>obligation</b> 50:4	101:23 106:11
<b>neighbors</b> 18:7	102:10 110:1	76:22 77:4,4,6	<b>Obstructive</b>	107:5 110:5
19:20 58:16	116:8 117:4	77:7,7,8,8,9,10	135:23	137:5 140:23
143:19 144:22	118:19 120:22	77:11,12,13,13	<b>obtain</b> 22:16	<b>oil</b> 1:5 2:4 8:23
146:26 147:9	121:5 139:18	77:14,16,17,18	<b>obtained</b> 47:2	17:9,14 27:20
148:22 150:3	151:10	77:18,19,19	<b>obvious</b> 10:4	30:3 38:11
<b>neither</b> 92:11	<b>nightmare</b> 19:21	79:4 86:24	50:14 89:14	46:6 48:5
<b>nervous</b> 115:11	21:18	91:19 92:21	101:6	67:19 68:18
<b>Nevada</b> 53:24	<b>nightmares</b> 97:9	94:18 99:1,4,4	<b>obviously</b> 24:9	72:5 89:20
<b>never</b> 16:17,21	143:4	109:26 112:16	117:3	93:15,17 97:20
22:15 32:5	<b>nights</b> 118:20	<b>noses</b> 31:24 44:9	<b>occasions</b> 88:5	110:26 129:15
39:24 40:8	<b>Nina</b> 88:20	59:24 65:20	<b>occur</b> 25:6,9	132:26 133:2,2
41:9 48:24	<b>nine</b> 97:26	110:6,11,14	<b>occurred</b> 14:14	133:3,8 137:17
50:23 60:21	<b>nine-tenths</b>	113:25 128:26	55:26 85:21	<b>okay</b> 18:14,17
62:5,14 63:5,8	131:17,18	<b>note</b> 9:10 34:12	105:26	18:21 29:6
66:15 70:9,9	132:6	71:1	<b>October</b> 75:15	31:14 36:15,23
73:15 78:9	<b>Nobel</b> 148:20	<b>notes</b> 88:23,24	75:26 82:16	41:20,20 42:6
82:17,19 86:19	<b>nodes</b> 77:17 97:8	<b>notice</b> 6:20	87:21 91:22	42:7 44:25
92:6,7 100:17	<b>noise</b> 58:22	47:24 64:12	108:13 114:9	49:9,11 50:18
109:8 114:23	<b>noises</b> 15:1,1	82:19 110:23	149:8	50:26 52:6
116:16 126:3	<b>non-profit</b> 71:15	<b>noticed</b> 120:22	<b>odor</b> 48:3	57:2,5,8 68:23
127:6 134:12	71:16 79:21	<b>notices</b> 98:21	<b>offender</b> 132:11	68:25 70:19
136:4 140:24	91:12 122:3	<b>notification</b> 25:2	<b>offer</b> 56:26	73:18 74:25
143:19 148:20	<b>non-SoCalGas</b>	<b>notify</b> 47:18	<b>office</b> 11:22	80:22 88:24
<b>Nevertheless</b>	144:11	<b>noting</b> 93:2	15:17 29:11	95:6,7,11,15
92:6	<b>non-specific</b>	<b>notion</b> 53:25	41:1 61:14	95:24 96:6
<b>new</b> 27:19 47:6	43:15	<b>November</b> 17:16	81:4,8,12	99:23 103:11
54:26 57:9	<b>non-violent</b>	27:22 77:1,3,4	<b>Officer</b> 86:15	118:9 119:6
64:21,24 96:5	101:15	141:2	122:2	139:20 140:12
97:23 104:15	<b>normal</b> 142:1	<b>number</b> 26:25	<b>official</b> 10:23	141:2,4,17
115:4 124:26	<b>north</b> 73:25	37:18 73:17	15:18 19:8	143:15,20,23
137:10	117:12 147:23	105:13	42:3 45:12	144:11,14
<b>news</b> 35:15,16	<b>Northeastern</b>	<b>numbers</b> 21:4	<b>officials</b> 7:7 8:2	146:15
67:1 91:22	148:26	33:2,20 123:4	9:1 12:8 14:22	<b>ol'</b> 137:8,15
128:4 137:14	<b>Northern</b> 130:22	123:5 124:24	16:13 21:26	<b>old</b> 39:15 57:9
137:15	130:25	<b>numerous</b> 109:1	29:8 34:9 41:5	68:13,14 69:15
<b>nice</b> 109:8,8	<b>Northridge</b>	<b>nurse</b> 110:13	56:22 57:19	103:6 107:19
<b>Nick</b> 82:10	25:22 35:11	112:15 141:3,3	81:24 83:9	108:16 134:10
<b>night</b> 6:3,6,16,26	54:23 55:26	141:10	97:18 114:4	134:17 137:10
7:1,14 8:13 9:9	58:13 66:24	<b>Nuys</b> 115:13,17	118:2 123:1,7	137:20 140:1
11:2 18:26	71:21 84:18	115:20,25	123:10 125:2	147:11,11
24:9,15 28:25	109:16 116:4	116:1,7	143:18	<b>old-</b> 53:26
30:2,3 31:25	122:9 139:5	<b>nymph</b> 77:17	<b>oh</b> 18:14 31:11	<b>older</b> 40:21
44:14 45:25	<b>Norwalk</b> 12:15		42:24 43:1	<b>omissions</b> 93:16
46:19 49:11	33:21	<b>O</b>	45:1 53:11,13	<b>on-start</b> 140:15
62:22 79:14,24	<b>nose</b> 31:21 32:1	<b>oath</b> 97:25	54:21 74:25	<b>once</b> 82:21 88:13
80:1 81:25	35:1 56:15,17	<b>objectives</b> 13:4	81:17 90:7,24	107:14 133:12

151:7 <b>one's</b> 144:2 <b>ones</b> 19:18 111:9 112:20 124:18 <b>ongoing</b> 48:1 104:12 <b>online</b> 43:23,25 86:14 120:26 <b>open</b> 26:10 55:10 63:6,9 85:11 112:8,8 115:19 116:8 117:6 121:19 138:13,15 145:9 <b>opened</b> 12:26 77:26 96:23 100:9 137:12 137:22 <b>operate</b> 65:8 76:2 87:13 <b>operated</b> 20:6 27:23 42:16 92:13 <b>operating</b> 21:1 122:2 130:18 130:26 <b>operation</b> 14:15 30:15 48:5 64:20 139:8 <b>operations</b> 13:17 64:1 93:17 <b>operator</b> 89:6 <b>opinion</b> 21:19 34:9 133:4 148:22 <b>opportunity</b> 6:4 6:5 28:12 48:15 57:1 95:25 144:14 <b>opposing</b> 22:21 <b>opposite</b> 7:19 92:8 96:20 <b>option</b> 121:20 <b>order</b> 14:6 34:24 39:9 40:3 46:5 51:19 52:8	53:17,21 131:1 135:26 <b>ordering</b> 150:16 <b>ordinary</b> 124:24 <b>organization</b> 13:1 17:13 40:16 122:3 128:21 149:20 <b>organizations</b> 15:23 27:13 <b>organizer</b> 113:17 148:15 148:24 <b>organizing</b> 149:25 <b>originate</b> 107:24 <b>Orleans</b> 137:11 <b>OSHA</b> 128:19 <b>Otto</b> 146:14 <b>out-of-date</b> 134:17 <b>outage</b> 14:17 <b>outcome</b> 21:20 <b>outdoors</b> 96:18 98:5 <b>outlawed</b> 26:12 <b>outlined</b> 13:24 <b>outside</b> 5:11,12 31:13 65:25 77:23 97:12 128:6 141:4 <b>over-building</b> 146:21 147:6 <b>over-pressuriz...</b> 42:20 <b>overall</b> 14:3 <b>overbuilding</b> 147:25 <b>overflowing</b> 115:21 <b>oversaw</b> 150:25 <b>overseas</b> 122:6 <b>oversight</b> 15:22 <b>overtime</b> 81:12 <b>owner</b> 98:17 <hr/> <b>P</b> <hr/>	<b>p.m</b> 2:15 5:2 151:16 <b>Pack</b> 4:10 88:21 88:23 <b>packed</b> 99:5 <b>page</b> 3:14 72:16 72:16 137:14 <b>paid</b> 23:19 51:19 51:20 52:6 70:4 80:6 82:3 128:19 140:20 <b>pain</b> 59:25 60:1 61:9 62:20 65:21 84:25 97:8 103:21 132:20 151:11 <b>painkillers</b> 111:26 <b>pains</b> 32:2 <b>paint</b> 31:17 <b>PAKUCHO</b> 4:7 <b>Pakucko</b> 79:17 79:19,19 87:7 <b>Palomo</b> 27:5 <b>palpitation</b> 76:25 <b>Pandora's</b> 88:13 <b>panel</b> 105:11 <b>panic</b> 143:3 <b>parachute</b> 41:6 <b>parade</b> 112:17 <b>parallel</b> 21:7 <b>Paramount</b> 33:9 <b>parcels</b> 98:11 <b>pardon</b> 80:4 83:20 94:1 105:2,22,22 <b>Pare</b> 66:20,20 <b>parent</b> 60:18 <b>parents</b> 119:9 <b>park</b> 98:3 118:18 135:22 <b>part</b> 16:11 53:8 60:6 130:16 143:21 146:19 <b>participate</b> 5:25 5:26 15:2	34:11 <b>participation</b> 23:3 <b>particular</b> 55:6 110:24 <b>particularly</b> 92:11 102:19 <b>parties</b> 15:25 110:22 <b>partly</b> 7:4 22:6 <b>partners</b> 124:22 <b>parts</b> 58:12 87:16 <b>pass</b> 11:17 58:24 131:1 134:15 <b>passed</b> 11:18 44:18,18 58:23 63:16 134:3,9 134:13 144:26 <b>passion</b> 123:6 133:19 151:12 <b>passionate</b> 56:19 122:1 <b>Passmore</b> 3:19 39:8 40:15,15 <b>patch</b> 102:16 <b>path</b> 20:23 24:26 122:14 <b>pathetic</b> 53:18 <b>Patricia</b> 109:13 111:13,14,14 <b>pattern</b> 57:25 59:2 105:16 <b>Paul</b> 3:23 48:20 51:7,10,10,14 51:17 145:15 <b>pave</b> 52:7 <b>pay</b> 15:4 29:15 32:8 85:20 92:26 114:3,19 <b>paying</b> 80:6 121:13 142:15 144:2 <b>PCU</b> 131:26 <b>peace</b> 60:7 143:24,25 <b>peak</b> 40:8	<b>Pearl</b> 48:20 <b>pediatrician</b> 110:3,4 <b>pension</b> 72:13 <b>people</b> 6:2,16 7:5,17 8:11 12:7,10,19 17:2,3 18:23 19:25 20:14,14 20:15,15 21:5 25:23 26:17 29:13 30:21 32:14 33:22 34:1 36:10,20 36:25 38:1 39:3 40:18,26 41:21 44:14 45:16 49:15 50:1 51:18,19 56:14,24 57:5 60:10 62:16,17 62:18 66:11,16 67:10,18 70:18 74:11,16,17,18 74:21,23 75:3 75:5,6 79:22 79:25 80:5,19 81:1,2,7,7 82:4 85:12 86:4 88:25 89:10 90:5,20 92:5 94:16 95:14,23 96:2,6 97:22 100:6 101:6,13 105:6 109:8 113:9,10 115:3 115:4,16,18,21 115:23,25 116:5,6,10,18 117:12,22 119:12 120:7 121:5 122:15 123:10 124:12 124:16,21,24 125:1,11,12,23 126:6,11,16 127:6 128:6
---	---	--	--	--

135:5,9 141:24 142:5 143:18 143:19 145:8 145:18,20 146:23 150:1 <b>people's</b> 21:22 52:5 70:6 94:23 101:10 120:3 132:24 <b>percent</b> 13:13 38:9 50:19 73:23,25 101:21 102:26 103:3 123:22 135:10 <b>percentile</b> 84:17 <b>PEREZ</b> 3:2 <b>perfect</b> 87:19 <b>perform</b> 26:5 <b>period</b> 14:22 <b>Permanent</b> 76:14 <b>permanently</b> 78:2 87:6 99:11 102:25 136:22 <b>permit</b> 24:8 <b>permitted</b> 26:10 <b>perpetual</b> 104:3 <b>person</b> 33:4,14 90:15 104:8 126:10 142:2 <b>personal</b> 104:22 127:15 <b>personally</b> 73:12 <b>petition</b> 116:24 117:20 <b>petitioning</b> 149:24 <b>petroleum</b> 30:5 42:10,10,12 71:17 <b>Phillip</b> 128:3 <b>phone</b> 89:19 90:7,9 112:7 141:10 149:26 <b>phonetic</b> 84:17	88:21,23 <b>physical</b> 38:2,4 38:15 104:3,22 <b>physically</b> 84:7 85:8 <b>picked</b> 82:5 <b>picture</b> 93:14 <b>pictures</b> 48:14 58:23 <b>piece</b> 52:4 137:15,16 <b>pieces</b> 37:22 72:18 <b>piggybank</b> 53:26 <b>pin</b> 107:6 <b>Pinky</b> 4:11 88:22 89:26 90:1,2 <b>Pioneer</b> 149:10 <b>pipe</b> 119:7,8 <b>pipeline</b> 58:7 100:15 150:11 150:17 <b>pipelines</b> 130:25 149:16 <b>pipes</b> 97:23 106:21,22 107:24 119:3 131:24,24 132:1 <b>piping</b> 38:5 <b>piss</b> 142:5 <b>pissed</b> 49:3 <b>pit</b> 107:7 <b>place</b> 9:7,19 25:8 27:25 29:6 47:10 60:22 68:12 80:19 85:26 87:11 117:5 124:2 <b>places</b> 102:15 <b>plain</b> 88:9 <b>plan</b> 23:13 24:21 24:25,26 26:23 26:25 43:15,16 43:19 47:10	55:24 57:3,10 57:13 71:26 72:4 87:26 97:14 99:8,9 109:2 <b>plane</b> 87:9 104:14,17 <b>planet</b> 80:22 <b>planet's</b> 129:10 <b>planned</b> 93:21 <b>planning</b> 61:22 <b>plans</b> 25:8 52:1 <b>plant</b> 149:16 <b>plasma</b> 105:4 <b>plastic</b> 140:3,3 <b>plate</b> 33:26 <b>platform</b> 13:7 <b>play</b> 59:20 <b>playing</b> 65:25 85:23 142:10 <b>plays</b> 85:14 <b>plea</b> 83:1 115:23 116:5,6 <b>please</b> 6:25 7:21 9:6 15:4 18:7 19:8 22:5,5 24:9 27:5 31:2 32:18 34:13,13 35:19 36:15,23 36:23 44:4 46:22 48:21 51:16 54:14,21 56:11 57:16,16 59:9 62:8 67:20 69:7 70:13 71:2,13 75:4 76:18 78:1,5 79:18 82:12 83:14 86:8 88:11,15 89:26 91:7 94:4 96:6,14 99:21,21,22,22 99:22 100:2,25 102:5 103:10 105:22,22,23 108:8 109:12	109:13 111:8 111:10,10 113:5,15 116:7 116:12,14 120:14 121:22 121:25 123:17 123:18 125:16 125:17 126:23 126:23 127:26 129:8,15,21,22 131:7,7 132:12 132:13,16 135:15 137:1,2 138:9 139:19 142:18 144:25 145:1,15 146:14 <b>pled</b> 75:8 <b>plenty</b> 39:26 40:9 44:23,24 44:24 53:22 <b>plugged</b> 56:6 <b>podium</b> 9:7 71:13 <b>Poe</b> 96:10 <b>point</b> 7:10,12,21 8:26 11:24 14:26 33:15 37:14 75:1,2 81:1 97:2 99:21 134:7 <b>pointed</b> 134:10 <b>points</b> 39:12 <b>poison</b> 149:7 <b>poisoned</b> 47:15 <b>poisoning</b> 27:14 33:3 83:26 84:8,25 96:21 121:20 144:16 <b>poisons</b> 84:20 <b>policies</b> 13:4,8 <b>policy</b> 46:13 <b>polite</b> 72:1 <b>politicians</b> 61:20 144:23 <b>pollution</b> 58:22 74:1 91:17	139:10 <b>pool</b> 32:9,10 50:26 <b>poor</b> 33:13 50:15 84:10 128:13 <b>poorly</b> 50:15 <b>populous</b> 50:6 <b>Porte</b> 65:13,14 <b>Porter</b> 10:12 15:25 16:19 18:9,22 19:3 27:7,8,10,11 27:15 28:11,19 30:22 31:4 37:12 39:11 43:7,7 44:6 45:11,19 47:5 48:23 49:2 56:15 57:21,22 58:11 59:16 61:5 65:18 73:9,10 76:17 76:21 78:8 79:20,21,23 82:14 84:6,18 85:24 86:20 90:1,3,3,5 91:14,24 94:7 94:21 95:15 96:17,24 97:4 97:5 98:1,4,10 98:14 101:1 102:7 111:15 111:22 112:12 113:19 114:8 114:16 116:4 118:17 122:7 125:20,21 127:2,15,19 129:25 132:19 135:18 138:26 139:1 146:17 147:13 149:18 <b>portfolio</b> 14:3 <b>position</b> 126:4 <b>positive</b> 118:4
---	--	--	--	---

<b>possible</b> 16:1 18:1 41:17 51:26 63:10 92:19 144:8	134:2 <b>Presenters</b> 3:2 <b>preserving</b> 13:8 <b>president</b> 18:9 18:22 40:16 73:14 79:19 146:7 <b>press</b> 145:3 <b>pressure</b> 64:21 64:22,23 68:1 68:2,4,6,16 69:17,18,19,20 76:23,23,25 134:13,15 136:4	<b>pro</b> 144:10 <b>proactively</b> 99:14 <b>probabilistic</b> 26:6 <b>probability</b> 37:25 38:7,9 55:22 <b>probably</b> 5:17 49:24 69:26 72:12,12 80:26 118:20 127:8 135:1 <b>probate</b> 34:24 <b>problem</b> 31:23 33:7 43:2 66:25 69:24 82:7 115:24 118:25 119:21 119:26 150:14 <b>problems</b> 19:19 43:5,6 66:22 67:9 84:22 85:3 86:26 101:10,10 109:23 114:5 128:25 129:2 134:26 139:8,9 146:21 147:12 147:25 <b>proceedings</b> 1:14 2:13 6:13 46:1 70:16 <b>process</b> 16:11 19:4 23:11 24:1 49:16 76:10 <b>processes</b> 24:17 <b>procession</b> 112:16 <b>produce</b> 93:12 <b>producers</b> 68:18 <b>producing</b> 68:18 <b>production</b> 68:19 <b>productive</b> 18:5 <b>products</b> 91:14	<b>professes</b> 46:5 <b>professional</b> 26:15 133:5 <b>professor</b> 24:6 25:22 35:11 139:1 <b>profit</b> 113:9 122:21 124:6 <b>profits</b> 46:16 47:14 54:5 95:24 99:16 <b>profuse</b> 109:26 <b>profusely</b> 110:11 <b>program</b> 114:9 114:13 <b>progress</b> 9:20 <b>prohibition</b> 9:18 <b>project</b> 23:4 54:6 147:6 <b>projects</b> 146:25 <b>promise</b> 83:2 108:7,8,11 119:21,25 <b>promised</b> 103:1 <b>promises</b> 83:8 123:14 <b>promptly</b> 87:5 <b>pronounce</b> 45:8 <b>pronounced</b> 71:10 <b>pronouncing</b> 12:3 25:20 <b>proof</b> 130:12 <b>properly</b> 46:6 47:8,11,12 48:5 51:4 <b>properties</b> 147:14 <b>property</b> 34:23 34:23 46:4 55:13 81:16 87:3 107:21 149:12 <b>proportionate</b> 48:25 <b>proposal</b> 20:23	<b>proposed</b> 106:16 107:10 <b>Proposition</b> 92:3 <b>proprietary</b> 86:2 <b>protect</b> 13:9 15:25 27:12,26 53:22 66:14 91:12 <b>protected</b> 150:23 <b>protecting</b> 48:5 73:16 <b>protection</b> 46:13 <b>protections</b> 74:16 <b>proteins</b> 110:9 <b>protest</b> 33:2 <b>protester</b> 141:21 <b>protocol</b> 136:10 <b>protocols</b> 13:24 <b>proud</b> 61:17 118:13 <b>prove</b> 47:1 63:7 <b>provide</b> 6:5 13:5 22:7,18 40:6 92:3 109:7 <b>provided</b> 14:1 92:6,7 <b>providers</b> 13:16 <b>provides</b> 21:5 <b>provisions</b> 14:6 <b>public</b> 1:7 2:6 3:14 6:9,18,26 7:9,9 8:3,7,25 9:4,20,25 10:5 10:10,16,22 12:1 14:18 15:21 16:23 17:1,6,20 18:11 20:8,16 20:18,21 21:9 21:10,24 22:11 23:3,18,22,25 24:3,5 25:14 27:3 28:15,20 28:24 29:7,10 30:1,6,7,19
--	--	--	---	--

32:21 34:3	58:4 63:12	<b>quantified</b> 75:19	27:15 28:11,19	<b>reaching</b> 25:26
35:10 36:22	131:12 150:25	<b>quantify</b> 26:26	30:22 31:4	143:18
37:2,10 39:7	<b>pull</b> 50:10 65:9	<b>quantifying</b>	37:12 39:11	<b>reacting</b> 147:23
40:12 41:2,3	<b>pulled</b> 7:3	58:14	44:6 45:11,19	<b>reactively</b> 99:14
41:19 43:25,26	<b>Pulmonary</b>	<b>que</b> 54:18	47:5 48:23	<b>read</b> 12:23 35:15
44:2 45:6	135:23	<b>question</b> 17:1	49:2 57:21,22	38:1,25 51:15
46:19,26 48:6	<b>pulse</b> 97:6	44:7 105:12,12	58:11 59:16	55:19,23 71:8
48:12,17 49:4	<b>pump</b> 111:1	107:10,19	61:5 65:18	86:14,17 88:23
49:7 50:23	132:5	108:1	73:9,10 76:17	129:25 130:5
51:6 52:18	<b>Pumped</b> 132:5	<b>questions</b> 6:14	76:21 78:9	144:18
54:15 56:10,22	<b>pumping</b> 27:2	11:21,23	79:20,21,23	<b>reading</b> 55:25
56:23 59:6	<b>puppets</b> 50:8	105:13,20,21	82:14 84:6,18	<b>ready</b> 18:18 22:3
60:24 63:17,23	<b>purchased</b> 87:4	105:23 107:22	85:25 86:20	28:22 31:2
65:4,12 66:17	<b>pure</b> 87:11	121:21 130:15	90:1,3,4,5	32:24 34:5
67:4,13 70:10	<b>purifier</b> 128:8	<b>quickly</b> 15:26	91:14,24 94:7	40:14 44:4
73:5 75:10,17	136:7	33:9 44:17	94:21 95:15	45:17 51:13
78:3 79:16	<b>purple</b> 149:9	71:2 72:20	96:17,24 97:4	63:24 65:16
80:1 82:9	<b>purpose</b> 6:9	<b>quid</b> 144:10	97:5 98:1,5,11	66:19 71:13
83:18 85:22	<b>push</b> 128:5	<b>quietly</b> 66:13	98:14 101:1	76:19 78:6
86:6 88:16	<b>pushed</b> 141:21	<b>quippy</b> 148:18	102:7 107:12	79:18 82:12
89:24 91:5	<b>pushing</b> 73:19	<b>quite</b> 11:6,22	107:15 111:15	89:26 91:8
92:12,19 93:26	<b>put</b> 26:2,15,24	15:12 43:12	111:22 112:12	94:5 100:3,25
95:21 96:9	35:25 43:25	<b>quo</b> 144:10	113:19 114:8	102:5 104:14
97:17 99:17	51:20 52:8,20	<b>quote</b> 26:7 46:3	114:17 116:4	110:22 123:19
100:22 102:3	54:4 58:2,6	67:3 76:1	118:17 122:7	137:1
103:8 104:26	72:24,26 87:9	146:6	125:20,21	<b>real</b> 24:10 25:11
105:5,10 108:6	95:6 107:14	<b>quoted</b> 88:1	127:2,15,19	47:4 57:24
108:23 109:11	114:13 124:17	148:3	129:25 132:20	60:10,10,13
111:11 113:13	124:17 126:4	<hr/> <b>R</b> <hr/>	135:18 138:26	98:8 114:22
115:8 117:7,8	132:7 134:14	<b>race</b> 127:24	139:1 146:17	116:9
117:9 120:13	135:11 140:6	<b>raced</b> 59:17 66:1	147:13 149:18	<b>reality</b> 54:1 67:4
123:16,24,26	144:9 145:26	<b>Racket</b> 125:15	<b>Rancher</b> 56:15	<b>realize</b> 56:7
125:14 126:20	147:22,26	125:16	<b>range</b> 128:6	78:25 85:5,13
128:5 129:17	150:1	<b>rained</b> 137:23	<b>rapidly</b> 29:22	109:21 118:23
130:8 131:4,6	<b>putting</b> 81:12	<b>rains</b> 32:17	<b>rare</b> 143:8	<b>realized</b> 41:9
132:15 134:23	88:13 95:9	100:13 106:10	<b>Rarely</b> 98:18	75:1 108:18
135:14 136:26	97:16 133:3	<b>raise</b> 144:5	<b>rash</b> 79:1	114:1
139:17 142:11	142:1	<b>raised</b> 27:8	<b>rashes</b> 91:19	<b>really</b> 7:24 8:18
142:14 145:13	<hr/> <b>Q</b> <hr/>	<b>rally</b> 101:12	95:3,5 103:20	10:7 18:6
149:19 151:9	<b>QMD</b> 53:4	<b>Ralph</b> 64:2	113:25	23:12,14 33:10
<b>publicity</b> 101:19	<b>quake</b> 66:24	<b>Ramsey</b> 125:15	<b>rate</b> 13:10 58:5,8	33:11 34:16
<b>published</b> 71:21	<b>qualified</b> 133:13	<b>ran</b> 50:15	133:7	35:13,13 38:21
72:15	<b>quality</b> 19:11	<b>Ranch</b> 10:12	<b>rates</b> 133:9	39:2,17 41:6
<b>publishing</b>	23:2 33:11	15:26 16:19	<b>re-injection</b>	44:11,13,15,22
37:26	35:26 74:3,4,6	18:9,22 19:3	16:14 24:4	61:14 66:12,25
<b>PUC</b> 22:25 41:4	74:8	27:7,8,11,11	<b>reach</b> 11:21 68:5	67:21 69:13
49:24 50:16			<b>reached</b> 131:1	80:11,11 82:26

83:12,13 86:17 100:7 102:18 111:18 112:2 114:17,20 118:12,22,23 118:24 119:8 119:17 120:1 131:26 132:22 140:24 146:3 <b>reason</b> 5:9 10:26 10:26 33:18 51:20 73:13 74:26 78:12 88:25 89:1,2 98:13 118:1 124:8,14,23 131:14 140:7 148:23,23 149:3 <b>reasonable</b> 10:1 92:4 130:12,16 <b>reasons</b> 64:4,5,6 <b>recalled</b> 144:24 <b>received</b> 19:10 42:19 82:17,19 82:21 90:7,9 <b>recognize</b> 21:7,8 37:24 92:25 124:11 126:7 149:2 <b>recommend</b> 136:24 <b>recommended</b> 16:7 42:15 <b>recommending</b> 10:25 11:17 <b>record</b> 6:4 22:21 <b>recorded</b> 7:23 <b>records</b> 43:26 <b>recoup</b> 54:6,7 <b>recover</b> 34:18 58:3,8 <b>red</b> 5:13 <b>redness</b> 95:10 <b>redo</b> 32:9 <b>redone</b> 140:14 <b>reduce</b> 76:11	87:3 <b>redundant</b> 24:13 87:8 109:15 <b>Reed</b> 86:15 <b>refer</b> 46:6 47:21 <b>referenced</b> 29:19 <b>referring</b> 30:9 <b>reflect</b> 19:2 <b>reflected</b> 77:3 <b>refuse</b> 114:19 <b>refused</b> 54:11 136:6 <b>refuses</b> 92:25 <b>refusing</b> 47:17 <b>regained</b> 85:1 <b>regard</b> 34:26,26 36:24 122:15 <b>regarding</b> 10:24 12:22 14:9 34:7 91:15 92:4 <b>regardless</b> 125:25 <b>regards</b> 23:13 <b>regime</b> 30:13 <b>region</b> 13:14 <b>regional</b> 14:3,3 <b>register</b> 105:22 <b>registration</b> 72:26 <b>regular</b> 15:20 94:12 <b>regulate</b> 8:16 100:19 <b>regulating</b> 48:5 <b>regulations</b> 38:2 38:16 50:10,14 54:26 81:14 <b>regulator</b> 100:18 <b>regulators</b> 61:26 62:10 100:19 133:17 145:6 <b>regulatory</b> 143:26 144:7 <b>reimburse</b> 47:12	<b>reimbursed</b> 128:8 <b>reimbursements</b> 82:24 <b>reinject</b> 80:14 80:17 81:1 82:1,2,6 <b>reinjecting</b> 24:23 <b>reinjection</b> 11:9 72:22 <b>reiterate</b> 24:18 <b>related</b> 41:11 91:17 129:5 <b>relations</b> 67:4 <b>release</b> 46:9 93:3 134:4 <b>released</b> 97:13 <b>reliability</b> 13:12 40:4 <b>reliable</b> 39:26 41:13 56:25 <b>reliant</b> 124:4 <b>relocate</b> 40:25 53:11 82:21 128:9 <b>relocated</b> 28:4 78:15 109:17 <b>relocation</b> 22:17 59:14 82:24 111:16 <b>rely</b> 13:16 16:16 53:26 <b>relying</b> 81:23 <b>remained</b> 16:2 <b>remaining</b> 134:13 <b>remediated</b> 98:6 <b>remedied</b> 84:10 <b>remedies</b> 83:25 <b>remedy</b> 106:16 <b>remember</b> 18:3 31:5 38:12 148:4 <b>remind</b> 35:18 36:7 39:5 71:2 <b>reminded</b> 108:22	<b>remove</b> 27:18 65:6 <b>removed</b> 47:24 <b>renew</b> 28:5 <b>renewable</b> 101:21 102:24 102:26 103:3 <b>rent</b> 91:1 <b>reoccurring</b> 98:1 124:3 <b>reopen</b> 46:9,10 48:13 76:12 88:4,12 93:8 94:24 101:4 115:17 131:5 137:7 144:17 146:5 <b>reopened</b> 13:25 39:13,14 41:17 54:2 56:9 109:5 116:1 126:3 148:8 <b>reopening</b> 16:11 76:7 92:10 93:23 144:1 <b>repairs</b> 85:20 <b>repeat</b> 19:14 132:11 133:23 135:20 <b>repetition</b> 119:20 <b>replace</b> 131:22 145:5 <b>replaced</b> 134:12 <b>replaces</b> 144:26 <b>replacing</b> 27:19 <b>report</b> 16:8 47:5 51:25 130:6,20 131:23,25 132:2,8,9 <b>reported</b> 1:20 2:17 46:15 48:3 92:17 <b>Reporter</b> 1:22 2:18 <b>reports</b> 40:26 <b>represent</b> 12:19	13:2 34:24 40:18 61:4 62:2,16,17 79:22 83:10 88:6 123:3,9 <b>representative</b> 15:24 16:12 <b>representatives</b> 7:8 13:26 48:9 57:20 74:5 <b>represented</b> 123:2 <b>representing</b> 9:9 18:23 33:22 61:8 <b>repressurize</b> 58:15 <b>reproductive</b> 92:2 <b>republics</b> 107:5 <b>request</b> 20:2 47:22 54:9 59:3 <b>requested</b> 76:1 <b>require</b> 75:22 98:6 <b>required</b> 6:11 21:6 27:16 29:7 43:19 92:3 <b>requirement</b> 38:14,26 88:4 <b>requirements</b> 28:6,25 <b>requires</b> 9:17,25 23:3,3 <b>research</b> 50:21 71:21 114:3 128:17 139:7 <b>researcher</b> 71:17 <b>researches</b> 128:2 <b>Reseda</b> 116:3 <b>reservoir</b> 106:5 106:8,18,23 <b>resident</b> 34:25 37:12 44:6
--	--	--	--	---

48:23 54:23	54:11	<b>Ricky</b> 146:14	<b>Riseman</b> 145:15	<b>ruin</b> 94:23
56:13 73:9	<b>rest</b> 6:25 117:12	<b>ride</b> 31:13	<b>risk</b> 13:21 22:23	<b>rules</b> 18:4 37:20
79:20 93:11	<b>restarting</b> 39:19	<b>ridiculous</b> 49:23	24:20,25 26:3	38:18 45:15
94:7 96:16	<b>resting</b> 97:6	<b>Ridnour</b> 4:8	26:24,26 37:18	97:18
103:12 111:14	<b>restrooms</b> 5:15	82:13,13	55:16 56:18,21	<b>run</b> 50:14 65:9
120:17 131:10	<b>result</b> 13:13	<b>rig</b> 58:23	71:25,25 72:8	93:23 112:20
135:18	59:19 93:20	<b>rigging</b> 149:5	92:9,18 99:12	116:22 123:23
<b>residents</b> 13:3	117:8	<b>right</b> 6:22 7:7,8	133:24 134:4,8	141:23 143:15
15:25 27:7,14	<b>resulted</b> 150:26	8:7,12 9:6	<b>risking</b> 149:22	<b>running</b> 54:13
28:1,11 47:12	<b>results</b> 75:17	17:26 20:16	<b>risks</b> 37:24	60:3 77:7,13
49:2 76:16	104:16 111:3	26:18 31:1	55:11 87:2,4	90:4
86:25 91:14,24	117:9	32:25 36:13	133:26	<b>runny</b> 77:5,9,10
92:8,13 93:4	<b>resume</b> 70:14	41:22,23 42:23	<b>river</b> 128:11	<b>runs</b> 75:20
100:11 101:1	<b>resumes</b> 30:15	48:15 52:17	<b>rivers</b> 149:15	<b>rupture</b> 26:4,6
113:24 140:7	<b>retired</b> 21:9	54:9,20 56:11	<b>road</b> 80:19	26:16 134:1
147:9,10,11	37:12	60:19 65:14	107:15,16	<b>ruptured</b> 134:9
149:18,23	<b>retirement</b>	69:23 71:10	<b>roads</b> 58:21	<b>rush</b> 46:9,10
<b>residents'</b> 92:16	21:12	73:3 74:21	<b>rock</b> 106:5,5	<b>rushing</b> 76:11
99:7	<b>return</b> 122:9	75:5,5 77:24	137:9	110:1
<b>resolved</b> 15:26	<b>returned</b> 98:3	78:21 81:10,20	<b>Rodarte</b> 12:10	
<b>resource</b> 73:22	138:11	82:4,18 83:14	12:11,13,14	<b>S</b>
<b>resources</b> 1:3,5	<b>returning</b> 93:5	85:5 86:18	<b>Rogers</b> 67:6	<b>Sacramento</b>
2:2,4 8:24 46:5	98:4,24	87:24 88:8	<b>role</b> 13:8 50:7	3:10 5:20 41:1
55:14 81:16	<b>revealed</b> 27:21	92:5 94:22	59:20 73:16	116:18
<b>respect</b> 19:3	<b>reveals</b> 23:22	95:24,25 96:3	<b>rollers</b> 88:14	<b>sacrifice</b> 122:20
38:25 74:8,17	<b>review</b> 1:10 2:9	96:7,12,13,14	<b>rolling</b> 111:5	<b>safe</b> 9:24 31:9
75:8 126:12,13	6:10 9:26	103:10 107:15	<b>Ron</b> 54:18 57:15	39:13,20 55:5
<b>respected</b>	19:11 24:16	108:12 111:9	57:16	60:9 64:2,3
120:11,11	27:20 37:16,16	111:10 113:15	<b>room</b> 8:17 21:26	66:2,26 74:19
<b>respectfully</b> 54:9	37:23 39:1	116:24,25	44:21 45:22,23	76:2 77:2,3,20
<b>respiratory</b>	51:21 52:4	117:6,18	45:24 49:13	77:21 84:13
91:20 128:25	55:8,9,12,17	119:22 120:3	62:11,18 63:1	97:23,24 104:1
<b>respond</b> 110:22	55:21 72:23,24	120:17 121:10	63:8,19 75:2,6	115:1 119:10
123:7,8 131:10	81:18,21 83:4	125:3,9,12,26	89:18 90:15,16	128:21 134:14
<b>responded</b> 23:7	105:6 110:25	126:2,7,23,25	90:17,18 110:2	140:6
105:20	<b>reviewed</b> 37:20	127:8,10,23,25	110:23 123:13	<b>safely</b> 50:14
<b>responders</b>	75:14	128:3,10,23	123:26 143:1	92:14 109:5
122:4	<b>reviving</b> 146:17	129:3,12,14,23	<b>rooms</b> 45:24	<b>safer</b> 25:23
<b>response</b> 37:21	<b>revolution</b> 123:3	134:6 137:3	<b>root</b> 9:19 22:23	55:19,23
43:14,19	129:14	140:18 141:1	24:1,19 28:7	<b>safest</b> 77:22
<b>responsibility</b>	<b>revolve</b> 24:19	144:2,12,13	39:18 42:22,25	<b>safety</b> 1:10 2:9
14:20 49:9	<b>rewrite</b> 28:13	145:7 146:22	76:3,5 85:12	5:8 6:10 9:15
89:11	<b>Richard</b> 3:18	147:4 148:10	87:8,12 93:12	10:5,10 14:9
<b>responsible</b>	39:8,10,10	148:23	99:8 101:5	14:14 16:2,5,9
56:21 89:5,7	67:3	<b>rights</b> 127:9	118:25 134:19	16:13 17:15
89:10 144:20	<b>Rick</b> 83:21,21	<b>rigs</b> 58:24	<b>rose</b> 137:23	19:11 24:20
<b>responsibly</b>	85:23	<b>rise</b> 33:1	<b>routes</b> 105:26	27:18,24,26

32:19 37:15,16 37:18,23 38:15 38:26 39:1,14 47:25 51:21 52:4,17 55:8,9 56:8 58:2 65:7 72:25 81:18,20 82:22 83:4,5 83:15 85:24 87:13 92:16,24 95:21 99:8 108:17,18,23 108:25 110:25 119:24 126:5 131:21 134:10 136:21 <b>sailed</b> 111:7 <b>salaries</b> 70:5 <b>salary-compe...</b> 74:15 <b>sale</b> 60:18 <b>salt</b> 69:22 <b>sampling</b> 106:7 108:2 <b>San</b> 61:4 73:21 73:24 116:21 117:1,10,16 <b>Santa</b> 66:21 71:19 72:3 84:4 108:14 147:18 <b>Saran</b> 95:9 <b>sat</b> 98:26 101:14 101:16 <b>satisfied</b> 55:14 55:16 <b>satisfies</b> 21:15 <b>satisfying</b> 38:22 <b>save</b> 39:11 57:21 79:20 114:8,16 140:2 <b>saving</b> 36:1 <b>saw</b> 37:15 81:11 84:2 124:26 125:1 <b>saying</b> 6:19 7:6 24:13 38:22	81:16 85:10 88:1 103:2 114:10 129:26 130:4 131:24 148:5 <b>says</b> 38:6,8 46:3 49:22 55:10 70:12 81:21 89:12 106:13 106:15 119:24 130:6,7,8,21 <b>SB</b> 138:11 <b>SB146</b> 9:17 11:8 11:16 63:14,18 118:13 <b>SB380</b> 14:6 19:4 130:7 <b>scalp</b> 79:1 <b>scandal</b> 150:25 <b>scared</b> 138:17 147:5 <b>scary</b> 60:13 65:22 <b>scenario</b> 52:15 56:3,3 75:25 <b>schedule</b> 21:12 <b>school</b> 26:9 28:3 48:6 53:9 60:5 65:24,26 66:6 95:11 105:15 112:12 117:15 118:16 122:10 122:13 140:21 141:3,3,12 143:14 <b>schools</b> 28:4 84:14 110:11 <b>science</b> 62:7 123:21 <b>scientific</b> 71:16 <b>scientist</b> 3:3 62:5 75:12 <b>scientists</b> 55:20 99:10 <b>scope</b> 29:2,3,9 29:12 47:9 <b>scorched</b> 87:22	<b>Scott</b> 17:14,14 22:4,9,9 23:19 23:26 24:7 88:1 <b>scratching</b> 136:12 <b>screen</b> 8:10 <b>screwed</b> 42:22 43:21 <b>scuffed</b> 31:14 <b>sealed</b> 16:1 <b>searched</b> 77:1 <b>season</b> 111:5,6,7 <b>seating</b> 59:14 <b>seats</b> 6:21 16:24 16:25,26 <b>second</b> 28:8 39:13 74:2 99:26 112:9 113:2 118:18 122:13 126:2 <b>seconds</b> 36:16 <b>secret</b> 49:22 <b>secretary</b> 112:20 <b>secrets</b> 94:15 127:11 132:23 <b>secure</b> 9:24 29:19 <b>see</b> 6:5 10:18 17:23 18:15 37:16 41:14,15 48:14 50:8 53:12 54:21 59:21 66:20 72:21,25 83:16 84:1,6,16 85:2 85:4,9 86:4 97:11 101:23 110:8,13 115:24 116:10 121:22 123:7 123:14 127:11 129:2 132:12 137:5,13,17,24 138:14,16,23 139:11 140:2 141:15,16	143:7 146:22 146:26 <b>seeing</b> 79:3 80:11 111:3 138:21 <b>seen</b> 61:9 81:5 83:13 116:16 129:10 <b>seepage</b> 58:12 58:16 <b>seeped</b> 137:24 <b>seeping</b> 58:10 <b>seismic</b> 22:24 24:20 26:6,11 54:13 55:18,21 72:23 75:21 76:6 <b>seismically</b> 68:9 <b>self-regulate</b> 8:22 <b>self-respecting</b> 126:13 <b>sell</b> 83:5 85:14 149:5 <b>Sempre</b> 86:15 137:26 <b>Senate</b> 6:12 13:23 <b>Senator</b> 9:17 10:8 11:3,7 33:26 <b>senators</b> 33:6 48:8,9 139:17 <b>send</b> 130:3 <b>sending</b> 25:12 <b>sends</b> 122:3 <b>senior</b> 17:14 58:25 102:8,11 113:17 <b>seniors</b> 40:18,18 41:12 102:9,22 105:9 <b>sense</b> 35:12 87:11 105:10 124:14 136:14 136:15 142:21 <b>sensitivity</b>	141:11 <b>sent</b> 11:16 47:5 70:8 103:18 136:5 <b>sentence</b> 130:7 <b>Separate</b> 100:9 <b>September</b> 27:20 82:16 98:25 103:1 136:2,2 <b>serious</b> 39:3 44:17 50:3 89:3 <b>seriously</b> 49:10 50:9 76:12 126:12 <b>servant</b> 135:3 <b>serve</b> 80:6 84:12 122:16 <b>served</b> 122:2 <b>service</b> 13:5 46:24 76:5 <b>services</b> 13:12 <b>serving</b> 122:6 <b>set</b> 105:20 130:11,13 <b>settling</b> 37:1 <b>seven</b> 12:19 13:3 45:23 77:10 78:17 103:17 111:16 <b>seven-year-old</b> 142:20 143:9 <b>severe</b> 31:26,26 <b>severity</b> 104:23 <b>shake</b> 72:7 <b>shaking</b> 26:3,7 <b>shallow</b> 68:17,18 <b>shame</b> 90:15 <b>shape</b> 143:22 <b>share</b> 37:6 67:22 122:23 <b>shared</b> 109:15 <b>sharing</b> 63:20 104:21 <b>shearing</b> 72:9 <b>sheep</b> 50:7,7
---	--	---	---	---

80:3	48:16,17,17,17	<b>sickness</b> 146:3	129:21	143:3
<b>sheer</b> 6:22	48:18,18 54:14	<b>sicknesses</b> 94:26	<b>sister</b> 100:10	<b>smelled</b> 31:12
<b>sheet</b> 65:15	59:3 60:23,24	<b>side</b> 26:23 27:4	124:22	44:26
66:21	60:24,25 66:17	40:13 62:24	<b>sisters</b> 149:6	<b>smelling</b> 113:24
<b>sheets</b> 99:2	66:17,18 69:21	72:1	<b>sit</b> 19:20 44:15	<b>smog</b> 96:19
110:2	70:1 74:19	<b>side-by-side</b>	54:12 60:13	<b>smoke</b> 84:3 88:9
<b>shell</b> 104:8	78:1 88:15	101:13	61:14 86:2	<b>sneezing</b> 77:7,13
<b>Sherman</b> 61:6	89:15,16 96:7	<b>sides</b> 16:25	116:23 126:16	<b>Snyder</b> 74:5
62:23,23 91:9	99:17,17,18	<b>sight</b> 15:6	<b>site</b> 33:7 43:20	<b>so-called</b> 33:3
91:10	100:12,15,17	<b>sign</b> 13:23	56:26 98:12	114:2
<b>shifts</b> 32:16	100:18,21	<b>signed</b> 9:1 11:18	<b>sites</b> 128:17	<b>soaked</b> 66:8
<b>ship</b> 111:7	111:8 113:7,8	149:11	133:25	<b>SoCalGas</b> 14:4
<b>shipping</b> 130:19	115:2,6,7	<b>significant</b> 55:22	<b>sits</b> 12:21	14:11,13 22:13
<b>Shirley</b> 137:2	116:5,5,12,22	59:20 72:9	<b>sitting</b> 44:20	27:12,14,17,23
138:8,9,10,10	117:2,5,9,24	91:26 124:21	61:24 80:23	28:4,9 29:20
139:13	118:1 121:18	<b>signs</b> 5:14	103:23 122:25	29:22 31:5,8
<b>shockingly</b>	121:21 125:13	<b>similar</b> 16:3	<b>situation</b> 15:26	31:15 37:21
75:21	126:3,8 132:11	75:25 127:16	20:1 26:18	38:19 46:11
<b>shore</b> 38:11	134:21 136:22	<b>simple</b> 35:5 42:8	53:17 72:5	47:8,9,11,12
128:10	136:23,25,25	122:23 130:3,7	104:23 125:12	47:14,16,18,20
<b>short</b> 25:11 88:2	137:6,19 138:5	<b>simply</b> 93:5	<b>six</b> 20:3 31:18	47:23,24 49:21
132:10	138:6,6 139:11	105:21 130:18	47:26 48:3	50:8,16 51:3
<b>shortage</b> 150:7	139:17 144:13	<b>sincerely</b> 46:2	52:23 64:10	53:16,20 54:5
<b>shortages</b> 13:21	147:8 151:8	<b>singing</b> 143:9	71:8 93:19,19	55:4,23 68:20
14:7 21:16,21	<b>shuts</b> 126:18	<b>single</b> 51:23	99:6 107:18	76:1 77:1
47:4	<b>shutting</b> 36:10	59:22 76:15	109:17 136:1,8	81:20 82:23
<b>shortened</b> 60:12	102:25 135:13	89:5,9 90:15	140:16	85:13,16 86:11
<b>shortly</b> 10:21	<b>Shuttle</b> 67:6	112:22 128:7	<b>sixth</b> 129:10	88:3,5,10 90:7
135:22	<b>shy</b> 124:8	149:17	<b>sixty-seven</b>	90:14,25 92:2
<b>shortness</b> 76:23	<b>sic</b> 126:1	<b>sink</b> 97:2	128:18	92:6,15,17,23
136:10	<b>sick</b> 28:11 33:16	<b>sinkhole</b> 105:15	<b>size</b> 48:25	93:2 94:10
<b>shot</b> 137:7	45:4,22 59:17	<b>sinus</b> 94:17	105:14 106:4	97:13,14,25
<b>show</b> 33:2 42:26	59:23 60:5,5	<b>sir</b> 18:20 19:8	<b>skin</b> 79:4 103:20	98:12,21 99:13
88:24 130:16	65:19 66:1,3	25:18 27:5	<b>skip</b> 7:5 78:8,22	101:4,15,18,23
136:20 140:4	77:23,26 81:7	28:21 31:2	<b>slaughter</b> 80:3	114:19 121:17
<b>showing</b> 101:12	82:4 83:8,17	32:24 34:13	<b>sleep</b> 99:4	121:19 123:14
140:2	86:17 94:8	35:18,21 36:7	112:26	128:19 130:3
<b>shown</b> 40:1,2	96:20,22 97:1	36:15,23 37:3	<b>slight</b> 6:20	131:10,19,23
44:9 55:15	97:1,14,22	37:5,5,5,7	<b>smacked</b> 78:14	143:4,21
<b>shows</b> 92:14	98:13,19 101:6	40:14 42:1	87:14	144:25 146:9
136:21	103:15 104:11	49:26 50:4	<b>small</b> 29:15 84:5	150:4,10
<b>shrub</b> 52:26	104:11,12,13	51:5,9,12	98:17 141:23	<b>SoCalGas's</b> 53:1
<b>shut</b> 28:14 30:24	104:25 112:19	54:21 56:11	<b>Smart</b> 146:18	91:25
31:7 32:18	113:2,4 114:25	63:24 66:19	<b>smell</b> 94:13	<b>Society</b> 42:10,11
33:9,16 34:19	121:7,8 124:19	86:8 88:11	114:14,15	<b>soil</b> 27:15 28:16
35:6 38:19	128:15 136:18	105:19 107:18	136:15 141:12	28:17 58:10
40:10 42:8,26	142:5 147:11	109:13 121:25	142:20,21	105:13 108:3

127:21	<b>Souther</b> 41:11	<b>speakers</b> 3:14	<b>spilling</b> 117:11	104:7 121:18
<b>soils</b> 108:2	<b>SOUTHERL...</b>	23:9 25:10	<b>spills</b> 38:11	126:25 140:19
<b>solar</b> 101:22	3:24	30:20 32:22	<b>spiritually</b> 85:9	<b>standpoint</b>
102:1 109:7	<b>Southern</b> 16:15	36:12 41:26	<b>spoke</b> 11:8 31:23	58:14
145:23	20:5 25:7	45:7,10 48:19	36:4 41:2 74:5	<b>stands</b> 10:9
<b>sold</b> 42:17	42:17 71:18,20	64:5 71:8,12	142:19	125:5,6 128:20
130:18 131:2	71:26 87:18	78:4 79:18	<b>spoken</b> 125:26	<b>staring</b> 148:16
<b>solution</b> 21:18	129:26 130:9	88:20 105:1	<b>spokesman</b> 88:1	<b>start</b> 6:7 7:25
58:6 148:2	130:15,21,23	118:7 133:18	<b>spread</b> 127:19	27:2 42:8 57:6
<b>solutions</b> 13:9	130:25 131:4	139:15	<b>square</b> 147:22	64:21 88:21
93:23	132:21	<b>speaking</b> 15:7	<b>SS</b> 56:5	95:26 101:26
<b>solved</b> 117:18	<b>southwestern</b>	18:8,24 22:1	<b>SS25</b> 27:18,21	104:3,6 111:18
<b>somebody</b> 34:10	137:17	41:21 44:14	27:23 43:5	112:3,6 113:5
41:12 44:10	<b>Soviet</b> 107:5	61:22 73:11,12	46:7 48:24	130:14 133:9
70:8 74:6	<b>space</b> 15:5 67:6	99:23 116:10	68:12 75:17	133:11
86:18 119:24	<b>span</b> 110:26	118:14,15	76:3 108:16	<b>started</b> 7:2 15:1
132:4 148:3	<b>speak</b> 6:3,17 7:3	126:10 132:19	134:9	99:1,4 101:8
<b>son</b> 27:8,9 94:17	8:14,17,21 9:2	132:26 133:21	<b>SS25A</b> 43:6	108:13 111:17
142:20 143:9	9:12 14:26	<b>special</b> 98:6,7	<b>SS25B</b> 43:6	111:19 113:23
143:11	15:8 19:9	112:17	<b>SS44</b> 43:6	114:2,22 133:3
<b>sons</b> 59:11	25:10 34:5	<b>specialized</b>	<b>SS8</b> 43:6	140:22 141:16
109:19	51:19 62:9	108:19	<b>stabilize</b> 75:24	141:16
<b>soon</b> 12:10 70:15	70:19 73:9	<b>specially</b> 138:25	<b>stack</b> 69:6 70:14	<b>starting</b> 22:25
80:25 116:9	103:7 110:15	148:7	70:18,20 96:14	28:7
123:11	115:11,18,20	<b>specialties</b> 71:23	99:25 126:22	<b>starts</b> 22:2
<b>sooner</b> 69:21	115:25 117:3	<b>specific</b> 13:24	<b>stadium</b> 147:22	<b>state</b> 1:4 2:3
119:22,22	131:12	43:20 52:2	<b>staff</b> 9:10 10:8	3:10 5:20 11:2
<b>sore</b> 103:20	<b>speaker</b> 8:6,7	<b>specifically</b>	15:23 41:1	13:22,26 14:5
143:11	17:19,23 18:19	43:17 148:24	88:19 105:10	15:21 16:6,12
<b>Sorna</b> 138:9,9	30:21 31:3	<b>specified</b> 29:12	145:18	17:9 25:22
139:14	32:25 34:15	<b>speculative</b>	<b>staffs</b> 89:10	29:8,10,10
<b>sorry</b> 26:20 37:5	35:20,22 36:9	133:1	<b>stage</b> 45:26	30:4 33:5
51:15 71:11	36:13,17,24	<b>speech</b> 81:25	<b>stagnant</b> 87:2	35:11 43:5
87:9 91:22	37:4 42:2,5,7	<b>Speed</b> 64:3	<b>stairs</b> 31:20	48:7 55:1,2
105:2 115:11	51:14 57:17	<b>spend</b> 7:17	<b>stake</b> 51:4	57:20 61:4
125:17 131:7	61:2 63:18,26	111:23 113:3,6	<b>stamp</b> 26:15	63:15 72:26
<b>sort</b> 26:11	65:5 67:14,21	133:25	27:20	81:5 82:2 92:1
<b>sorts</b> 124:15	69:4,9 71:2	<b>spent</b> 20:3,5	<b>stand</b> 8:8 11:4	107:24 138:2
<b>souls</b> 129:9	83:19 89:25	31:25 45:23	64:23 101:13	<b>state's</b> 150:25
144:21	94:6 99:19	74:4 83:24	126:7 128:20	<b>stated</b> 20:24
<b>sound</b> 77:20	105:3,25	94:9 98:23	148:8	45:18 88:5
83:7	107:19 109:14	136:8	<b>standard</b> 22:5	92:22
<b>sounds</b> 18:17	113:6 115:10	<b>spewed</b> 32:12	58:21 130:12	<b>statement</b> 19:13
146:26	116:15 123:20	49:20	130:13	19:14 46:3
<b>sources</b> 93:23	125:19 126:24	<b>spewing</b> 19:22	<b>standards</b> 13:24	79:23,24,24
124:10	137:3 142:19	<b>spill</b> 97:21	16:5	81:15,18 88:10
<b>South</b> 15:11	145:2	<b>spilled</b> 149:15	<b>standing</b> 85:6	88:19 95:21

<p><b>states</b> 79:12 120:25 127:22 127:25 <b>statewide</b> 40:17 <b>status</b> 20:26 <b>stay</b> 9:19 27:11 31:7,8 51:11 70:13,24 91:1 96:3 100:1 133:10 <b>staying</b> 133:20 <b>stays</b> 22:22 30:14 <b>stench</b> 53:10 <b>stenographer</b> 17:22 71:6 <b>step</b> 33:26 50:8 93:24 108:2,4 149:17 150:5 <b>Stephenson</b> 107:11,15 <b>stepping</b> 97:3 <b>steps</b> 14:13 16:20 103:24 <b>Stern</b> 9:17 11:3 11:7 118:13 <b>Steve</b> 15:16 <b>stick</b> 45:14 <b>sticking</b> 106:21 <b>stock</b> 100:9 <b>stomach</b> 32:3 65:21 86:17 103:21 <b>stomachaches</b> 35:1 <b>stop</b> 8:1 11:23 49:21 50:10 60:1 61:22 65:23 70:9,9 75:4 83:8,16 95:10,20 106:25 108:19 108:21 109:10 127:20 128:22 141:25 142:4 147:4 <b>stops</b> 107:16</p>	<p><b>storage</b> 1:9 2:8 13:20 16:9,10 26:19 39:23 41:17 42:16,18 53:25 54:26 55:1 62:8 64:1 64:4,8 68:6,17 69:12 70:8 72:2 85:13 94:10 96:1 100:7,16 109:7 111:2 133:8,9 134:1,6 <b>stored</b> 53:23,23 107:25 108:1 <b>stories</b> 56:19 62:14 63:21 80:18 99:25 109:15 116:2 126:17 133:19 134:20 151:11 <b>storm</b> 87:19 <b>story</b> 6:3 59:13 60:9 80:22 98:8 103:16 126:6,15 127:15 142:4 145:2,4 148:23 150:4 <b>straight</b> 8:1,2 60:3 <b>strange</b> 15:13 <b>straws</b> 50:25 <b>streaming</b> 149:9 <b>streams</b> 84:21 <b>streets</b> 58:18 <b>strengthened</b> 41:15 <b>stress</b> 79:3 104:8 143:2 <b>stretcher</b> 112:11 <b>stretchers</b> 112:21 <b>strike</b> 16:15 131:21,22,23 131:23 132:7 132:10,11</p>	<p><b>strikes</b> 131:21 <b>strings</b> 50:8 <b>stripped</b> 84:13 <b>strong</b> 16:5 18:2 <b>strongly</b> 24:22 41:16,16 101:11 <b>struck</b> 84:3 <b>structural</b> 37:19 37:22 <b>structure</b> 105:18 106:20,22 <b>struggles</b> 85:1 <b>struggling</b> 60:5 77:24 <b>stuck</b> 56:24 104:2 <b>students</b> 84:13 128:16 129:7 <b>studies</b> 10:25 22:24 32:13 40:1,2 73:18 73:19 75:21,22 105:7 110:18 <b>studio</b> 98:14 <b>study</b> 19:24 22:24 28:9,26 29:2,3,7,13,20 29:26 30:11,15 32:5 44:17,19 71:24 78:1 86:12 88:2 92:23,26 97:20 97:20,21 99:10 101:7 114:7,19 115:6 119:13 119:13 <b>studying</b> 58:14 <b>stuff</b> 43:9 72:15 81:6 129:4 141:26 <b>stuffed</b> 77:9 <b>stupid</b> 53:19 80:20 <b>Styroom</b> 84:17 <b>sub-surface</b> 42:26 47:25</p>	<p><b>subject</b> 18:18 23:5 <b>submit</b> 43:19 71:3 <b>submits</b> 43:3 <b>submitted</b> 20:22 43:15 71:26 <b>submitting</b> 23:21 24:15 43:13 <b>subsequent</b> 47:19 <b>subsurface</b> 133:24 <b>successful</b> 67:3 <b>successfully</b> 98:14 <b>succession</b> 116:19 <b>successions</b> 116:25 <b>suction-based</b> 145:24 <b>suddenly</b> 136:3 136:3 <b>sue</b> 36:5 137:2 <b>suffer</b> 16:17 32:4 53:5,8 67:15 79:7 <b>suffered</b> 31:21 50:2 60:22 76:22 78:11 79:8 84:25 86:22,23 87:1 89:1 94:17 136:10 <b>suffering</b> 61:15 85:8 95:1,1 96:2 113:10,10 121:8 132:20 <b>suffers</b> 143:1 <b>suggest</b> 39:2 130:11 <b>suggestions</b> 7:16 8:4 <b>suing</b> 22:13 36:26</p>	<p><b>suitable</b> 50:22 <b>suitably</b> 28:9 <b>sulfate</b> 105:4 <b>Sullivan</b> 8:24 17:5,5 80:23 131:12 <b>sum</b> 87:5 <b>summer</b> 84:2 <b>Summers</b> 4:18 146:14,15,16 <b>sun</b> 111:6 <b>Sunshine</b> 147:6 <b>supervisor</b> 10:17 10:21 11:1,2 11:14 17:9,20 <b>supervisors</b> 11:15,18 48:7 55:12 <b>Supplement</b> 26:25 <b>supplier</b> 130:23 150:15 <b>supplies</b> 23:23 <b>supply</b> 20:4 21:1 21:16 41:10,12 47:3 53:24 130:10 131:3 150:18 <b>support</b> 11:16 12:24 13:8 16:5 18:2 41:16 44:17 63:14 73:26 83:10 89:10 101:1 <b>supported</b> 43:26 <b>supporting</b> 30:11 118:13 <b>supposed</b> 53:21 68:1 92:24 100:19 103:3 106:13 109:1 <b>sure</b> 5:24 9:23 14:21,24 15:12 16:20 22:15 25:7 49:17 51:8 58:4</p>
---	---	--	--	---

62:26 63:5,21 70:25,26 82:23 83:11 96:11 101:9 117:4 125:17 126:2 126:15,17 129:3 134:15 135:11 149:2 <b>surely</b> 129:1,1 <b>surface</b> 67:25,25 68:4 69:17 106:19,19 <b>surfaces</b> 68:19 <b>surprised</b> 46:21 122:5 <b>surrounded</b> 39:21 60:5 <b>surrounding</b> 16:17 27:15 <b>surroundings</b> 78:18 <b>survey</b> 27:21,21 <b>surveys</b> 19:26,26 50:21 <b>survived</b> 78:11 <b>Susana</b> 147:18 <b>Susanna</b> 66:21 71:19 72:3 108:14 <b>Sutherland</b> 48:20 51:8 52:19,19 <b>swallow</b> 105:15 <b>swiftly</b> 82:24 <b>swimming</b> 32:10 112:6 <b>switch</b> 101:20 <b>swollen</b> 77:14,17 97:7,11 <b>sworn</b> 122:16 <b>sympathize</b> 121:9 140:25 <b>symptom</b> 77:2 138:11 142:23 <b>symptoms</b> 53:5 76:24 78:10,19 78:21,24,25	91:16 92:21 98:1 104:1 127:16 129:6 143:17 <b>syndrome</b> 79:3 <b>system</b> 20:6 21:14 37:13 58:7 133:7 <b>systems</b> 32:7 134:7 <hr/> <b>T</b> <hr/> <b>table</b> 77:24 137:23 <b>tackle</b> 150:12 <b>tactic</b> 8:20 <b>tagged</b> 114:21 <b>Taj</b> 12:2,4 <b>take</b> 14:19 16:20 19:9 30:22 35:13 46:14 49:5 53:9 59:4 67:1,4 69:2,8 95:13 103:24 106:12 111:26 112:10,14,21 112:24 113:9 115:24 116:20 116:21,22,25 117:10,20,25 141:1 143:12 148:8 <b>taken</b> 2:13 14:14 46:25 63:19 73:16 103:13 109:18 143:24 <b>takes</b> 29:6 85:26 101:9 104:4 <b>talk</b> 5:6 6:8,12 11:24,25 19:15 22:12,20 23:1 34:20 36:18 39:2 64:15 83:10 86:11,18 90:6,19 106:4 117:21 120:17 120:21 121:11	130:5 134:19 140:21 145:23 <b>talked</b> 34:26 35:23 102:10 106:10,17 109:1 135:9 <b>talking</b> 8:1 11:23 29:2,3,5 30:16 41:22 44:13 49:1 52:6,17 90:11 90:20 113:24 114:4 119:1,3 <b>talks</b> 66:21 130:23 <b>Tampa</b> 44:26 53:9 58:17,24 82:18 87:23,23 107:11,17 <b>tanks</b> 68:11 133:26 <b>Task</b> 16:8 <b>taste</b> 136:15 <b>taught</b> 40:23 <b>Taylor</b> 9:8,8 <b>teacher</b> 122:10 127:3 <b>teachers</b> 60:6 <b>team</b> 5:22 6:1 17:15 <b>tear</b> 31:19 146:9 146:9,10 <b>tears</b> 143:10 <b>Tech</b> 38:6 <b>technical</b> 67:23 72:20 105:7 135:5 <b>technology</b> 62:7 63:10 64:19,20 67:3 140:5,6 149:14 <b>teeth</b> 97:10 109:19,20 <b>tell</b> 6:3 26:5 31:21 33:6 37:17,21 46:11 59:13 62:10	64:3,6 70:20 78:10 85:10 86:18 90:14 94:9,14 95:2 95:15 96:6,7 96:22 99:25 101:4 103:18 106:2 114:18 115:5,12,13 116:7 117:13 121:2 125:22 126:14 127:5 127:14,14 137:19 139:7 139:17 140:11 142:4 148:22 149:10 <b>telling</b> 34:10 60:8 66:10 92:8 <b>tells</b> 57:3 142:20 <b>tem</b> 130:15 <b>temper</b> 148:17 <b>temperature</b> 27:21 <b>temple</b> 76:26 <b>temporary</b> 92:22 <b>ten</b> 17:7 45:21 65:18 76:21 80:18 81:25 109:19,19 <b>Ten-year</b> 79:20 <b>tenants</b> 13:7 <b>tens</b> 19:2 <b>term</b> 88:3,9 133:6 <b>terminology</b> 47:21 <b>terms</b> 5:8 15:5 22:20 55:8 <b>terribly</b> 56:20 <b>terrorism</b> 138:4 <b>test</b> 123:25 130:2 134:9 142:14 <b>tested</b> 50:20	<b>testimonies</b> 135:2 <b>testimony</b> 10:22 124:1,19,20 <b>testing</b> 30:13 43:11,12 134:3 134:6 <b>tests</b> 38:3 41:14 41:15 84:20 130:1 134:13 134:15 136:6 <b>Texas</b> 108:20 <b>thank</b> 5:5,5,18 9:2,11 10:14 10:15 11:26 12:11 14:17 15:8,14 16:21 16:22,26 19:10 21:23,25 24:4 25:11,13,25 27:2 28:19 30:17,25 37:3 37:7,7,7,8,8 39:6 40:10 41:18 42:1,7 44:1 46:1,2 48:22 49:2 56:9 57:13,17 57:19 59:5 63:19,20,22 65:10 67:12,20 67:21 68:24 70:9,15 71:11 73:3,4 75:8 76:17 79:6 82:8 86:5 88:17 89:23 91:4 96:8 100:21,23,26 102:2 103:11 104:25 105:3 108:5,5,7 109:10,14 111:10 113:11 113:12,14 115:10 116:13 118:6,7 120:12
---	--	---	--	---

121:23 123:15 131:5,14 132:14 133:14 133:17,18,20 134:22 135:13 136:25 139:13 139:13 142:13 145:14 146:13 148:12 151:12 151:13 <b>Thanksgiving</b> 90:12 <b>theme</b> 124:3 <b>theoretical</b> 124:6 <b>therapist</b> 79:3 <b>thermal</b> 113:21 <b>they'd</b> 102:13,13 <b>thick</b> 45:14 <b>thing</b> 35:5,7 36:14 38:10,14 43:14 45:3,5 48:15 54:9 60:19 68:14 70:2,4 72:24 75:5,5 86:19 86:23 95:25 96:7 106:22 110:17 111:9 111:10 112:18 117:5,8,18 119:16 121:21 125:3 126:18 128:26 137:12 137:19 138:5 140:3,3 143:17 144:13 147:21 149:13 <b>things</b> 5:7 14:24 17:25 22:25 23:9 24:22 25:2,6 26:1 32:4,6 35:6 38:23,24 40:23 41:7 42:23,24 44:10 55:6,7 57:2,23 58:20	61:10,12 72:21 93:6 109:24 116:11 124:15 129:8 130:2 132:23 135:5,7 135:8 142:1 143:15,24 144:23 147:3 148:18 <b>think</b> 9:6 12:4 15:3 17:24 23:4,11 26:24 27:5 37:5,25 41:26 43:5 44:16 48:26 49:26 51:24 53:19 55:14,16 60:3 61:25,26 62:25 65:24 66:25 70:23 71:18 72:20,21 80:8,9 86:12 90:23 96:13 100:7 102:8,24 110:14,21,22 115:22 117:17 118:19,19 119:2,13,15,16 119:18,23 121:9,12,25 123:23 127:26 128:16 131:18 133:3,4,5,12 141:6 144:22 151:6 <b>thinking</b> 102:17 109:25 141:25 142:2 <b>third</b> 77:5 86:25 109:9 <b>Thirdly</b> 88:1 <b>Thirteen</b> 77:11 <b>Thirty</b> 147:7,7 <b>thorough</b> 23:4 72:23 <b>thought</b> 48:25 60:14 94:19,24	96:18 98:15 107:5 131:11 134:18 140:25 <b>thoughts</b> 51:17 67:23 <b>thousand</b> 28:3 67:26 <b>thousands</b> 19:2 40:25 60:20 93:3 114:21 115:24 150:22 <b>threat</b> 21:9 148:11 <b>three</b> 8:9 11:4 45:24,24 59:24 60:15 72:18 87:19 111:17 111:26 113:20 118:7 128:5 131:20 132:7,8 132:9,10,11 133:15 139:3 141:9 <b>three-mile</b> 128:6 <b>throat</b> 79:4 103:20 136:12 <b>throwing</b> 112:3 <b>thrown</b> 141:9 <b>throws</b> 56:17 <b>Thursday</b> 1:16 2:16 5:1 <b>thyroid</b> 140:15 <b>tie</b> 142:1 <b>tight</b> 134:6 <b>Tim</b> 8:24 17:5,5 80:23 130:5,5 <b>time</b> 6:1 7:17 8:9 8:11,13 11:22 17:26 18:3 19:9 23:14 29:18 31:24 33:1 34:6 35:18 36:7,20 39:5 42:9 45:8 45:13 52:5 55:25 57:14 59:5 63:19	65:3,11 67:2 68:23 70:11 74:4,12 75:7 78:19 80:13 81:5,7 99:23 100:1 104:2 109:17,24 112:25 114:1 117:3 120:10 120:14 121:1 128:12 129:11 133:10 134:21 134:21 135:6 135:21 136:1,7 138:17 141:14 142:10 143:7 145:26 146:1 146:10,11,11 146:11,12,24 147:19 <b>time's</b> 132:10 <b>timeframe</b> 10:1 <b>timely</b> 47:11,18 <b>timer</b> 18:13 <b>times</b> 5:17 19:25 52:15 59:24 60:15 80:21 87:19,22 93:19 93:20 122:5 128:15,18 130:21,22 136:1 137:14 141:9 <b>timing</b> 8:19 70:21 <b>tinnitus</b> 97:8 <b>tiny</b> 125:24 <b>tired</b> 20:9 33:16 45:4 116:11 <b>TNT</b> 52:16 <b>today</b> 20:2,25 22:20 35:4 37:16 38:3 51:18 73:9 74:3,6 104:25 107:5,7 124:23 126:26 129:14	133:18 134:16 142:15 <b>told</b> 49:20 52:25 98:7 103:26 104:16 119:6 134:12 138:19 151:6 <b>toll</b> 103:13 <b>Tom</b> 4:4 41:24 41:26 71:9,13 71:14,14 <b>tomorrow</b> 69:11 115:13 134:16 143:11 <b>tonight</b> 5:17,22 5:23 6:2,17 8:18,26 12:8 17:22 27:25 34:15 36:21 42:22 44:3 46:1 49:14,25 55:10 56:20 57:1 61:23 62:11,16,25 63:20 69:7 70:19 71:5,7 95:25 96:7 105:19,21 110:15,22 117:4,21 118:22 120:21 120:23 124:1 133:17 134:18 134:20 144:18 144:18 151:10 <b>tonight's</b> 15:18 <b>tons</b> 28:2 47:26 110:6 <b>tool</b> 8:19 <b>top</b> 10:11 16:2 86:2 <b>tormented</b> 52:22 <b>touch</b> 54:1 <b>tough</b> 130:15 <b>tourist</b> 107:3 <b>town</b> 33:19 67:16 84:2
---	--	---	--	---

148:26 <b>toxic</b> 91:13,24 93:15 149:15 <b>toxins</b> 94:14 <b>track</b> 7:4 <b>tracking</b> 15:20 <b>trade</b> 49:22 94:15 127:11 132:23 <b>traffic</b> 12:9 58:17 <b>tragedies</b> 16:3 <b>tragedy</b> 16:20 70:2 101:12 108:12 <b>tragic</b> 43:23 118:24 <b>trails</b> 28:18 <b>train</b> 129:13,13 141:18 <b>trained</b> 96:5 101:14 <b>transcript</b> 1:14 2:13 17:22 71:7 <b>transcripts</b> 22:6 <b>transit</b> 12:7 13:18 <b>transition</b> 57:3,7 57:10,13 58:7 <b>transparency</b> 21:4 49:18 57:10,13 73:1 147:1 <b>transparent</b> 57:9 <b>transport</b> 67:19 93:18 <b>travels</b> 84:5 127:20,21,21 <b>Travis</b> 4:12 100:23,26 <b>treasurer</b> 45:11 45:19 <b>treated</b> 71:4 <b>treating</b> 109:9 <b>treatment</b>	136:21 <b>treatments</b> 121:9 <b>tremendous</b> 50:12,13 73:22 97:8 126:11 143:4 <b>trials</b> 11:12 <b>tribulations</b> 11:12 <b>tribute</b> 99:1 <b>trichloric</b> 95:18 <b>tried</b> 7:4 138:13 <b>trigger</b> 50:10 <b>trouble</b> 8:18 <b>troubled</b> 149:1 <b>troublesome</b> 76:13 <b>troubling</b> 92:10 <b>truck</b> 58:17 139:10,10 <b>true</b> 130:23 <b>truly</b> 56:25 93:10 <b>trust</b> 27:13 56:23 99:13 116:8 <b>trusting</b> 49:16 49:17 <b>truth</b> 75:2 97:17 <b>try</b> 8:22 17:25 18:4,17 36:15 54:26 108:20 <b>trying</b> 20:11 52:7 54:5 60:4 66:2 88:17,18 103:2 104:10 104:15 119:18 119:26 147:24 <b>Tubes</b> 38:12 <b>tubing</b> 67:24 <b>Tuesday</b> 66:4 <b>tumor</b> 78:11 <b>tunnel</b> 107:10,14 <b>turn</b> 28:17 90:21 143:10 <b>turned</b> 19:25	39:23 <b>Turner</b> 3:5 17:17,17 <b>turning</b> 8:20 14:23 90:24 <b>turns</b> 109:3 <b>Twain</b> 148:19 <b>Twelve</b> 77:17 <b>Twenty</b> 77:5,5,6 <b>Twenty-eight</b> 77:14 <b>Twenty-four</b> 59:18 <b>Twenty-nine</b> 77:8,15,18 <b>Twenty-second</b> 77:12 <b>Twenty-seven</b> 77:13 <b>Twenty-six</b> 48:22 <b>twice</b> 77:4 <b>twist</b> 146:7 <b>twitching</b> 76:26 <b>two</b> 8:9 17:24 18:19 19:25 25:15,16 28:6 30:20 32:22 37:13 39:11 45:7,9,21,23 53:3 57:2 59:11,24 67:2 67:14 70:22 72:6,21 75:7 78:4 94:8 95:4 99:2 100:8 105:15 109:19 111:4 114:12 124:20 128:18 131:23 132:8 135:25 <b>two-and-a-half</b> 127:4 <b>Two-thousand</b> 79:22 <b>Tylenol</b> 141:7,8 <b>type</b> 23:5 30:11	30:15 56:16 95:5 119:20 <b>types</b> 10:6 <b>typically</b> 39:15 <hr/> <b>U</b> <hr/> <b>U.S</b> 47:24 48:9,9 76:16 85:16 93:21 <b>uh-huh</b> 81:17 <b>ultimate</b> 125:4 <b>ultimately</b> 11:19 119:26 120:8 <b>unable</b> 102:9 <b>unacceptable</b> 79:9 80:8,10 93:6 <b>unanimously</b> 11:17 <b>unblock</b> 137:17 <b>uncertainties</b> 87:1 <b>uncertainty</b> 61:16 <b>uncomfortable</b> 80:7 <b>unconscionable</b> 79:8 94:16 95:24 <b>uncontrollable</b> 46:9 <b>undergo</b> 136:5 <b>underground</b> 64:1 68:6 69:14 105:25 106:2 108:20 111:4 133:26 <b>underscore</b> 23:15 <b>understand</b> 11:14 14:7 20:9,10 41:7 44:12 55:4 56:22,23 58:1 58:5 62:5,6 89:13,20 93:7 109:4 124:13	124:15 126:1 <b>understanding</b> 13:22 <b>understood</b> 9:21 41:9 <b>undetected</b> 83:26 <b>undo</b> 16:19 67:1 <b>unfabricated</b> 47:3 <b>unfair</b> 127:18 <b>unfortunately</b> 15:17 83:23 95:17 141:13 <b>unhealthy</b> 102:14 <b>unhumane</b> 126:1 <b>UNIDENTIFI...</b> 30:21 31:3 32:25 34:15 35:20,22 36:9 36:13,17,24 37:4 42:2,5,7 57:17 61:2 63:18,26 65:5 67:14,21 69:9 105:3,25 109:14 113:6 115:10 116:15 123:20 125:19 126:24 142:19 <b>Unified</b> 48:6 110:12 <b>uninterested</b> 45:26 <b>unique</b> 57:1 72:4 <b>united</b> 11:4 79:12 91:3 127:22,25 <b>University</b> 5:20 128:2 <b>unknown</b> 104:9 <b>unnecessary</b> 76:10 97:16 <b>unprecedented</b> 79:11
---	--	--	---	--

<b>unreasonable</b> 143:23	<b>vacuum</b> 145:24	<b>Viejo</b> 21:15	104:20	147:8,20 148:7
<b>unsafe</b> 39:16	<b>Valley</b> 56:13	<b>views</b> 7:11	<b>walls</b> 31:14	148:9
103:5	61:4,17 67:16	<b>villain</b> 145:8,10	<b>Walt</b> 4:19	<b>wanted</b> 7:6,6
<b>untrained</b> 83:26	73:21 116:16	145:10,11	148:13,14	19:26 22:12
<b>unusual</b> 143:3	116:21 117:1	<b>violate</b> 138:2	149:20	25:23 30:24
144:4	117:11,12,12	<b>violated</b> 56:23	<b>Walter</b> 148:14	120:2 140:14
<b>update</b> 53:12	117:13 118:16	<b>violence</b> 118:3	<b>Wanda</b> 40:13	<b>wanting</b> 94:24
<b>updated</b> 43:8	127:7 128:11	<b>Virginia</b> 148:26	<b>want</b> 5:25 6:4	143:26 150:19
<b>updates</b> 5:8	136:18 147:24	149:8 151:5	7:17 8:8,17	<b>wants</b> 10:10
<b>upgrading</b> 58:21	<b>values</b> 87:3	<b>vision</b> 85:1 97:7	9:11 10:7,7	64:15 70:22
<b>upset</b> 34:16	<b>valve</b> 43:1 58:2	<b>visit</b> 31:10 98:18	11:21 14:19,22	119:19 120:5
74:23	64:21,24 69:23	98:23	14:23 18:2,5	<b>warning</b> 137:7
<b>upsetting</b> 102:12	108:17 119:24	<b>visual</b> 18:14	18:26 20:24,25	<b>warnings</b> 92:4,7
<b>upward</b> 133:13	131:22	<b>vital</b> 10:4 28:26	21:3,7,19	92:7
<b>urban</b> 68:9	<b>valves</b> 27:18,24	<b>voice</b> 14:24 15:7	22:18,20 23:15	<b>warranted</b> 76:14
<b>urge</b> 27:1 49:26	37:14 38:13	18:2 62:25	24:13 25:7,9	<b>Washington</b>
51:5 99:14	47:25 52:17	81:9,9 90:6	25:10,25 26:1	15:19 125:1
100:18,18,20	65:7 67:24	117:10 150:4	26:4 32:10	<b>wasn't</b> 49:12
<b>urged</b> 26:5	68:3 108:18	<b>voices</b> 7:6 62:15	34:12 35:24	53:1 60:8
48:10	134:11	62:18	36:13 37:6,14	61:22 72:12
<b>urges</b> 16:12	<b>Van</b> 115:13,17	<b>volatile</b> 108:25	38:21 41:14,14	89:4 114:1
<b>urging</b> 12:25	115:20,25	<b>volunteered</b>	45:15,25 46:1	117:6 120:22
<b>urine</b> 77:15	116:1,7	74:12	48:11 49:5,9	120:23 128:13
<b>usage</b> 21:14 40:8	<b>vapor</b> 133:2	<b>vomit</b> 99:3	49:22 54:24	140:25 149:12
<b>USC</b> 139:1	<b>variety</b> 39:16	<b>vomited</b> 98:3	56:26 57:1,23	150:16,17
<b>use</b> 8:19 50:22	<b>varying</b> 35:9	<b>vomiting</b> 91:20	62:24 64:26	<b>wastewater</b>
51:5 80:13	<b>vast</b> 118:16	92:21 97:2,11	67:22 70:19,24	150:23
105:9 111:6	<b>venom</b> 49:13,14	103:19 141:2	70:24,26,26	<b>wasting</b> 52:5
131:2 134:14	<b>venting</b> 42:24	<b>vomits</b> 112:6	78:13,13 79:7	<b>watch</b> 70:12
135:25 137:17	94:12	<b>vote</b> 62:12,13	80:13 85:10,11	95:17 113:18
151:7	<b>Ventura</b> 71:16	<b>voters</b> 118:12	85:26 88:24	<b>watching</b> 53:8
<b>useful</b> 5:21	<b>verified</b> 45:2	123:6,12	90:5,14,18	97:18 108:12
<b>uses</b> 85:13	<b>vernacular</b> 46:7	147:24	91:2 94:9	120:26 124:19
<b>usual</b> 144:2	<b>Vernon</b> 33:8	<hr/> <b>W</b> <hr/>	100:5 101:18	150:20
<b>usually</b> 148:15	<b>version</b> 6:24	<b>wait</b> 60:13 89:16	104:21 109:14	<b>water</b> 69:22,22
148:17,17	7:23	117:22 129:11	113:3 114:20	73:18,18,19,20
<b>UTI</b> 76:25	<b>vetted</b> 23:11	<b>waiting</b> 99:7	115:12 117:11	73:23 74:20
<b>utilities</b> 8:25	<b>vetting</b> 23:4	123:7	117:14,14	91:13 113:18
9:25 17:6,20	<b>VICA</b> 46:20	<b>wake</b> 136:13	118:2,4,5	119:5,8 124:18
41:2 130:8	74:23,24	143:10	119:8,11 120:3	127:10 137:23
131:4	<b>Vice</b> 40:16	<b>walk</b> 31:20	120:4,8,11	140:24 150:24
<b>utility</b> 15:22	<b>VICKI</b> 96:16	80:13	121:3,17,17	<b>waters</b> 127:21
101:8	<b>Vicky</b> 96:10,12	<b>walked</b> 80:4,5	126:26 129:12	<b>wave</b> 138:15,16
<b>utmost</b> 9:15	96:16	80:10	131:12 132:3	<b>way</b> 5:13,15 8:5
<hr/> <b>V</b> <hr/>	<b>video</b> 106:7	<b>Walker</b> 17:14,14	133:16,18,19	8:20 11:25
	116:1,8 117:2	<b>walking</b> 96:24	135:2 139:7,25	14:25 18:5
	140:5		140:9 142:7	20:12 29:26

30:16 38:21 47:20 49:16 51:1 52:7 60:20 63:7 64:11 71:1 80:16 84:13 89:6 93:5 106:11 109:22 112:25 116:21 124:4 149:17 150:5 <b>ways</b> 40:4 71:3 84:8 90:22 119:3 <b>we'll</b> 9:2 25:12 26:10,16 63:16 69:5 70:14 83:16 100:2 145:3 <b>we're</b> 5:10 8:1,2 10:11 11:10,19 11:26 12:16,21 15:2 17:25 22:16,19 26:18 29:1,2,4,23,25 30:16 32:3,4 33:16,20 34:18 40:19 41:5 42:22 43:12 46:2 50:6 52:21 53:19 69:2,8 70:26 73:23 75:3,4 80:6,6,14 81:26 82:18,20 83:6 96:4 103:4 105:19 105:20,21,23 111:3 115:1,5 116:4 117:13 118:12,26 119:3 123:2 124:5 126:22 129:19,20 131:15,16 133:13 134:12 146:17,19,19	147:8,12,24 <b>we've</b> 21:11,11 26:22 30:13 35:1 36:2 39:16 40:22 44:9 46:17 52:22,24,24 53:14 58:25 78:8 80:3,8,9 81:6 83:12 84:1 86:22 95:1 113:19 114:17 131:16 142:23,25,26 147:23 <b>weak</b> 26:23 72:1 138:21 <b>weakest</b> 144:15 <b>wearing</b> 140:3 <b>web</b> 72:16,16 <b>website</b> 7:22,23 <b>wedding</b> 136:17 <b>week</b> 16:18 22:25 35:17 136:16 <b>weight</b> 71:4 <b>welcome</b> 25:19 34:8 51:11 71:5 <b>welfare</b> 27:26 <b>well-being</b> 20:15 88:14 101:2 <b>well-casing</b> 56:2 56:5 <b>well-documen...</b> 75:19 <b>well-engaged</b> 83:6 <b>well-informed</b> 83:6 <b>well-positioned</b> 14:16 <b>wellness</b> 101:7 <b>wells</b> 30:13 39:15 40:24 42:20 49:21 50:20,21,25	55:3 56:1 58:11,15 64:7 64:9,9,11,16 68:12,13,14,15 68:20 69:14,15 72:2,15 89:9 93:12 100:6 103:6 106:4,23 107:1,20,22 108:14,15,18 111:6,8 130:17 130:19 134:13 134:17 137:17 137:21 138:6 150:23 <b>went</b> 7:7,8,9 41:2 45:2 53:16 90:11 94:19 110:4 117:15 118:16 136:16 138:18 140:8,13 <b>weren't</b> 7:1 24:8 50:18 130:4 140:20 149:21 <b>West</b> 61:4 100:26 147:21 148:26 149:8 151:4 <b>Westfield</b> 147:21 <b>Westlake</b> 78:16 <b>Westwood</b> 78:16 <b>what-ifs</b> 52:1 <b>whatsoever</b> 92:9 <b>wheels</b> 31:13 <b>wheezing</b> 97:7 136:11 <b>whistles</b> 139:24 <b>white</b> 135:5 <b>Whittier</b> 71:22 <b>who've</b> 33:12 51:18 <b>whoa</b> 79:6 <b>wife</b> 27:7,9 84:24 <b>wife's</b> 49:1	<b>wilderness</b> 20:11 50:5 <b>wildlife</b> 28:18 <b>Williams</b> 41:25 42:1 <b>willing</b> 66:4 135:11 <b>win</b> 51:2 <b>wind</b> 102:1 109:6 135:18 145:23 <b>windiest</b> 87:17 <b>windows</b> 31:7 96:23 <b>winds</b> 56:14 94:20,22 <b>windy</b> 141:3 <b>WINKLER</b> 3:6 <b>winter</b> 97:14 <b>wipe</b> 99:1 <b>wiped</b> 147:15 <b>wiping</b> 146:19 <b>wish</b> 52:20 120:1 120:6,6 128:8 <b>withdraw</b> 53:17 <b>withdrawal</b> 16:14 21:6 23:16 48:4 64:16 <b>withstand</b> 64:23 <b>withstanding</b> 68:16 <b>witnessed</b> 58:17 <b>witnesses</b> 27:16 <b>woes</b> 44:21 <b>woke</b> 138:12 <b>woman</b> 31:1 <b>women</b> 102:11 <b>wonder</b> 35:14,15 87:7 102:20 <b>wonderful</b> 34:25 75:6 <b>wondering</b> 59:26 60:13 <b>Woodland</b> 1:15 2:14 5:1 59:14 78:15 147:20	<b>word</b> 30:24 34:17,17 35:3 37:16 46:14 119:14,15 130:9,11 <b>words</b> 37:15 52:3 82:26 137:4 <b>work</b> 5:19,26 8:6 10:12 11:5 14:4,11,20 37:13,13 38:13 38:13 40:5,20 40:23 54:26 57:20 62:2,2,3 62:3,12 65:6 72:18 79:6 91:3 114:17 115:3,4 123:21 124:12 127:2,3 128:12 133:22 133:24 134:2,8 135:3 140:9,9 140:14,16 145:17 <b>worked</b> 16:3 41:6 55:2 61:7 71:16,19 85:7 127:15 <b>working</b> 44:12 54:25 63:21 91:12 112:11 112:12 113:19 114:17,23 127:4 135:20 149:18,26 <b>works</b> 52:2 116:3 133:11 135:6 <b>workshop</b> 67:17 <b>world</b> 47:4 101:22 109:10 124:7,8 128:20 148:18 <b>worried</b> 80:26 102:21 <b>worry</b> 36:26
--	---	--	---	--

<b>worrying</b> 62:22	29:1,23 32:17	74:4 140:19	<b>127</b> 4:16	54:6
<b>worse</b> 75:25	40:19,20,22	142:19	<b>128</b> 4:17	<b>2001</b> 78:11
146:22,22	46:22 48:23	<b>yet-to-be-com...</b>	<b>13</b> 96:17 129:12	<b>2004</b> 43:1
<b>worst</b> 52:15 53:7	52:24 62:21	76:8	<b>13825CONS-...</b>	<b>2005</b> 86:20 87:4
60:12 76:15	64:19,24 68:7	<b>York</b> 104:15	1:25	87:20 127:9
84:26 98:20	68:13,16,16	124:26	<b>13th</b> 59:13	<b>2007</b> 127:12
138:19 150:24	86:25 90:8	<b>Yosemite</b> 136:16	<b>14</b> 3:15	<b>2011</b> 127:13
<b>worth</b> 93:1	91:22 92:25	136:17	<b>142</b> 4:18	<b>2012</b> 149:8
119:2	93:4 96:26	<b>young</b> 4:15	<b>144</b> 4:19	<b>2013</b> 75:26
<b>wouldn't</b> 73:15	97:26 98:2,12	45:20 118:8,11	<b>15</b> 42:19 47:3	<b>2014</b> 149:21
89:4	101:23 102:23	118:11 126:10	66:3 73:23	<b>2015</b> 13:23 43:1
<b>wrap</b> 35:19	138:11 139:21		80:4 83:12	59:13 75:15
36:15,18 113:5	139:23 150:13	<b>Z</b>	85:7 89:2	82:14 86:16,22
145:1 150:8	<b>year-and-a-half</b>	<b>zero</b> 47:3,3	94:18	91:14 93:13
<b>Wrapp</b> 95:9	57:26	122:25	<b>15,000</b> 147:22	108:13 114:9
<b>wrapping</b> 50:13	<b>years</b> 17:7 27:7	<b>zone</b> 87:14,16	<b>15,000,000</b> 124:7	128:13 140:8
85:5 95:8,9	27:16 29:6,14	<b>zoning</b> 147:12	<b>168</b> 52:8	<b>2016</b> 53:4 77:1
<b>write</b> 38:18 64:5	31:4,22,26		<b>17</b> 94:7,9,11,18	87:21 128:4,14
71:5 131:17	32:4 36:2 38:6	<b>0</b>	<b>17th</b> 141:2	136:2 140:12
<b>writing</b> 43:13	38:8 39:15,17	<b>04</b> 127:15	<b>18</b> 33:25	<b>2017</b> 1:16 2:16
98:26 143:17	42:13 47:25	<b>08</b> 127:16	<b>1917</b> 145:25,25	5:1 86:25
<b>written</b> 24:15	50:24 53:6		<b>1928</b> 84:23	145:25
25:12	54:8 55:23	<b>1</b>	<b>1933</b> 26:13	<b>2030</b> 129:11
<b>wrong</b> 12:5	56:13 64:2,16	<b>1-800-CUT-S...</b>	<b>1966</b> 39:22	<b>21-year</b> 44:6
33:14,15 64:11	65:19 68:13	114:15	<b>1975</b> 106:26	<b>21st</b> 101:25
71:11 82:5	71:18 76:21	<b>1,400</b> 96:18	107:1	<b>22nd</b> 35:16
89:16 91:7	78:9 79:5	<b>1,500</b> 128:8	<b>1979</b> 27:17 43:2	138:12
125:17 135:13	80:18,18,18	<b>1.25</b> 48:23	107:3 108:17	<b>23</b> 27:7
140:13 142:8	85:7,7 86:20	<b>1.4</b> 46:12	<b>1980</b> 140:5	<b>24</b> 23:17 98:4
<b>wronged</b> 131:16	91:11 94:8,9,9	<b>1.7</b> 135:18	<b>1991</b> 27:22	<b>24th</b> 45:1 53:18
<b>wrote</b> 12:23 41:4	94:11,18 95:4	<b>10</b> 20:5 95:4	<b>1992</b> 27:20	141:10
64:2 131:23,25	95:4,12,22	<b>10,000,000</b> 151:2	<b>1994</b> 55:25	<b>25</b> 23:17 38:8
132:1	96:17 102:17	<b>10:00</b> 70:22	66:24 139:2,5	105:14 120:16
	103:4,6 107:9	99:20 126:22	<b>1999</b> 42:15	129:25 134:11
	107:9 108:15	<b>10:34</b> 151:16	<b>19th</b> 87:21	139:3
<b>X</b>	111:15,23	<b>100</b> 73:25	<b>1st</b> 27:20 77:1,3	<b>25th</b> 53:18 114:9
<b>X</b> 3:13 4:1	113:20,25,26	<b>100,000</b> 28:1	77:19	<b>26</b> 79:5
	114:5 120:16	<b>104</b> 4:14		<b>26-year</b> 131:10
<b>Y</b>	127:4 129:12	<b>11</b> 141:14	<b>2</b>	<b>28</b> 87:22 111:15
<b>yard</b> 97:3 122:7	129:25 134:8	<b>11-year-old</b>	<b>2</b> 1:16 5:1 26:25	<b>29</b> 26:20
<b>yeah</b> 15:12 36:9	134:10,11,15	141:18	<b>2,000</b> 52:15	<b>2nd</b> 77:15
36:22 42:5	135:4 137:20	<b>114</b> 4:15 134:13	124:8	
57:17 79:23	139:3,3 146:11	<b>12</b> 32:26 69:11	<b>20</b> 3:16 26:20	<b>3</b>
81:17 105:3	147:7,7	86:20 95:12	36:16,18 91:11	<b>3.17</b> 86:16
110:5 145:6	<b>yesterday</b> 19:1	<b>12-year-old</b>	91:11 134:8	<b>30</b> 36:18 47:25
<b>year</b> 13:10 19:7	19:14 20:24	65:18 126:14	<b>20-year</b> 135:18	50:24 54:7
19:18 20:5	35:3 37:15	<b>120</b> 64:26	<b>200,000,000</b>	139:3
22:14 25:6				

<b>30,000</b> 18:23	137:20	<b>94</b> 71:21 72:8		
<b>300,000</b> 35:25,25	<b>60-year-old</b>	<b>95</b> 84:17		
<b>300,000,000</b>	64:26	<b>96</b> 4:12		
46:15	<b>60,000</b> 46:22	<b>99</b> 4:13		
<b>33</b> 3:17	<b>61</b> 4:3	<b>9th</b> 146:23		
<b>34</b> 134:12	<b>63</b> 68:12,13			
<b>35</b> 3:18 71:18	<b>6360</b> 2:14			
135:4	<b>65</b> 92:3 103:3			
<b>36</b> 3:19	<b>650,000,000</b>			
<b>37</b> 78:9	85:17			
<b>380</b> 6:12 13:23	<b>67</b> 4:4			
<b>39</b> 99:19,25	<b>69</b> 4:5			
145:18	<b>69.3</b> 50:19			
<b>39A</b> 43:7	<b>69G</b> 43:7,7			
<b>3rd</b> 77:8	<b>6th</b> 53:4 77:9			
<hr/> <b>4</b> <hr/>	<hr/> <b>7</b> <hr/>			
<b>4-0</b> 56:5	<b>7</b> 27:22			
<b>4.1</b> 150:14	<b>7:53</b> 70:12			
<b>4.7</b> 150:11	<b>7:54</b> 70:12			
<b>4/40</b> 147:4	<b>70</b> 12:17 13:2			
<b>40</b> 3:20 31:22	<b>71</b> 4:6			
<b>400</b> 68:1	<b>75</b> 4:7 13:13			
<b>400-pound</b>	<b>78</b> 4:8			
69:19	<hr/> <b>8</b> <hr/>			
<b>40th</b> 40:19	<b>8:00</b> 69:2,7			
<b>41</b> 3:21	70:12			
<b>43</b> 31:4	<b>8:10</b> 70:17			
<b>44</b> 3:22	<b>8:12</b> 70:17			
<b>45-year</b> 56:12	<b>8:43</b> 88:19			
<b>47</b> 3:23	<b>80</b> 39:15 52:11			
<b>48</b> 3:24	103:6 108:15			
<hr/> <b>5</b> <hr/>	123:22			
<b>5.0</b> 40:8	<b>82</b> 4:9			
<b>5.7</b> 40:7	<b>83</b> 71:22			
<b>5:00</b> 2:15 5:2	<b>8300</b> 106:19			
<b>50</b> 3:25 38:6,8	<b>84</b> 4:10			
39:15 55:22	<b>85</b> 4:11			
<b>500</b> 51:18 52:5	<b>87</b> 71:22			
121:5	<b>8th</b> 77:4			
<b>52</b> 3:26 59:21	<hr/> <b>9</b> <hr/>			
<b>55</b> 4:2 58:25	<b>9/11</b> 32:4			
<hr/> <b>6</b> <hr/>	<b>9:03</b> 99:19			
<b>60</b> 108:15	<b>900</b> 121:5			
134:10,15	<b>911</b> 112:7,7,21			